
 

BOARD 

AGENDA 

Thursday, December 4, 2014 
9:00 A.M. 

 

San Diego International Airport 
Commuter Terminal – Third Floor 

Board Room 
3225 N. Harbor Drive 

San Diego, California  92101 
 
 

Live webcasts of Authority Board meetings can be accessed at 
http://www.san.org/airport_authority/boardmeetings.asp. 

 
This Agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered.  The 
indication of a recommended action does not indicate what action (if any) may be taken. 
Please note that agenda items may be taken out of order.    If comments are 
made to the Board without prior notice or are not listed on the Agenda, no specific 
answers or responses should be expected at this meeting pursuant to State law. 
 

Staff Reports and documentation relating to each item of business on the Agenda are on 
file in Corporate & Information Governance and are available for public inspection. 
 

NOTE:  Pursuant to Authority Code Section 2.15, all Lobbyists shall register as an 
Authority Lobbyist with the Authority Clerk within ten (10) days of qualifying as a lobbyist.  
A qualifying lobbyist is any individual who receives $100 or more in any calendar month to 
lobby any Board Member or employee of the Authority for the purpose of influencing any 
action of the Authority.  To obtain Lobbyist Registration Statement Forms, contact the 
Corporate & Information Governance/Authority Clerk Department. 
 

PLEASE COMPLETE A "REQUEST TO SPEAK” FORM PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF 
THE MEETING AND SUBMIT IT TO THE AUTHORITY CLERK.   PLEASE REVIEW THE 
POLICY FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS (PUBLIC COMMENT) LOCATED AT THE END OF THE AGENDA. 
 

The Authority has identified a local company to provide oral interpreter and translation 
services for public meetings.  If you require oral interpreter or translation services, please 
telephone the Corporate & Information Governance/Authority Clerk Department with your 
request at (619) 400-2400 at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 

http://www.san.org/airport_authority/boardmeetings.asp
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CALL TO ORDER: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
A. PRESENTATION OF THE CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR 

EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2013: 
Presented to the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority, Scott Brickner, Vice 
President, Finance & Asset Management/Treasurer, and Kathy Kiefer, Senior 
Director, Finance & Asset Management by Lisa Marie Harris, Director of Finance, 
San Diego County Water Authority 

  
B. PRESENTATION FROM BKD, LLP, EXTERNAL AUDITOR, REGARDING 

EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014, REPORTS: 
 Presented by Kathy Kiefer, Senior Director, Finance & Asset Management; BKD, LLP 
 
REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES, AD HOC COMMITTEES, AND CITIZEN 
COMMITTEES AND LIAISONS: 
 
STANDING BOARD COMMITTEES 
 

 AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
Committee Members:  Gleason, Hollingworth, Hubbs, Sessom, Smisek (Chair), 
Tartre, Van Sambeek 
 

 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE: 
Committee Members:  Alvarez, Gleason, Hubbs (Chair), Robinson 
 

 EXECUTIVE PERSONNEL AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE: 
Committee Members: Cox, Desmond (Chair), Hubbs, Sessom, Smisek 

 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE: 

Committee Members:  Alvarez, Cox (Chair), Hubbs, Robinson, Sessom 
 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
 

 AUTHORITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE: 
Liaison:  Robinson, Smisek 

 

 ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE: 
Committee Member:  Gleason 
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LIAISONS 
 

 AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN FOR SAN DIEGO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT: 
Liaison:  Robinson 
 

 CALTRANS: 
Liaison:  Berman 
 

 INTER-GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS: 
Liaison:  Cox 

 

 MILITARY AFFAIRS: 
Liaison:   
 

 PORT: 
Liaisons:  Cox, Gleason (Primary), Robinson 
 

BOARD REPRESENTATIVES (EXTERNAL) 
 

 SANDAG TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE: 
Representatives:  Hubbs, Smisek (Primary) 
 

 WORLD TRADE CENTER: 
Representatives:  Alvarez, Gleason (Primary) 

 
CHAIR’S REPORT: 
 
PRESIDENT/CEO’S REPORT: 
 
NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Non-Agenda Public Comment is reserved for members of the public wishing to address the 
Board on matters for which another opportunity to speak is not provided on the 
Agenda, and which is within the jurisdiction of the Board.  Please submit a completed 
speaker slip to the Authority Clerk.  Each individual speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Applicants, groups and jurisdictions referring items to the Board for 
action are limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
Note:  Persons wishing to speak on specific items should reserve their comments until the 
specific item is taken up by the Board. 
 
  

 



Board Agenda 
Thursday, December 4, 2014 
Page 4 of 10 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items 1-12): 
The consent agenda contains items that are routine in nature and non-controversial.  
Some items may be referred by a standing Board Committee or approved as part of the 
budget process.  The matters listed under 'Consent Agenda' may be approved by one 
motion.  Any Board Member may remove an item for separate consideration.  Items so 
removed will be heard before the scheduled New Business Items, unless otherwise 
directed by the Chair. 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

The Board is requested to approve minutes of prior Board meetings. 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the minutes of the November 6, 2014, regular 
meeting. 
 

2. ACCEPTANCE OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS WRITTEN REPORTS 
ON THEIR ATTENDANCE AT APPROVED MEETINGS AND PRE-APPROVAL 
OF ATTENDANCE AT OTHER MEETINGS NOT COVERED BY THE CURRENT 
RESOLUTION: 
The Board is requested to accept the reports.  
RECOMMENDATION: Accept the reports and pre-approve Board member 
attendance at other meetings, trainings and events not covered by the current 
resolution. 
(Corporate & Information Governance:  Tony Russell, Director/Authority 
Clerk) 

 
3. AWARDED CONTRACTS, APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS FROM  

OCTOBER 13, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 9, 2014, AND REAL PROPERTY 
AGREEMENTS GRANTED AND ACCEPTED FROM OCTOBER 13, 2014, 
THROUGH NOVEMBER 9, 2014: 
The Board is requested to receive the report. 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive the report.  
(Procurement:  Jana Vargas, Director) 

 
4. AMEND POLICY 5.12, PREFERENCE TO SMALL BUSINESSES AND POLICY 

5.14, SMALL BUSINESS, LOCAL BUSINESS AND SERVICE-DISABLED 
VETERAN OWNED SMALL BUSINESS GOAL AND PREFERENCE PROGRAM: 

 The Board is requested to amend the policies. 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0132, amending Policy 5.12, 

Preference to Small Businesses and Policy 5.14, Small Business, Local Business and 
Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business Goal and Preference Program to 
increase the maximum allowable preference, to not exceed $200,000 on any single 
bid. 

 (Procurement: Jana Vargas, Director, and Sonia Cruz, Small Business 
Development Program Manager) 
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5. APPROVE ESTABLISHING THE DATE AND TIME OF BOARD AND ALUC 
MEETINGS FOR 2015, AS INDICATED ON THE PROPOSED 2015 MASTER 
CALENDAR OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 
The Board is requested to approve establishing the 2015 meeting dates.  
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0133, establishing the date and 
time of Board and ALUC meetings for 2015, as indicated on the proposed 2015 
Master Calendar of Board and Committee Meetings. 
(Corporate & Information Governance:  Tony R. Russell, Director/ 
Authority Clerk) 

 
CLAIMS 

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6. EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014, REPORTS: A) 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT, B) COMPLIANCE (SINGLE AUDIT) 
REPORT, C) PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE COMPLIANCE REPORT, D) 
CUSTOMER FACILITY CHARGE COMPLIANCE REPORT, AND E) REPORT TO 
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 The Board is requested to accept the reports. 
RECOMMENDATION: The Audit Committee recommends that the Board accept the 
reports.  
(Finance & Asset Management: Kathy Kiefer, Senior Director) 
 

7. REVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014: 
The Board is requested to accept the report. 
RECOMMENDATION: The Audit Committee recommends that the Board accept the 
report. 
(Finance & Asset Management: Kathy Kiefer, Senior Director) 
 
 

8. QUARTERLY AUDIT ACTIVITIES REPORT – FISCAL YEAR 2015 FIRST 
QUARTER, AND AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS ISSUED BY THE OFFICE OF 
THE CHIEF AUDITOR: 
The Board is requested to accept the report. 
RECOMMENDATION: The Audit Committee recommends that the Board accept the 
report. 
(Audit:  Mark A. Burchyett, Chief Auditor) 
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CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 
9. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE A FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO THE PEST CONTROL AND REMEDIATION SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH CARTWRIGHT TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC.: 
The Board is requested to authorize the President/CEO to execute an amendment. 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0134, approving and authorizing 
the President/CEO to execute a First Amendment to the Pest Control and 
Remediation Services Agreement with Cartwright Termite & Pest Control, Inc., 
which revises and combines the pest control and remediation services 
compensation language specified in Exhibit B, Compensation & Payment Schedule, 
of the Agreement. 
(Facilities Management: Murray Bauer, Director) 
 

10. GRANT AN EASEMENT FOR ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT TO SAN DIEGO GAS 
& ELECTRIC: 
The Board is requested to grant an easement. 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0135, authorizing the 
President/CEO to negotiate and execute an easement for electrical equipment with 
San Diego Gas & Electric in support of the Electrical Distribution System project.  
(Business and Financial Management: Troy Ann Leech, Sr. Manager, 
Aviation and Commercial Business) 

 
11. AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO CONSENT TO A SOLAR SERVICES 

AND SITE SUBLEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN LANDMARK AVIATION GSO-
SAN, LLC AND SAN DIEGO SPEAR POINT SOLAR I, LLC: 
The Board is requested to authorize the President/CEO to consent to the sublease 
agreement. 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0136, authorizing the 
President/CEO to negotiate and execute an agreement consenting to a Solar and 
Site Sublease Agreement between Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC and San Diego 
Spear Point Solar I, LLC to allow the installation and operation of solar panels and 
related improvements within the Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC premises. 
(Business and Financial Management: Troy Ann Leech, Sr. Manager, 
Aviation and Commercial Business) 

 
CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS AND/OR AMENDMENTS TO CONTRACTS AND 
AGREEMENTS EXCEEDING $1 MILLION 
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PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
12. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO NEGOTIATE AND 

EXECUTE A SITE LEASE AGREEMENT AND SOLAR POWER PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT TO FINANCE, DESIGN, INSTALL, OPERATE, AND MAINTAIN A 
SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC GENERATING SYSTEM WITH LINDBERG FIELD 
SOLAR 2, LLC, AT SAN DIEGO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (CONTINUED 
FROM THE NOVEMBER 6, 2014 BOARD MEETING): 
The Board is requested to authorize the President/CEO to negotiate and execute 
the agreements. 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0131, approving and authorizing 
the President/CEO to negotiate and execute: (1) a site lease agreement with 
Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, for the development and installation of a solar 
photovoltaic (“PV”) generating system, for a maximum term of 20 years; and (2) a 
solar power purchase agreement with Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, to finance, 
design, install, operate, and maintain the solar PV generating system in an amount 
not-to-exceed $24,500,000 and a maximum term limit of 20 years, at San Diego 
International Airport. 

 (Airport Design and Construction: Bob Bolton, Director) 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 
13. DECEMBER 2014 LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND 2015 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA: 
 The Board is requested to approve the report and agenda. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0137, approving the  
December 2014 Legislative Report and 2015 Legislative Agenda. 
(Inter-Governmental Relations:  Michael Kulis, Director) 

 
14. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION REGARDING DEFINITION AND 

PREFERENCE FOR LOCAL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND A DOMESTIC 
PARTNERS EQUAL BENEFITS CONTRACTING POLICY:   
The Board is requested to provide possible direction. 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the report and provide possible direction. 
(Procurement: Jana Vargas, Director; and Sonia Cruz, Small Business 
Development Program Manager) 
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CLOSED SESSION: 
 
15. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: 

(Real property negotiations pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code § 54954.5(b) and § 54956.8.) 
Property: Salt Plant – 17 acre parcel located at 1470 Bay Boulevard, San Diego. 
Agency Negotiators:  Scott Brickner, Finance & Asset Management, Vice 
President/Treasurer. 
Negotiating Parties: San Diego Gas & Electric, United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service, GGTW, LLC (current tenant) and/or other interested parties. 
Under Negotiation: Sale – terms and conditions. 

 
16. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION: 

(Cal. Gov. Code § 54956.9(a) and (d)(1).) 
Diego Concession Group, Inc. v. San Diego County Regional Airport Authority,  
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37-2012-00088083-CU-BT-CTL 

 
17. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION: 

(Cal. Gov. Code § 54956.9(a) and (d)(1).) 
Dryden Oaks, LLC v. San Diego County Regional Airport Authority, et al.,  
San Diego Superior Court, North County, Case No. 37-2014-00004077-CU-EI-NC 

 
18. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION: 

(Cal. Gov. Code § 54956.9(a) and (d)(1).) 
Donna Wilson; John Wilson v. San Diego Port Authority; San Diego International 
Airport; San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37-2014-00015326-CU-PO-CTL (Meyer) 

 
19. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION:  

(Cal. Gov. Code §54956.9(a) and (d)(1).) 
Jennifer Cain v. San Diego County Regional Airport Authority, et al 
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37-2014-00030402-CU-PO-CTL 

 
20. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION AND 

EXISTING LITIGATION: 
(Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code §§  54956.9(a) and 
54956.9(b).)  
Jay A. Bass, et al v. San Diego City Employees’ Retirement System, et al.,  
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37-2013-00077566-CU-OE-CTL 

 
21. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 

(Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code §§ 54956.9 (b) and 
54954.5.) 
Re: Investigative Order No. R9-2012-0009 by the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board regarding submission of technical reports pertaining to an 
investigation of bay sediments at the Downtown Anchorage Area in San Diego. 
Number of potential cases: 1 
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22. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 

(Initiation of litigation pursuant to Cal. Government Code § 54956.9(d).) 
Number of cases: 2 

 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION: 
 
NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Non-Agenda Public Comment is reserved for members of the public wishing to address the 
Board on matters for which another opportunity to speak is not provided on the 
Agenda, and which is within the jurisdiction of the Board.  Please submit a completed 
speaker slip to the Authority Clerk.  Each individual speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Applicants, groups and jurisdictions referring items to the Board for 
action are limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
Note:  Persons wishing to speak on specific items should reserve their comments until the 
specific item is taken up by the Board. 
 
GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT: 
 
BUSINESS AND TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT REPORTS FOR BOARD 
MEMBERS, PRESIDENT/CEO, CHIEF AUDITOR AND GENERAL COUNSEL WHEN 
ATTENDING CONFERENCES, MEETINGS, AND TRAINING AT THE EXPENSE OF 
THE AUTHORITY: 
 
BOARD COMMENT: 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
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Policy for Public Participation in Board, Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC),  
and Committee Meetings (Public Comment) 

1) Persons wishing to address the Board, ALUC, and Committees shall complete a “Request to 
Speak” form prior to the initiation of the portion of the agenda containing the item to be 
addressed (e.g., Public Comment and General Items).  Failure to complete a form shall not 
preclude testimony, if permission to address the Board is granted by the Chair. 

2) The Public Comment Section at the beginning of the agenda is limited to eighteen (18) 
minutes and is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board, ALUC, and Committees 
on any matter for which another opportunity to speak is not provided on the Agenda, and 
on matters that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.  A second Public Comment period is 
reserved for general public comment later in the meeting for those who could not be heard 
during the first Public Comment period. 

3) Persons wishing to speak on specific items listed on the agenda will be afforded an 
opportunity to speak during the presentation of individual items.  Persons wishing to speak 
on specific items should reserve their comments until the specific item is taken up by the 
Board, ALUC and Committees.  Public comment on specific items is limited to twenty (20) 
minutes – ten (10) minutes for those in favor and ten (10) minutes for those in opposition 
of an item.  Each individual speaker will be allowed three (3) minutes, and applicants and 
groups will be allowed five (5) minutes. 

4) If many persons have indicated a desire to address the Board, ALUC and Committees on the 
same issue, then the Chair may suggest that these persons consolidate their respective 
testimonies.  Testimony by members of the public on any item shall be limited to three (3) 
minutes per individual speaker and five (5) minutes for applicants, groups and 
referring jurisdictions. 

5) Pursuant to Authority Policy 1.33 (8), recognized groups must register with the Authority 
Clerk prior to the meeting. 

6) After a public hearing or the public comment portion of the meeting has been closed, no 
person shall address the Board, ALUC, and Committees without first obtaining permission to 
do so. 

Additional Meeting Information 

NOTE:  This information is available in alternative formats upon request.  To request an 
Agenda in an alternative format, or to request a sign language or oral interpreter, or an 
Assistive Listening Device (ALD) for the meeting, please telephone the Authority Clerk’s Office 
at (619) 400-2400 at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. 

For your convenience, the agenda is also available to you on our website at www.san.org. 

For those planning to attend the Board meeting, parking is available in the public 
parking lot located directly in front of the Commuter Terminal.  Bring your ticket to 
the third floor receptionist for validation. 

You may also reach the Commuter Terminal by using public transit via the San Diego 
MTS system, Route 992.  For route and fare information, please call the San Diego 
MTS at (619) 233-3004 or 511. 

 

 

http://www.san.org/


ITEM A 
 

 

PRESENTATION OF THE CERTIFICATE 
OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE 
IN FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013: 

 
 
 
 

THERE ARE NO MATERIALS FOR 
THIS ITEM  



ITEM B 
 

 

PRESENTATION FROM BKD, LLP, 
EXTERNAL AUDITOR, REGARDING 

EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED JUNE 30, 2014, REPORTS: 

 
 

 

THERE ARE NO MATERIALS FOR 
THIS ITEM  



ITEM 1 

DRAFT 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY BOARD 

MINUTES 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2014 

SAN DIEGO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
BOARD ROOM 

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Gleason called the regular meeting of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority Board to order at 9:02 a.m. on Thursday, 
November 6, 2014, in the Board Room at the San Diego International Airport, 
Commuter Terminal, 3225 North Harbor Drive, San Diego, CA 92101. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Board Member Boling led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT: Board Members: Boling, Cox, Desmond, Farnam (Ex 
Officio), Gleason, Hubbs, Robinson, 
Smisek 

ABSENT: Board Members: Alvarez, Berman, (Ex Officio), 
Ortega (Ex Officio), Sessom 

ALSO PRESENT: Thelia F. Bowens, President/CEO; Breton K. Lobner, General 
Counsel; Tony R. Russell, Director, Corporate and Information 
Governance/Authority Clerk; Lorraine Bennett, Assistant 
Authority Clerk II 

PRESENTATIONS: 

A. FINANCIAL UPDATE OF THE UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014: 
Scott Brickner, Vice President/Treasurer, Finance & Asset Management 
provided a presentation on the Financial Update of the Unaudited 
Financial Statements for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2014, 
which included Operating Revenues by Percentage for the Three Months 
Ended September 30, 2014 (Unaudited), Operating Expenses by 
Percentage for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2014 (Unaudited), 
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses (Unaudited), Financial Summary, 
and Statement of Net Position, as of September 30, 2014 (Unaudited). 

ooooo I 
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B. PRESENTATION REGARDING THE POINT LOMA WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT: 
Brent Eidson, Deputy Director, External Affairs, Public Utilities 
Department, City of San Diego, provided a presentation on Pure Water 
San Diego, which included Numerous Water Challenges, What Options 
Does San Diego Have, Pure Water: Our Opportunity, Advanced Water 
Purification, Developing Our Local Water Supply, Wastewater Treatment 
System, Secondary Equivalency, Pure Water Program Next Steps, and 
Summary. 

In response to Chair Gleason regarding the proposed location of the 
wastewater facility and the impacts with its proximity to the Authority, Mr. 
Eidson stated that with increased technology, there would most likely be 
no odor on most days. He offered Board members a tour of one of their 
facilities to demonstrate how odor control works and to view the 
architecture of the building structures. 

In response to Board Member Boling regarding whether there will be a 
public process for the design of the proposed site, Mr. Eidson stated that 
since the plan is 10-15 years out, that moving forward, the City will be 
working with the Authority. 

In response to Thelia F. Bowens, President/CEO, regarding whether there 
will be a formal public process of the plan prior to being brought before the 
City Council, Mr. Eidson stated that there will be notices of public hearings 
scheduled beginning in January 2015, to discuss the plan, followed by 
subsequent public hearings to talk about the program phases. 

REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES, AD HOC COMMITTEES, AND 
CITIZEN COMMITTEES AND LIAISONS: 

STANDING BOARD COMMITTEES 

• AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
Board Member Smisek announced that the next Committee Meeting is 
scheduled on November 17, 2014. 

• CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE: 
Board Member Hubbs reported that the Committee met on October 
21, 2014, and received an extensive overview of current projects. 

• EXECUTIVE PERSONNEL AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE: 
Board Member Desmond announced that the next Committee Meeting is 
scheduled in January 2015. 

• FINANCE COMMITTEE: None. 

ooooo2-
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ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

• AUTHORITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE: 
Board Member Smisek reported that at its meeting in October, the 
committee was presented with a 4th option for the Airport Development 
Plan, which will be presented to the Board at a future meeting. 

• ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE: 
Chair Gleason announced that a public meeting is scheduled on 
November 14, 2014 to receive community input regarding future mural 
displays for the Commuter Terminal wall. He also announced that a Teen 
Workshop will be held on November 15, 2014 from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 
p.m. at the Authority. He noted that Item 8 is on the agenda for Board 
approval. 

LIAISONS 

• AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN FOR SAN DIEGO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT: None. 

• CAL TRANS: None. 

• INTER-GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS: 
Board Member Cox reported that on October 31st, the Airport Authority 
hosted the directors of California's 34 commercial airports for the 
California Airports Council Board meeting. He reported that on November 
7, 2014, several members of the Congressional Black Caucus Institute 
and staff will participate in a security tour of the airport hosted by the 
Transportation Security Administration. He also reported that State and 
Federal legislative consultants will provide an update to the Board at its 
December meeting, on what the results of the recent elections mean for 
aviation and, specifically, for airports in the coming year. 

• MILITARY AFFAIRS: 
Board Member Farnam announced that the Marine Corps Ball is 
scheduled on November 10, 2014. 

• PORT: None. 

BOARD REPRESENTATIVES (EXTERNAL) 

• SANDAG TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE: 
Board Member Smisek reported that the Committee met on October 17, 
2014, to discuss amendments to existing plans and grants, and received 
an update on the North Coast Corridor Project. 

ooooo..3 
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• WORLD TRADE CENTER: 
Chair Gleason reported that the Port Commission and City of San Diego 
have approved the amended and restated license agreement with the 
World Trade Centers Association, which is owned by the Authority, the 
San Diego Unified Port District and the City of San Diego. He stated that 
the three license holders will be working on ways to deliver services, and 
will be bringing more definitive plans to the Board at a future meeting. 

CHAIR'S REPORT: 

Chair Gleason announced that information has been circulated to the appointing 
jurisdictions regarding the upcoming vacancies on the Authority Board of 
Directors. He requested that, as Board Members review the 2015 Master 
Calendar of Board and Committee meetings, they should consider that new 
Committee assignments will be made in February, and he encouraged Board 
members to let him know if anyone was interested in serving on other 
Committees. 

PRESIDENT/CEO'S REPORT: 

Thelia F. Bowens, President/CEO, reported that the Authority will welcome three 
participants to participate in our Veterans Fellowship Program that assists 
veterans in the transition from active duty to the civilian workforce, by providing 
practical work experience, networking opportunities and an understanding of the 
aviation environment. She reported that at the Airports Going Green conference 
in Chicago, the Authority received the Five Airplane Award, the highest level 
award for the Authority's Green Build Project. She reported on the success of 
the recent AirEx exercise on October 81

h, related to an exercise to test critical first 
responders in an emergency scenario at the airport. She also reported on the 
ongoing Airport Development Plan outreach efforts. 

NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENT: 

MARGY WEST, SAN DIEGO, representing Pro Point Lorna, expressed concerns 
with the proposed installation of stadium lighting at Point Lorna High School. She 
asked the Board to be more proactive in managing inherent safety risks of this 
project. 

Chair Gleason requested that staff provide a written briefing to the Board on the 
issue. 

LEX OLBREE, SAN DIEGO, spoke regarding ongoing issues related to 
employee contract negotiations with High Flying Foods and SSP America. She 
provided a letter dated April 20, 2013, from the Port of Oakland regarding 
Oakland Food/Beverage Concessionaires. 

ooooof 
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DAN I RAMOS, SAN DIEGO, asked for assistance from the Board regarding 
ongoing employee and concessionaire contract negotiations. 

Chair Gleason requested that staff provide an update regarding the status of this 
issue and what other airports are doing. 

Board Member Hubbs left the dais at 9:55a.m. 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items 1-18): 

ACTION: Moved by Board Member Cox and seconded by Board Member 
Robinson to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried by the following 
vote: YES - Boling, Cox, Desmond, Gleason, Robinson, Smisek; NO -
None; ABSENT- Alvarez, Hubbs, Sessom. (Weighted Vote Points: YES-
67; NO - 0; ABSENT 33). 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes of the October 2, 2014, 
regular meeting. 

2. ACCEPTANCE OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS WRITTEN 
REPORTS ON THEIR ATTENDANCE AT APPROVED MEETINGS AND 
PRE-APPROVAL OF ATTENDANCE AT OTHER MEETINGS NOT 
COVERED BY THE CURRENT RESOLUTION: 
RECOMMENDATION: Accept the reports and pre-approve Board member 
attendance at other meetings, trainings and events not covered by the 
current resolution. 

3. AWARDED CONTRACTS, APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS FROM 
SEPTEMBER 8, 2014 THROUGH OCTOBER 12,2014, AND REAL 
PROPERTY AGREEMENTS GRANTED AND ACCEPTED FROM 
SEPTEMBER 8, 2014 THROUGH OCTOBER 12,2014: 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive the report. 

4. NOVEMBER 2014 LEGISLATIVE REPORT: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0117, approving the 
November 2014 Legislative Report. 

CLAIMS 

5. REJECT THE CLAIM OF LYNETTE ZIEGENFUSS: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0118, rejecting the 
claim of Lynette Ziegenfuss. 
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6. REJECT THE CLAIM OF HANI MAHADIN: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0119, rejecting the 
claim of Hani Mahadin. 

7. REJECT THE CLAIM OF LINDA ELEFANTE: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0120, rejecting the 
claim of Linda Elefante. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

8. AWARD A CONTRACT TO UEBERALL INTERNATIONAL LLC TO 
DESIGN INTEGRATED ARTWORK FOR THE RENTAL CAR CENTER: 
RECOMMENDATION: The Airport Art Advisory Committee recommends 
that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2014-0121, awarding a Public 
Artwork Opportunity contract to Ueberall International LLC for the 
commission to design integrated artwork for the Rental Car Center in an 
amount not to exceed $800,000. 

9. ACCEPT THE UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014: 
RECOMMENDATION: The Finance Committee recommends that the 
Board accept the report. 

10. ACCEPT THE AUTHORITY'S INVESTMENT REPORT AS OF 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014: 
RECOMMENDATION: The Finance Committee recommends that the 
Board accept the report. 

CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 

11. AWARD A CONTRACT TO VASQUEZ CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
FOR TERMINAL 2 EAST COMMON USE PASSENGER PROCESSING 
SYSTEMS (CUPPS) EXPANSION AT SAN DIEGO INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0122, awarding a 
contract to Vasquez Construction Company in the amount of $565,915 for 
Project No. 104182, Terminal2 East Common Use Passenger Processing 
Systems (CUPPS) Expansion at San Diego International Airport. 

12. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE 
THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH KUTAK ROCK 
LLP FOR BOND COUNSEL LEGAL SERVICES: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0123, approving and 
authorizing the President/CEO to execute the First Amendment to the 
Agreement with Kutak Rock LLP, for Bond Counsel Legal Services, to 
increase the amount of the contract by $100,000 for a total not to exceed 
amount of $400,000. 
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13. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE AN 
ENCROACHMENT MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF 
SAN DIEGO: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0124, approving and 
authorizing the President/CEO to execute an Encroachment Maintenance 
Agreement with the City of San Diego in support of the North Side Interior 
Road and Utilities Project. 

CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS AND/OR AMENDMENTS TO CONTRACTS 
AND AGREEMENTS EXCEEDING $1 MILLION 

14. APPROVE THE AUTHORITY'S PARTICIPATION IN A COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE 
A PURCHASE ORDER FOR AT&T CORPORATION CALNET Ill 
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0125, approving the 
Authority's participation in a cooperative purchasing agreement and 
authorizing the President/CEO to execute a Purchase Order with AT&T 
Corporation CALNET Ill Telecommunication Services for a term of four 
years, with the option for two one-year extensions, plus an additional 
eighteen (18) month extension to be exercised at the discretion of the 
President/CEO, in an amount not-to-exceed $2,100,000, to allow 
negotiation of a CALNET IV contract. 

15. AWARD A CONTRACT TO S&L SPECIALTY CONTRACTING, INC., 
FOR QUIETER HOME PROGRAM PHASE 8, GROUP 3, PROJECT NO. 
380803 (36 HISTORIC AND NON-HISTORIC SINGLE AND MULTI­
FAMILY UNITS ON 19 RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES LOCATED EAST 
AND WEST OF THE AIRPORT): 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0126, awarding a 
contract to S&L Specialty Contracting, Inc., in the amount of $1,640,050, 
for Phase 8, Group 3, Project No. 380803, of the San Diego County 
Regional Airport Authority's Quieter Home Program. 

16. AWARD A CONTRACT TO S&L SPECIALTY CONTRACTING, INC., 
FOR QUIETER HOME PROGRAM PHASE 8, GROUP 2, PROJECT NO. 
380802 (34 HISTORIC AND NON-HISTORIC SINGLE AND MULTI­
FAMILY UNITS ON 11 RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES LOCATED EAST 
AND WEST OF THE AIRPORT): 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0127, awarding a 
contract to S&L Specialty Contracting, Inc., in the amount of $1,415,850, 
for Phase 8, Group 2, Project No. 380802, of the San Diego County 
Regional Airport Authority's Quieter Home Program. 
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17. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE A 
REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0128, approving and 
authorizing the President/CEO to execute a Reimbursable Agreement with 
the Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), 
for an amount not-to-exceed $1,285,657.97 to fund an improvement 
project by the FAA in support of the Runway 09 Displaced Threshold 
Relocation Project at San Diego International Airport. 

18. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE AN 
ON-CALL SURVEY CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT: 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0129, approving and 
authorizing the President/CEO to execute an On-Call Survey Consultant 
Services Agreement with Nolte Associates, Inc., an NV5 Company, for a 
term of three years, with the option for two one-year extensions, in an 
amount not-to-exceed $2,000,000, in support of the Capital Improvement 
and Major Maintenance Programs, at the San Diego International Airport. 

Board Member Hubbs returned to the dais at 9:58a.m. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None. 

OLD BUSINESS: None. 

The Board recessed at 9:58a.m. and reconvened at 10:10 a.m. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

19. PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION ON THE AIRPORT 
NOISE MITIGATION PROGRAM: 
Sjohnna Knack, Program Manager, provided a presentation on the Airport 
Noise Mitigation Program, which included Curfew Violation Review, Airport 
Noise and Operations Monitoring System, State of California Title 21, 
Airport Noise Advisory Committee (ANAC), Quieter Home Program, and 
Proposed Fly Quiet Program which included Program Elements, Curfew 
Violations, Fleet Noise Quality, Early Turns, Sample Report, Benefits, and 
Next Steps. 

Board Member Desmond suggested increasing the fines associated with 
curfew violations. 

Thelia F. Bowens, President/CEO stated that increasing fines for curfew 
violations has to go through the Federal Aviation Administration, and that it 
is not an easy process. 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive the report and provide possible direction. 

ACTION: No action taken. 
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20. PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION ON THE APPLICATION 
OF SMALL BUSINESS INCLUSIONARY POLICIES: 
Jana Vargas, Director, Procurement, and Sonia Cruz, Manager, Small 
Business Development Program, provided a presentation on the 
Application of Small Business lnclusionary Policies, which included, 
lnclusionary Practices, Policy 5.12 Preference to Small Businesses 
Overview, Policy 5.12 Impacts (Bids Only), Policy 5.12 Impacts (RFP's & 
RFQ's), Policy 5.14 Small Business, Local Business & Service Disabled 
Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB), Policy 5.14 Methodology and 
Calculations, Policy 5.14 Impacts, Preference Programs Findings, and 
lnclusionary Practices. 

Board Member Desmond stated that he would like to see the local goal for 
business participation increased from 60%. 

ACTION: Moved by Board Member Desmond and seconded by Board 
Member Cox to increase the Small Business Preference cap from 100,000 
to 200,000, and always give a 5% preference to local companies. 

Bret Lobner, General Counsel, stated that there are no laws dealing with 
the cap. He further stated that as to the local preference, there appears to 
be no statute for local contracts as opposed to federal contracts. 

In response to Board Member Robinson regarding if any potential issues 
may result from a gift of public funds, Mr. Lobner responded that a legal 
issue could be raised. He also stated that any increase to a higher local 
preference, would result in a financial impact to the Authority. 

Board Member Boling questioned the impact on small business 
participation, if the number of company employees required to live within 
San Diego County, was increased to 50%. 

Chair Gleason stated that there needs to be more analysis by staff about 
what it would cost to increase the goal for local business participation, and 
to look at the definition for "local, and how that might impact the numbers if 
the criteria were different. 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive the report and provide possible direction. 

ACTION: Moved by Board Member Desmond and seconded by 
Board Member Cox to increase the Small Business Preference cap 
from 1 OOK to 200K. Motion carried by the following vote: YES -
Boling, Cox, Desmond, Gleason, Hubbs, Smisek; NO- Robinson; 
ABSENT- Alvarez, Sessom. (Weighted Vote Points: YES- 71; NO-
8; ABSENT 21 ). 

Chair Gleason requested that staff bring back for future discussion, 
benefits equality offered by contractors, and whether or not benefits that 
are being offered to married opposite sex partners, are also offered to 
married same sex partners. 
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21. APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT/CEO TO NEGOTIATE 
AND EXECUTE A SITE LEASE AGREEMENT AND SOLAR POWER 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT TO FINANCE, DESIGN, INSTALL, 
OPERATE, AND MAINTAIN A SOLAR PHOTOVOL TAlC GENERATING 
SYSTEM WITH LINDBERG FIELD SOLAR 2, LLC, AT SAN DIEGO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT: 
Bob Bolton, Director, Airport Design and Construction, and Ajay Babla, 
Program Manager, Airport Design and Construction, provided the 
presentation which included Solar Implementation Plan, Project 
Milestones, Present and Future Electricity Demand, Electricity Costs and 
Assumptions, and Electricity Cost Comparison on a Proposed Solar 
Implementation Plan. 

In response to Chair Gleason's concern about the length of the agreement 
term with the proposed solar provider, Cameron Thorne, Borrego Solar, 
stated that the relevant trade-off is the potential savings that the Authority 
would forgo in the intervening time, while waiting for potential 
technological improvements. He further stated that a shorter term would 
result in a higher rate, which would no longer be competitive. 

Thelia F. Bowens, President/CEO stated that staff is working on an 
Energy Master Plan for the Authority's long-term energy needs, that will be 
presented to the Board at a future meeting. 

Board Member Desmond stated that he would like to see more of a 
realistic blending of cost sharing. 

Board Member Boling stated that she would have liked to see the costs 
over a 1 0-year period, instead of a 20-year period. 

In response to Board Member Hubbs regarding what are the benefits of 
tax credits, Mr. Thorne stated that significant tax credits would be captured 
by Borrego Solar through depreciation and a 30% federal investment tax 
credit, and a portion of these savings would be passed on to the Authority. 

Chair Gleason stated that the Board needs to understand the assumptions 
staff used to get to this recommendation. 

Ms. Bowens stated that staff would address Board Member concerns and 
place it on the December Agenda. 

Board Member Boling requested that staff provide information to clarify the 
process by SDG&E for determining its rates. 

Board Member Robinson requested that staff provide information on 
private parties who have purchased solar and whether they have 
contracted over a 20-year period. 
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Board Member Cox requested that staff look at the proposed City of San 
Diego Climate Action Plan to achieve 1 00% renewables, to see to what 
extent it may affect the Authority. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0130, approving and 
authorizing the President/CEO to negotiate and execute: (1) a site lease 
agreement with Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, for the development and 
installation of a solar photovoltaic ("PV") generating system, for a 
maximum term of 20 years; and (2) a solar power purchase agreement 
with Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, to finance, design, install, operate, and 
maintain the solar PV generating system in an amount not-to-exceed 
$24,500,000 for a maximum term limit of 20 years, at San Diego 
International Airport. 

ACTION: This item was continued to the December Board meeting. 

CLOSED SESSION: The Board recessed into Closed Session at 12:05 p.m. to 
discuss Items 23 and 28. 

22. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: 
(Real property negotiations pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code§ 54954.5(b) and§ 
54956.8.) 
Property: Salt Plant- 17 acre parcel located at 1470 Bay Boulevard, San 
Diego. 
Agency Negotiators: Scott Brickner, Finance & Asset Management, Vice 
President/Treasurer. 
Negotiating Parties: San Diego Gas & Electric, United States Fish and 
Wildlife Service, GGTW, LLC (current tenant) and/or other interested 
parties. 
Under Negotiation: Sale- terms and conditions. 

23. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION: 
(Cal. Gov. Code§ 54956.9(a) and (d)(1 ).) 
Diego Concession Group, Inc. v. San Diego County Regional Airport 
Authority, 
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37 -2012-00088083-CU-BT -CTL 

24. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION: 
(Cal. Gov. Code§ 54956.9(a) and (d)(1 ).) 
Drvden Oaks. LLC v. San Diego County Regional Airport Authority. eta/., 
San Diego Superior Court, North County, Case No. 37-2014-00004077-
CU-EI-NC 
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25. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LITIGATION: 
(Cal. Gov. Code§ 54956.9(a) and (d)(1 ).) 
Donna Wilson; John Wilson v. San Diego Port Authority; San Diego 
International Airport; San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37-2014-00015326-CU-PO-CTL 
(Meyer) 

26. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
AND EXISTING LITIGATION: 
(Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code §§ 
54956.9(a) and 54956.9(b).) 
Jay A. Bass, eta/ v. San Diego City Employees' Retirement System. eta/., 
San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37 -2013-00077566-CU-OE-CTL 

27. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
(Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Cal. Gov. Code§§ 54956.9 
(b) and 54954.5.) 
Re: Investigative Order No. R9-2012-0009 by the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board regarding submission of technical reports 
pertaining to an investigation of bay sediments at the Downtown 
Anchorage Area in San Diego. 
Number of potential cases: 1 

28. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
(Initiation of litigation pursuant to Cal. Government Code§ 54956.9(d).) 
Number of cases: 2 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION: The Board reconvened into Open Session at 
12:44 p.m. Chair Gleason stated that there was no reportable action on Item 23. 

Breton Lobner, General Counsel, reported that in regards to Item 28, it was 
moved by Board Member Cox and seconded by Board Member Smisek by a 7-0 
vote, to approve a settlement with the City of San Diego with regard to damage 
to a fire truck, in the amount of $14,403.86, noting Board Members Alvarez and 
Sessom as ABSENT. 

NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENT: None. 

GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT: None. 

BUSINESS AND TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT REPORTS FOR 
BOARD MEMBERS. PRESIDENT/CEO, CHIEF AUDITOR AND GENERAL 
COUNSEL WHEN ATTENDING CONFERENCES. MEETINGS, AND TRAINING 
AT THE EXPENSE OF THE AUTHORITY: 

BOARD COMMENT: None. 
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ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 12:46 p.m. 

APPROVED BY A MOTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY BOARD THIS 4th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BRETON K. LOBNER 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

TONY R. RUSSELL 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE I 
AUTHORITY CLERK 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 2 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Acceptance of Board and Committee Members' Written Reports on Their 
Attendance at Approved Meetings and Pre-Approval of Attendance at other 
Meetings not Covered by the Current Resolution 

Recommendation: 
; ~1, « , 

Accept the reports and pre;~ 
trainings and events not cove 

Background/Justification: 

Authority Policy 1.10 defines a "day of service" for Board Member compensation and 
outlines the requirements for Board Member attendance at meetings. 

Pursuant to Authority Policy 1.10, Board Members are required to deliver to the Board a 
written report regarding their participation in meetings for which they are compensated. 
Their report is to be delivered at the next Board meeting following the specific meeting 
and/or training attended. The reports (Attachment A) were reviewed pursuant to 
Authority Policy 1.10 Section 5 (g), which defines a "day of service". The reports were 
also reviewed pursuant to Board Resolution No. 2009-0149R, which granted approval of 
Board Member representation for attending events and meetings. 

The attached reports are being presented to comply with the requirements of 
Policy 1.10 and the Authority Act. 

The Board is also being requested to pre-approve Board Member attendance 
at briefings by representatives of a local police department or a state or 
federal governmental agency regarding safety, security, immigration or 
customs affecting San Diego International Airport. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Board and Committee Member Compensation is included in the FY 2015 Budget. 
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ITEM NO.2 
Page 2 of2 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

1:8] Community D Customer D Employee 
Strategy Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

D Financial 
Strategy 

1:8] Operations 
Strategy 

A. This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. Section 15378. This Board action is not a 
"project" subject to CEQA. Pub. Res. Code Section 21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as 
defined by the California Coastal Act, Pub. Res. Code Section 30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not applicable. 

Prepared by: 

TONY R. RUSSELL 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & INFORMATION GOVERNANCE/AUTHORITY CLERK 
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DAVID ALVAREZ 



SOCRAA 

NOV 2 5 2014 
lrorporate & lnfom1ation Governance 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORIT~~..:,_ _____ .-~ 
Board Member Event/Meeti raining~eport Summary 

Period Covered: VB VV1 JJC ( 2(J } '-f--
Directions: This Form permits Board Members to repm1 their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for "day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Util. Code §170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0149R. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

BOARD M.EMBER NAME: (Please priQt) PATE OF THIS REPORT: 

lJ~v\vl Prlvarez_ 1/ -2t-/~ It 
TYPE OF DATE/TIME/LOCATION OF SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION 

MEETING EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING OF THE EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING 
Cl~Brown Act Date: 11{2tjJ4- {1-i r .por+ f1 11t:1 tlce. 00fVI M ; t-t -e e 
fl Pre-approved Time: qJ911') 
i : Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 5 DG ftl}-

::; Brown Act Date: 

:::::: Pre-approved Time: 

~~ Res. 2009-0 I 49R Location: 

::::Brown Act Date: 

~J Pre-approved Time: 

~J Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

0 Brown Act Date: 

:J Pre-approved Time: 

-: Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

-~Brown Act Date: 

'.:' Pre-approved Time: 

r:J Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

D Brown Act Date: 

lJ Pre-approved Time: 

[Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

=:Brown Act Date: 

~ Pre-approved Time: 

r:; Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

IJ Brown Act Date: 

~: Pre-approved Time: 

: : Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 
/ ~ 

I certify that I was present for at least half"of the ti~ e s7 ih n eetinli, event and 
training listed herein. ~ ~ 

Signaturt\{ / /lk._ A- _ 

~- L;? 



GREG COX 



SD\RAA 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY~. NOV .21 2014 
Board Member Event/Meeting/Training Report Summary orporat' & lnh,rmJIJtJn Go1crnanc~~ 

Period Covered: }JoiJ 1 - 3o ;2o!L/ 

Directions: This Form permits Board Members to report their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for "day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Uti!. Code § 170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0 149R. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

BOARD MEMBER NAME: (Please print) DATE OF THIS REPORT: 

G~f~ {!oX' No\J. ).I 
I 

;2 (j J 'I 
TYPE OF DATE/TIME/LOCATION OF SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION 

MEETING EVENT /MEETING/TRAINING OF THE EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING 
Brown Act Date: 11/{f;/tL{ 

S.OcAirA ~ /Jif1..!) }11:f1J/JG, 
Pre-approved Time: '1 :oo.-. 
Res. 2009-0 149R Location: >01A 
Brown Act Date: ''I ;;u /t'-f 5, /)fc I ,fl.. txC-wrJV~ I fl!JA-Ni!l Ctlhhtnti 
Pre-approved Time: ~ :oo~ ~;p~141r ~t1#-IJ Mtf'r!)}G' 
Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 51J;A 
Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

i, Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

I certify that I was present for at least half of the tit;:; e~eeting, event and 
training listed herein. 

Signature: 

G' 



ANDREW 
HOLLINGWORTH 



SOCRAA 

NOV 1 7 2014 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHOR! rporate & \nfllffil.ttiun Go1~manc 

Board Member Event/Meeting/Training Report SummaryL--------' 
Period Covered: /1/17( 2o!7 

Directions: This Form permits Board Members to report their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for "day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Uti!. Code §170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0149R. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

BOARD MEMBER NAME: (Please print) DATE OF THIS REPORT: 

/Jrv;J ILC:W f{o f/t'nlilWOifl. /1 /t 7 f?P lf 
TYPE OF DATMIME/LOCATION OF SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION 

MEETING EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING OF THE EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING 
.. Brown Act Date: It I 17 f 2 u t'f ~t//J.i2 -~ &l-L 'f ;/.~/, f ( i11 H.' 1'1-l't:-f; YIV' 

Pre-approved Time: It/ -·av -(2 ~ 0 0 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: t (JM_~ £rrr-r1 
Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

__ Brown Act Date: 

-- Pre-approved Time: 

- Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

- Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

-~Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

__ Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

_ Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

- Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

·• Pre-approved Time: 

- Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

I certify that I was present for at least half of the time set for each meeting, event and 

training listed herein. . ~ )~ -k 
Signature: ' 1 - J.v, -

~ f 



LLOYD HUBBS 



SD('RAA 

NOV 21 2014 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY r. 

orpor4te & lntonnation Goreroan~e 
Board Member Event/Meeting/Training Rep;r Summary 

Period Covered: !Vt?v. 2-ol 

Directions: This Form permits Board Members to report their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for "day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Util. Code §170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0149R. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

TYPE OF 
EETING 

DATE/TIME/LOCATION OF 
EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING 

Date: //- ~-/ 

Time: CJ :00 -

Location: fiUTH-oP-f"f g d.oz 
Date: J / --/ 7 - I 
Time: 10 'PO 

Location: /+t177f Ft::l. ~ 

~~ Pre-approved 

_,Res. 2009-0149R 

Date: 

Time: 

t/ -zt-1 
9'oLJ 

Location: m 
- Brown Act Date: 

,- Pre-approved Time: 

~. Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

~ Brown Act Date: 

-. Pre-approved Time: 

_ Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

L..::' Brown Act Date: 

'--' Pre-approved Time: 

· j Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

_, Brown Act Date: 

_ Pre-approved Time: 

r_ Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

· 1 Brown Act Date: 

-! Pre-approved Time: 

~~ Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

DATE OF THIS REPORT: 

SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION 
OF THE EVENT/MEETING/TRAINING 

I certify that I was present for at least half of the f , event and 
training listed herein. 



PAUL ROBINSON 



SDC'RAA 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORIT"~ 
Board Member Event/Meetin raini g Report Summary torporate & lnfom1ation Governance 

Period Covered: ] I '3 c I 

NOV 21 2014 

Directions: This Form permits Board Members to report their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for "day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Uti I. Code § 170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0 149R. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

BOARD MEMBER NAME: (Please print) DATE OF TIDS REPORT: 
Paul E. Robinson 

TYPE OF DATEffiME/LOCATION OF SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION 
MEETING EVENT_MEETINGffRAINING OF THE EVENT~TINGffRAINING 

X'Brown Act Date: //(.., S.l7.C.' 1:? A ~ '13-d I A-l~~ v'V'rh~ S, 
i ; Pre-approved Time: 9' CC t: ,- · 

1: Res. 2009-0 149R Location:<)'p('fZ.A (-\ 'R_-4 ~'Vt 
)(Brown Act Date: /I jJ-.tj r.Lf Ex""'<' /'h r1Ci.i'\<'(; (b ~· .... I- t Y\1 ~) . 
0 Pre-approved Time: '"'/' ~'.:: -- / {) tl c1 ii • ""' 

0 Res. 2009-0149R Location: 'S ·\X' ?'Z A I') ,-t)X l<:'l""'-
l Brown Act Date: 

'l Pre-approved Time: 

:1 Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

'l Brown Act Date: 

lJ Pre-approved Time: 

0 Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

n Brown Act Date: 

n Pre-approved Time: 

0 Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

~~ Brown Act Date: 

i : Pre-approved Time: 

[J Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

lJ Brown Act Date: 

LJ Pre-approved Time: 

0 Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

0 Brown Act Date: 

0 Pre-approved Time: 

c: Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

I certify that I was present for at least half of the time set for each meeting, event and 
training listed herein. · t~. ,.- . d 

Signature: _ _.\ .... ~---'--~--:;.·_1'{__.,....-_______ _ 
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SDCRAA 

NOV 2 4 2014 
rorporate & lnfonnation Governance 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGlONAL AIRPORT AUmORITY 
Board Member Event!Meetiaafl'raining Report Summary 

Period Covered: _October 2014 ____ _ 

Dil'ecl:imlt: 'Ibis Fonn permits Baard Members to report their att:endance at meetings. events, and training that qualifY for "day of 
tJCMoe .. CGQpasation pursuant to cal. Pub. UtiL Code §170017, Board Polley 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009..()149R Unless 
atfa1ditt8'a·mecting Mid punuam to the Brown Act, attendance ml:JSt be prwpprovcd by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
~~at tbe aext Board meeting. .Aft4r QOJDPledns tbia Farm, pleale forward it to Tony Rusael1, Authority Clerk. 

D·~ Time:9 

0 bl. 2009>0149R Loc:ati.on:Board Room 

.P~ 

C) b; 2()D9li()l49Jl 

C1' . 

[]~ 

Cl •Rt&. 20()9'.:0 149R 

Time:9 

Location:Boanl Room 

Date: 

Time: 

Looatlon: 

Date: 

TilDe: 

Location: 

0~ Time: 

' 0 ·.ru,a. 2()'($:.()149:k Location: 

Capitallmpnnrcmcm Committee 

of, tbe time set for eaeh meeting, event and 

' 



TOM SMISEK 



SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Board Member Event/Meetingffraining Report Summary 

Period Covered: f-'tJ '1/G.H!i£/2- )-3v. ZoJ'f . 

SDCRAA 

NOV 21 2014 

Directions: This Form permits Board Members to report their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for ''day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Uti!. Code §170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0007. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

Pre-approved Time: 

· Res. 2009-0149R Location: -:;P LA 
il· Brown Act Date: j I - I - 2-a r ¥-

Pre-approved Time: 9 ,' Ot:J 8~ 

Res. 2009-0149R Location: ~i9-tv"J>46-

X Brown Act Date: I - I 7 -
Pre-approved Time: I t::J :" o ~rn.._ 

Res. 2009-0 149R 

If Brown Act 

Pre-approved 

Res. 2009-0 149R 

Brown Act 

Pre-approved 

Location: '5YS: A 
Date: / (-I .-2 0 r<f­

Time: (/ ;oo PM 

Location: t!..IJ f20NPi7D C·ry ~L.L 
Date: I I,. 2 I - 2... o r 'i­
Time: 9; et) .411--{ 

Res. 2009-0149R Location: :5)) .z-.A 
Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

Brown Act Date:, 

Pre-approved 

· Res. 2009-0 149R 

Brown Act 

Pre-approved 

- Res. 2009-0149R 

Time: 

Location: 

Date: 

Time: 

Location: 

~Al~])A&- i1Z~~S7c.:Z\tcJ..Cio rJ 
c.D~MriTE.rC f_.A~I(U{r, s~(_f24 A 
IZ€7fL~sEt\ .. fi~T, \If:_ 

5PC~AA A...c.v~T" 

K -E. E. (r ('.)(,... 
' 

~ t!) IZ.D N P.i?D Cl '1 Co u (\.) GH-) H Tb;­
s oc.teA-A lZE-?e E-5EJ-J{laTrv6 
{;f4A1ZIE./2 1-j 1Z_Cj?.o~ 

SvC/2..14-,4 ~...;..,cc.uTt 

CJ)ILO-Ir/7~£-5 fJ?T&s. 

• 

I certify that I was present for at least half of th..__...,. ... ," 
training listed herein. 



DON TARTRE 



SD('R.AA 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHOh.ITyNOV 1 7 2014 
Board Member Event/Meeting/T aining Re ort Summ~r~rate& lnt~•nnationGO\emance 

Period Covered: \ + - \ 
Directions: This Form permits Board Members to report their attendance at meetings, events, and training that qualify for "day of 
service" compensation pursuant to Cal. Pub. Util. Code §170017, Board Policy 1.10 and Board Resolution 2009-0149R. Unless 
attending a meeting held pursuant to the Brown Act, attendance must be pre-approved by the Board prior to attendance and a written 
report delivered at the next Board meeting. After completing this Form, please forward it to Tony Russell, Authority Clerk. 

.,JtOARD MEMBER NAME: (Please print) 

TYPE OF DATE/TIME/LOCATION OF 
MEETING EVENT/M]\ETING/TRAINING 

- Brown Act Date: \ \ \ \ ~ _ \ ~ 
Pre-approved Time: \ ~\ ~ \""..._ 

Res. 2009-0149R Location: 0:, ~ ~ \L ..__ 
Brown Act Date: 

· Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

Pre-approved Time: 

~ Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

···Brown Act Date: 

·~ Pre-approved Time: 

Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

~ Pre-approved Time: 

_ · Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

Brown Act Date: 

_ Pre-approved Time: 

- Res. 2009-0149R Location: 

-~Brown Act Date: 

. Pre-approved Time: 

- Res. 20,Q9-0149R Location: 

:Brown Act Date: 

- Pre-approved Time: 

-_ Res. 2009-0 149R Location: 

DATE,OF THIS REPORT: 

SUMMARY ~ND DESCRIPTION 
OF THE EVENTflviEETING/TRAINING 

WtJ 
I certify that I was present for at least half of~he · e ej ~)'ach meeting, event and 
training listed herein. 1 ~ 

Signature: //A 
'--"" r 



SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 3 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Awarded Contracts, Approved Change Orders from October 13, 2014 through 
November 9, 2014 and Real Property Agreements Granted and Accepted from 
October 13, 2014 through November 9, 2014 

Recommendation: 

Receive the report. 

Background/Justification: 

Policy Section Nos. 5.01, Procurement of Services, Consulting, Materials, and Equipment, 
5.02, Procurement of Contracts for Public Works, and 6.01, Leasing Policy, require staff 
to provide a list of contracts, change orders, and real property agreements that were 
awarded and approved by the President/CEO or her designee. Staff has compiled a list 
of all contracts, change orders (Attachment A) and real property agreements 
(Attachment B) that were awarded, granted, accepted, or approved by the 
President/CEO or her designee since the previous Board meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The fiscal impact of these contracts and change orders are reflected in the individual 
program budget for the execution year and on the next fiscal year budget submission. 
Amount to vary depending upon the following factors: 

1. Contracts issued on a multi-year basis; and 
2. Contracts issued on a Not-to-Exceed basis. 
3. General fiscal impact of lease agreements reflects market conditions. 

The fiscal impact of each reported real property agreement is identified for 
consideration on Attachment B. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

D Community D Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

0 Employee 
Strategy 

[8] Financial 
Strategy 

[8] Operations 
Strategy 

OCOulC 



ITEM NO.3 
Page 2 of2 

Environmental Review: 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (''CEQA''), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by 
the California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Inclusionary Policy requirements were included during the solicitation process prior to 
the contract award. 

Prepared by: 

JANA VARGAS 
DIRECTOR, PROCUREMENT 

,. ·. l 17 ... : \..i u ,_. 



0 
c.~ 

0 
c.· ...... 
co 

~ 
Date Signed 

10/10/2014 

10/17/2014 

10/21/2014 

11/3/2014 

11/3/2014 

(i) 
Date Signed 

CIP# 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

CIP# 

I 

Attachment "A" 
AWARDED CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS SIGNED BETWEEN OCTOBER 13, 2014- NOVEMBER 9, 2014 

New Contracts 

Solicitation 
Company Description 

Method 
Owner 

The Contractor will prov1de maintenance and support services for the Uninterruptable 
Computer Protection Technology, Inc. Power Supply (UPS) systems controlled by the San Diego County Regional Airport Informal RFP M. Bauer 

Authcrrty. 

AB Eng111eenng. Inc. 
The Contractor will prov1de 01'1-Call architectural and engineering consutting services at 

RFQ M. Bauer 
San Diego lntemat1onal Airport. 

Gallagher Benefit Serv1ces, Inc. 
The Contractor will prov1de serv1ces to assist with employee rewards and 

RFP K Genng 
compensation Initiatives at San Diego County Regional Airport Authcrrty. 

Ta1en GraphiCS, Inc. dba Apollo Printing & The Contractor will provide on-call print1ng services for business cards/forms for San 
RFB J. Kane 

Graphics Diego County Regional Airport Authorrty. 

The Contractor will prov1de CISCO and NetAPP equ1pment for the Information 

CDW-G Technology Services department. The equipment is needed to support the Electronic RFP R. Belliotti 
Content Management System (ECMS). 

·'· 

NewContracg Agarovij;.b! thl Board 
., < 

Company Description 
Solicitation 

Owner 
Method 

I No New Board Approved Contracts to Report I -· I -

Contract 
Value 

End Date 

$30,096.25 8/31/15 

$950,000.00 9/14/17 

$75,000.00 9/30/17 

$60,000.00 10/23/15 

$116,980.20 11/08114 

·. 

.·· '· 
Contract 

End Date 
Value 

I I 



C:· 
c: 
c 
C' 
!-~ ·. 

c.o 

Q 
Date 

Signed 

10/17/2014 

10/31/2014 

11/5/2014 

~ 

CIP# 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

I 

Attachment "A" 
AWARDED CONTRACTS AND CHANGE ORDERS SIGNED BETWEEN OCTOBER 13, 2014- NOVEMBER 9, 2014 

Amendments and Change Orders 

Previous 
Change Order Change Order 

Company Description of Change Contract 
Amount 

Value(+/-) Value ( % ) (+ I - ) 

The First Amendment replaces existing equipment servicing the 

Rackspace Hosting, Inc. 
Authority, adds new equtpment to cover Ground Transportation needs 

$ 50.000.00 $ 10,000.00 20% 
and increases the maximum amount of compensation by $10,000.00 for 
web hosting servtces for the Authorrty's websrte. 

The Second Amendment 1ncreases the maximum amount of 
Rosa Lowinger & compensation by $28.000.00 for professtonal cleaning, maintenance, 

$ 45,000.00 $ 28,000.00 62% 
Associates, Inc. conservation, and restoration serv1ces for the Authority's public art 

collection located throughout San Diego International Airport. 

The Second Amendment revtses Exhibrt B. Compensation and Payment 
Rtcondo & Associates, Schedule to include Nelson/Nygaard Consutting Associartes as a sub 

$ 3,000,000.00 $ - 0.00% 
Inc. consuttant to support the Airport Transit Plan Update. There is no 

increase in compensation. 
-~ ' ; 

Amendments and Chatlge Orders - Aeeroveif::bx the Board 

I No New Board Approved Amendments to Report I 

New Contract 
New End Date 

Value 

$ 60,000.00 3/31/2015 

$ 73,000.00 6/30/2015 

$ 3,000,000.00 2/6/2017 

; 

: 

I ___ I 



~ 
Begin/End Dates 

9/1/14-8131/19 

8/28/14- 13131115 

7/1/14-6130/17 

7/1/13-6130/18 

~ 
Effective Date 

<: ; 
C' 
c ... 
c: 
(_;) 

0 
11/17/2014 

Authority 
Doc.# 

LE-0834 

LE-0832 

LE-0833 

LE-0835 

Authority 
Doc.# 

Attachment "B" 

REAL PROPERTY AGREEMENTS EXECUTED FROM OCTOBER 13,2014 TO NOVEMBER 9, 2014 

Re11 ProQ!m£ Agreemena 

Tenant/Company Agreement Type Property Location Use Property Area (s.f) Consideration Comments 

Advanced Wireless Group LLC, a Sponsorship of airport 
The greater of $150,000 Sponsorship of complimentary public 

Boingo Wireless Company 
Sponsorship Agreement Airport wide 

w~Fi 
N/A annual minimum or 55% of W~Fi with pay option for higher 

Gross Receipts bandwidth use. 
Allows access to SOIA 

Non-exclusive Airport for shuttling airport The greater of $100 
Coronado Transportation Car Rental Licenses SOIA passengers to ~s off- N/A monthly minimum or 10% 

Agreement airport car rental of Gross Revenues 
business 

Traveler assistance 

T enninal 1, T enninal 2 & 
services and 745 s.f. in Tenninals 

Traveler's Aid Society Rental Agreement management of 1,145 s.f. mezzanine of No monitary consideration I usa 
Volunteer Airport usa 

Ambassador Program 
j 

Affdiate Airline Operating Airline Passenger 
No rent; Affiliate pays 

US Airways, Inc & Republic Airlines Tenninal2 West at SOIA N/A approximately $3,000 Affiliate conducts occasional charters. 
Agreement Service 

annually in landing fees 

Real Pro21m Agreement Amendments and Assignment& I 

Tenant/Company Agreement Type Property Location Use Property Area (s. f) Consideration Comments 

No Agreements or Assignments to Report 
-

2014 10.13-11.9 Real Property Agreements Executed-CURRENT 



SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 4 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Amend Policy 5.12, Preference to Small Businesses and Policy 5.14, Small 
Business, Local Business and Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business 
Goal and Preference Program 

Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0132, amending Policy 5.12, Preference to Small Businesses 
and Policy 5.14, Small Business, Local Business and Service-Disabled Veteran Owned 
Small Business Goal and Preference Program to increase the maximum allowable 
preference, to not exceed $200,000 on any single bid. 

Background/Justification: 

Authority Policy 5.12 was originally adopted by the Board in April 2009 and last 
amended in April 2012. Policy 5.12 provides for a preference of up to 5%, not to 
exceed $100,000 on Authority solicitations where a small business respondent is the 
prime contractor. 

Policy 5.14 adopted by the Board in January 2011, establishes goals for small business, 
local business, and service-disabled veteran owned small business (SDVOSB) enterprises 
with preferences awarded based on goal achievement. Policy 5.14 provides a 
preference of up to 3% for small business enterprises, 2% for local businesses, and 2% 
for SDVOSB, for a total preference of up to 7%, not to exceed $100,000. 

On November 6, 2014 the Authority Board took action and approved an amendment to 
Policies 5.12 and 5.14 to increase the maximum preference from $100,000 to $200,000 
on applicable bids solicited by the Authority. Therefore, Policy 5.12 and 5.14., should be 
amended as follows: 

Policy 5.12. "The lowest responsive and responsible bidder that is a small business shall 
have their bid adjusted by subtracting the amount of the small preference from the 
small business's original bid. The adjusted bid is used in determining the award of the 
contract. If the small business's adjusted bid is lower than the lowest non-small 
business bid amount, the contract shall be awarded to the small business. The 
maximum amount of the adjustment cannot exceed $200,000. The fina l contract award 
shall be in the amount of the original bid. 



ITEM NO.4 
Page 2 of 2 

When applicable, the combined preference for sections (3) and (5) above shall not 
exceed 5% or $200,000, whichever is less." 

Policy 5.14 ''The maximum allowable combined participation preference shal l not exceed 
seven percent (7%) or a combined price preference of $200,000 on any single bid." 

Fiscal Impact: 

Increasing the maximum preference to $200,000 on applicable bids, may lead to higher 
costs on Authority contracts. The fiscal impact of increasing the maximum preference is 
dependent on the number of contracts awarded due to the preference. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

1Zl Community D Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

D Employee 
Strategy 

D Financial 
Strategy 

D Operations 
Strategy 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act C'CEQA''), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by 
the California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not Applicable. 

Prepared by: 

JANA VARGAS 
DIRECTOR, PROCUREMENT 

(".. "' I'' r 2""' 'WU Uu t: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-0132 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY, AMENDING POLICY 5.12 
PREFERENCE TO SMALL BUSINESSES AND 
POLICY 5.14 SMALL BUSINESS, LOCAL BUSINESS 
AND SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN OWNED 
SMALL BUSINESS GOAL AND PREFERENCE 
PROGRAM TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM 
ALLOWABLE PREFERENCE TO NOT EXCEED 
$200,000 ON ANY SINGLE BID. 

WHEREAS, the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (Authority) 
adopted Policy 5.12 and Policy 5.14; and 

WHEREAS, Policy 5.12 (Attachment A) provides for a preference for small 
businesses, and Policy 5.14 (Attachment B) establishes goals for small business, 
local business and service disabled veteran owned small businesses (SDVOSB) 
participation ; and 

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2014, staff provided an update on the 
impacts of the Authority's lnclusionary Policies 5.12 and 5.14, and 

WHEREAS, the Authority Board took action approving an increase to the 
maximum allowable preference to not exceed $200,000 on any single bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby amends 
Policies 5.12, Preference to Small Businesses, and Policy 5.14, Small Business, 
Local Business and Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business Goal and 
Preference Program to increase the maximum allowable preference to not 
exceed $200,000 on any single bid ; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board finds this action is not a "project" 
as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (California 
Public Resources Code §21065); and is not a "development" as defined by the 
California Coastal Act (California Public Resources Code §301 06). 

./ 



Resolution No. 2014-0132 
Page 2 of 2 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by the Board of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority at a regular meeting this 41

h day of December, 
2014, by the following vote: 

AYES: Board Members: 

NOES: Board Members: 

ABSENT: Board Members: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BRETON K. LOBNER 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

ATIEST: 

TONY R. RUSSELL 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE I 
AUTHORITY CLERK 



Attachment A 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

POLICIES 

ARTICLE 5 
PART 5.1 

SECTION 5.12 

CONTRACTING AND DEBARMENT 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

PREFERENCE TO SMALL BUSINESSES 

PURPOSE: To establish a policy allowing a preference to small businesses in the award of 
construction and non-construction contracts for the San Diego County Regional 
Airport Authority (the "Authority"). 

POLICY STATEMENT: 

In the procurement of contracts, the Authority' s President/Chief Executive Officer or his or her 
designee (the "President/CEO") shall be responsible for following all procedures required by 
(1) the Authority, (2) the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Act, as amended from 
time to time, and (3) other applicable federal , state, and local laws. 

( 1) Applications and Definitions. 

(a) This policy relates to the Authority' s procurement of service and consulting 
agreements and the purchase of supplies, materials and equipment as defined in Article 5, Part 
5.0, Section 5.01 , and procurement of contracts for public projects as defined in Article 5, Part 
5.0, Section 5.02 on a selected basis. 

(b) In the event policy 5.14 is implemented in the procurement of service and 
consulting agreements and the purchase of supplies, materials and equipment, sections (2), (3), 
(4) and (6) of this policy will not apply. 

(c) For the purpose of this policy, a small business shall be a firm that ( 1) is enrolled 
in the Authority ' s Bonding and Contract Financing Assistance Program which requires 
verification by staff that the firm meets Small Business Administration (SBA) size standards, or 
(2) a business concern that is certified as a disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) by the 
California Unified Certification Program, or (3) possesses valid certification issued by an 
agency, approved by the Authority, that verifies the firm is within the SBA size standards, or (4) 
is an airport concessionaire that provides evidence that its business size is within standards 
established under 49 CFR Part 23, Section 23 .33. 

(2) Objectives. The objectives of this policy are to: 

(a) Establish principles and practices to facilitate a small business preference program 
that will provide full disclosure and transparency of the Authority' s commitment, and 

(b) Provide a preference of up to five percent (5%) to small businesses in the award 
of selected Authority contracts. 

(3) Preference for Procurement When Bid Price is Primarv Selection Criteria. As provided 
under Policy Section 5.01 and Policy Section 5.02, the contractor is selected based on being the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder. In the event of a contract award where the pricing is 
primary selection criteria, the following shall apply: 



POLICY SECTION No. 5.12 

(a) The bid amount of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder that is not a small 
business shall be multiplied by five percent (5%). The resulting five percent (5%) amount shall 
be considered as the small business preference. 

(b) The lowest responsive and responsible bidder that is a small business shall have 
their bid adjusted by subtracting the amount of the small business preference from the small 
business's original bid. The adjusted bid is used in determining the award of contract. If the 
small business ' s adjusted bid is lower than the lowest non-small business bid amount, the 
contract shall be awarded to the small business. 

(c) The maximum amount of the adjustment cannot exceed 

$100,000$200,000. 

(d) The final contract award should be in the amount of the original bid. 

( 4) Preference for Procurement on Qualification Based Selection Criteria. When a contractor 
is selected based on a scoring matrix that includes multiple criteria, points can be included for 
being a small business provided that the maximum points allowed for being a small business do 
not exceed five percent (5%) of the total allowable points used in the recommendation. 

(5) Preference for Bonding and Contract Financing Program ("Program"). The Authority 
may allow an additional preference in a bid under this policy for a Public Project only when all 
of the following are present: 

(a) The bidder is a participating small business contractor formally enrolled m the 
Authority's Program, and 

(b) The bidder is the apparent low bidder for the Public Project contract, or the bidder 
will be the successful bidder under one of the scenarios listed above, and 

(c) The amount of the additional preference does not exceed five percent (5%) of the 
contract price, and 

(d) The total amount of the additional preference allowed bidder is only administrative 
costs incurred or to be incurred under the Program and are solely related to the specific bid under 
consideration by the Authority, and 

(e) As a result of the additional preference extended under this policy, the bidder's 
contract bid amount is not altered or increased. 

(6) When applicable, the combined preference for sections (3) and (5) above shall not exceed 
5% or $100,000or $200,000, 
whichever is less. 

[Amended by Resolution No. 2012-0043 dated April 12, 2012.] 
[Amended by Resolution No. 2011-0011 dated January 6, 2011.] 
[Amended by Resolution No. 2009-0141 R dated November 5, 2009.] 
[Adopted by Resolution No. 2009-0057 dated April2, 2009.] Page 2 of2 
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Attachment B 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

POLICIES 

ARTICLE 5 
PART 5.1 

SECTION 5.14 

CONTRACTING AND DEBARMENT 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

SMALL BUSINESS, LOCAL BUSINESS AND SERVICE 

DISABLED VETERAN OWNED SMALL BUSINESS GOAL AND 

PREFERENCE PROGRAM 

PURPOSE: To establish a program of goals and incentives benefiting small businesses, local 
businesses, and/or service disabled veteran owned small businesses in the contract 
procurement process of the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
("Authority"). 

POLICY STATEMENT: 

In the procurement of contracts, the Authority' s President/Chief Executive Officer or his or her 
designee ("President/CEO") shall be responsible for following all procedures required by 
(1) the Board, (2) the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Act, as amended, and (3) all 
other applicable federal , state, and local laws. 

(1) Definitions. 

(a) Bonding and Contract Financing Assistance Program - The program offered by the 
Authority intended to aid small and local businesses in obtaining first time bonding or 
increasing bonding capacity. 

(b) Contracts - Instrument used for the procurement of services and consulting 
agreements and the purchase of supplies, material, and equipment as outlined in 
Policy 5.01 and the procurement of contracts for Public Projects as outlined in 
Policy 5.02. 

(c) Contract Owner - A department within the Authority having responsibility for 
oversight and management of the contract to which the bid or proposal solicitation 
applies. 

(d) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)- A small business concern that has been 
certified by the California Unified Certification Program (UCP) in compliance with 
49 CFR Parts 23 or 26. 

(e) Good Faith Effort - The demonstration of a sustained and deliberate effort by a 
contractor responding to a bid or proposal solicitation issued by the Authority for the 
purpose of achieving meaningful participation by small businesses, local businesses 
and/or service disabled veteran owned small businesses. 

(f) Local Business - A business as defined under Policy 5.13. 
(g) Prime Contractor - A party or entity with whom the Authority enters into a legally 

binding agreement. 
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POLICY SECTION No. 5.14 

(h) Small Business - A profit-making corporation, sole proprietorship, or partnership 
that: (1) is enrolled in the Authority's Bonding and Contract Financing Assistance 
Program which requires verification by staff that the firm meets Small Business 
Administration (SBA) size standards, or (2) a business concern that is certified as a 
disadvantage business enterprise (DBE) by the California Unified Certification 
Program, or (3) possesses valid certification issued by an agency, approved by the 
Authority, that verifies the firm is within the SBA size standards, or (4) is an airport 
concessionaire that provides evidence that its business size is within standards 
established under 49 CFR Part 23 , Section 23.33 . 

(i) Subcontractor - A party or entity that enters into a legally binding agreement with a 
Prime Contractor. 

U) Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) - A profit-making 
corporation, sole proprietorship, or partnership in which at least 51 percent of the 
shares or stock or other equitable securities are owned by one or more persons who 
are service-disabled veterans and included in the "VetBiz Registry" maintained by the 
United States Department of Veteran Administration (DV A) or any subsequent 
database preferred by the DV A. 

(k) Small Business Development - A department within the Authority, or any subsequent 
department identified by the President/CEO, that oversees and monitors compliance 
with this Policy 5.14. 

(1) Trade Assessment - An estimated breakdown of specific trades needed to complete a 
defined scope of work. 

(m) Vendor Management System - The registration system used by the Authority for 
business concerns to express interest in a particular trade and/or business opportunity. 

(2) Application. 

This policy shall be applied to designated projects at the discretion of the Contract Owner, that 
will promote participation by small, local or SDVOSB business concerns. 

When a small business goal is not established under this Policy, Policy 5.12 will apply. 

(3) Methodology Used to Establish Small Business, Local Business, and/or Service Disabled 
Veteran Owned Small Business Goals. 

(a) Small Business Goal- A small business goal shall be established by the following 
methodology: 

1. The Trade Assessment categories needed to fulfill the scope of work will be 
developed based on the contract owner's estimate. 

11. A Trade Assessment Scope Percentage (Scope%) will be calculated by taking the 
estimated value of the scope to be performed in each specific Trade Assessment 
category divided by the total estimated value of the contract. 
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POLICY SECTION NO. 5.14 

111. A Trade Assessment Availability Percentage (Availability%) will be calculated by 
taking the total number of registered businesses within the Authority's vendor 
management system that (1) meet the Small Business criteria as defined by Policy 
5.14; and (2) are capable to perform the specific Trade Assessment category. 
This number is divided by the total number of businesses in the same specific 
Trade Assessment categories from the same source. 

tv. A weighted goal percentage is calculated by multiplying the Trade Assessment 
Scope% by the Trade Assessment A vail ability% for each applicable Trade 
Assessment category. Each Trade Assessment category is added up which will 
result in the applicable goal. 

v. The total small business goal cannot exceed fifty percent (50%) for each contract. 
v1. The Trade Assessment Availability% can be calculated in advance provided that 

the Trade Assessment Availability% used is not older than 24 months. 

(b) Local Business Goal - A local business goal shall be established by the following 
methodology: 

1. Identify the Trade Assessment categories needed to fulfill the scope of work. 
n. A Trade Assessment Scope Percentage (Scope%) will be calculated by taking the 

estimated value of the scope to be performed in each specific Trade Assessment 
category divided by the total estimated value of the contract. 

111. A Trade Assessment Availability Percentage (Availability%) will be calculated by 
taking the total number of registered businesses within the Authority's vendor 
management system that (1) meet the Local Business criteria as defined by Policy 
5.14; and (2) are capable to perform the specific Trade Assessment category. 
This number is divided by the total number of businesses in the same Trade 
Assessment categories from the Authority's vendor management system. 

tv. A weighted goal percentage is calculated by multiplying the Trade Assessment 
Scope% by the Trade Assessment Availability% for each applicable Trade 
Assessment category. Then each Trade Assessment category is added up which 
will result in the applicable goal. 

v. The total local business goal cannot exceed sixty percent (60%) for each contract. 
v1. The Trade Assessment Availability% can be calculated in advance provided that 

the Trade Assessment Availability% used is not older than 24 months. 

(c) A Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) Goal- A SDVOSB 
goal shall be established at three percent (3%). 

(4) Goal Application When Price is Primary Selection Criteria for public projects or purchase 
of supplies, materials or equipment. 

Page 3 of6 



POLICY SECTION NO. 5.14 

(a) A Small Business participation goal will be established for each identified project 
based on the methodology set forth in section (3) above. For those bids that meet or 
exceed the established goal, a price preference equal to three percent (3%) shall be 
awarded. For those businesses that have some participation, but do not meet the goal, 
a partial preference point will be provided for every full third of the goal achieved. 

(b) A Local Business participation goal will be established for each identified project 
based on the methodology set forth in Section (3) above. For those bids that meet or 
exceed the established goal, a price preference equal to two percent (2%) shall be 
awarded. For those businesses that have some participation, but do not meet the 
goal, a single preference point will be provided if bid exceeds one-half of the goal. 
However, there will be no preference points awarded if the Authority's overall Local 
Business participation is at a level above sixty percent (60%) of current contract 
participation excluding those contracts that utilize federal funds and The Green Build 
terminal expansion project. A Local Business participation goal shall only be applied 
to contracts in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000). 

(c) A Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) participation goal of 
three percent (3%) shall be established for each identified project. For those bids that 
meet or exceed the 3% goal, a price preference equal to two percent (2%) shall be 
awarded. For those businesses that have at least 1% participation, but less than the 
3% goal, a single preference point will be provided. 

(d) Partial goal achievement will be determined by dividing the goal percentage by the 
available preference points. All goals shall be expressed in whole percentage 
numbers and rounding for partial goals shall always be up to the next whole 
percentage number. (EXAMPLE: Goal is 32% and there are three preference points 
available 31%--;- 3 = 10.33% shall be rounded up to 11 %) 

(e) The maximum allowable combined participation preference shall not exceed seven 
percent (7%) or a combined price preference of $100,000 $200,000 on any single bid. 

(f) The bid amount of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder (low bidder) shall be 
multiplied by the combined percentage points attributed to the eligible preferences 
identified in (4)(a), (4)(b), & (4)(c) above, for each responsive and responsible bidder 
(bidder). This will result in a unique bid adjustment amount specific to each bidder. 
(For example, a bidder that meets two of the three criteria for a combined preference 
of 5% will be awarded the contract if their bid price is within 5% or less of the lowest 
bid). The corresponding bid adjustment amount will be subtracted from each bidders' 
original bid price, including the low bidder, to create the adjusted bid price. The 
adjusted bid price is used in determining the award of contract. 

(g) The final contract award shall be in the amount set forth in the original bid. 
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POLICY SECTION No. 5.14 

(5) Goal Application for Qualification Based Selection Criteria. 

(a) A Small Business participation goal will be established for each identified project 
based on the methodology set forth in section (3) above. For those submittals that 
meet or exceed the established goal, a scoring preference equal to three percent (3 %) 
of the total available points shall be awarded as part of the overall scoring matrix used 
in determining selection. For those submittals that have some participation, but do not 
meet the goal, a partial points can be awarded provided it is limited to one point for 
every full third of the goal achieved. 

(b) A Local Business participation goal will be established for each identified project 
based on the methodology set forth in section (3) above. For those submittals that 
meet or exceed the established goal, a scoring preference equal to two percent (2%) 
of the total available points shall be awarded as part of the overall scoring matrix used 
in determining selection. For those submittals that have some participation, but do not 
meet the goal, one (1) point will be awarded provided submittal achieves one-half of 
the goal. A local goal is not permitted in awarding airport concessions under Federal 
regulations as long as the airport is recipient of federal grant monies. 

(c) A SDVOSB participation goal of three percent (3%) will be established for each 
identified project. For those submittals that meet or exceed the established goal, a 
scoring preference equal to two percent (2%) of the total available points shall be 
awarded as part of the overall scoring matrix used in determining selection. For those 
businesses that have at least 1% participation, but less than the 3% goal, a single 
preference point will be provided. 

(d) Partial goal achievement will be determined by dividing the goal percentage by the 
available preference points. All goals shall be expressed in whole percentage 
numbers and rounding for partial goals shall always be up to the next whole 
percentage number. (EXAMPLE: Goal is 32% and there are three preference points 
available 31 %-:- 3 = 10.33% shall be rounded up to 11 %) 

(e) The points awarded shall not exceed seven percent (7%) of the total allowable points 
used in the overall recommendation. 

(f) The use of the preference points shall be applied to determine which proposers will be 
interviewed for final consideration. Preference points will not be used in the final 
ranking. 

(g) The Prime Contractor must provide a distinct and clearly defined portion of work for 
all subcontractors whose participation is submitted in response to the corresponding 
goal. Any substitution in performance of said work without the Authority' s prior 
written consent may be grounds for contract termination, at which time the Authority 
may negotiate a new contract to the next highest ranked proposer without need to re­
compete, provided there is no less than 50% of the contract term remaining. 
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POLICY SECTION No. 5.14 

(6) Exemptions. 

(a) Federally funded projects require conformance with grant assurance requirements as 
established pursuant to 49 CFR Part 18.36. 

(b) Concession contracts pursuant to 49 CFR Part 23 prohibit the use of local 
participation in the award of contracts. 

(c) This Policy shall not apply if it conflicts with applicable federal , state or local laws or 
regulations. 

[Amended by Resolution No. 2012-0043 dated April 12, 2012.] 
[Adopted by Resolution No. 2011-0011 dated January 6, 2011 .] 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 6 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

External Auditor's Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014, Reports: A) Audited 
Financial Statement, B) Compliance (Single Audit) Report, C) Passenger 
Facility Charge Compliance Report, D) Customer Facility Charge Compliance 
Report, and E) Report to the Audit Committee 

Recommendation: 

The Audit Committee recommends that the Board accept the reports. 

Background/Justification: 

An external audit of financial statements is the verification of the financial statements of 
a legal entity, conducted by external (independent) qualified accountant(s), with a view 
to express an audit opinion. Its objective is to determine, among other things, whether 
(1) the accounting records are accurate and complete, (2) prepared according to the 
provisions of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and (3) the statements 
prepared from the accounts are a fair representation of the organization's financial 
position, and the results of its financial operations. 

The National Council of Non Profits states that all non-federal government agencies and 
nonprofit organizations that expend $500,000 or more in federal awards in a given fiscal 
year are required to conduct a single audit, also known as a "A-133 Audit". The 
requirement for a nonprofit to conduct a "single audit" is triggered when a nonprofit 
receives funding from either one or several federal government funding sources 
(whether in the form of a government contract or a grant) and when that nonprofit 
expends a certain amount of government funding in a single year. The Single Audit Act 
of 1984 was passed by the government to ensure that those organizations receiving 
substantial federal funds use the funds in compliance with the federal government's 
funding requirements. 

The government auditing standards and generally accepted auditing standards require 
that an independent external auditor perform an annual audit of the Airport Authority's 
financial statements. 

As per Section 170018 (f) (5) of the Public Utilities Code, the Audit Committee is 
responsible for overseeing the annual audit by the external auditors and any internal 
audits. 
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In Fiscal Year 2014, Authority staff conducted a search for a new external auditor. On 
May 1, 2014, the Authority Board adopted Resolution No. 2014-0039, approving and 
authorizing the President/CEO to execute an agreement with BKD, LLP, for an amount 
not to exceed $950,000 for a three year term with an option for two (2) one year 
extensions, which may be exercised, subject to Board approval, at the sole discretion of 
the Authority's President/CEO. 

During the May 12, 2014, Audit Committee Meeting, BKD, LLP communicated its scope, 
timing, and approach to planning the Authority's Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014, 
Financial and Compliance audit. 

On November 17, 2014, during a regular meeting of the Audit Committee, Joe Vande 
Bosche, CPA, Partner, from BKD, LLP, gave a presentation on the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2014, audited financial statements (Attachments A through E). He stated that 
the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority had a clean report and that no material 
weaknesses were found. Following an exchange of questions and answers, the Audit 
Committee accepted the reports and recommended that they be forwarded to the Board 
for approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Adequate funding for the audit conducted by BKD, LLP is included in the adopted FY 
2015 and conceptually approved FY 2016 Operating Expense Budgets within the 
Accounting Department Services- Auditing line item. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

D Community D Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

D Employee 
Strategy 

cgj Financial 
Strategy 

cgj Operations 
Strategy 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act f'CEQA''), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by 
the California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 
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Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not applicable 

Prepared by: 

MARK A. BURCHYETI 
CHIEF AUDITOR 
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ATTACHMENT A 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Financial Statement 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, CA 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
(Airport Authority) which are comprised of a statement of net position as of June 30, 2014, and statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position and of cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to 
the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents . 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Airport Authority as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

000 038 



To the Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Page 2 

Prior Year Audited by Other Auditors 

The 2013 financial statements were audited by other auditors and their report thereon, dated October 18, 2013, 
expressed an unmodified opinion. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis and pension and other postemployment benefit information listed in the table of contents be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational , economic or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America , which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 24, 2014, on our 
consideration of the Airport Authority 's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations , contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing , and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Airport Authority 's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Dallas, Texas 
October 24, 2014 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For The Period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 

INTRODUCTION 

The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority) was established on January 1, 
2002, as an independent agency. On January 1, 2003, the operations and assets of San Diego 
International Airport (SOIA) transferred from the San Diego Unified Port District (District) to the Airport 
Authority. 

The Airport Authority is a self-sustaining entity receiving most of its revenues through user fees and 
rents from airline and nonairline business partners operating at SOIA. Since the Airport Authority is 
not funded by tax revenues, accounts are maintained in an enterprise fund on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under accrual accounting , revenues are recognized as soon as they are earned, and 
expenses are recognized as soon as a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
inflows and outflows. Users of SOIA's facilities provide most of the revenues to operate, maintain , and 
acquire necessary services and facilities. 

SAN DIEGO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

History of Ownership 

The public policy decision to transfer responsibility for SOIA from the District to the newly created 
Airport Authority emanated from recommendations made by the San Diego Regional Efficiency 
Commission (Commission) . The Commission was established to evaluate regional governance in 
San Diego County and report recommended improvement measures to the California State 
Legislature. 

Because of the significant regional consequences of airport development and operations , the 
Commission concluded that a regional decision-making process should address the future 
development of airport facilities in San Diego County. In October 2001 , the enabling legislation, 
Assembly Bill 93 (AB 93) established the composition and jurisdiction of the Airport Authority's 
governing body in a manner that is designed to reflect the collective interests of the entire San Diego 
region. 

Legislative Background 

AB 93 was signed into California State law in October 2001. The Act established the Airport Authority 
on January 1, 2002, as a local agency of regional government with jurisdiction throughout the County 
of San Diego. Subsequent legislative changes to AB 93 were introduced and passed in California 
Senate Bill 1896 (Act) . The amendment addresses several points pertaining to the transfer of aviation 
employees, date of transfer, property leases, property acquisition and purchase of services from the 
District. 

On January 1, 2008, Senate Bill 10 (SB 1 0) , the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Reform 
Act, was enacted into law expanding the responsibilities of the Airport Authority. The Airport Authority 
is vested with five principal responsibilities: 

(1) Operation of SOIA; 

(2) Planning and operation of any future airport that could be developed as a supplement or 
replacement to SOIA; 

(3) Development of comprehensive airport land use plans for the airports in the county; 

(4) Serving as the region's Airport Land Use Commission; and 

(5) In accordance with SB 10, preparing a Regional Aviation Strategic Plan (completed in fiscal year 
2011). 

OG0040 
3 



In August 2013, Assembly Bill 1058 was signed into law. This bill made minor clarifying and technical 
changes to the Airport Authority Act. 

Airport Activities Highlights (2012 - 2014) 

The Airport Authority experienced continued growth in all areas during the current and prior two fiscal 
years. This followed the trend seen at many commercial airports reflecting the gradual improvements 
in the economy. 

The changes in the SOIA's major activities for the three years are as follows: 

FY 2012 FY 2013 

Enplaned passengers 8,575,475 8,737,617 
%increase 1.6% 1.9% 

Total passengers 17,138,911 17,440,968 
%increase 1.6% 1.8% 

Aircraft operations 188,280 188,304 
%increase 1.1% 0.0% 

Freight and mail (in tons) 132,493 157,025 
%increase 1.9% 18.5% 

Landed weight (in thousands) 10,820 11 ,016 
%increase 2.0% 1.8% 

Overall , the improving economy is having a positive effect on aircraft operations at SOIA. The most 
significant increase since the 2008 economic downturn occurred in fiscal year 2014 with a 3.9 percent 
increase in enplanements. Also, total passengers increased by 4.0 percent and freight and mail tons 
increased 5.1 percent. Overall , it appears the improving economy continues to have a positive effect 
on aircraft operations at SOIA. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

The metric 'Changes in Net Position ' is an indicator of whether the Airport Authority's overall financial 
condition has improved or deteriorated during the fiscal year. Net position increased consistently over 
the past two fiscal years by 9.7 percent in 2012, and 10.0 percent in 2013 and decreased slightly in 
2014. The fiscal year 2014 decrease is primarily due to an increase in interest expense of 
approximately $40 million and an increase in depreciation and amortization of approximately $36 
million. Following is a summary of the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 
(in thousands): 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 
Nonoperating revenues, net 
Capital contributions and grants 

Increase (decrease) in net position 
Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

$ 

$ 

FY 2012 

153,550 
(163, 701) 

47,951 
20,834 
58,634 

602,255 

660,889 

FY 2013 

$ 177,498 
(168,420) 

41 ,020 
16,077 
66,175 

660,889 

$ 727,064 

Detailed descriptions of the components of operating revenues and expenses, and nonoperating 
revenues and expenses are described in the sections that follow. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Operating Revenues (in thousands) 

From 2013 to 2014 
Increase 

FY 2013 e) % Change 

Airl ine re-.enue: 
Landing fees $ 19,658 (551) (2.8%) 
Aircraft parking fees 3,191 (688) (21 .6%) 
Building rentals 41 ,840 4,161 9.9% 
Security surcharge 23,360 2,417 10.3% 
Other aviation re-.enue 1,591 2,897 182.1% 

Total airline re-.enue 89,640 8,236 9.2% 
Non-airline terminal rent 972 186 19.1% 
Concession re-.enue 42,041 5,729 13.6% 
Parking and ground transportation re-.enue 35,750 3,209 9.0% 

Ground rentals 8,190 255 3.1% 
Other operating re-.enue 905 624 69.0% 

Total operating re-.enue $ 177,498 18,239 10.3% 

From 2012 to 2013 
Increase 

FY 2012 FY 2013 (Decrease) % Change 

Airline re-.enue: 
Landing fees $ 18,419 $ 19,658 $ 1,239 6.7% 

Aircraft parking fees 3,135 3,191 56 1.8% 
Building rentals 30,633 41 ,840 11 ,207 36.6% 
Security surcharge 18,649 23,360 4,711 25.3% 

Other aviation re-.enue 1,595 1,591 (4) (0.3%) 
Total airline re-.enue 72,431 89,640 17,209 23.8% 

Non-airl ine terminal rent 907 972 65 7.2% 

Concession re-.enue 40,427 42,041 1,614 4.0% 

Parking and ground transportation re-.enue 31,470 35,750 4,280 13.6% 

Ground rentals 7,136 8,190 1,054 14.8% 

Other operating re-.enue 1,179 905 (274) (23.2%) 

Total operating re-.enue $ 153,550 $ 177,498 $ 23,948 15.6% 
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Operating Revenues, Continued 

Fiscal year 2014 compared to 2013: Total airline revenues increased by $8.2 million or 9.2 percent, 
primarily reflecting the cost recovery system for the airlines which was higher in fiscal year 2014, 
compared to 2013. Building rentals increased due to the implementation of the new airl ine use and 
lease agreement and the additional costs incurred by the fiscal year 2014 grand opening of the airport 
expansion. Security surcharge revenue increased due to add itional costs of services and expanded 
facilities . Combined in other aviation revenue, common use system support charges were 
implemented in fiscal year 2014. Offsetting the airline revenue were decreased landing fees due to 
lower maintenance costs and decreased aircraft parking fees due to vacant parking positions. 
Concession revenue increased by $5.7 million or 13.6 percent due to the new expanded concession 
program and the airport expansion. Parking and ground transportation revenue increased $3.2 million 
and 9.0 percent due to the reopening of Terminal 2 parking lot in front of the new expanded terminal 
and the increased enplanements. 

Fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012: Total airline revenues increased by $17.2 million or 23.8 percent, 
primarily reflecting continued implementation of a progressive cost recovery system for the airlines 
which was higher in fiscal year 2013, compared to 2012. Building rentals saw a graduated rate 
increase from 60 percent to 100 percent and the security surcharge increased from 85 percent to 100 
percent reflecting the cost recovery formula. Landing fees increased by $1 .2 mill ion or 6.7 percent, 
due to increased airfield maintenance expenses and increased landed weight. Concession revenue 
increased by $1 .6 million or 4.0 percent, reflecting slightly higher enplanements and higher per 
enplanement sales. Parking revenues increased by $4.3 million or 13.6 percent, due in part to the 
reopening of Terminal 2 parking that was temporarily closed in fiscal year 2012 to facilitate the 
construction of the Green Build . Ground rentals revenue increased in 2013 by $1 .1 million or 14.8 
percent, due to increased rental space by Fed Ex, and a consumer price index rent increase to FedEx, 
Southwest, and UPS. The $274 thousand or 23.2 percent decrease, in other operating revenue 
reflects a change in utility billing practices of the new concession program beginning January 2013, 
which are now included as part of the base rent. 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 
Operating Revenues 
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Operating Expenses (in thousands) 

From 2013 to 2014 

FY 201 3 

Salaries and benefits $ 38,092 1,043 2.7% 
Contractual sen.1ces 29,284 2,275 7.8% 
Safety and security 23,994 157 0.7% 
Space rental 10,897 (419) (3.8%) 
Utilities 6,659 2,021 30.3% 
Maintenance 11 ,204 2,778 24.8% 
Equipment and systems 469 174 37.1% 
Materials and supplies 406 34 8.4% 
Insurance 795 193 24.3% 
Employee de\elopment and support 1,235 (64) (5.2%) 
Business de\elopment 2,444 217 8.9% 

Equipment rentals and repairs 1,317 1,615 122.6% 
Total operating expenses before 

depreciation and amortization 126,796 10,024 7.9% 
Depreciation and amortization 41 ,624 35,581 85.5% 

Total operating expense $ 168,420 45,605 27.1% 

From 2012 to 2013 
Increase 

FY 2012 FY 2013 (Decrease) %Change 

Salaries and benefits $ 37,237 $ 38,092 $ 855 2.3% 
Contractual sen.1ces 26,906 29,284 2,378 8.8% 
Safety and security 22,625 23,994 1,369 6.1% 
Space rental 11 ,415 10,897 (518) (4.5%) 
Utilities 6,674 6,659 (15) (0.2%) 
Maintenance 8,497 11 ,204 2,707 31.9% 
Equipment and systems 403 469 66 16.4% 
Materials and supplies 304 406 102 33.6% 
Insurance 764 795 31 4.1% 
Employee de\elopment and support 916 1,235 319 34.8% 
Business de\elopment 2,093 2,444 351 16.8% 
Equipment rentals and repairs 1,335 1,317 (18) (1.3%) 

Total operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortization 119,169 126,796 7,627 6.4% 

Depreciation and amortization 44,532 41 ,624 (2,908) (6.5%) 

Total operating expense $ 163,701 $ 168,420 $ 4,719 2.9% 



Fiscal year 201 4 compared to 2013: Total fiscal year 2014 operating expenses increased by $45.6 
mill ion , or 27.1 percent. The primary increase was due to the full year's depreciation of the terminal 
expansion that was partially placed in service in fiscal year 2013 and continued to increase as the 
expansion was completed in fiscal year 2014, $35.6 million or 85.5 percent. Additionally contributing to 
the increase were the increased salaries and benefits of $1.0 million , primarily resulting from increased 
head count due to expansion, salary increases and higher costs for medical benefits. There were also 
increased contractual services of $2.2 million, primarily resulting from increased shuttles and parking 
contract costs; safety and security increased $157 thousand due to greater usage from the terminal 
expansion; utilities increased $2.0 million due to increased rates and usage; maintenance increased 
by $2.8 million, reflecting costs of airfield repairs , elevator and escalator repairs and runway restriping . 
Additional support was provided to a new common use passenger processing system, contributing to 
the $174 thousand increase. Insurance increased by $193 thousand , business development increased 
$217 thousand and equipment rental and repairs increased $1 .6 million due to amortization of new 
system warranties on baggage handling systems and common use passenger systems. 

Offsetting this increase were the following decreases: space rental of $419 thousand reflecting the 
cancellation of an employee parking lease, and other minor reductions in employee development and 
support. 

Fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012: Total fiscal year 2013 operating expenses increased by $4.7 
million, or 2.9 percent. Contributing to this increase included: increased salaries and benefits of $855 
thousand , primarily due to salary increases and higher costs for medical benefits; increased 
contractual services of $2.4 million, primarily due to the Green Build associated consulting services 
such as, ramp control professional services and selecting software to manage the new systems and 
building. Additionally, safety and security increased by $1.4 million, due to increased Harbor Police 
salaries and benefits expense under a new proposed agreement; maintenance increased by $2.7 
million reflecting costs of sink hole repair, elevator and escalator repairs and runway restriping ; 
employee development and support increased by $319 thousand , due to the new Green Build 
systems training ; business development increased by $351 thousand , reflecting advertising and 
marketing for Japan Airlines and Green Build related promotions. 

Offsetting this increase were the following decreases: space rental of $518 thousand reflecting the 
cancellation of an employee parking lease, and other minor reductions in utilities and equipment 
rentals and repairs . Depreciation expense decreased by $2.9 million, due to fully depreciated assets 
of approximately $113 million which included HVAC systems, parking lots, airfield rehabilitations and 
aircraft fuel storage. 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 
Operating Expenses 
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Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses (in thousands) 

From 2013 to 2014 

Increase 

FY 2013 

Passenger facility charges $ 35,438 332 0.9% 
Customer fac ili ty charges 19,117 8,428 44.1% 
Quieter Home Program, net (1 ,589) (1 '161) 73.1% 
Joint studies program (55) (97) 176.4% 
Interest income 4,140 1,071 25.9% 
Interest expense, net (11 ,752) (39,988) (340.3%) 
Other nonoperating income (expenses) (4,279) 4.713 110.1% 

Nonoperating re\enues , net $ 41.020 (26,702) (65.1 %) 

From 2012 to 2013 
Increase 

FY 2012 FY 2013 (Decrease) % Change 

Passenger faci lity charges $ 34,639 $ 35,438 $ 799 2.3% 
Customer facility charges 11,487 19,117 7,630 66.4% 
Quieter Home Program, net (3,531 ) (1,589) 1,942 (55.0%) 
Joint studies program (73) (55) 18 (24.7%) 
Interest income 5,491 4,140 (1 ,351 ) (24.6%) 
Interest expense, net 2,969 (11 .752) (14,721 ) (495.8%) 
Other nonoperating income (expenses) (3,032) (4,279) (1,247) (41 .1%) 

Nonoperating re\enues , net $ 47,950 $ 41 ,020 $ (6,930) (14.5%) 

Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs) were established by Congress in 1990 as part of the Aviation 
Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1990. The Airport Authority collects a $4.50 PFC from revenue 
enplaned passengers to pay for the cost to design and construct eligible Airport capital projects or to 
repay debt service issued to build such projects. PFCs are collected by the air carriers when 
passengers purchase their tickets and are remitted to the Airport Authority the month following 
collection less a $0.11 administration fee. 

Customer Facility Charges (CFCs) are authorized under Section 1936 of the California Civil Code 
and approved by legislation under Senate Bill 151 0. The Airport Authority began collecting a $1 0 per 
contract CFC on rental cars in May 2009. The revenues collected are being used to plan and 
construct a consolidated rental car facility and related ground transportation system. The rental car 
agencies remit to the Airport Authority collection of the fee monthly. In November 2012, the rate of 
$1 0 per contract was changed to $6 per day up to five days. The fee was again increased in January 
2014, to $7.50 per day up to five days. The fee is scheduled to increase to $9.00 per day in January 
2017. 

Quieter Home Program includes sound attenuation construction improvements at all eligible single­
family and multifamily dwellings with six or fewer units located in the Year 2000 65 dB Community 
Noise Equivalent Level contour. The project is eligible for the Airport Improvement Program (AlP). 
From inception to fiscal year 2014, the Airport Authority has spent $162.9 million and received 
reimbursement for $132.7 million. 
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Interest income is derived from interest earned by the Airport Authority on investments, commercial 
paper reserves, bond reserves, and notes receivable from the District. 

Interest expense includes interest paid and accrued on the 2010, 2013 and 2014 Series Bonds and 
Commercial Paper Series A, B and C. This is netted with the capitalization of bond interest to the 
construction in progress assets that the debt finances. The capitalized interest in fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $7 million and $29.4 million, respectively. Also included in interest 
expense is the Series C Bonds that were issued as Build America Bonds and include a cash subsidy 
from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35 percent of the interest payable. During mid- fiscal year 2013 the 
35 percent subsidy ended due to the federal government's sequestration measures and was replaced 
with a reduced rate of 31 .96 percent. The interest subsidy for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013 was $4.6 million and $4.8 million, respectively. 

Other nonoperating income (expense) includes proceeds and expenses for legal settlements , gain 
(loss) on the sale of assets, unrealized gain (loss) on investments, and other miscellaneous revenue 
and expenses. 

Fiscal year 2014 compared to 2013: Nonoperating revenues (net) decreased by $26.7 million or 
65.1 percent. This is primarily due to the $40 million increased interest expense that no longer was 
capitalized in fiscal year 2014 due to the completion of the Green Build assets and the additional 
2014 bond debt. Additionally, there was a net $1 .1 million in reduced Quieter Home Program. 

Offsetting the decrease was the $8.4 million in customer facility charges due to the January 1, 2014 
increase from $6 to $7.50 per day per transaction up to five days. Other nonoperating income 
increased by $4.7 million due to fiscal year 2013 unrealized investment losses of $2.3 million and loss 
on disposal of assets, $2.3 million, due to the Green Build expansion and replacement of assets. 

Fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012: Nonoperating revenues (net) decreased by $6.9 million or 
14.5 percent. This is primarily due to the increased interest expense on the 2013 bonds. Additionally, 
there was reduced interest income of $1.4 million due to lower interest rates and other nonoperating 
income (expenses) of $1.2 million due to unrealized investment losses. 

Offsetting the decrease is the $799 thousand increase in passenger facility charges reflecting 
increased enplanements and $7.6 million increased customer facility charges. The increased 
customer facility charges are due to a rate increase effective November 1, 2012, from $10 per 
contract to $6 per day up to five days. Additionally, the Quieter Home Program contributed 
$1.9 million due to higher activity. 

Capital Grant Contributions are comprised of AlP entitlement and discretionary grants through the 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and other Federal and state organizations. These funds are 
recognized as revenue as the work is completed on the eligible projects. Variances relate to the 
amount of work completed on eligible projects during the fiscal year. 
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Assets, Liabilities and Net Position 

The statements of net position present the financial position of the Airport Authority as of a period in 
time. The statements include all assets , deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 
of the Airport Authority. A summary comparison of the Airport Authority's assets, liabilities and net 
position at June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 is as follows: 

Assets 
Current assets 
Capital assets , net 
Noncurrent assets 

Total assets 
Deferred outflows of resources 

Liabilities 

Total assets and deferred outflows 
of resources 

Current liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Position 
Net in~.estment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

FY 2012 FY 2013 

.. $ . . . . 
. I 

1,429,270 $ :1 

$ : . 
••• .. I: 

.. . • • I 

I . : . 
. . . . II I • I 

•• 1 ::. lo. 

1,429,270 $ :1 

As of June 30, 2014, the Airport Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
liabilities by $727.0 million, a $47 thousand decrease from June 30, 2013. The June 30, 2013 total 
net position was $66.2 million greater than June 30, 2012. The largest portion of the Airport 
Authority's net position represents its net investment in capital assets. The Airport Authority uses 
these capital assets to provide services to its passengers and other users of SOIA; consequently, 
these assets cannot be sold or otherwise liquidated. Although the Airport Authority's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it is noted that the funds required to repay this debt must 
be provided annually from operations. The unrestricted net position of $209.6 million as of June 30, 
2014, $200 million as of 2013 and $149.3 million as of 2012, may be used to meet any of the Airport 
Authority's ongoing obligations. As of June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 management has designated 
unrestricted funds in the amount of $17.1 million, $9.5 million, and $9.0 million respectively, for capital 
contract commitments funded by Airport Authority cash, earthquake insurance, net pension asset and 
operating contingency. 
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Capital Asset and Capita/Improvement Program 

The capital program at SOIA consists of the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and the Green Build . 
The CIP is a rolling five-year program that provides critical improvements and asset preservation. The 
program includes capital improvement projects that address federal security requ irements, airfield 
security, environmental remediation , terminal upgrades and development. Funding sources for the 
projects include the Federal Aviation Administration's Airport Improvement Program, Transportation 
Security Agency grants, Passenger Facility Charges, Customer Facility Charges, airport operating 
revenues, airport revenue bonds, special facility bonds and short-term borrowing using commercial 
paper/revolving line of credit. The capital program includes funding for the Green Build to expand 
Terminal 2 with 10 additional passenger gates, a dual-level roadway at Terminal 2 and additional 
overnight parking areas. The Green Build is substantially complete and closeout tasks are currently 
underway. The total budget for the Green Build is $820 million. 

In February 2014, $305 million of Senior Special Facilities Revenue Bonds were issued to be used for 
the rental car center scheduled for completion January 2016. The current CIP, which includes 
projects through 2019, consists of $193.3 million for airside projects, $814.4 million for landside 
projects, $639.3 million for terminal projects, and $19.7 million for administrative projects. The current 
SOIA CIP does not include noise reduction, and related projects. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Projects by Type 

Green Build 
Expansion 

53% 

.......-Airs ide 
/ 31% 

1% 

8% 

Terminal 
7% 

Additional information of the Airport Authority's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial 
statements. 

Capital Financing and Debt Management 

On October 5, 2010, the Airport Authority issued $572.6 million of Subordinate Airport Revenue 
Bonds Series 2010 A, B and C (Series 2010 Bonds) . The bonds are rated AIA2/A by Standard & 
Poor's, Moody's Investors Service and Fitch ratings, respectively. The Subordinate Series 2010 
Bonds were issued to finance certain capital improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest 
accruing on the Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds through and including January 1, 2013, refund 
$142.2 million of the Airport Authority's outstanding commercial paper notes, fund the subordinate 
bond reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds. 
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The Series 2010 A and B bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates 
ranging from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2012 to 2041 . The Series 2010 
C Bonds were issued as Bu ild America Bonds and include a cash subsidy payment from the U. S. 
Treasury; currently, 31 .96 percent of interest payable. The interest rate on the Series 2010 C Bonds, 
net of subsidy, is 4.48 percent and the bonds mature in fiscal year 2041. 

The Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority, payable from and 
secured by (a) a pledge of subordinate net revenues, which include certain income and revenue 
received by the Airport Authority from the operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are 
required to pay the operation and maintenance expenses of the airport system and all amounts 
necessary to pay debt service on and fund the reserves for the senior bonds; and (b) certain funds 
and accounts held by the subordinate trustee under the subordinate indenture. The Subordinate 
Series 2010 Bonds were issued with a pledge of and lien on subordinate net revenues on parity with 
the Airport Authority's subordinate commercial paper notes. In addition, the Airport Authority has 
irrevocably committed a portion of the PFCs; it has received and expects to receive through 2016. 
The amounts of irrevocably committed PFCs are $19 million annually for fiscal years 2014 through 
2016. As of June 30, 2014, the principal balance on the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds was 
$569.9 million. 

On January 30 2013, the Airport Authority issued $379.6 million of Senior Airport Revenue Bonds 
Series 2013 A and B (Series 2013 Bonds). The Series 2013 Bonds are rated A+/A 1/A+ by Standard 
& Poor's, Moody's Investors Service and Fitch Ratings, respectively. The Senior Series 2013 Bonds 
were issued to finance certain capital improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing 
on the senior Series 2013 Bonds through and including July 1, 2015, fund the senior reserve fund and 
pay the costs of issuance of the Senior Series 2013 Bonds. 

The Series 2013 Bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates ranging 
from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2016 to 2044. The bonds were issued at 
a premium of $55.9 million, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds. Interest on the Senior 
Series 2013 Bonds is payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year. Interest expense · 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 amounted to $18.48 million , including accrued interest of 
$9.2 million. The principal balance on the Series 2013 Bonds as of June 30, 2014 was $379.6 million. 

The Senior Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from 
and secured by (a) a pledge of net revenues, which include certain income and revenue received by 
the Airport Authority from the operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are required to pay 
the operation and maintenance expenses of the airport system (b) certain funds and accounts held by 
the senior trustee under the senior indenture. 

As senior lien bonds, the Series 2013 Bonds require that charges for services be set each fiscal year 
at rates sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 125 percent times the senior debt service for 
that year. In addition , the Series 2013 Bonds require the Airport Authority to maintain a reserve 
account with the bond trustee and to reserve certain amounts in the Airport Authority's books, as 
shown in Note 2. 

On February 1, 2014 the Airport Authority issued $305,285,000 of Series A and B Senior Special 
Facilities Revenue Bonds (Series 2014 Bonds). The Series 2014 Bonds were issued to finance a 
portion of the costs of the development and construction of a consolidated rental car facility and 
related improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing on the Series 2014 Bonds 
through January 1, 2016, fund deposits to the senior reserve fund, and pay the costs of issuance of 
the Series 2014 Bonds. 

The Series 2014 A Bond were structured as tax-exempt and non-AMT term bonds that bear interest 
at 5.00 percent. The Series 2014 B Bonds were structured as federally taxable bonds that bear 
interest at rates ranging from 2.54 percent to 3.73 percent. 
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The Series 2014 Bonds are special limited obl igations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from 
and secured by a pledge of the Trust Estate , which includes, among other things, Customer Facil ity 
Charges collected from the rental car companies operating at the Airport and remitted to the Trustee. 
No revenues of the Airport Authority other than the Customer Facility Charges and the Bond Funding 
Supplemental Consideration (as defined in the Indenture), are pledged to the payment of the Series 
2014 Bonds. 

As of June 30, 2014, $44.9 million in commercial paper was outstanding. The commercial paper 
program was established in 1997 to fund the then-approved CIP and related Terminal 2 expansion 
projects. The Airport Authority's outstanding commercial paper, Series A (non-AMT), Series B (AMT) 
and Series C (taxable) is secured by a pledge of airport revenues, subordinated to the pledge of net 
airport revenues securing the payment of the Series 2005 Bonds. The authorized program provides 
for borrowings up to $250 million through September 1, 2027. Each commercial paper note matures 
at the end of a period not to exceed 270 days and can be continually rolled into another issuance until 
the earlier of September 10, 2014, or five days prior to the letter of credit expiration date. The letter of 
credit is currently securing the commercial paper notes. At the expiration date, the total outstanding 
principal becomes due. The commercial paper notes require that the charges for services be set each 
year at rates sufficient to produce pledged revenues of at least 1.1 0 times the debt service on 
subordinate obligations, including the commercial paper notes, for that year. 

Each series of notes are additionally secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by Lloyds TSB 
Bank pic and is rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's Investors Service. The letter of 
credit expires on September 10, 2014. Interest on the notes is paid at a rate based on the market for 
similar commercial paper notes. 

The Airport Authority will replace the commercial paper program with a $125,000,000 revolving line of 
credit, issued by US Bank, which will be used to refund the outstanding Series B and Series C 
commercial paper balances. The revolving line of credit is a three year facility and will take effect on 
September 5, 2014. 

The revolving line of credit is payable solely from and secured by a pledge of subordinate net 
revenues . Subordinate net revenues are generally defined as all revenues and other cash receipts of 
the Airport Authority's airport operations remaining after Senior Lien payments have been deposited 
by the Trustee in accordance with the Senior Lien Trust Indenture. 

Additional information of the Airport Authority's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 to the financial 
statements. 

The SOIA's PFC program was established in 1994, and currently authorizes the imposition of a $4.50 
fee on enplaning passengers. There are currently three active applications which provide collection 
authority through November 1, 2037. 

FAA entitlement and discretionary grants are awarded on a federal fiscal year running October 1 
through September 30. The Airport Authority has received approximately $18 million in grant awards 
for the federal fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, as compared to $22.3 million for 2013. Grant 
awards are recognized as nonoperating revenue or capital contributions as eligible expenses are 
incurred. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Airport Authority's finances. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional 
information should be addressed in writing to the Accounting Department, P.O. Box 82776, San 
Diego, CA 92138. The Accounting Department can also be reached at (619) 400-2807. A copy of the 
financial report is available at www.san.org . 



Basic Financial Statements: 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Unrestricted: 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 

nvestrrents (Note 2) 

Tenant lease receivables , net 

Grants receivable 

Note receivable, current portion (Note 3) 

Other current assets 

Total unrestricted current assets 

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investrrents 

w ~h trustees (Notes 2 and 5) 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets 

Restricted assets (Notes 2 and 5) : 

Restricted cash , cash equivalents and investrrents not with 

trustees 

Restricted investrrents with trustees 

Passenger facility charges receivable (Note 1) 

Custorrer facility charges receivable (Note 1) 

Other restricted assets 

Total restricted assets 

Other noncurrent assets: 

nvestrrents , noncurrent (Note 2) 

Note receivable, long-term portion (Note 3) 

Cash and cash equivalents designated for spec~ic capital projects 

and other corrrritrrents (Notes 2 and 12) 

Net OPEB asset (Notes 8) 

Workers ' compensation security deposits 

Total other noncurrent assets 

Cap~al assets (Note 4) : 

Land, land improverrents and nondepreciable assets 

Buildings and structures 

Machinery and equiprrent 

Runways, roads and parking lots 

Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Cap~al assets , net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Deferred loss on debt refunding 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

$ 

2013 

63,626,765 

42 ,223,353 

8,037,665 

3,828,572 

1,446,896 

6,279,146 

125,442,397 

150,891 ,087 

265,568,939 

5,545,716 

2,301 ,027 

41 ,931 ,321 

39,886,768 

9,565,751 

6,648,142 

65,865,787 

715,421 ,387 

50,717,389 

526,061 '707 

401 ,825,140 

1,759,891 ,410 

4,396,671 

1 ,935,179,331 
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Liab ilit ies and Net posit ion 

Current Liabirrties 

Payable from unrestricted assets : 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liabilities 

Compensated absences , current portion (Note 5) 

Other current liabilities 

Leases payable , current portion (Note 5) 

Total payable from unres tricted assets 

Payable from restricted assets : 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liab~ities 

Bonds and comrercial paper notes payable, current portion (Note 5) 

Accrued interest on bonds and comrercial paper (Note 5) 

Total payable from restricted ass ets 

Total current liabi lities 

Long-Term Liabilities 

Compensated absences , net of current portion (Note 5) 

Other noncurrent liabilities 

Comrercial paper notes payable (Note 5) 

Bonds payable and capital leases 

Net Position 

Total long-term l iabilities 

Total liabilit ies 

Net investrrent in capital assets (Note 1) 

Restricted: 

Debt Service 

Construction 

Operation and rraintenance expenses 

Srrall business bond guarantee 

OCP loss reserve 

Total restricted net position 

lklrestricted net position 

Total net pos ition 

$ 

$ 

2013 

9,830,408 

8,548 ,307 

2,357 ,925 

731 ,831 

795,430 

50,969,000 

359,639,832 

43,638,543 

102,712,335 

11 ,651 ,772 

4,000,000 

200,040,073 

727 ,063,368 

000053 
15 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 

revenues: 

Airline revenue: 

Landing fees 

Aircraft parking fees 

Building rentals (Note 1 0) 

Security surcharge 

Other aviation revenue 

Concession revenue 

Parking and ground transportation revenue 

Ground and non-airlilne terrrinal rentals (Note 1 0) 

Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Salaries and benefits (Notes 6, 7 and 8) 

Contractual services (Note 12) 

Safety and security 

Space rental (Note 11) 

Utilities 

M3intenance 

Equipment and systems 

M3terials and supplies 

Insurance 

Errployee development and support 

Business development 

Equipment rentals and repairs 

Total operating expenses before depreciation and 

amortization 

Income from operations before depreciation and 

amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 

Operating income (loss) 

See Notes to Rnancial Statements. 

(Continued) 

2013 

19,658,173 

3,190,928 

41 ,839,619 

23,359,938 

1,591 ,266 

42,040,742 

35,750,484 

9,161 ,514 

38,092,464 

29,283,526 

23,994,020 

10,897,338 

6,659,333 

11 ,204,465 

468,699 

405,863 

794,984 

1,234,757 

2,444,407 

1,316,543 

126,796,399 

50,701,415 
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flbnoperating revenues (expenses) : 

Passenger facility charges 

Custorrer facility charges 

Quieter Herre A"ogram grant revenue (flbte 1) 

Quieter Herre A"ogram expenses (flbte 1) 

Joint Studies A"ogram 

Interest incorre 

Interest expense (flbte 5) 

Build Arrerica Bonds subsidy (flbte 5) 

Other revenues (expenses) , net 

flbnoperating revenue, net 

lncorre (loss) before cap~al grant contributions 

Capital grant contributions (flbte 1) 

Olange in net pos~ion 

Net pos~ion, beginning of year 

Net pos~ion , end of year 

See flbtes to Financial Staterrents. 

2013 

35,437,453 

19,117,217 

13,241 ,658 

(14,830,457) 

(55,254) 

4,140,068 

(16,530,425) 

16,077,280 

66,174,802 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Statements of Cash Flows 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Other receipts (payments) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 

Settlement receipts (payments) 

Quieter Home A"ogram grant receipts 

Quieter Home A"ogram payments 

Joint Studies A"ogram payments 

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Capital outlay 

A"oceeds on Build America Bonds subsidy 

A"oceeds from sale of capital assets 

Federal grants received (excluding Quieter Home A"ogram) 

A"oceeds from passenger facility charges 

A"oceeds from customer facility charge 

A"oceeds from issuance of commercial paper 

Payment of principal on bonds and commercial paper 

A"oceeds from issuance of Series 2013 Bond 

A"oceeds from issuance of Series 2014 Bond 

Payment of capital lease 

Interest and debt fees paid 

Net cash provided by capital and related 

financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Sales and maturities of investments 

Purchases of investments 

Interest received on investments and note receivable 

A"incipal payments received on notes receivable 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents , beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents , end of year 

(Continued) 

See Notes to Financial Statements . 

2013 

174,459,266 

(81 '174,308) 

(37,008,283) 

4,756 

13,264,899 

(14,832,460) 

(325,984,231) 

4,778,599 

694,150 

16,093,276 

34,304,024 

17,905,417 

31 ,045,000 

(39,745,000) 

435,519,101 

(4,215,620) 

170,394,716 

127,453,246 

(363,755, 197) 

5,122,356 
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Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Staterrents of Net Pos~ion 

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents designated for specific capital 

projects and other cormitrrents 

Reconciliation of Operating lncorre (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by 

Operating Activ~ies 

Operating incorre (loss) 

Adjustrrents to reconcile operating incorre (loss) to net cash provided 

by operating activities: 

Depreciation and arrortization expense 

Bad debt expense (recapture) 

Changes in assets and liabil~ies : 

Tenant lease receivables 

OPEB asset 

Other assets 

Accounts pay able 

Accrued liabil~ies 

Compensated absences 

Other liabilities 

Net cas h provided by operating activities 

Supplerrental Disclosure of Noncash Investing, Capital and 

Financing Activ~ies 

Add~ions to cap~al assets included in accounts payable 

Add~ions to cap~allease obligations 

See Notes to Financial Staterrents . 

2013 

63,626,765 

6 

9,077,786 

41 ,623,629 

4,565 

(1 ,386,723) 

578,664 

(892,748) 

(1 ,440,698) 

8,437,880 

156,771 

(32,407) 

56,126,719 

74,236,334 

7,955,912 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting entity: The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (the Airport Authority) , an 
autonomous public agency, was established as a result of legislation, Assembly Bill 93 (2001 ), as 
modified by Senate Bill 1896 (2002), which together comprise the San Diego County Regional Airport 
Authority Act (the Act). The Act required, among other things, the transfer of the assets and 
operations of the San Diego International Airport (SOIA) from the San Diego Unified Port District (the 
District) to the Airport Authority. Effective January 1, 2003 (inception), the District transferred all 
airport operations and certain related assets and liabilities to the Airport Authority, pursuant to the Act 
and the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated as of December 31, 2002, between the Airport 
Authority and the District, which implemented the Act. 

Senate Bill 10 (SB 1 0), the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Reform Act, was effective 
January 1, 2008. Responsibilities of the Airport Authority include, among other things, the operation , 
maintenance, development, management and regulation of SOIA and its facilities . In addition, the 
Airport Authority has the responsibility to plan or to expand the existing SOIA. Under one of the 
requirements of SB 10, the Airport Authority completed a Regional Aviation Strategic Plan and the 
Airport Authority prepared and adopted an Airport Multimodal Accessibility Plan. In addition , the 
Airport Authority acts as the Airport Land Use Commission within San Diego County. 

In accordance with the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, 
the basic financial statements include all organizations, agencies, boards , commissions and 
authorities for which the Airport Authority is financially accountable. The Airport Authority has also 
considered all other potential organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationships 
with the Airport Authority are such that exclusion would cause the Airport Authority's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. Based on these criteria , 
there are no other organizations or agencies which should be included in these basic financial 
statements. 

The Airport Authority is governed by a nine-member, appointed Board of Directors (Board) , 
representing all areas of San Diego County and three additional members serving as non-voting, ex­
officio Board members. Three Board members are appointed by the Mayor of the City of San Diego. 
Two Board members are appointed by the San Diego County Board of Supervisors. The remaining 
four Board members are each appointed by the Mayors of the following defined jurisdictions: the east 
county cities, south county cities, north coastal area cities and north county inland cities. The Board 
members serve three year terms in accordance with California SB 10. 

Measurement focus and basis of accounting: The accounting policies of the Airport Authority 
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to 
state and local government agencies, and as such, the Airport Authority is accounted for as a 
proprietary fund . The basic financial statements presented are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. This 
measurement focus emphasizes the determination of the change in Airport Authority net position . 

Use of estimates: The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

C, (' ·~ ~ 
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San Diego County Regional A irport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(Continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents includes unrestricted (including designated) cash on hand, demand deposits and 
investment securities with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Investments: Investments in the state and county investment pools are recorded at fair value based 
upon the Airport Authority's pro rata share of the fair value provided by the state and county 
investment pools for the entire respective pool. Guaranteed investment contracts are recorded at 
contract value. All other investments are stated at fair market value based on quoted market prices. 

Tenant lease receivables: Tenant lease receivables are carried at the original invoice amount for 
fixed-rent tenants and at estimated invoice amount for concession (variable) tenants, less an estimate 
made for doubtful receivables for both fixed-rent and concession tenants. Management determines 
the allowance for doubtful accounts by evaluating individual tenant receivables and considering a 
tenant's financial condition and credit history and current economic conditions. Tenant lease 
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of tenant lease receivables 
previously written off are recorded when received . 

Federal grants: Outlays for airport capital improvements and certain airport nonoperating expenses, 
primarily those relating to the Airport Authority's Quieter Home Program, are subject to 
reimbursement from federal grant programs. Funding provided from government grants is considered 
earned as the related approved capital outlays or expenses are incurred. Costs claimed for 
reimbursement are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency. 

Airport Improvement Program (AlP): AlP grants are authorized and disbursed by the FAA under 
the Airway Improvement Act of 1982, as amended, which provides funding for airport planning and 
development projects at airports included in the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems. As such, 
the AlP grants must be used to pay for the allowable costs of approved projects. As of June 30, 2014 
and 2013, the Airport Authority recovered $3,924,332 and $16,077,280, respectively , for approved 
capital projects and $12,373,861 and $13,241 ,658, respectively, for the Quieter Home Program. 
Related recoverable costs as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $4,633,107 and $20,096,600, 
respectively, for capital projects and $15,124,141 and $14,830,457, respectively, for the Quieter 
Home Program. 

Passenger facility charges (PFC): The PFC program is authorized by the Aviation Safety and 
Capacity Expansion Act of 1990 (the Expansion Act). In accordance with the Expansion Act, the 
Airport Authority's AlP Passenger Entitlement Apportionment is reduced by certain percentages, 
dependent upon the level of PFC received by the Airport Authority. 

In accordance with the program, PFC revenue must be used to pay allowable costs for approved 
capital projects. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, accrued PFC receivables totaled $4,066,248 and 
$5,545,716, respectively , and there were $60,769,935 and $53,856,259 PFC amounts collected but 
not yet applied for approved capital projects as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

On May 20, 2003, the FAA approved an increase in the Airport Authority's PFC charge per enplaned 
passenger from $3.00 to $4.50, beginning August 1, 2003. Currently, the Airport Authority's impose 
and use authority of $1 .2 billion from three active applications allows collection through November 1, 
2037. The Airport Authority has formally closed five previously approved applications and withdrawn 
one pending application which has been integrated in a ninth application to impose and use 
approximately $32 million in PFC revenue. The latest application was approved by the FAA in July 
2012. In accordance with the Aviation Investment Reform Act (AIR-21 ), airports imposing a $4.50 
collection level are required to reduce AlP Passenger Entitlement Apportionment to 75 percent. 

cuou59 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(Continued) 

Customer facility charges (CFC): The Airport Authority received approval in May 2009 from the 
State of California under Section 1936 of the Californ ia Civi l Code to impose a $1 0 CFC per contract 
on rental cars at SOIA. 

In accordance with the prog ram, the CFC revenue must be used to pay al lowable costs for approved 
capital projects. Effective January 1, 2014, the CFC rate went from $6.00 to $7.50 per day for a 
maximum of five days. As of June 30, 2014 and 201 3, accrued CFC receivables totaled $3,394,812 
and $2,301 ,027, respectively. CFC amounts collected , includ ing interest, but not yet appl ied for 
approved capital projects as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $41 ,652,322 and $41 ,009,333, 
respective ly. 

Net pension asset: The Airport Authority funds additional contributions to the defined pension plan in 
excess of the annual required contribution (ARC) to strive for a 95 percent fund ing ratio. The 
difference between the Airport Authority's actual contributions and its ARCs results in a net pension 
asset. 

Net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) asset: Annually, the Airport Authority funds 100 percent 
of the actuarially calculated ARC for its OPES. In previous years, the Airport Authority has made 
contributions above the annual ARC which has resulted in a net OPES asset. 

Deferred outflows of resources: The Airport Authority defers recognition of losses incurred on debt 
refundings and reports such losses as deferred outflows of resources in the statements of net 
position. Deferred losses on debt refundings are amortized using the effective interest method over 
the lesser of the remaining life of the original bonds or the life of the new bonds. 

Capital assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost, except for property contributed by third parties, 
which is recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution, less an allowance for accumulated 
depreciation. The Airport Authority capitalizes incremental overhead costs and interest cost 
associated with the construction of capital assets. Capital assets are defined by the Airport Authority 
as assets with an initial , ind ividual cost of more than $5,000 and an initial useful life of one year or 
greater. 

Depreciation is computed by use of the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Category 

Land improvements 

Runways, roadways and pa rk ing lots 

Lighting, security and minor imprm.ements 

Airfield and parking lots and improwments 

Drainage systems, gas lines, pedestrian bridges 

Roadways, bridges and infrastructure 

Bui ldings a nd structures 

Useful Life 

(Years) 

30-40 

3-10 

12-25 

30 

40-50 

Passenger loading bridges, security systems , general upgrades and remodels 3-10 

Baggage handling systems, HVAC, structural improwments, fuel and storage facility 12-20 

Buildings and smart curb improwments 25-50 

Machinery a nd equ ipment 

Vehicles and emergency whicles 

Office furniture and equipment 

Communication and electronic systems 

Works o f art 

3-15 

3-10 

3-20 

15-30 

1'\.lf (t '· ~ "" 
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San Diego County Regional Ai rport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(Continued) 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend the life of the asset are expensed as incurred. Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as construction in progress as projects are constructed . Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of 
the assets constructed. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority 
capitalized interest of $6,962,979 and $29,438,080, respectively. 

Evaluation of long-lived assets: The Airport Authority accounts for long-lived assets under GASB 
No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and ,for Insurance 
Recoveries. The Airport Authority's capital assets include property, equipment and infrastructure 
assets. A capital asset is considered impaired if both the decline in service utility of the capital asset 
is large in magnitude and the event or change in circumstances is outside the normal life cycle of the 
capital asset. The Airport Authority is required to evaluate prominent events or changes in 
circumstances affecting capital assets to determine whether impairment of a capital asset has 
occurred. Common indicators of impairment include evidence of physical damage where restoration 
efforts are needed to restore service utility, enactment or approval of laws or regulations setting 
standards that the capital asset would not be able to meet, technological development or evidence of 
obsolescence, a change in the manner or expected duration of use of a capital asset or construction 
stoppage. This statement requires the Airport Authority to report the effects of capital asset 
impairments in its financial statements when they occur and to account for insurance recoveries in the 
same manner. The Airport Authority's management has determined that no impairment of capital 
assets currently exists. 

Retentions payable: The Airport Authority enters into construction contracts that may include 
retention provisions such that a certain percentage of the contract amount is held for payment until 
completion of the contract and acceptance by the Airport Authority. The Airport Authority's policy is to 
record the retention payable only after completion of the work and acceptance of the contractor 
invoices have occurred. Retentions payable on completed contracts are included with accounts 
payable on the accompanying statements of net position. Amounts related to unpaid retentions on 
uncompleted contracts are included in accrued liabilities. 

Compensated absences: All employees of the Airport Authority earn annual leave that is paid upon 
termination or retirement. Annual leave is accrued at current rates of compensation and based on 
assumptions concerning the probability that certain employees will become eligible to receive these 
benefits in the future. 

Bond discounts, premiums and issuance costs: Bond discounts and premiums are deferred and 
amortized over the term of the respective bonds using the effective interest method. Bond issuance · 
costs are expensed as incurred. 

Airport Authority net position: Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the 
acquisition , construction or improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets excludes 
unspent debt proceeds. 

Restricted net position represents amounts that are appropriated or legally segregated for a specific 
purpose. Airport Authority net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on 
its use, either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Airport Authority or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. 

OGOG 61 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(Continued) 

Unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2014, includes designations of net position that represent 
tentative management plans that are subject to change, consisting of: 

Operating contingency 

Insurance contingency (Note 9) 

Capital projects and other commitments (Note 12) 

Total designated net posit ion 

2013 

2,000,000 

6,659,982 

905,769 

,751 

Revenue classifications: Revenue is recognized when earned. The Airport Authority will classify 
revenues as operating or nonoperating based on the following criteria: 

Operating revenues are from the revenue sources that constitute the principal ongoing activities 
of the Airport Authority's operations. The major components of the Airport Authority's operating 
revenue sources consist of landing fees and terminal building and ground rentals , concession and 
parking fees, and other miscellaneous fees and charges. Landing fees and terminal building rates 
are charged on the basis of recovery of actual costs for operating and maintaining the SOIA 
airfield and terminal areas. Ground rentals consist mainly of rent received for leased cargo 
facilities . Concession fees are determined as a percentage of gross monthly revenues generated 
by each concession lessee's monthly operations. Parking fees are generated from the airport 
parking lots. 

Nonoperating revenues are from revenue sources related to financing activities and other 
activities, which do not constitute the principal ongoing activities of the Airport Authority's 
operations. The major components of the nonoperating revenue sources are interest income from 
cash and investments, PFCs, CFCs and grant revenue related to the Quieter Home Program. 

Concentrations: A significant portion of the Airport Authority's earnings and revenues are directly or 
indirectly attributed to the activity of a number of major airlines. The Airport Authority's earnings and 
revenues could be materially and adversely affected should any of these major airlines discontinue 
operations and should the Airport Authority be unable to replace those airlines with similar activity. 
The level of operations is determined based upon the relative share of enplaned passengers. 

The three largest airlines in terms of enplaned passengers are as follows: 

Southwest A irlines 

United Airlines 
Delta Airlines 

2013 

37.2% 

13.5% 
10.4% 

Expense classifications: The Airport Authority will classify expenses as operating or nonoperating 
based on the following criteria: 

Operating expenses relate to the principal ongoing activities of the Airport Authority's operations. 
The major components of the Airport Authority's operating expense sources consist of salaries 
and benefits, contractual services, space rental , utilities, maintenance, equipment and systems, 
materials and supplies, insurance, employee development and support, business development, 
and equipment rentals and repairs . 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(Continued) 

Nonoperating expenses relate to financing, investing and other activities that do not constitute the 
principal ongoing activities of the Airport Authority's operations. The major components of 
nonoperating expenses sources are expenditures for the Quieter Home Program, interest 
expense and other nonoperating expenses such as legal settlements and unrealized loss on 
investments. 

Pronouncements issued but not yet adopted: GASB has issued several pronouncements that may 
impact future financial presentations. Management has not currently determined what, if any, impact 
implementation of the following statements may have on the financial statements of the Airport 
Authority: 

• GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 27, effective for the Airport Authority's year ending June 30, 2015; 

• GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government 
Operations, effective for the Airport Authority's year ending June 30, 2015; and 

• GASB Statement No. 71 , Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date- an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 effective for the Airport 
Authority's year ending June 30, 2015. 

Pronouncements adopted: The Airport Authority has adopted and implemented the following GASB 
Statements during the year ended June 30, 2014: 

• GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections- 2012- and amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 10 and No. 62; and 

• GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees 

The implementation of GASB Statements No. 66 and No. 70 did not impact net position or the change 
in net position of the Airport Authority as of or for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial information in 
order to conform to the 2014 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on the Airport 
Authority's net position or change in net position. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Summary of cash, cash equivalents and investments: Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
are reported in the accompanying statements of net position as follows at June 30: 

Unrestricted and undesignated: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Current im.estments 

Noncurrent im.estments 
Total unrestricted and undesignated 

Designated for specific capital projects and other 

commitments : cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and im.estments : 

Bond reser.es 
Operation and maintenance reser.e subaccount 

Operation and maintenance subaccount 

Renewal and replacement reser.e 

Passenger facility charges unapplied 

Customer facility charges unapplied 

Small business de~.elopment bond guarantee 

Commercial paper reser.e 

Total restricted 

Total cash, cash equivalents and in~.estments 
not with trustees 

Cash, cash equivalents and in~.estments 
with trustees : 

Commercial paper interest 

Customer facility charges 

2010 Series debt sel"l.4ce account 

2010 Series construction fund 
2010 Series debt sel"l.4ce reser.e fund 

2013 Series debt sel"l.4ce account 

2013 Series capitalized interest account 
2013 Series construction fund 

2013 Series debt sel"l.4ce reser.e fund 

2014 Series rolling co~.erage fund 

2014 Series capitalized interest account 

2014 Series construction fund 
2014 Series debt sel"l.4ce reser.e fund 

Total cash, cash equivalents and in~.estments 

with trustees 

Total cash, cash equivalents and in~.estments 

2013 

63,626,765 

42,223,353 

9,565,751 

34,955,315 

11 ,651 ,772 

5,400,000 

52,007,087 

53,856,259 

41 ,009,333 

4,000,000 

308,238,277 

12,906 

16,869,731 
2,728,626 

51 ' 108,152 
1,648,415 

8,357,832 

250,974,607 

32,729,065 

364,429,334 

672,667,611 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Components of cash , cash equivalents and investments at June 30 are summarized below: 

Unrestricted cash on deposit: 

Cash on hand 

Cash in banks 

Total unrestricted cash on deposit 

Unrestricted and restricted cash equivalents : 

Money market accounts 

Money market mutual funds 

Total unrestricted and restricted 

cash equivalents 

Unrestricted and restricted investments : 

Certificates of deposit 

CaiTrust Fund 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

San Diego County Investment Pool (SDCIP) 

Commercial paper 

Medium-term notes 

U.S. Treasury notes 

U.S. agency securities 

Total unrestricted and restricted investments 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

not with trustees 

Cash, cash equivalents , and investments with trustees : 

Money market accounts 

Money market mutual funds 

Certificates of deposit 

San Diego County Investment Pool (SDCIP) 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
Total cash, cash equivalents and im.estments 

with trustees 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

2013 

51,976 

62,559,806 

537,158 

63,096,964 

10,117,110 

5,000,000 

47,416,828 

48,088,210 

35,485,205 

8,126,320 

11,759,303 

308,238,277 

16,124,492 

24,620,178 

20,461 ,517 

207' 199,007 
96,024,140 

364,429,334 

Investments authorized in accordance with California Government Code Section 53601 and 
under the provisions of the Airport Authority's investment policy: The table that follows 
identifies the investment types that are authorized by the Airport Authority 's investment policy and 
State Government Code. The table also identifies certain provisions of the Airport Authority's 
investment policy that address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of cred it risk. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

This table does not address investments of bond proceeds held by the bond trustee that are 
governed by provisions of debt agreements of the Airport Authority, in addition to the general 
provisions of the Airport Authority's investment policy and State Government Code. 

Minimum Mal<imum Mal<imum 
Mal<imum Qual ity Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Requ irements Portfol io One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years N/A None None 
U.S. agency securities 5 years N/A None None 
Bankers' acceptances 180 days AAA/Aaa 40 percent 10 percent 
Commercial paper 270 days A-1 ; P-1; F-1 25 percent 10 percent 
Negotiable certificates of deposit < 25 months A 30 percent 10 percent 

25-36 months AA 30 percent 10 percent 
Medium-term notes < 25 months A 15 percent 10 percent 

25-36 months AA 15 percent 10 percent 
Repurchase agreements 1 year A None None 
Local Agency ln~.estment Fund NIA N/A None $50 million 
San Diego County ln~.estment Pool N/A N/A None $50 million 
Local Go~.emment ln~.estment Pool N/A N/A None $50 million 
Money market mutual funds N/A AAA/Aaa 20 percent 10 percent 
U.S. State and California agency 5 years A 20 percent 5 percent 

indebtedness 
Placement sel\1ce certificates of deposits 3 years N/A 30 percent 10 percent 
Bank deposits N/A None None 
Time certificates of deposit 3 years 20 percent 10 percent 

* Financial institution must have at least an overall satisfactory rating under the Community Reinvestment Act for 
meeting the credit needs of California communities in its most recent evaluation. Collateralization required per 
Cal. Gov. Code Section 53630 et seq. 

Investment in state investment pools: The Airport Authority is a voluntary participant in the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The Airport Authority's investments in 
this pool are reported in the accompanying financial statements at fair value based upon the Airport 
Authority's pro rata share of the amortized cost basis provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in 
relation to the amortized cost of each portfolio) . The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by LAIF. 

Investment in county investment pool: The Airport Authority is a voluntary participant in the San 
Diego County Investment Pool (SDCIP) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 
16429 under the oversight of the County Treasurer of San Diego. The Airport Authority's investments 
in this pool are reported in the accompanying financial statements at fair value based upon the Airport 
Authority's pro rata share of the amortized cost basis provided by SDCIP for the entire SDCIP 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio) . The balance available for withdrawal is 
based on the accounting records maintained by SDCIP. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Investments authorized by debt agreements: Investments held by the bond trustee are governed 
by the provisions of the debt agreement, in addition to the general provisions of the California 
Government Code and the Airport Authority's investment policy. The table below identifies the 
investment types that are authorized for investments held by the bond trustee, according to the 
Master Trust Indenture. In the event of a conflict between the Airport Authority's investment policy 
and permitted investments associated with any Airport Authority debt issuance, the debt agreement 
shall control. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address 
interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. 

Minimum Maximum Maxi mum 
Maximum Quality Percentage of Investment in 

JIJ.Jthorized Investment Type Maturity Requirements Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury obligations None N/A None None 
U.S. agency securities None NIA None None 
Bankers ' acceptances 360 days AAA!Aaa None None 
Commercial paper 270 days A-1 ; P-1 ; F-1 None None 
Repurchase agreements None N/A None None 
Money market portfolio None Two highest None None 

ratings 
Cash None N/A None None 
Deposit accounts None N/A None None 
Municipal bonds None Two highest None None 

ratings 
Local Agency lni.Estment Fund None N/A None None 
San Diego County lni.Estment Pool None N/A None None 
Certificates of deposit None Two highest None None 

ratings 
lni.Estment agreements None N/A None None 

The primary objective of the Airport Authority's investment policy is to invest public funds in a manner 
that will provide the highest security of the funds under management while meeting the daily cash 
flow demands of the Airport Authority. Assets of the Airport Authority that are not bond proceeds, 
which are invested in securities as permitted in the bond indenture, are described in the preceding 
table. In addition , there are various credit criteria as defined in the Airport Authority's investment 
policy as depicted in the previous section entitled "Investments authorizes in accordance with 
California Government Code Section 53601 and under the provisions of the Airport Authority's 
investment policy." 

Investments held by Trustee: The Airport Authority has monies held by trustees pledged for the 
security and payment of certain debt instruments, the payment of bond interest during construction 
and the payment of capital project costs. 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Disclosures related to interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest 
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, investments with longer 
maturities have greater fair value sensitivity to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways the 
Airport Authority manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter­
term and longer-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities. These staggered 
maturities also provide consistent cash flow and fulfill liquidity needs for operations. The Airport 
Authority monitors interest rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the segmented time 
distribution of its portfolio. The Airport Authority has no specific limitations with respect to this metric. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Airport Authority's investments (including 
investments held by bond trustee) to market rate fluctuations is provided by the following tables, 
which shows the distribution of the entity's investments by maturity as of June 30: 

2014 
12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More Than 

Investment Type Total or Less Months Months 60 Months 

Investments subject to interest 
rate risk: 

CaiTrust $ 15,027,791 $ 15,027,791 $ $ $ 
LAIF 183,293,665 183,293,665 
SDCIP 336,285,168 336,285,168 
Commercial paper 15,494,684 15,494,684 
Medium-term notes 22,018,642 21,219,370 799,272 
Money market mutual funds 28,013,480 28,013,480 
U.S. Treasury notes 64,082,562 36,552,992 27,529,570 
U.S. agency securities 38,442,680 17,972,890 20,469,790 
Total investments subject to 

interest rate risk: $ 702,658,672 $ 578,114,788 $ 75,745,252 $ 48,798,632 $ 
Investments not subject to interest 

rate risk: 
Certificates of deposit 35,808,518 

$ 738,467,190 

2013 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More Than 
ln-.estment Type Total or Less Months Months 60 Months 

ln-.estments subject to interest 
rate risk : 

CaiTrust $ 5,000,000 $ $ 5,000,000 $ $ 

LA IF 143,440,968 143,440,968 
SDCIP 255,287,217 255,287,217 
Commercial paper 35,485,205 35,485,205 
Medium-term notes 8,126,320 8,126,320 
Money market mutual funds 25,157,336 25,157,336 
U.S. Treasury notes 11 ,759,303 11 ,759,303 

U.S. agency securities 74,052,785 4,992,950 69,059,835 
Total in-.estments subject to 

interest rate risk : $ 558,309,134 $459,370,726 $ 9,992,950 $ 88,945,458 $ 

ln-.estments not subject to interest 
rate risk : 

Certificates of deposit 30,578,627 

$ 588,887,761 
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San Diego County Regional Ai rport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Custodial credit risk (deposits) : Custodial cred it risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of a depository financial institution , a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will 
not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Airport 
Authority maintains deposits at several institutions in order to minimize custodial credit risk. These 
deposits are collateralized by various instruments such as U.S. government securities (guaranteed) 
or U.S. agency securities (government sponsored). California Government Code requ ires that a 
financial institution secure deposits made by a state or local government by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the 
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited 
by the public agencies . California law also allows financial institutions to secure Airport Authority 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured 
deposits. 

Insurance through the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) may be applicable to the first 
$250,000 of institutional deposit accounts, with any balance above this amount covered by the 
collateralization requirement. Certificates of deposit held by the Airport Authority's third-party 
custodians are fully insured by the FDIC, as the individual amounts do not exceed the FDIC-insured 
limits, or are collateralized in accordance with the California Government Code. 

Custodial credit risk (investments): Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that the Airport 
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments in the event of a counterparty failure . 
The Airport Authority uses third-party banks' custody and safekeeping services for its registered 
investment securities. Securities are held in custody at third-party banks registered in the name of the 
A irport Authority and are segregated from securities owned by those institutions or held in custody by 
those institutions. 

Disclosures related to credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment 
will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of an investment. This is measured by the assignment of a 
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization . California Government Code Section 
53601 (as referenced previously in this note) limits the types of investment instruments that may be 
purchased by the Airport Authority. Presented below is the actual rating for each investment type held 
by the Airport Authority as of June 30, 2014 and 2013: 

2014 
Investment Type Total Unrated!' I AAA/Aaa l'l AAJ Aal'l Al'l A-1+/P-1111 

Investments subject to credit rate risk: 
CaiTrust $ 15,027,791 $ $ 15,027,791 $ $ $ 
LAIF 183,293,665 183,293,665 
SDCIP 336,285,168 336,285,168 
Commercial paper 15,494,684 15,494,684 

Medium-term notes 22,018,642 17,011 ,542 5,007,100 
Money market mutual funds 28,013,480 28,013,480 

U.S . Treasury notes 64,082,562 64,082,562 
U.S. agency securities 38,442,680 38,442,680 

Total investments subject to 
credit risk: $ 702,658,672 $ 183,293,665 $ 481 ,851 ,681 $ 17,011 ,542 $ 5,007,100 $ 15,494,684 

Investments not subject to credit risk: 
Certificates of deposit 35,808,518 

$ 738,467,190 

1' 1 Source: Standard and Poor's, Moodys and Fitch 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

2013 

ln~.estment Type Total Unrated'1> AANAaa(1> AAJ Aa'1> A-1+/P-1'1> 

ln~.estments subject to credit rate risk : 
CaiTrust $ 5,000,000 $ $ 5,000,000 $ $ 

LA IF 143,440,968 143,440, 968 

SDCIP 255,287,217 255,287,217 

Commercial paper 35,485,205 35,485,205 

Medium-term notes 8,126,320 8,126,320 
Money market mutual funds 25,157,336 25,157,336 

U.S. Treasury notes 11 ,759,303 11 ,759,303 

U.S. agency securities 74,052,785 74,052,785 

Total in~.estments subject to 
credit risk : $558,309,134 $ 143,440,968 $ 371 ,256,641 $ 8,126,320 $ 35,485,205 

ln~.estments not subject to credit risk : 

Certificates of deposit 30,578,627 

$ 588,887,761 

'
1> Source: Standard and Poor's, Moodys and Fitch 

Concentration of credit risk: The investment policy of the Airport Authority contains no limitations 
on the amount that can be invested by any one issuer beyond that stated in the table provided earlier 
in this note. The Airport Authority requires a diversified investment portfol io to avoid risk of losses 
resulting from an over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, issuer or class of securities. The 
Airport Authority had no concentrations of credit risk at June 30, 2014. 

Foreign currency risk: The Airport Authority's investment policy does not allow investments in 
foreign securities. 

Note 3. Note Receivable 

As part of the transfer of airport operations from the District to the Airport Authority, and pursuant to 
the associated MOU, the District issued a $50,000,000 unsecured promissory note to the Airport 
Authority. According to an agreement with the District that commenced on January 1, 2006, the note 
will be amortized over 25 years, maturing on December 31 , 2030. The note is subordinate to all bond 
indebtedness of the District and carries a fixed interest rate of 5.5 percent per annum. At June 30, 
2014 and 2013, the balance of the note receivable was $39,886,768 and $41 ,333,664, respectively. 

The required principal payments owed from the District for note receivable for the fiscal years ending 
June 30 are as follows (rounded) : 

Years Ending June 30, 

2015 $ 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 
2020-2024 

2025-2029 

2030-2034 

$ 

Amount 

1,529 ,000 
1,609 ,000 

1,705,000 
1,802 ,000 

1,903,000 

11 ,244,000 

14,802,000 

5,293,000 

39,887,000 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as fol lows: 

Nondepreciable assets : 

Land 

Construction in progress 

iltangible asset 

Total nondepreciable 

assets 

Depreciable assets : 

Land improverrents 

Buildings and structures (1) 

Machinery and equiprrent (2) 

Runways , roads and parking lots 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for : 

Land improverrents 

Building and structures 

Machinery and equiprrent 

Runways , roads and parking lots 

Total accumulated 

depreciation 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 

Capital assets, net 

$ 

Balance at 

June 30, 2013 

22 ,415,851 

401 ,825,140 

440,000 

424,680,991 

43,009,936 

715,421 ,387 

50,717,389 

526,061 '707 

1,335,210,419 

(2,298,540) 

(346, 153,840) 

(38,920,696) 

(581,747,601) 

Increases Decreases 

$ $ 

214,293,229 

214,293,229 

5,656,060 

317,174,867 

1,573,410 

43,041 ,675 

367,446,012 

(1 ,816 ,359) 

(52 ,962,879) 5,218,601 

(3,792 ,848) 

(81 '1 45,665) 6,058,071 

(1) ilcludes capitalized lease of building w ~h in~ial net present value of future lease payrrents of $8,040,531 

(2) ilcludes capitalized leases of office equiprrent with initial net present value of future lease payrrents of $760,332 

Construction in progress contains projects such as the Green Build , upgrading certain major 
equ ipment, and improvements to the runway, parking lots and terminals. Current contracts with the 
Airport Authority related to these projects are discussed later in these notes. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance at Balance at 

June 30, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013 

Nondepreciable assets : 

Land $ 22,415,851 $ $ $ 22,415,851 

Construction in progress 632 ,390,868 320,205,929 (550,771 ,657) 401 ,825,140 

Intangible asset 440,000 440,000 

Total nondepreciable 

assets 655,246,719 320,205,929 (550,771 ,657) 424,680,991 

Depreciable assets : 

Land irrprovements 2,071,198 40,938,738 43,009,936 

Buildings and structures ( 1) 463,735,113 252,587,679 (901,405) 715,421 ,387 

Machinery and equipment (2) 47,676,803 3,336,199 (295,613) 50,717,389 

Runways, roads and parking lots 269,535,431 262,222,156 (5,695,880) 526,061 ,707 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated 783,018,545 559,084,772 (6,892 ,898) 1,335,210,419 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land irrprovements (1 ,190,389) (1 ,108,151) (2 ,298,540) 

Building and structures (320,299,753) (26,459, 140) 605,053 (346, 153,840) 

Machinery and equipment (35,344,261) (3,870,881) 294,446 (38,920,696) 

Runways , roads and parking lots ( 184,953,993) ( 12,950, 700) 3,530,168 (194,374,525) 

Total accumulated 

depreciation ( 541 '788,396) ( 44,388,872) 4,429,667 (581 ,747,601) 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 241,230,149 514,695,900 (2 ,463,231) 753,462,818 

Capital assets , net $ 896,476,868 $ 834,901,829 $ (553,234,888) $1 '178, 143,809 

(1) Includes capitalized lease of building w ~h in~ial net present value of future lease payments of $8 ,040,531 

(2) Includes capitalized leases of office equipment with initial net present value of future lease payments of $760,332 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term liability activity for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013: 

Principal Additions/ 

Balance at New 

June 30 , 2013 Issuances 

Debt obligations : 

Commercial paper $ 50 ,969 ,000 $ 

Bonds payable : 

Series 2010 Bonds 570 ,870 ,000 

Series 2013 Bonds 379 ,585 ,000 

Series 2014 Bonds 305 ,285 ,000 

Bond premiums 76 ,956 ,188 594 ,266 

Total bonds 

payable 1,027 ,411 ,188 305 ,879 ,266 

Total debt 

obligations 1,078 ,380 ,188 305 ,879 ,266 

Capital Leases 8 ,152,588 

Com pen sated absences 3 ,089 ,756 2 ,664 ,509 

Total long-term 

liabilities $ 1 ,089 ,622 ,532 $308 ,543 ,775 

Principal 

Balance at Additions/ 

June 30 , 2012 New 

(as restated) Issuances 

Debt obligations : 

Commercial paper $ 20 ,729 ,000 $ 31 ,045 ,000 

Bonds payable: 

Series 2005 Bonds 37 ,960 ,000 

Series 2010 Bonds 571 ,850 ,000 

Series 2013 Bonds 379 ,585 ,000 

Bond premiums 25 ,497 ,968 55 ,934 ,101 

Total bonds 

payable 635 ,307 ,968 435 ,519 ,101 

Total debt 

obligations 656 ,036 ,968 466 ,564 ,101 

Capital Leases 361 ,641 8 ,040 ,531 

Compensated absences 2 ,932 ,985 2 ,514 ,696 

Total long-term 

liabilities $ 659 ,331 ,594 $477 ,119,328 

Reductions/ 

Repayments 

$ (6 ,085 ,000) 

(1 ,000 ,000) 

(4 ,392 ,863) 

(5 ,392 ,863) 

(11 ,477 ,863) 

(341 ,661) 

(2 ,659 ,580) 

$ 

Principal 

Reductions/ Balance at 

Repayments June 30 , 2013 

$ (805 ,000) $ 50 ,969 ,000 

(37 ,960 ,000) 

(980 ,000) 570 ,870 ,000 

379 ,585 ,000 

(4,475 ,881) 76 ,956 ,188 

(43,415 ,881) 1 ,027,411 ,188 

(44 ,220 ,881) 1 ,078 ,3a..> ,188 

(249 ,584) 8 ,152,588 

(2 ,357 ,925) 3 ,089 ,756 

$ (46 ,828 ,390) $ 1,089 ,622 ,532 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Due Within 

One Year 

5 ,785 ,000 

5 ,785 ,000 

5 ,785 ,000 

180,559 

2 ,659 ,580 

8 ,625 ,139 

Due Within 

One Year 

1 ,000 ,000 

1,000 ,000 

1,000 ,000 

328 ,012 

2 ,357 ,925 

3 ,685 ,937 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 and Refunded Series 1995: The California 
Maritime Infrastructure Authority issued $76,690,000 of Ai rport Revenue Bonds (Series 1995 Bonds) 
for the District, pursuant to a trust agreement dated December 1, 1995. The proceeds of the 
Series 1995 Bonds, together with investment income thereon , were used solely to pay a portion of the 
construction and installation of the West Terminal Expansion at SOIA, fund a Reserve Account and 
pay certain expenses in connection with the issuance of the Series 1995 Bonds. In conjunction with 
the transfer of airport operations to the Airport Authority on January 1, 2003, these bond obligations 
were assumed by the Airport Authority. 

On November 9, 2005, the Airport Authority issued $56,270,000 of sen ior lien Series 2005 Bonds to 
refund all of the then-outstanding Series 1995 Bonds, fund a debt service reserve account and to pay 
cost of issuance. The Series 2005 Bonds were structured as serial bonds that bear interest at rates 
ranging from 4.5 percent to 5.25 percent and mature in fiscal years 2007 to 2021 . 

On December 21 , 2012, the Airport Authority defeased all of its outstanding Series 2005 Bonds, by 
depositing proceeds of Subordinate CP Notes and certain other available monies into an irrevocable 
escrow fund. The amounts on deposit in the escrow fund will be used to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Series 2005 Bonds until their final maturity date of July 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2014 
and 2013, the amount held in escrow by the trustee was $35,775,109 and $36,489,675, respectively , 
and the amount of the defeased Series 2005 Bonds still outstanding was $30,920,000 and 
$34,530,000, respectively. 

Commercial Paper Series A, Band C (CP Notes): On September 6, 2007, the Board authorized 
issuance of subordinate CP Notes with up to $250,000,000 of principal outstanding at any time. The 
CP Notes may be issued from time to time and proceeds from the issuance of the CP Notes are to be 
used, among other things, to finance improvements to SOIA. The CP Notes are obligations secured 
by a pledge of airport revenues subordinated to the pledge of net airport revenues securing payment 
of the senior lien Series 2013 and Series 2014 Bonds and on parity to the subordinate Series 2010 
Bonds. Each commercial paper note matures at the end of a period not to exceed 270 days. The 
matured commercial paper can be continually rolled into another issuance until the earlier of 
September 10, 2014, or five days prior to the irrevocable letter of credit expiration date. 

The CP Notes are secured by an irrevocable letter of credit provided by Lloyds TSB Bank that expires 
no later than September 10, 2014. There were no unreimbursed draws by the Airport Authority on this 
letter of credit during the year ended June 30, 2014, nor were there any amounts outstanding under 
this letter of credit agreement at June 30, 2014. 

On October 6 and 13, 2010, the Airport Authority refinanced $115,776,000 and $26,400,000, 
respectively, of Series A, B and C commercial paper with proceeds from the sale of subordinated 
Series 201 0 Bonds. 

At June 30, 2014, the aggregate principal amount outstanding of the CP Notes was $44,884,000, 
carrying a weighted-average interest rate of 0.17 percent. At June 30, 2013, the principal amount of 
CP Notes outstanding was $50,969,000, carrying a weighted-average interest rate of 0.19 percent. 
Commercial paper interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to 
$85,142 and $87,683 respectively , including accrued interest of $6,513 and $6,867, respectively. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

As subordinate obligations, the CP Notes require that the charges for services be set each year at 
rates sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 11 0 percent times the subordinate debt service 
for that year. In addition , the commercial paper notes require the Airport Authority to maintain an 
interest reserve account with the note trustee and to reserve a certain amount in the Airport 
Authority's books. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount held by the trustee was $12,906 for both 
years and the amount reserved by the Airport Authority was $4,352 and $18,408, respectively. 

Revolving Line of Credit program in Fiscal Year 2015: Subsequent to June 30, 2014, the Airport 
Authority replaced its commercial paper program with a $125,000,000 revolving line of credit issued 
by US Bank. The revolving line of credit will be used to refund the outstanding Series B and Series C 
CP Note balances. The revolving line of credit is a three-year agreement and will take effect on 
September 5, 2014. 

The revolving line of credit is payable solely from and secured by a pledge of "Subordinate Net 
Revenues." Subordinate Net Revenues are generally defined as all revenues and other cash receipts 
of the Airport Authority's airport operations remaining after senior lien payments have been deposited 
by the Trustee in accordance with the Senior Lien Trust Indenture. 

The existing balance of the Series B CP Notes of $18,929,000 will be reconstituted as the Series B 
Revolving Line of Credit and will bear interest at the tax-exempt LIBOR rate. The existing balance of 
the Series C CP Notes of $25,955,000 will be reconstituted as the Series C revolving line of credit 
and will bear interest at the taxable LIBOR rate. 

Subordinate Lien Series 2010 Bonds: On October 5, 2010, the Airport Authority issued 
$572,565,000 of Series A, B, and C Subordinate Airport Revenue Bonds (Series 2010 Bonds). The 
subordinate Series 2010 Bonds were issued to finance certain capital improvements at SOIA, fund a 
portion of the interest accruing on the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds through and including 
January 1, 2013, refund $142,176,000 of the Airport Authority's outstanding commercial paper notes, 
fund the subordinate reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the subordinate Series 2010 
Bonds. 

The Series 2010 A and 2010 B Bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at 
rates ranging from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2012 to 2041 . The Series 
201 0 C Bonds were issued as taxable Build America Bonds, which benefit from periodic cash subsidy 
payments from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35 percent of interest payable. However, in fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013, due to the impact of the federal government's sequestration measures, subsidy 
payments were reduced by 4.3 percent. The Build America Bonds interest subsidy for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $4,636,215 and $4,778,599, respectively. The interest rate on 
the Series 2010 C Bonds, net of the subsidy, is 4.31 percent and the bonds mature in fiscal year 
2041 . The bonds were issued at a premium of $26,154,344, which is being amortized over the life of 
the bonds. Interest on the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds is payable semiannually on January 1 and 
July 1 of each year. Interest for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to 
$31 ,705,498 and $31 ,735,498, respectively, including accrued interest of $15,852,749 and 
$15,867,749, respectively. The principal balance on the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds as of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $569,870,000 and $570,870,000, respectively. 
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

The subordinate Series 2010 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority , payable solely 
from and secured by (a) a pledge of subordinate net revenues, which include certain income and 
revenue received by the Airport Authority from the operation of the airport system, less all amounts 
that are required to pay the operation and maintenance expenses of the airport system and all 
amounts necessary to pay debt service on and fund the reserves for the senior bonds; and (b) certain 
funds and accounts held by the subordinate trustee under the subordinate indenture. The subordinate 
Series 2010 Bonds were issued with a pledge of and lien on subord inate net revenues on parity with 
the Airport Authority's subordinate commercial paper notes. In addition , the Airport Authority has 
irrevocably committed a portion of the PFCs it has received and expects to receive through 2016. The 
irrevocably committed PFC amount of $19,208,838 was fully utilized in fiscal year 2014. The 
irrevocably committed PFC amounts for fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2016 are $19,206,113 
and $19,209,388 respectively. 

As subordinate lien bonds, the Series 2010 Bonds require that charges for services be set each fiscal 
year at rates sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 11 0 percent times the subordinate debt 
service for that year. In addition , the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds require the Airport Authority to 
maintain a reserve account with the bond trustee. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount held by the 
trustee was $72,631,467 and $70,706,509, respectively , which included the July 1 payment, unspent 
project fund proceeds and a debt service reserve fund . 

The public ratings of the Series 2010 Bonds as of June 30, 2014 are AJA2/A by Standard & Poor's, 
Moody's Investors Service and Fitch Ratings. 

The required debt service payments for the Series 2010 Bonds for the fiscal years ending June 30 
are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 5,785,000 $ 31 ,594,948.00 $ 37,379,948 

2016 8,665,000 31 '318, 098.00 39,983,098 

2017 9,000,000 30,934,023.00 39,934,023 

2018 9,430,000 30,487,998.00 39,917,998 

2019 9,890,000 30,020,298.00 39,910,298 

2020-2024 57,155,000 142,174,548.00 199,329,548 

2025-2029 72,780,000 126,152,054.00 198,932,054 

2030-2034 126,555,000 102,133,609.00 228,688,609 

2035-2039 184,500,000 54,968,046.00 239,468,046 

2040-2041 86,110,000 5,269,210.00 91 ,379,210 

$ ' 569,870,000 $ 585,052,832 $1 ' 154,922,832 
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2013: On January 30, 2013, the A irport Authority 
issued $379,585,000 of Series A and B Senior Airport Revenue Bonds (Series 2013 Bonds). The 
Series 2013 Bonds were issued to finance certain capital improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the 
interest accruing on the Series 2013 Bonds through and including July 1, 2015, fund the sen ior 
reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

The Series 2013 Bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates ranging 
from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2016 to 2044. The bonds were issued at 
a premium of $55,934,1 01 , which is being amortized over the life of the bonds. Interest on the senior 
Series 2013 Bonds is payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year. Interest for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $18,475,501 and $7 ,749,446, respectively , including 
accrued interest of $9 ,237,750 and $7,749,446. The principal balance on the Series 2013 Bonds as 
of June 30 , 2014 and 2013 was $379,585,000. 

The senior Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority , payable solely from and 
secured by (a) a pledge of net revenues, which include certain income and revenue received by the 
Airport Authority from the operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are required to pay the 
operation and maintenance expenses of the airport system (b) certain funds and accounts held by the 
senior trustee under the senior indenture. 

As senior lien bonds, the Series 2013 Bonds require that charges for services be set each fiscal year 
at rates sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 125 percent times the senior debt service for 
that year. In addition , the Series 2013 Bonds require the Airport Authority to maintain a reserve 
account with the bond trustee and to reserve certain amounts in the Airport Authority's books, as 
shown previously in the notes. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount held 
by the trustee was $143,184,120 and $293,709,919, which included the July 1 payment, unspent 
project fund proceeds, the debt service reserve fund , and capitalized interest funds. The total amount 
reserved by the Airport Authority for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 was $54,943 ,135 and $52,007,087, 
respectively . The public ratings of the Series 2013 Bonds as of June 30, 2014 are A+/A1/A+ by 
Standard & Poor's, Moody's Investors Service and Fitch Ratings. 

The required debt service payments for the Series 2013 Bonds for the fiscal years ending June 30 
are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ $ 18,475,500 $ 18,475,500 

2016 2,030,000 18,445,050 20,475,050 

2017 2,090,000 18,382,275 20,472,275 

2018 2,155,000 18,306,850 20,461 ,850 

2019 2,240,000 18,218,950 20,458,950 

2020-2024 36,455,000 87,143,275 123,598,275 

2025-2029 53,155,000 75,547,025 128,702,025 

2030-2034 38,740,000 63,204,425 101 ,944,425 

2035-2039 36,645,000 55,408,875 92,053,875 

2040-2044 206,075,000 32,900,375 238,975,375 

$ 379,585,000 $ 406,032,600 $ 785,617,600 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued} 

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2014: On February 1, 2014, the Airport Authority 
issued $305,285,000 of Series A and B Senior Special Facilities Revenue Bonds (Series 2014 
Bonds). The Series 2014 Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs of the development and 
construction of a consolidated rental car facility and related improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of 
the interest accruing on the Series 2014 Bonds through January 1, 2016, fund deposits to the senior 
reserve fund, and pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

The Series 2014 A Bonds were structured as tax-exempt and non-AMT term bonds that bear interest 
at 5.00 percent. The Series 2014B Bond were structured as federally taxable bonds that bear interest 
at rates ranging from 2.54 percent to 3.73 percent. 

The Series 2014 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from 
and secured by a pledge of the Trust Estate, which includes, among other things, customer facility 
charges collected from the rental car companies operating at the Airport and remitted to the Trustee. 
No revenues of the Airport Authority other than the customer facility charges and the Bond Funding 
Supplemental Consideration (as defined in the bond indenture) , are pledged to the payment of the 
Series 2014 Bonds. 

The required debt service payments for the Series 2014 Bonds for the fiscal years ending June 30 
are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30, 

2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 
2035-2039 
2040-2044 

$ 

$ 

Principal 

$ 

5,580,000 
5,720,000 

32,015,000 
41 ,600,000 
54,610,000 
71 ,690,000 
94,070,000 

305,285,000 $ 

Interest Total 

16,341 ,210 $ 16,341 ,210 
16,341 ,210 16,341 ,210 
16,341 ,210 16,341 ,210 
16,341 ,210 21 ,921 ,210 
16,199,646 21 ,919,646 
77,578,877 1 09,593,877 
67,999,047 109,599,047 
54,986,842 1 09,596,842 
37,905,564 1 09,595,564 
15,531 ,476 109,601,476 

335,566,292 $ 640,851 ,292 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Line of credit: In fiscal year 2013, the Airport Authority established a $4,000,000 line of credit with 
Wells Fargo, which is collateralized with a certificate of deposit. This line of credit replaced a line 
maintained with Union Bank. This line is utilized to issue letters of credit to surety companies who are 
partnering with the Airport Authority to provide bonding assistance to contractors accepted into the 
bonding assistance program at the Airport Authority. As of June 30, 2014, nothing had been drawn on 
the line of credit and one issued letter of credit was outstanding , totaling $687,320 for projects in 
progress. The letter of credit is due to expire June 16, 2015. 

Capital Leases 

Office equipment leases: The Airport Authority entered into capital lease agreements for office 
equipment that require monthly lease payments of $14,806. 

Receiving distribution center lease: The Airport Authority entered into an installment purchase 
agreement for a receiving and distribution center (ROC) in fiscal year 2013. This agreement has been 
determined to be a capital lease and requires monthly lease payments of $73,1 08. The Airport 
Authority will become the owner of the ROC at the conclusion of the 20 year installment purchase 
agreement. 

The following is a schedule of future lease payments applicable to the ROC installment purchase 
agreement, the office equipment capital leases, and the net present value of the future lease 
payments at June 30, 2014: 

Years Ending June 30, 

2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2032 
Total Lease Payments 
Less amount representing interest 

Present value of future lease payments 

Amount 

$ 829,321 
877,298 
877,298 
877,298 
877,298 

4,386 ,489 
4,386,489 
2,997,434 

16,108,925 
(8,297, 998) 

$ 7,810,927 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Defined Benefit Plan 

Plan description: The Ai rport Authority's defined benefit pension plan is separately administered by 
the City of San Diego's City Employees' Retirement System (CERS). The San Diego County 
Regionai .Airport Authority Retirement Plan and Trust provides retirement and disability benefits, 
annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CERS is an 
agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for the City of San Diego, the District and the Airport Authority , administered by 
the Retirement Board of Administration (the CERS Board) . San Diego City Charter Section 144 and 
San Diego Municipal Code Sections 24.0100 et seq. assign the authority to establish and amend the 
benefit provisions of the plans that participate in CERS to the CERS Board. The Airport Authority 
contributes to the Federal Social Security Program. The CERS Board issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information forCERS. 
The financial report may be obtained by writing to the San Diego City Employees' Retirement System, 
401 B Street, Suite 400, San Diego, California 92101 . 

Funding policy: The City of San Diego municipal code requires member contributions to be 
actuarially determined to provide a specific level of benefit. Member contribution rates, as a 
percentage of salary, vary according to age at entry, benefit tier level and certain negotiated 
contracts, which provide for the Airport Authority to pay a portion of the employees' contributions. The· 
Airport Authority contribution rate, as determined through actuarial valuation, was 11 .9 percent for 
2014, 10.9 percent for 2013, and 14.5 percent for 2012, and is expressed as a percentage of covered 
payroll. 

Annual pension cost: For the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the annual pension cost 
included in salaries and benefits was $4,882,000, $4,582,000 and $4,356,000, respectively, for the 
CERS pension. Comparing the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation to the June 30, 2012 actuarial 
valuation, total membership increased by 3.0 percent. The increase was attributable to both the 
growth in active membership, terminated vested, disabled, retirees and beneficiaries. Active member 
payroll increased by 1.8 percent. Additionally, active member total payroll increased by 6.2 percent, 
and the average pay per active member increased by 4.4 percent. The actuarial liability increased by 
18.5 percent but the actuarial value of assets increased by 12.3 percent. The funding ratio decreased 
from 98.5 percent as of June 30, 2012 to 93.4 percent as of June 30, 2013. CERS employs a 
commonly used actuarial smoothing method on the market value that dampens market volatility , so 
the actuarial value of assets did not decrease as much as the market value (94.6 percent). 

Valuation basis: Effective January 1, 2013, new Airport Authority employees who are deemed to be 
"New Members" under the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) are subject to 
a number of plan provisions, including reduced benefit accrual factors , a cap on pensionable salary, 
three-year averaging for final salary, and mandatory exclusion of certain items from pensionable 
salary. PEPRA also requires New Members to pay at least 50 percent of the normal cost, with more 
than 50 percent allowed subject to collective bargaining. There are less significant changes for 
current employees and retirees. 

There are a few New Members in the current valuation . In calculating the fiscal year 2015 annual 
required contribution (ARC), the valuation reflects an estimate of PEPRA's impact on the normal cost. 
There is no impact on the unfunded actuarial liability. As experience for New Members emerges in 
the June 30, 2014 and subsequent valuations, the actual cost implications will vary and further study 
may be required . 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued) 

As of the latest actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2013, significant actuarial assumptions are as 
follows : 

• The rates of retirement were based on age and service as opposed to just the service of a 
member. 

• The percent married assumption was 55 percent for females and 80 percent for males, and 
the assumed age difference between husbands and wives was three years. 

• The reciprocity assumption was 1 0 percent. 

• Rates of termination were based on service as opposed to the age of a member. 

• Disability rates were modified to reflect actual experience through June 30, 2010 and include 
a projection to 2013. 

• Mortality rates for active Airport Authority members were modified to reflect actual experience 
through June 30, 2010 and include a projection to 2013. 

• Mortality rates for retired Airport Authority members were modified to reflect actual 
experience through June 30, 2010. No modifications have been made to project future 
mortality improvements. 

• The investment return assumption was 7.25 percent. 

• The inflation assumption was 3.0 percent 

• Cost of living adjustment was assumed 2 percent. 

• Actuarial funding method is entry age normal 

• Amortization method is level percent closed 

• Asset valuation method is expected value method 

• Equivalent single amortization period is 13.539 years. This consists of 9 years for the 
outstanding balance of the 2007 UAL, 15 years for experience gains and losses, 30 years for 
changes in methods and assumptions, 20 years for benefit changes. 

• The rate of employer contributions to CERS is composed of the normal cost and an 
amortization of the unfunded actuarial liability. The normal cost is a level percent of payroll 
cost which, along with the member contributions , will pay for projected benefits at retirement 
for the average plan participant. The actuarial liability is that portion of the present value of 
projected benefits that will not be paid by future employer normal costs or member 
contributions. The difference between this liability and the funds accumulated as of the same 
date is the unfunded actuarial liability. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued) 

On September 16, 2004, the Airport Authority made a contribution payment in the amount of 
$3,900,000, in addition to the ARC, to reflect a desired funded ratio of 90 percent. On June 21 , 2005, 
the Airport Authority made an additional contribution of $1 ,000,000. During the year ended June 30, 
2006, the Airport Authority made an additional contribution of $513,627. On June 30, 2010, the 
Airport Authority made a contribution of $4,600,000 to increase the funded rate reported in the 
January 2010 CERS 2009 actuarial calculation from 86.9 percent to the desired funded ratio of 
90 percent. In April 2014, the Airport Authority again made a contribution of $827,945 to increase the 
funded ratio to 94 percent. At June 30, 2014, the total contribution of $10,841,572 less amortization of 
$3,921 ,797 is recorded as a net pension asset of $6,919,775. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the total 
contribution of $10,013,627 less amortization of $3,365,485 and $2,809,172, respectively, is recorded 
as a net pension asset of $6,648,142, and $7,204,455, respectively. The contributions are being 
amortized over an 18-year period. 

The Airport Authority's contribution for fiscal year 2015 measured as a percentage of membership 
payroll increased from 11 .9 percent to 14.29 percent. The required beginning of year contribution, 
paid July 1 2014, increased by $918,149. The following is a schedule of the annual pension cost and 
net pension asset forCERS (dollars in thousands): 

Net 
Pension 

Fiscal Annual Airport % of Asset Increase Amortization Interest on 
Year Pension Cost N'C {NPA) {Decrease) of the NPA 

Ended Cost{N'C) Funded Contributed ARC Balance NPA NPA at 7.50%17.25% 

6/30/12 $ 4,356 $ 3,800 87% $3,800 $ 7,204 $ (556) $ (256) $ 751 

6/30/13 4,582 2,600 57% 2,600 6,648 (556) 556 751 

6/30/14 4,882 2,904 59% 2,904 6,920 272 556 786 

Schedule of funding progress forCERS (dollars in thousands): 

Actuarial 

Accrued UAAL/(Asset) as 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual a Percentage 

Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL/Asset Funded Co~red ofCo~red 

Date Assets Entry~e UAAL/(Asset) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

6/30/13 $ 107,616 $ 115,200 $ 7,584 93.4% $ 26,380 28.7% 

Note 7. Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Airport Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan , which was created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan , which is available to all full-time 
Airport Authority employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The 
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination , retirement, total disability, 
death or unforeseeable emergency. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 7. Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan (Continued) 

The plan is administered by the Airport Authority and contracted to an unrelated financial institution. 
Under the terms of an IRC Section 457 deferred compensation plan , all deferred compensation and 
income attributable to the investment of the deferred compensation amounts held by the financial 
institution, until paid or made avai lable to the employees or beneficiaries, are held in trust for 
employees. 

As such, employee assets to be held in the IRC Section 457 plans are not the property of the Airport 
Authority and are not subject to the claims of the Airport Authority's general creditors. In accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 32 , Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans-a rescission of GASB Statement No. 2 and an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 31 , employee assets are not reflected in the Airport Authority's 
financial statements. 

Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits 

The Airport Authority provides a single-employer postemployment benefit plan (OPES). The plan 
provides postretirement medical, dental, vision and life insurance benefits for nonunion employees 
hired prior to May 1, 2006 and union employees hired prior to October 1, 2008. The employees are 
eligible for these benefits if they retire from active employment after age 55 with 20 years of service or 
age 62 with five years of service. 

Plan description: As of May 8, 2009, the Board approved entering into an agreement with the 
California Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) fund. This is managed by California Public 
Employees Retirement System (CaiPERS). CaiPERS administers pension and health benefits for 
approximately 1.5 million California public employees, retirees and their families. CaiPERS was 
founded in 1932 and is the largest public pension fund in the United States, managing more than 
$250 billion in assets for more than 2,500 California employers. In 1988 and 2007, enabling statutes 
and regulations were enacted which permitted CaiPERS to form the CERBT fund , an irrevocable 
Section 115 Trust, for the purpose of receiving employer contributions that will prefund health and 
other postemployment benefit costs for retirees and their beneficiaries. Financial statements for 
CERBT may be obtained from CaiPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709. 

Funding policy: CERBT requires a valuation of the liabilities and annual costs for benefits by an 
approved actuarial consulting firm . It is the Airport Authority's intent to budget and prefund the ARCs. 
As of May 9, 2009, the agreement with CERBT was approved. Retirees contribute 5 percent of plan 
costs for single coverage and the entire cost of vision benefits. 

Annual OPEB cost and actuarial methods and assumptions: The Airport Authority's annual 
OPES cost is calculated based on the ARC, an amount that is actuarially determined in accordance 
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The Airport Authority has elected to perform an 
actuarial valuation of the OPES on a biennial basis, the most recent of which is dated as of July 1, 
2013. According to the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation , the ARC was $2,328,000 for both fiscal year 
2014 and 2013. The ARC was determined using the entry age normal cost method with amortization 
of the unfunded accrued liability occurring over a 30-year period ending June 30, 2037. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of benefit costs between the employer and plan members 
to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial values of assets , 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The actuarial assumptions used by 
CERBT include (a) a 7.36 percent investment rate of return , (7.61 percent was used in the prior 
valuations), net of administrative expenses, and (b) projected salary increases of 3.00 percent. The 
annual health care cost trend rate ranged from 5.0 to 9.5 percent for medical and assumes a 5.0 
percent rate for dental and 3.0 percent rate for vision. In establishing the discount rate, an inflation 
rate of 2.75% was used. 

The entry age normal cost method spreads plan costs for each participant from entry date to the 
expected retirement date. Under the entry age normal cost method, the plan's normal cost is 
developed as a level percentage of payroll spread over the participants' working lifetime. The 
actuarial accrued liability is the cumulative value, on the valuation date, of prior service costs . For 
retirees, the actuarial accrued liability is the present value of all projected benefits. 

The plan costs are derived by making certain specific assumptions as to the rates of interest, 
mortality, turnover and the like, which are assumed to hold for many years into the future. Actual 
experience may differ somewhat from the assumptions and the effect of such differences is spread 
over all periods. Due to these differences, the costs determined by the valuation must be regarded as 
estimates of the true plan costs. 

Development of the net OPEB obligation (NOO/Asset) and annual OPEB cost for the past three years 
is as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Actuarial NOO/(Asset) Annual 

Valuation Fiscal Employer End Interest on Adjustment OPEB 

Date Year ARCs Contribution of Year NOO/(Asset) to the ARC Cost 

7/1/11 11/12 $ 2,165 $ 2,164 $ (60) $ (5) $ 4 $ 2,164 
7/1/12 12/13 2,238 2,236 (59) 4 2,238 
7/1/13 13/14 2,328 2,328 (59) (4) 4 2,328 

The Airport Authority's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the 
plan and the net OPEB obligation for 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (dollars in thousands) : 

Percentage of 
Fiscal Year Annual Employer OPEB Cost NOO/ 

Ended OPEB Costs Contribution Contributed (Asset) 

6/30/12 $2,164 $2,164 100.0% $ (60) 
6/30/13 2,238 2,236 99.9% (59) 
6/30/14 2,328 2,328 100.0% (59) 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

Funded status and funding progress: The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing 
plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality and the health care cost trend . Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan 
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the 
accompanying notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether 
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 

The funded status of the plan based on the most recent biennial actuarial valuation for the plan , dated 
as of July 1, 2013, was as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued 
Valuation Value of Liability 

Date Assets (AAL) 

7/1/13 $ 12,667 $ 31 ,553 $ 

Note 9. Risk Management 

Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability Funded Covered 
(UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

18,886 40.1% $ 17,567 

UAAL as a 
Percent of 
Covered 
Payroll 

107.5% 

Interest 
Rate 

7.4% 

Salary 
Scale 

3.0% 

The Airport Authority has a comprehensive Risk Management Program comprising commercial 
insurance, self-insurance, loss prevention, loss control and claims administration. The Airport 
Authority's coverage includes a variety of retentions or deductibles. 

Commercially issued insurance: 

• The Airport Authority maintains $500 million in limits for owners' and operators' general 
liability insurance with a war, hijacking and other perils endorsement in the amount of 
$150 million. 

• The Airport Authority maintains a property insurance policy with limits of $500 million 
providing all risk and flood coverage on physical assets. 

• The Airport Authority also maintains policies for workers' compensation , commercial auto, 
fiduciary liability and public official liability. 

Self-insurance: Due to the exorbitant cost of earthquake insurance, the Airport Authority self-insures 
for losses due to earthquake damage. Effective July 1, 2007, the Airport Authority removed the 
purchase of commercial earthquake insurance from the Risk Management Program and increased 
reliance on the laws designed to assist public entities through the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency and the California Disaster Assistance Act. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport 
Authority has designated $7,377,978 and $6,659,982, respectively , from its net position, as an 
insurance contingency. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 9. Risk Management (Continued) 

A $2,000,000 reserve has been established within unrestricted net position by the Airport Authority's 
management to respond to uninsured and underinsured catastrophic losses. This fund is maintained 
pursuant to Board action only; there is no requirement that it be maintained. 

Loss prevention: The Airport Authority has an active loss prevention program, staffed by a full -time 
risk manager, two risk analysts, a safety manager and a safety analyst. In addition, insurer property 
and casualty loss control engineers conduct safety surveys on a periodic basis. Employees receive 
regular safety training and claims are monitored using a Web-based claims information system. 

During fiscal year 2014, there were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior 
year. For each of the past three fiscal years, settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage. 

Note 10. Lease Revenues 

The Airport Authority leases certain of its capital assets, such as loading bridges and building space, 
to signatory airlines and other tenants under operating leases. Substantially all capital assets are held 
by the Airport Authority for the purpose of rental or related use. A majority of the lease payments are 
determined each year based upon the actual costs of the airport. Such costs are allocated pro rata to 
each tenant based upon factors such as landed weights, enplanements, square footage, acres, etc. A 
majority of the Airport Authority's lease commitments are primarily on a month-to-month basis and 
accordingly are not reflected in the schedule below. 

The Airport Authority's expansion of approximately 25,000 additional square feet results in the 
increase of the number of food service and retail concession locations from 55 to 87. The Authority 
has implemented a comprehensive Concessions Development Program (COP) to provide a world 
class shopping and dining experience for the millions of passengers who use SOIA each year. The 
full program build out was completed during 2014. The COP replaces the Airport Authority's one 
master concessionaire, giving way for additional 11 new tenants to conduct business with the Airport 
Authority. With the new program, 17 new concessions lease commitments were signed and will open 
87 new stores within the Airport Authority terminals. These new lease commitments are cancellable 
leases and are not reflected in the schedule below. 

The minimum future lease payments to be received under the above operating lease agreements as 
of June 30 are as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30, Amount 

2015 $ 7,547,637 
2016 5,342,072 
2017 5,422,203 
2018 5,503,536 
2019 5,595,376 

2020 5,735,261 

$ 35,146,085 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Lease Revenues (Continued) 

The Airport Authority entered into a five-year lease agreement on January 9, 2009 with the San Diego 
World Trade Center (World Trade Center) for office space, with a fair market value of $440,000. In 
lieu of rental payments, the Airport Authority received a 40 percent ownership of the World Trade 
Center license, which has a fa ir market value of $440,000. The license, an intangible asset with no 
expiration date, is included in non-depreciable assets in Note 4. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the 
Airport Authority recognized lease revenue of $86,996 for each year, under the World Trade Center 
lease. 

Note 11. Lease Commitments 

Operating Leases 

General Dynamics lease: The Airport Authority is required , by legislation mandating the transfer of 
airport operations from the District, to lease from the District 89.75 acres of the former General 
Dynamics property on Pacific Highway adjacent to SOIA for 66 years commencing January 1, 2003. 
The lease agreement calls for predetermined rents through December 31 , 2005, with future rents 
based upon a market rate established in late 2005 by an appraisal (or arbitration). The amended 
lease agreement calls for rent payments of $6,750,000 annually through December 31 , 2068. The 
Airport Authority received a credit for $375,000 in reduced rent based on a previous lease agreement 
for the property in September 2006. The changes in terms for this lease were approved by the Airport 
Authority's Board on July 25, 2006. A portion of the land is leased to the District for employee parking 
for District administration building employees and is leased back by the District at the same fair 
market value rent paid by the Airport Authority. 

SOIA lease: The Airport Authority is leasing from the District 480 acres of land on North Harbor Drive 
for $1 per year, for 66 years, through December 31 , 2068. 

Teledyne Ryan lease: The Airport Authority is leasing from the District 46.88 acres on North Harbor 
Drive referred to as the Teledyne Ryan lease that commenced on January 1, 2005 and expires 
December 31 , 2068, with $3 million in annual rent. 

Other District leases: The Airport Authority leases from the District two additional properties 
adjacent to SOIA. These properties required monthly rentals of $86,083 and $12,521 . As of 
January 1, 2013, the lease for $86,083 was terminated with the District. In December 2013, the lease 
for $12,521 expired and was not renewed . 

On July 24, 2006, the Airport Authority's Board approved a lease with the District for the property 
located at 2415 Winship Lane, known as the Sky Chef property. The term of the lease is 60 years 
with $350,000 in annual rent and commenced September 1, 2006. 

Under current law, in the event SOIA is relocated and the District leases are no longer used by the 
Airport Authority for airport purposes, all District leases will terminate and use of the property will 
revert to the District. 

Building lease: The Airport Authority leased modular buildings from an unrelated third-party that 
required monthly rental of $1 ,366 through the expiration date of August 2013. This lease was not 
renewed. 
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Note 11. Lease Commitments (Continued) 

The future rental commitment under the above operating lease agreements as of June 30 are due as 
follows: 

Years Ending June 30 Amount 

2015 $ 10,167,120 
2016 10,167,120 
2017 10,167,120 
2018 10,159,920 
2019 10,159,920 
2020-2024 50,799,600 
2025-2029 50,799,600 
2030-2034 50,799,600 
2035-2039 50,799,600 
2040-2044 50,799,600 
2045-2049 50,799,600 
2050-2054 50,799,600 
2055-2059 50,799,600 
2060-2064 50,799,600 
2065-2069 50,799,600 

$ 558,817,200 

The total rental expense charged to operations for the years ended June 30 consists of the following : 

2013 

Rental payments made $ 10,897,338 

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments: As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority had significant commitments for 
capital expenditures and other matters as described below: 

i. The Airport Authority has funds which have been classified as current assets, primarily for the 
unpaid contractual portion of capital projects that are currently in progress, and will not be 
funded by grants or additional debt, but will be funded through Airport Authority cash. These 
amounts are for the estimated cost of capital projects that have been authorized by the Board 
for construction planning to proceed and for the contractual costs of upgrading certain major 
equipment. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, these funds totaled approximately $7.8 million and 
$906 thousand , respectively, and are classified on the accompanying statements of net position 
as cash and investments designated for specific capital projects and other commitments . 
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Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

ii. Support services- As part of the MOU, services provided by the District Harbor Police are 
required to be purchased by the Airport Authority as long as SOIA continues to operate at the 
current location. At the time of the transfer, the Airport Authority entered into a Master Services 
Agreement, a Police Services Agreement and a Communications Services Agreement with the 
District, which described the services that the Airport Authority could purchase and the manner 
of calculating the payments for such services. The largest amount that became payable under 
any of these agreements is under the Police Services Agreement, which is for Harbor Police 
services. The District provides monthly billings to the Airport Authority, with payment generally 
due 30 days after the date of the invoice, and provision of appropriate supporting 
documentation. During the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority 
expensed $16,577,044 and $17,289,681 , respectively, for these services. 

iii . In fiscal year 2012, the Board approved two contracts with Ace Parking Management Inc., one 
for the parking management services in the amount of $29.7 million and the second for the 
airport shuttle services in the amount of $28.8 million. The total amount spent as of June 30, 
2014, were $6.9 million for parking management services and $9.1 million for airport shuttle 
services. These contracts are scheduled for completion in 2017. As of June 30, 2014, the 
Airport Authority's remaining commitment is approximately $17.4 million for the parking 
management contract and $12.6 million for the shuttle service contract. 

iv. In fiscal year 2014, the Board approved a contract with Austin-Sundt JV for the design and 
construction of the proposed Rental Car Center in the amount of $14 million and additional 
approval of $10 million. As of June 30, 2014, $55.3 million had been spent and the contract is 
due to be completed in fiscal year 2016. 

v. In fiscal year 2013, the Board approved a contract with Demattei Wong Architecture in support 
of the Rental Car Center project in the amount of $10 million and an additional approval of 
$12 million. As of June 30, 2014, $16.6 million had been spent and the contract is due to be 
completed in fiscal year 2016. 

Contingencies: As of June 30, 2014, the Airport Authority is subject to contingencies arising from 
legal matters as described below: 

The Airport Authority has leases and operating agreements with various tenants. These agreements 
typically include provisions requiring the tenant/operators to indemnify the Airport Authority for any 
damage to property or losses to the Airport Authority as a result of the tenant's operations. Also, the 
leases and operating agreements typically require the Airport Authority to be named as an additional 
insured under certain insurance policies of the tenants/operators. The Airport Authority also tenders 
these claims to its own insurers once they become asserted claims. When these types of claims are 
asserted against the Airport Authority , the Airport Authority not only vigorously opposes them but also 
vigorously seeks contribution and/or indemnity from all tenants/operators involved, from the 
tenants'/operators' insurers and from its own insurers. The Airport Authority's legal counsel cannot 
predict the net exposure to the Airport Authority with respect to these matters, or the probability or 
remoteness of any outcome. 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Schedule of pension funding progress forCERS is as follows (dollars in thousands) : 

Actuarial UAAU(Asset) 
Accrued as a 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage 
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL (UAAL)/ Funded Co~.ered of Covered 

Date Assets Entry Age (Asset) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

6/30/08 $ 57,748 $ 56,808 $ (940) 101 .7% $ 23,488 (4.0%) 

6/30/09 58,981 67,871 8,890 86.9% 24,693 36.0% 

6/30/10 73,401 76,447 3,046 96.0% 25,709 11 .8% 

6/30/11 86,309 84,042 (2,267) 102.7% 25,148 (9.0%) 

6/30/12 95,793 97 ,225 1,432 98.5% 24,726 5.8% 

6/30/13 107,616 115,200 7,584 93.4% 26,380 28.7% 

Schedule of OPEB funding progress is as follows (dollars in thousands) : 

Unfunded 
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percent of 
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Co~.ered Co~.ered Interest Salary 

Date Assets AAL UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll Rate Scale 

7/1/08 $ - $ 10,327 $ 10,327 0.0% $ 19,417 53.2% 7.75% 3.25% 
7/1/09 2,674 12,206 9,532 21 .9% 19,514 48.8% 7.75% 3.25% 
7/1/10 4,474 14,149 9,675 31 .6% 20,148 48.0% 7.75% 3.25% 
7/1/11* 7,604 22,197 14,593 34.3% 18,728 77.9% 7.60% 3.25% 
7/1/12* 7,604 22,197 14,593 34.3% 18,728 77.9% 7.61% 3.25% 

7/1/13 12,667 31 ,553 18,886 40.1% 17,567 107.5% 7.36% 3.00% 

* In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Airport Authority has an actuarial valuation 
completed biennially . 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 

Direct Programs: 
Airport Improvement Program (A IP) 
Airport Improveme nt Program (A IP) 
Airport Improvement Program (A IP) 
Airport Improvement Program (A IP) 
Airport Improvement Program (A IP) 
Airport Improvement Program (A IP) 
Airport Improvement Program (A IP) 

Total funded under Airport Improvement Grants 

Total U.S. Department of Trans poration 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Direct Programs: 

TSA Law Enforcement Personnel Reimbursement Agreement 

ARRA- TSA Checked Baggage Screening Project 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Total Federal Awards upended 

• Denotes major program. 
ARRA = American Recovery and Reinves tment Act 

Notes to Schedule: 

Catalo g o f 
Federal 

Domestic 
Assistance 

Number 

20.106* 
20.106* 
20.106* 
20.106* 
20.106* 
20.106* 
20.106* 

97.100 

97.117* 

Grant Number 

3-06-0214-64 
3-06-0214-65 
3-06-0214-66 
3-06-0214-6 7 
3-06-0214-69 
3-06-0214-70 
3-06-02 14-71 

HSTS02-08-H-SLR254 

HSTS04-! 0-H-REC!!8 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 234,613 
411 .992 
383,957 

7,345,398 
803,402 
835,7 19 

4,605,550 

14,620,631 

14,620,63 1 

368,355 

1,663,744 

2,032,099 

$ 16,652,730 

I. This schedule includes the federal awards activity of the San Diego County Regional Airport 
Authority and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of 
the basic financial statements. 

2. The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority provided no federal awards to 

subrecipients. 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, CA 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority), which comprise the statement of net position as 
of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated October 24, 2014, which included a reference to other auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the Airport Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) . In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
the Airport Authority's internal control to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Airport Authority's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Airport Authority ' s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions , to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Airport Authority's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness , yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 
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Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Page 3 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Airport Authority ' s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity ' s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Airport Authority's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Dallas, Texas 
October 24, 20 14 

CG00 85 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, CA 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Progra m 

We have audited the compliance of San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority) with 
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2014. The Airport Authority's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Airport Authority's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133 , Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Airport Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Airport Authority's 

compliance. C G fJ (18 e 
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Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Page 5 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Airport Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Airport Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Airport Authority's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Airport Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133 . Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 



Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Page 6 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Airport Authority as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated October 24, 2014, which contained an 
unmodified opinion on those financial statements and included a reference to other auditors. Our audit 
was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Dallas, Texas 
October 24, 2014 

Ou0098 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Summary of Auditor's Results 

I. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor' s report was : 

(gj Unmodified D Qualified D Adverse D Disclaimer 

2. The independent auditor' s report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed: 

Significant deficiency(ies)? 

Material weakness(es)? 

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements 
was disclosed by the audit? 

DYes 

DYes 

DYes 

(gj None reported 

(gj No 

(gj No 

4. The independent auditor ' s report on internal control over compliance for major federal awards 
programs disclosed: 

Significant deficiency(ies )? 

Material weakness(es)? 

DYes 

DYes 

(gj None reported 

(gj No 

5. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor's report on compliance for major federal awards 
was: 

(gj Unmodified D Qualified D Adverse 

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB 
Circular A-133 ? 

7. The Airport Authority ' s major programs were: 

D Disclaimer 

DYes (gj No 

Cluster/Program CFDA Number 

Airport Improvement Program (AlP) 

TSA Checked Baggage Screening Project (ARRA) 

20.106 

97.117 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type 8 programs as those terms are defined in 
OMB Circular A- 133 was $499,582. 

9. The Airport Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term 
is defined in OMB Circular A-133? 1:8] Yes D No 

CG Q1 00 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards 

Reference 
Number 

No matters are reportable. 

Finding 

Findings Required to be Reported by OMB Circular A-133 

Reference 
Number 

No matters are reportable. 

Finding 

Questioned 
Costs 

Questioned 
Costs 

OGO J01 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Reference 
Number 

No matters are reportable. 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Summary of Finding Status 

00010 2 
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Revenues 

Passenger facilny charge collecttons 
Interest earned 

Total passenger factltty charge 
revenue receJVed 

Expenditures 

Application 95-01-C-04-SA N 
A pphcauon 98-02-C-04-SA N 
Application 03-03-C-01-SAN 

Application 05-04-C-01-SAN 
Application 08-05-C-01-SAN 

Application 09-07-C-00-SA N 

Apphcauon 10-08-C-00-SAN 
Apphcauon 12-10-C-00-SAN 

Total passenger facility charge 
revenue expended 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Passenger Facility Charge Program 

Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Collections and Expenditures 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Cumulative 
Amount Total· Quarter E'nded 

Date Approved Juno 30, September 30 , December 31 , March 31 , Juno 30, 
Approved For Use 2013 2013 2013 2014 2014 

s 494,365,9TI s 10,822,448 s 8,122,467 s 8,278,708 $ 10,025,361 
11 ,440,684 54472 62.011 61 ,758 74,738 

505,806,661 10,876,920 8 184,478 8,340,466 10,100,099 

7126/1995 s 103,804,864 I 03,804,864 
7/Z4/ i998 45,496,665 45,496,665 
512012003 65,058,035 65,058,035 

1112212005 44,822,518 44,822,518 
612712008 19,031,690 19,03 1,690 

9/3012009 85,181,950 79,489,990 

11 /24120 10 I, 118,567,229 80,424,686 100,751 13.948,824 7,137.038 6,964,791 
713/2012 27,835 280 13,821 ,954 499,741 536,916 494,429 905 797 

$ I ,509, 798,231 s 451 ,950,402 $ 600,492 s 14,485,740 ~ 7,631,~7 s 7,870,588 

Cumulative 
Year E'ndod Total· 

June 31 , Juno 30, 
2014 2014 

s 37,248,984 s 531 ,614,961 
252,979 11,693,663 

37,501 ,963 543,308,624 

103,804,864 
45,496,665 

65,058,035 
44,822,518 
19,031,690 

79,489,990 

28,151 .404 I 08,576,090 
2,436,883 16258837 

$ 30,588,287 $ 482,538,689 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Passenger Facility Charge Program 

Notes to Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Collections and Expenditures 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Note 1. General 

This schedule includes the Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Program activity of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority and is presented on the modified cash basis of accounting. 
Under the modified cash basis of accounting, PFC revenues are recognized when received rather 
when earned and eligible expenditures are recognized when the related goods or services are 
provided or incurred. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide f or Public Agencies issued by the 
Federal Aviation Administration. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ 
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

PFC expenditures may consist of direct project costs , administrative costs, debt service and bond 
financing costs , as applicable to active applications. The accompanying schedule of Passenger 
Facility Charge Collections and Expenditures includes eligible expenditures that have been applied 
against PFCs collected as of June 30, 2014 . 
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Report on Compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program and 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report 

on Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Collections and Expenditures 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Members ofthe Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, CA 

Report on Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority) 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for 
Public Agencies (Guide) issued by the Federal Aviation Administration that could have a direct and 
material effect on the passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its 
passenger facility charge program. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the Airport Authority based on our audit 
ofthe types of compliance requirements referred to above. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and 
the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis , evidence about the Airport Authority ' s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the passenger 
facility charge program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Airport 
Authority ' s compliance. 

7 
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Members ofthe Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Page 4 

Opinion on Passenger Facility Charge Program 

In our opinion, the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority complied, in all material respects, with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its 
passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Report on In ternal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Airport Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Airport Authority ' s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger 
facility charge program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Airport Authority ' s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
passenger facility charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
passenger facility charge program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement ofthe passenger 
facility charge program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 



Members ofthe Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
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Report on Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Collections and Expenditures 

We have audited the financial statements of the Airport Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2014, and have issued our report thereon dated October 24, 2014, which contained an unmodified opinion 
on those financial statements and included a reference to other auditors. Our audit was performed for the 
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule 
of Passenger Facility Charge Collections and Expenditures is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis, as specified in the Guide and is not a required part of the basic financial statements . Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Passenger Facility 
Charge Collections and Expenditures is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Dallas, Texas 
October 24, 20 14 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Passenger Facility Charge Audit Summary 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Summary of Auditor's Results 

I. Type of report issued on PFC financial statements. 

2. Type of report on PFC compliance. 

3. Quarterly revenue and expenditures reconcile with 
submitted quarterly reports and reported un-liquidated 
revenue matches actual amounts . 

4. PFC revenue and interest is accurately reported on FAA 
Form 5100-127. 

5. The Public Agency maintains a separate financial 
accounting record for each application. 

6. Funds disbursed were for PFC eligible items as identified 
in the FAA decis ion to pay on ly for the allowable costs of 
the project. 

7. Monthly carrier receipts were reconci led with quarterly 
carrier reports . 

8. PFC revenues were maintained in a separate interest­
bearing capital account or commingled only with other 
interest-bearing airport capital funds. 

9. Serving carriers were notified of PFC program 
actions/changes approved by the FAA. 

I 0. Quarterly reports were transmitted (or available via 
website) to remitting carriers. 

I I. The Public Agency is in compl iance with Assurances 5, 6, 
7 and 8. 

12. Project design and implementation is carried out in 
accordance with Assurance 9. 

13. Program administration is carried out in accordance with 
Assurance I 0. 

14. For those public agencies with excess revenue, a plan 
for the use of this revenue has been submitted to the 
FAA for review and concurrence. 

[gj Unmodified 0 Qualified 

[gj Unmodified 0 Qualified 

[gj Yes D No 

[gj Yes D No 

[gj Yes D No 

[gj Yes D No 

[gj Yes 0 No 

[gj Yes 0No 

[gj Yes 0No 

[gj Yes 0No 

[gj Yes 0No 

[gj Yes 0No 

~Yes 0No 

DYes 0No [gj N/A 

~ .- (- . ,, 0 
.__ .; ·. _J. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Program 

Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Findings Required to be Reported by the Guide 

Reference 
Number Finding 

Questioned 
Costs 

No matters are reportable. 

r . · r 111 ... ~ .:..I . ; 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Reference 
Number 

No matters are reportable. 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Summary of Finding Status 

r• . ... rl ,. n 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Customer Facility Charge Program 

Schedule of Customer Facility Charge Collections and Disbursements 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Beginning 
Balance, 

Unapplied CFC Interest 

Description CFC Revenues ' Earned Disbursements 

Co llections and disbursements , quarter ended September 30, 2013 $ 41 ,009,333 

Collections and disbursements , quarter ended December 31 , 2013 41 ,293,662 

Collections and dis bursements , quarter ended March 31 , 2014 38,718,793 

Collections and disbursements , quarter ended June 30. 2014 40.988,241 

1 Customer Facility Charge (CFC) revenues (collections) are reported when the cash is received . 
2 Unapplied CFCs are collections that have not been applied to approved CFC projects . 

See Notes to Schedule of Customer Facility Charge Collections and Disbursements . 

$ 

$ 

6,792,983 $ 27,461 $ 6,536,115 

5,390,883 53,109 8,018,861 

5,690,964 39,640 3,461 ,156 

8,601 ,884 27,430 7,965,233 

26,476,714 $ 147,640 $ 25,981,365 

Ending 
Balance, 

Unapplied 
cFC' 

$ 41 ,293,662 

38,718,793 

40,988,241 

41,652,322 

1 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Customer Facility Charge Program 

Notes to Schedule of Customer Facility Charge Collections and Disbursements 
'Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Note 1. 

Note 2. 

General 

In May 2009, Assembly Bill491 ofthe 2001-2002 California Legislature (codified in 
California Civil Code Section 1936 et seq.) authorized the San Diego County Regional 
Airport Authority (Airport Authority) to impose a $10 Customer Facility Charge (CFC) per 
contract on rental cars at the San Diego International Airport. 

On October 4, 2012, the Airport Authority Board of Directors approved an alternative CFC 
rate modification from the $10 CFC rate per contract to $6.00 per day (up t a maximum of 
five days) to allow for the collection of sufficient CFC funds to cover the future costs of the 
anticipated consolidated rental car facility and centralized busing system. Effective January 
I, 2014, the CFC fee increased from $6 .00 to $7.50 per day up to a maximum of five days. 

In accordance with the program, the CFC revenue must be used to pay allowable costs for 
approved capital projects. The Airport Authority is utilizing CFC revenue for the 
development of a consolidated rental car facility . The primary objectives of this project are 
to reduce vehicle traffic volume on terminal curb front and Harbor Drive, provide a long-term 
rental car facility and site for airport passengers and rental car concessionaires, and 
implement a common use busing system. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Customer Facility Charge Collections and Disbursements 
includes the CFC activity of the Airport Authority and is presented on the modified cash basis 
of accounting. Under the modified cash basis of accounting, CFC revenues are recognized 
when received rather than when earned (collections) and eligible disbursements are 
recognized when the related goods or services are provided or incurred. The information in 
this schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis, as specified in California Civil 
Code Section 1936. 

CFC disbursements may consist of direct project costs, administrative costs, debt service and 
related financing costs. The accompanying Schedule of Customer Facility Charge 
Collections and Disbursements includes the eligible disbursements that have been applied 
against CFCs collected as of June 30, 2014. 

2 
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Report on Compliance for the Customer Facility Charge Program and 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, CA 

Report on Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority) 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the California Civil Code Section 1936 (Code) 
that could have a direct and material effect on the customer facility charge program for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its 
customer facility charge program. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the Airport Authority based on our audit 
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the Code. Those standards and the 
Code require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on the customer facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Airport Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the Code. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Airport Authority's compliance. 



Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
Page4 

Opinion on Customer Facility Charge Program 

In our opinion, the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority complied, in all material respects, with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its 
customer facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Airport Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Airport Authority's internal control over 
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the customer facility 
charge program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 

· compliance in accordance with the Code, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Airport Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
customer facility charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
customer facility charge program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis . A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the customer 
facility charge program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results ofthat testing based on the requirements of the 
customer facility charge program. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 



Members of the Board 
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Page 5 

Report on Schedule of Customer Facility Charge Collections and Disbursements 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Airport Authority as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon, dated October 24, 2014, which included a reference to 
previous auditors. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Customer Facility Charge (CFC) Collections and 
Disbursements is presented for purposes of additional analysis, as specified in Code, and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the Schedule of Customer Facility Charge Collections and Disbursements is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Dallas, Texas 
October 24, 20 14 
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To the Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, CA 

As part of our audits of the financial statements and compliance of San Diego County Regional 
Airport Authority (Airport Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, we wish to 
communicate the following to you. 

Auditor's Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United 
States of America; the Standards Applicable to Financial Audits Contained in Government 
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits o(States, Local Governments and 
Nonprofit Organizations; and the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies 
(Guide) Issued by the Federal Aviation Administration 

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133 ; and the 
Guide issued by the Federal Aviation is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about the financial statements and about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in OMB Circular A-133 and the Guide that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program or passenger facility charge program 
occurred. In performing auditing procedures, we establish scopes of audit tests in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. Our engagement does not include a detailed audit of every 
transaction. Our engagement letter more specifically describes our responsibilities. 

These standards require communication of significant matters related to the financial statement 
and compliance audits that are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance 
in overseeing the financial reporting process. Such matters are communicated in the remainder 
of this letter or have previously been communicated during other phases of the audit. The 
standards do not require the auditor to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other 
matters to be communicated with those charged with governance. 

Audits of financial statements and compliance does not relieve management or those charged 
with governance of their responsibilities. Our engagement letter more specifically describes 
your responsibilities . 
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Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices 

Significant A ccounting Policies 

The Airport Authority's significant accounting policies did not change from the prior year and 
are described in Note 1 to the comprehensive annual financial statements (CAFR). 

Alternative Accounting Treatments 

No matters are reportable. 

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, 
based on its judgments. The following areas involve significant estimates for which we are 
prepared to discuss management ' s estimation process and our procedures for testing the 
reasonableness of those estimates: 

• Fair market value of investments 

• Valuation allowance for various receivables 

• Estimated useful lives used to depreciate capital assets 

• Actuarial assumptions used to estimate the net pension asset 

• Actuarial assumptions used to estimate the net other postemployment benefits asset 

• Pollution remediation obligations 

• Litigation and other loss contingencies 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we 
are prepared to discuss the issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those 
disclosures : 

• Cash, cash equivalents and investments 

• Capital assets 

• Long-term liabilities 

• Defmed benefit plan 

• Other postemployment benefits 

• Lease revenues 

• Commitments and contingencies 
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Audit Adjustments 

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement 
amounts. Management evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments which, in its 
judgment, are required to prevent the financial statements from being materially misstated. 
Some adjustments proposed were not recorded because their aggregate effect is not currently 
material; however, they involve areas in which adjustments in the future could be material, 
individually or in the aggregate. 

Areas in which adjustments were proposed include: 

Proposed audit adjustment recorded: 

• Accrual of year-end unclaimed grant reimbursements 

Proposed audit adjustments not recorded (see attached summary of uncorrected 
misstatements): 

• Prior period impact of unclaimed grant reimbursements accrual 

• Reclassification of grant revenue from operating revenues to nonoperating revenues 

Auditor's Judgments About the Quality of the Entity's Accounting Principles 

No matters are reportable. 

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 

The audited fmancial statements are included in the Airport Authority's CAFR. As part of our 
procedures, we read the entire report to determine if financial information discussed in sections 
outside the financial statements materially contradicts the audited financial statements. If we 
identify any such matters, we bring them to management's attention and review subsequent 
revisions. 

Significant Issues Discussed with Management 

During the Audit Process 

During the audit process, we had discussions with management regarding the accounting and 
reporting treatments being applied to the Quieter Home Program grant revenues and 
expenditures. There appears to be disparity in treatment across the airport industry for federally 
funded sound insulation programs, but we attribute this disparity primarily to the individual facts 
and circumstances that pertain to each situation. Ultimately, we concluded that the Airport 
Authority 's past accounting and reporting practices for such activity are appropriate under the 
circumstances. 

r r: r, ·r , ) ,-. 
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

Our audit requires cooperative effort between management and the audit team. There were no 
difficulties encountered during the course of our audit. Management of the Airport Authority 
was very patient and extremely cooperative throughout the audit process. We very much 
appreciate their hard work in preparing for the audit and in seeing it through to completion. 

Other Material Written Communications 

Other material written communications between management and BKD related to the audit 
include the following: 

• Report on the Airport Authority's passenger facility charge program 

• Report on the Airport Authority's customer facility charge program 

• A management representation letter, a copy of which is attached. 

OTHER MATTERS 

We observed the following matters and offer these comments and suggestions with respect to 
matters which came to our attention during the course of the audit ofthe financial statements. 
Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial 
statements and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies and procedures that 
may exist. However, these matters are offered as constructive suggestions for the consideration 
of management as part of the ongoing process of modifying and improving financial and 
administrative practices and procedures. We can discuss these matters further at your 
convenience and may provide implementation assistance for changes or improvements. 

Information Technology Control Enhancements 

During the course of our audit, we performed procedures to evaluate the design of the Airport 
Authority's information technology (IT) general controls. The scope of our procedures included 
a review of the supporting infrastructure for financial significant systems, namely Oracle' s JD 
Edwards EnterpriseOne. More specifically, we reviewed the IT general controls in the following 
areas: (1) entity-level, (2) systems development and change management, (3) security and (4) 
operations. In the course of our procedures, we observed the following oppmtunities for 
improvement and offer these suggestions. 

The EnterpriseOne system user logical access is created using specific roles. Roles are assigned 
to individual users when they are employed or transfer job responsibilities. However, formal 
periodic reviews of user access are not performed to ensure the propriety of user access. 

We therefore recommend that a formal review of user access to the system be performed on a 
periodic basis. 

I"'J.(.i•) q 
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Standard best practice password policies are not in place for the Active Directory environment, 
specifically the following cmrent settings: 

• Enforce password history: 0 passwords remembered 

• Maximum password age: 366 days 

• Account lockout threshold: 50 invalid logon attempts 

Management should consider changing the settings to adhere to the following best practices: 

• Enforce password history: 12 passwords remembered 

• Maximum password age: 90-180 days 

• Account lockout threshold: 3-5 invalid logon attempts 

Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Reporting 

During the course of our audit, we noted that the Airport Authority 's underlying accounting 
records used to support the required quarterly and cumulative reporting ofPFC activity do not 
agree to the amounts reported to the Federal Aviation Administration. The Airport Authority 's 
accounting records show that it has collected more PFCs on a cumulative basis than is currently 
being reported. 

We recommend the Airport Authority invest the time necessary to resolve this and any other 
differences in order to correct its reporting ofPFCs. Procedmes should be established to ensure 
further differences do not arise in the future . 

Significant Changes to Federal Grant Policies 

In December 2013, the Office of Management and Budget issued final guidance to supersede and 
streamline requirements from OMB Circulars A-21, A-50, A-87, A-89, A-102, A-110, A-122 
and A-133 by consolidating into one document the federal government's guidance on "Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards." 
This guidance, commonly referred to as the Ornni- or Super Circular, is effective for all federal 
awards or funding increments provided after December 26, 2014, and the audit requirement 
changes contained therein will be effective for years beginning on or after December 26, 2014. 
The final guidance is located in Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations. The new guidance 
raises the audit threshold and the minimum Type AlB program threshold to $750,000, simplifies, 
in many instances, the support requirements for the indirect cost rate used and increases the focus 
on internal controls over compliance with federal program rules. 

Personnel within the Airport Authority responsible for federal grant administration will need to 
become familiar with this new guidance and, in most cases, certain controls over compliance 
with federal program rules and guidance will require modification as a result of implementing 
this new guidance. 
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions (Statement) 

This Statement amends the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State 
and Local Qovernmental Employers, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate 
to govetnmental employers that account for pensions provided through trusts, or equivalent 
arrangements, that meet certain criteria. 

The statement includes guidance for accounting for participating employers in single-employer 
and multiple-employer defined-benefit pension plans, cost-sharing plans, defined-contribution 
plans and plans with insured benefits. More specifically, this Statement requires governments 
providing defined-benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits 
as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual 
costs of pension benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and transparency through 
revised and new note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI). 

The effective date for this standard is generally for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 69, Government Combinations 
and Disposals of Government Operations (Statement) 

This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government 
combinations and disposals of government operations. As used in this Statement, the term 
government combinations includes a variety of transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions 
and transfers of operations. 

The distinction between a government merger and a government acquisition is based upon 
whether an exchange of significant consideration is present within the combination transaction. 
Government mergers include combinations of legally separate entities without the exchange of 
significant consideration. This Statement requires the use of carrying values to measure the 
assets and liabilities in a government merger. Conversely, government acquisitions are 
transactions in which a government acquires another entity, or its operations, in exchange for 
significant consideration. This Statement requires measurements of assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed generally to be based upon their acquisition values. This Statement also 
provides guidance for transfers of operations that do not constitute legally separate entities and in 
which no significant consideration is exchanged. This Statement defmes the term operations for 
purposes of determining the applicability of this Statement and requires the use of carrying 
values to measure the assets and liabilities in a transfer of operations. 

A disposal of a government's operations results in the removal of specific activities of a 
government. This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for disposals 
of government operations that have been transferred or sold. 

This Statement requires disclosures to be made about government combinations and disposals of 
government operations to enable fmancial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial 
effects of those transactions. 

.. ' •· ' ' ) ~ '-/ v .. .,.l. ;., 
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The requirements of this Statement are effective for government combinations and disposals of 
government operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2013 , and should be applied on a prospective basis. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees 

Effective for periods beginning after June 15,2013, this Statement will require a government that 
extends a transaction financial guarantee to another government, not-for-profit organization, 
private entity, or individual, without directly receiving equal or approximate value in exchange 
(nonexchange transaction), to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and historical data, if 
any, indicate that it is more likely than not the government will be required to make a payment 
on the guarantee. This Statement requires a government that has issued an obligation guaranteed 
in a nonexchange transaction to report the obligation until legally released as an obligor. 
Examples of such qualitative factors include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• Initiation of the process of entering into bankruptcy or financial reorganization. 

• Breach of a debt contract in relation to the guaranteed obligation, such as failure to meet 
rate covenants, failure to meet coverage ratios, or default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments. 

• Indicators of significant financial difficulty, such as failure to make payments to paying 
agents or trustees on a timely basis; drawing on a reserve fund to make debt service 
payments; initiation of a process to intercept receipts to make debt service payments; debt 
holder concessions; significant investment losses; loss of a major revenue source; 
significant increase in noncapital disbursements in relation to operating or current 
revenues; or commencement of financial supervision by another government. 

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, Members of 
the Board and management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

October 24, 2014 



SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

P.O. BOX 82776. SAN DIEGO. CA 92138-2776 
619 .400.2400 \1/\1/\1/.SAN.ORG 

October 24, 2014 

BKD, LLP 

Certified Public Accountants 
14241 Dallas Parkway, Suite 1100 
Dallas, Texas 75254 

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of our financial statements as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2014 and your audit of our compliance with requirements applicable 
to each of our major federal awards programs; and our compliance with the requirements of the 
passenger facility charge and customer facility charge programs as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. We contirm that the Authority is responsible for the fair presentation of the 
tinancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, establishing 
and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, operations and compliance, 
and preventing and detecting fraud . 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting infonnation that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the infonnation would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement. 

We confinn, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following: 

I. We have fultilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our engagement 
letter dated May 28, 2014, for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

4. We have reviewed and approved a draft of the financial statements and related 
notes referred to above, which you prepared in connection with your audit of our 
financial statements. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the fair 
presentation of the financial statements and related notes. 

SAN DIEGO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT 
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5. We have provided you with: 

(a) Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the tinancial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters. 

(b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 
the audit. 

(c) Unrestricted access to persons within the San Diego County Regional 
Airport Authority (Airport Authority) from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

(d) All minutes of meetings of the governing body held through the date of this 
letter. 

(e) All significant contracts and grants. 

6. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 
the tinancial statements. 

7. We have informed you of all current risks of a material amount that are not 
adequately prevented or detected by the Airport Authority procedures with respect 
to: 

(a) Misappropriation of assets. 

(b) Misrepresented or misstated assets, liabilities or net position. 

8. We believe the effects of the uncorrected tinancial statement misstatements 
summarized in the attached schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

9. We have no knowledge of any known or suspected: 

(a) Fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets involving 
management or employees who have significant roles in internal control. 

(b) Fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets involving others 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

I 0. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting 
the Airport Authority received in communications from employees, customers, 
regulators, suppliers or others. 

11 . We have disclosed to you the identity of the Airport Authority' s related parties 
and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted 

('; . .. . f ' :: .. \ 
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for and disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. We understand that the term related party refers to 
an affiliate; management, and members of their immediate families, component 
units; and any other party with which the Airport Authority may deal if it can 
significantly influence, or be influenced by, the management or operating policies 
of the other. The term affiliate refers to a party that directly or indirectly controls, 
or is controlled by, or is under common control with us. 

12. Except as reflected in the financial statements, there are no: 

(a) Plans or intentions that may materially affect carrymg values or 
classifications of assets and liabilities. 

(b) Material transactions omitted or improperly recorded m the financial 
statements. 

(c) Material gain/loss contingencies requiring accrual or disclosure, including 
those arising from environmental remediation obligations. 

(d) Events occurring subsequent to the statement of net position date through 
the date of this letter requiring adjustment or disclosure in the financial 
statements. 

(e) Agreements to purchase assets previously sold. 

(f) Restrictions on cash balances or compensating balance agreements. 

(g) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Airport Authority is 
contingently liable. 

13. We have disclosed to you all known instances of noncompliance or suspected 
noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered 
when preparing financial statements. 

14. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. The effects 
of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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15. Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses 
from: 

(a) Uncollectible receivables. 

(b) Reducing obsolete or excess inventories to estimated net realizable value. 

(c) Lease commitments, including those unable to be fulfilled. 

(d) Purchase commitments in excess of normal requirements or above 
prevailing market prices. 

16. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, we have: 

(a) Satisfactory title to all recorded assets, and they are not subject to any liens, 
pledges or other encumbrances. 

(b) Complied with all aspects of contractual and grant agreements, for which 
noncompliance would materially affect the financial statements. 

17. We have not been designated as a potentially responsible party (PRP or equivalent 
status) by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or other cognizant 
regulatory agency with authority to enforce environmental laws and regulations. 

18. With regard to deposit and investment activities: 

(a) All deposit, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and investment 
transactions have been made in accordance with legal and contractual 
requirements. 

(b) Disclosures of deposit and investment balances and risks in the financial 
statements are consistent with our understanding of the applicable laws 
regarding enforceability of any pledges of collateral. 

(c) We understand that your audit does not represent an opinion regarding the 
enforceability of any collateral pledges. 

19. We have provided the information necessary to determine the Airport Authority's 
restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments and such restricted amounts are 
accurately reflected in the audited financial statements. 

20. With respect to any nonattest services you have provided us during the year, 
including assistance in the preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report: 

(a) We have designated a qualified management-level individual to be 
responsible and accountable for overseeing the nonattest services. 
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(b) We have established and monitored the performance of the nonattest 
services to ensure that they meet our objectives. 

(c) We have made any and all decisions involving management functions with 
respect to the nonattest services and accept full responsibility for such 
decisions. 

(d) We have evaluated the adequacy of the services performed and any findings 
that resulted. 

21. We acknowledge that we are responsible for compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

22. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements that have a direct and material effect on the 
detem1ination of amounts in our financial statements or other financial data 
significant to the audit objectives. 

23. We have identified and disclosed to you any violations or possible violations of 
laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements whose effects 
should be considered for recognition and/or disclosure in the financial statements 
or for your reporting on noncompliance. 

24. We have taken or will take timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, 
abuse, illegal acts or violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements that 
you or other auditors report. 

25. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

26. We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, 
performance audits or other studies related to the objectives of your audit and the 
corrective actions taken to address any significant findings and recommendations 
made in such audits, attestation engagements or other studies. 

27. With regard to federal awards, passenger facility charge and customer facility 
charge programs: 

(a) We have identified in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards all 
assistance provided (either directly or passed through other entities) by 
federal agencies in the form of grants, contracts, loans, loan guarantees, 
property, cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, commodities, 
insurance, direct appropriations or in any other form. 

(b) We have identified the types of compliance requirements described in the 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 

('I ~' 1 31 L: v 'J ' 
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Supplement regarding activities allowed or unallowed; allowable costs/cost 
principles; cash management; Davis-Bacon Act; eligibility; equipment and 
real property management; matching, level of effort, earmarking; period of 
availability of federal funds; procurement and suspension and debarment; 
program income; real property acquisition and relocation assistance; 
reporting; subrecipient monitoring; and special tests and provisions that are 
applicable to each of our federal awards programs. We have identified to 
you our interpretation of any applicable compliance requirements subject to 
varying interpretations. We have also identified all compliance 
requirements of the passenger facility charge and customer facility charge 
programs. 

(c) We are responsible to understand and comply with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of our federal 
awards programs and our passenger facility charge and customer facility 
charge programs and have disclosed to you any and all instances of 
noncompliance with those requirements occurring during the period of your 
audit or subsequent thereto to the date of this letter of which we are aware. 
We believe the Airport Authority has complied with all applicable 
compliance requirements. 

(d) We are responsible for establishing and maintammg effective internal 
control over compliance to provide reasonable assurance we have 
administered each of our federal awards, passenger facility charge and 
customer facility charge programs in compliance with requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to those programs. 

(e) We have made available to you all contracts and grant agreements, 
including any amendments, and any other correspondence or documentation 
relevant to each of our federal awards, passenger facility charge and 
customer facility charge programs and to our compliance with applicable 
requirements of those programs. 

(f) The infonnation presented in federal awards program financial reports and 
claims for advances and reimbursements is supported by the books and 
records from which our financial statements have been prepared. 

(g) Amounts claimed or used for matching were detennined in accordance with 
the applicable OMB Circular regarding cost principles. 

(h) We have disclosed to you any communications from grantors, pass-through 
entities and others concerning possible noncompliance with the applicable 
compliance requirements for each of our federal awards programs, as well 
as our passenger facility charge and customer facility charge programs, 
including any communications received from the end of the period of your 
audit through the date of this letter. 
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(i) We have identified to you any previous compliance audits, attestation 
engagements and internal or external monitoring related to the objectives of 
your compliance audits, including findings received and corrective actions 
taken to address any significant findings and recommendations made m 
such audits, attestation engagements or other monitoring. 

U) The summary schedules of prior audit findings correctly state the status of 
all prior year OMB Circular A-133 and passenger facility charge program 
audit findings and any uncorrected open findings included in the prior year 
summary schedules of prior audit findings as of the date of this letter. 

28. The financial statements disclose all significant estimates and material 
concentrations known to us. Significant estimates are estimates at the statement 
of net position date which could change materially within the next year. 
Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of 
supply, or markets for which events could occur which would significantly disrupt 
normal finances within the next year. Significant assumptions used by us in 
making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 
reasonable. 

29. The supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, consisting of management's discussion and analysis, pension 
and other postemployment benefit information, has been prepared and is 
measured and presented in conformity with the applicable GASB 
pronouncements, and we acknowledge our responsibility for the information. The 
information contained therein is based on all facts, decisions and conditions 
currently known to us and is measured using the same methods and assumptions 
as were used in the preparation of the financial statements. We believe the 
signiticant assumptions underlying the measurement and/or presentation of the 
information are reasonable and appropriate. There has been no change from the 
preceding period in the methods of measurement and presentation. 

30. With regard to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, schedule of 
passenger facility charge collections and expenditures and schedule of customer 
facility charge collections and expenditures: 

(a) We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the 
supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria. 

(b) We believe the supplementary information is fairly presented, both in form 
and content, in accordance with the applicable criteria. 

(c) The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary 
information are unchanged from those used in the prior period. 

( 'I ( 133 
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(d) We believe the significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement and/or presentation of the supplementary information are 
reasonable and appropriate. 

(e) If the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial 
statements, we acknowledge we will make the audited financial statements 
readily available to intended users of the supplementary information no later 
than the date such information and the related auditor' s report are issued. 

er, Vice President Finance & 
Asset Management/Treasurer 



San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
ATTACHMENT 

This analysis and the attached "Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements (Adjustments Passed)" reflects the effects on the 

financial statements if the uncorrected misstatements identified were corrected. 

Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Ratio 

Total Assets 

Total Liabilities 

Total Net Position 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Nonoperating (Revenues) Exp 

Change in Net Position 

QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS 
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214,852,773 

2,007,428,894 

(119,088,048) 

(1,376,177,173) 
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(1,495,265,221) 
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(195,368,451) -0.19% 

214,025,911 

(18,010,538) -1 .27% 

646,922 1278.72% 
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Management's Reason(s) for Not Making an Adjustment 
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PY auditor's did not want Authority to book recervable 
and revenue because of the delays that would 
sometimes occur 1n the submiSsiOn of requests for 
reimbursement; told the cliem to record on a cash bas1s 
but reponed to the feds that they were on an accrual 
basiS for the SEFA. 

I I I . ~~-··-- • 
1 

I I r ·1 'I 'I 'I 'II 'I 'I 'I 'II 'I 'I 
1 

: 

I I I 'I 'I 'I 'II 'I 'I 'I 'II 'I 'I I - ·~ 
I I I I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'II rn l I - -

I I I I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'I 'II 'I 'I I I 

Total passed adjusbnents 

" 

0 ....... 
w 
0;) 

368,386 0 231,61 4 (600,000) 
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There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.  There was one 
audit adjustment made, relating to the recognition of an accrual for unclaimed grant reimbursements.

For fiscal year 2014, the Airport Authority had two major federal award programs that required testing, the FAA's Airport 
Improvement Program and TSA's Checked Baggage Screening Project.  We identified no compliance or internal control 
matters related to these programs during our single audit testing.  



2014 Highlights



Unmodified



Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program and Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Collections and 
Expenditures

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program; Report on Internal Control Over 
Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Independent Auditor's Report on Basic Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing 
Standards

Unmodified





During fiscal year 2014, the Airport Authority received its Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 
its 2013 CAFR.  This was the 11th consecutive year the Airport Authority has received this prestigious award.

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for the Customer Facility Charge Program and Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance

Unmodified

Unmodified



Unmodified
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2014 Highlights (Cont.)





Asset highlights: Cash, cash equivalents and investments were up $159 million due to the issuance of the 2014 bonds and continued 
accumulation of PFCs.  Capital assets grew by $133 million (after depreciation, which increased by $75 million) with the completion of 
the Green Build.  Grants receivable increased by $2 million, primarily due to the accrual for unclaimed grant reimbursements at June 
30, 2014. Other current assets declined by $2 million, which relates entirely to the accrual for a BAB subsidy in 2013.





Net position highlights: Net investment in capital assets declined by $47 million, which is primarily reflective of an increase in long-
term debt associated with capital asset acquisition.  Amounts restricted for debt service and construction grew by $29 million and $7 
million, respectively, as the amount of interest funded from bond proceeds declined and the amount of unapplied PFCs grew.  
Unrestricted net position rose by $10 million, which is almost entirely due to the accumulation of additional liquid reserves.

Liability highlights: Accrued liabilities decreased by $13 million as the Green Build came to a close in 2014, thus reducing the 
amount of construction related accruals and retainages payable.  Long-term debt grew by $294 million with the issuance of the 2014 
bonds.  Accrued interest payable increased by $7 million, primarily due to the semiannual interest due on the 2014 bonds, as well as a 
full semiannual period of interest due on the 2013 bonds at June 30, 2014 versus less than six month's due at June 30, 2013.

Revenue highlights: Airline revenue grew by $8 million, reflecting higher cost recovery form the airlines in 2014 as compared to 2013. 
Concession revenue increased by $6 million due to the Airport Authority's newly expanded concession program.  Parking and ground 
transportation revenue rose by $3 million upon the reopening of the Terminal 2 parking lot and partially due to an increase in enplaned 
passengers.   CFCs grew by $8 million over the prior year as a result of a fee increase that went into effect January 1, 2014.

Expense highlights: Contractual services increased $2 million, primarily attributable to greater shuttle and parking contract costs.  
Utilities were up $2 million over 2013 as rates rose and usage increased with the Green Build coming fully on line.  Maintenance 
expenses grew by $3 million, generally the result of additional airfield, elevator and escalator repairs.  Depreciation and amortization 
increased $36 million due to continued capitalization of the Green Build.  Interest expense increased by $40 million, both due to 
increased debt and a reduction in the amount of bond proceeds available to pay interest.

Future accounting/reporting issues of significance to consider include the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions  and GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.  
Also, the Airport Authority should carefully study the implications of the recently released OMB "Super Circular" and plan for 
implementation and ongoing monitoring to ensure compliance with the federal grant program guidance therein provided.



There were no difficulties encountered in the course or performing our audit and we received 

excellent cooperation form management throughout the process.  We appreciate the support 

they provided, as well as the time and attention of the Audit Committee to this very important 

process.

There were no significant changes to the Airport Authority's significant accounting policies.  Significant and/or sensitive financial 
statement disclosures in the 2014 CAFR include: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments; Capital Assets; Long-Term Liabilities; 
Defined Benefit Plan, Other Postemployment Benefits. Lease Revenues; Lease Commitments; and Commitments and Contingencies.  







Cash flows from operating activities continue to grow and reflect a strong trend and unrestricted liquid reserves ($167 million) are 
significant, representing 80% of total unrestricted net position and more than one year of current operating expenses (exclusive of 
depreciation).
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Assets and Deferred Outflows Composition as of June 30, 2014

Total Assets = $2,222,281,667

Cash, Cash Equivalents and 
Investments - Unrestricted

$166,863,849 
8%

Cash, Cash Equivalents and 
Investments - Restricted

$664,694,567 
30%

Tenant Lease Receivables
$9,112,683 

0%

Capital Assets, Net
$1,310,972,534 

59%

Net OPEB Asset
$6,919,775 

0%

Grant, PFC and CFC 
Receivables
$13,398,406 

1%

Other Assets
$50,319,853 

2%
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Asset and Deferred Outflows Composition Trends

 $-

 $50,000,000

 $100,000,000

 $150,000,000

 $200,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Unrestricted

 $350,000

 $200,350,000

 $400,350,000

 $600,350,000

 $800,350,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Restricted

 $2,400,000

 $4,400,000

 $6,400,000

 $8,400,000

 $10,400,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Tenant Lease Receivables

 $250,000,000
 $500,000,000
 $750,000,000

 $1,000,000,000
 $1,250,000,000
 $1,500,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Capital Assets, Net

 $2,000,000
 $4,500,000
 $7,000,000
 $9,500,000

 $12,000,000
 $14,500,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Grant, PFC & CFC Receivables

 $15,000

 $20,015,000

 $40,015,000

 $60,015,000

 $80,015,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Other Assets

5 of 12   



Liability Composition as of June 30, 2014

Total Liabilities = $1,495,265,221

Accounts Payable and Accrued 
Liabilities- Unrestricted

$18,055,639 
1%

Accounts Payable and Accrued 
Liabilities- Restricted

$59,871,383 
4%

Compensated Absences
$3,094,685 

0%

Accrued Interest on Debt
$31,088,789 

2%

Long-Term Debt
$1,380,592,518 

93%

Other Liabilities
$2,562,207 

0%
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Liability Composition Trends
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Total Revenues = $285,630,711

Total Revenues and Capital Contributions Composition for the Year Ended 
June 30, 2014

Airline Revenue
$97,876,224 

34%

Concession Revenue
$47,769,865 

17%

Parking and Ground 
Transportation Revenue

$38,959,020 
14%

Ground and Non-airline 
Terminal Rentals

$9,602,842 
3%

Passenger Facility Charges
$35,769,515 

12%

Customer Facility Charges
$27,545,001 

10%

Other Revenues
$28,108,244 

10%
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Total Revenues and Capital Contributions Trends
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Expense Composition for the Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Excl. Depreciation)

Total Expenses (Excl. Depreciation of $77,205,256) = $208,472,377

Salaries and Benefits
$39,135,299 

19%

Contractual Services
$31,559,247 

15%

Safety and Security
$24,150,563 

11%
Utilities

$8,680,410 
4%

Maintenance
$13,981,689 

7%

Interest Expense
$56,375,726 

27%

Other Expenses
$34,589,443 

17%
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Expense Trends 
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* Beginning in 2014, outstanding debt includes the Series 2014 CFC Bonds. 

Other Relevant Trends
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 7 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Review of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Recommendation: 

The Audit Committee recommends that the Board accept the report. 

Background/Justification: 

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is a set of U.S. government financial 
statements that encompass the financial report of a state, municipal, or other 
governmental entity that conforms with the accounting requirements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

The CAFR provides a measure of financial transparency on local and state government 
spending. It is a more thorough report when compared to the audited financial 
statements, and includes three major sections: the introductory section, which provides 
general information on the Airport's organization structure; the financial section, which 
includes the Airport's audited financial statements; and the statistical section, which 
provides data trends. 

The Airport Authority CAFR for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 (Attachment A), was 
presented to the Audit Committee during a regular meeting held on November 17, 2014. 
The Audit Committee voted unanimously to forward the informational item to the Board. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Adequate funding to produce the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is included in 
the adopted FY 2015 and conceptually approved FY 2016 Operating Expense Budgets 
within the Accounting Department Services- Other line item. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

D Community 1ZJ Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

D Employee 
Strategy 

1ZJ Financial 
Strategy 

1ZJ Operations 
Strategy 



ITEM NO.7 
Page 2 of 2 

Environmental Review: 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act C'CEQA''), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by 
the California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not applicabl.e 

Prepared by: 

MARK A. BURCHYETT 
CHIEF AUDITOR 



ATTACHMENT A 
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PREPARED BY 

Finance Division of the 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
San Diego, California 

Scott Brickner 
Vice President. CFO/Treasurer. Finance and Asset Management 

Kathryn J. Kiefer 
Sr. Director, Finance and Asset Management 
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SAN DIEGO 
M INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
PO BOX 8Lll6 SAN /llC 0, C A 921 l 6 
619 400 2400 WWW SAN ORG 

October 24, 2014 

To the Public: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (the "CAFR") of the San Diego County Regional Airport 
Authority ("SDCRM" or the "Airport Authority") for the fiscal year ended june 30, 2014 is submitted 
herewith. The Airport Authority's Accounting Department prepared this report. Responsibility for 
the accuracy, completeness and fairness of the presented data, including all disclosures, rests 
with the Airport Authority. To the best of our knowledge and belief, this report fairly presents and 
fully discloses the Airport Authority's financial position, results of operations and cash flows in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (referred 
to as "GMP"). 

GMP requires that management provide a narrative overview and analysis to accompany the 
financial statements in the form of a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This 
letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the MD&A, which can be found immediately 
following the report of the independent auditors in the Financial Section of this report. 

PROFILE OF AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

The Airport Authority was established pursuant to California State Act AB 93 (the "Act"), which was 
signed into Ca lifornia State law in October 2001. The Act estab lished the Airport Authority, effective 
january 1, 2002, as a local agency of regional government with jurisdiction throughout the County 
of San Diego (the "County"). The Airport Authority is vested with five principal responsibilities: (1) 

the operation of San Diego International Airport ("SDIA" or the "Airport"), (2) the planning and 
operation of any future airport that could be developed as a supplement to or replacement for 
SDIA, (3) the development of a comprehensive land use plan for the entire County, (4) to serve as 
the region's Airport Land Use Commission, and (5) to prepare a RegionaL Aviation Strategic Plan. 

The Airport Authority is governed by an appointed Board of Directors of nine members 
representing all areas of San Diego County and three additional members serving as non-voting, 
ex-officio Board members. Three Board members serve as the Executive Committee consisting of 
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one Board member from each of the following "defined jurisdictions": the City of San Diego, the 
County of San Diego, and one Board member from among the east county cities, south county 
cities or north county in land cities. The Board members serve three-year terms. 

The management and operations of the Airport Authority are carried out by a staff headed by the 
President/Chief Executive Officer, who is appointed by and reports directly to the Airport Authority 
Board of Directors. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION 

The Air Trade Area for the airport includes the County and portions of neighboring Orange and 
Riverside Counties and Baja California del Norte, Mexico. The California Department of Finance 
estimates that as of january 1, 2014, San Diego County is the second most populous county in 
California, just behind Los Angeles County, and the fifth largest county in the United States, with a 
population of 3.2 million. The County's population has grown at an average rate of 0.7 percent 

in the past five years. The majority of the County's population is concentrated in the western 
portion. The largest cities in the County are San Diego (42 percent), Chula Vista (8 percent), 
Oceanside (5 percent), Escondido (5 percent), Carlsbad (3 percent), El Cajon (3 percent), Vista 
(3 percent), San Marcos (3 percent) and Encinitas (2 percent). The combined San Diego/Tijuana 
metropolitan population exceeds five million inhabitants. 

Typically, San Diego County has enjoyed a stable economic climate, with unemployment rates 
lower than the State of California's . The economy continues to improve as seen in decreased 
unemployment. In june 2014, the County's unemployment rate dropped to 6.1 percent compared 

to june 2013, at 7.8 percent. This compares with an unemployment rate of 7.4 percent in 2014 and 
8.5 percent in 2013 for Californ ia and 6.1 percent in 2014 compared to 7.6 percent for the nation 
as of june 2013. The region's economy is diversified and provides an attractive mix of leisure, 
business, and governmental sectors. The County is home to more than 150 publ icly 
traded companies. 

Enplaned passengers grew 3.9 percent in fiscal year 2014, reflecting the gradual economic 
improvement totaling 9.08 million, compared to 8.73 million in fiscal year 2013. See the 
Management's Discussion and Ana lysis section of the Financial Section of th is report for further 

discussion of the current year activity. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES, AWARDS, AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

SOJA Earns the World's First LEED Platinum Certified Commerdal Ajmort Terminal - In Apri I 2014, 
SDIA was awarded Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Platinum certification 

for the Green Build terminal expansion from the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC). LEED 
certification is considered the industry standard in defining and measuring "green," sustainable 
construction, with LEED Platinum being the highest certification attainable. The award makes SDIA 
the first LEED Platinum certified commercial airport terminal in the world . 



LEED Platinum was awarded for the terminal portion of the Green Build, including the 460,000 
square-foot expansion of Terminal 2 West and 1.3 million square feet of new aircraft apron and 
taxiway areas. The design/build contractor for the project was Turner/PCUFiatiron. 

Sustainable elements of the terminal and airside improvements include solar energy, water 
conservation, energy conservation, storm water pollution prevention and air quality. 

Materials for the project were sourced, whenever possible, from within 500 miles of the airport, 
minimizing fuel usage and emissions in materials delivery. More than 95 percent of construction 
material waste was diverted from landfills by reuse on site or recycling. Construction teams 
used alternative fuel equipment as part of the construction process, reducing on site fuel 
usage and emissions. 

Green Build Gives Back to Small and Local Businesses with Millions in Contract Awards- With the grand 
opening of San Diego International Airport's (SOIA) Green Build Terminal 2 West improvement 
program, the $1 billion project upheld its commitment to provide business opportunities to local and 
small businesses, including women and minority owned and disabled veteran businesses. Local 
businesses won a total of $415 million in contracts, and small businesses were awarded contracts 
totaling $118 million. In addition, nearly 8,000 workers had a role in the project, and at the peak 
construction, there were 1,000 construction workers on site. 

The Airport Authority received awards from the San Diego Chapter of the American Subcontracting 
Association, Airport Minority Advisory Council, San Diego Hispanic Chamber of Commerce and 
Federal Aviation Administration for its small business outreach efforts. 

AO-North Amedca Honors San Diego County Regional Airport Authodt;y CSDIAJ with Inaugural Inclusion 

Champion Awards- On September 25, 2013, the Airport Authority was awarded Airports Council 
International North America's (ACI-NA) first Inclusion Champion Award, which recognized exceptional 
achievement in promotion and sustaining diversity throughout the airport industry's workforce. 

The Airport Authority makes diversity a cornerstone of its success, actively recruiting a diverse 
workforce which mirrors the demographics of the greater San Diego area: 43 percent of employees 
identify as an ethnicity other than Caucasian, with 20 percent identifying as Hispanic, 12 percent as 
African American, 8 percent as Asian and 3 percent as Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander. The 
Airport Authority made a strong commitment to ensuring a diverse future through Project LIFT, a 
partnership between the Airport Authority, San Diego City College and the Airport Minority Advisory 
Council (AMAC) which introduces students to aviation careers. Additionally, the Airport Authority has 
tailored its contracting process, such as that for its recently completed Green Build construction 
project, to improve participation by small, minority and women owned businesses. 

AiroortAuthorit;y Wins Two Orchid Awards for Green Build Public Art and Interior Architecture -The 2013 
Orchids & Onions Awards Ceremony awarded the Airport Authority two Orchids for the public 
art and interior architecture of the Green Build. The annual event was held by the San Diego 
Architectural Foundation. The Orchids & Onions jury called the Green Build "breathtaking from a 
distance, up close, outside and inside," and said it "creates a sense of place, provides an awesome 

esthetic journey, and combines the very best of form and function." 
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The Orchids & Onions jury described The Green Build's interior architecture as "open, airy and light," 
adding that "extensive use of glass takes advantage of natural light for energy efficiency." 
Regarding the public art in The Green Build, the jury said it "adds a dimension of beauty that 
elevates the experience." 

Construction Begins for the Rental Car Center at SDIA - Groundbreaking took place in October 2013 
for the new Rental Car Center at SDIA. The facility will house a number of rental car companies, 
including the leading national brands, as well as local, independent and small business rental car 
companies. The Rental Car Center is being constructed by joint venture Austin/Sundt, with Demattei 
Wong Architecture leading the design effort Building on the airport's ongoing commitment to 
sustainability, the Rental Car Center will be designed to achieve LEED certification, incorporating 
"green" design principles such as use of alternative energy sources, recycled materials, renewable 
resources and water saving fixtures. The design and construction of the Rental Car Center will be 
funded by customer facility charges. The estimated cost for the center is $316 million. 

MQjor Bond Sale Completed with Favorable Terms for Future Rental Car Center at SOIA- In February 
2014, the Airport Authority completed a major bond sale to fund the construction of a Rental Car 
Center and related improvements on the north side of SDIA. The bonds are secured by future 
Customer Facility Charge (CFC) revenue from customers who will use the Rental Car Center, which is 
scheduled to open in january 2016. 

The Rental Car Center bond sale was the largest stand-alone CFC-backed bond deal to date and the 
first issued in California. The Airport Authority scheduled pricing for the bond sale in early February 
to take advantage of favorable market flows and lower rates, resulting in the bond offering being 
extremely well received. The All-in True Interest Cost for the entire transaction was 5.49 percent. 

The bond sale's favorable circumstances were due to several factors, including the Airport 
Authority's careful timing of market entry for the sale, pricing during a time when rates were more 
attractive, and strong credit ratings for the bonds. Moody's Investors Services and Standard & 

Poor's Ratings Services rated the bonds A3 (Stable) and A- (Stable), respectively. 

The bond sale was comprised of $305.3 million in Senior Special Facility Revenue Bonds, sold on 
February 5, 2014. The Rental Car Center will serve as a central location for rental car customers, 
with consolidated shuttle service for all rental car companies, versus the many brand-specific 
shuttles that have historically served the airport. This will dramatically reduce our carbon 
footprint with reduced emissions, rental car traffic and the number of shuttle buses circulating 

around the airport. 

San Diego eounty Regional AiroortAuthority Wins Major Route Service Award- In October 2013, 

SDIA was given a World Routes award for its air service development efforts. It is the first time 
the airport has won the award in a global competition. The annual World Routes Awards are 
considered the most prestigious awards in the industry as they are voted for and judged by the 
airline network planning community. The awards recognize airports that provide the best overall 
air service marketing to airlines, including establishing new or developing existing routes, delivering 

0001 49 



results and providing data. SOIA won the Routes Americas 2013 award, and was also named 
Overall Regional Winner for the Americas. SOIA went on to represent North, Central and South 
America in the World Routes contest. 

SOIA was recognized for its work with four separate airlines to increase route service from San 
Diego. In 2012, the Airport Authority inaugurated service to Tokyo, Orlando and Reagan National 
Airport in Washington, DC, and expanded service to Hawaii and Mexico. In all, through its partner 
airl ines, the SOIA added 10 new routes in 2012. 

Landmark Aviation Holds a Groundbreaking at SOIA- Landmark Aviation held a ground breaking 
ceremony on October 17, 2013 to design, bu ild and operate a new, state of the art fixed base 
operator campus, with a 20,000 square-foot terminal, a 250,000 square-foot ramp and five hangars 
on 12.4 acres of airfield. The new facility is committed to achieve LEED Platinum certification from 
the USGBC. Landmark Aviation is investing approximately $40 million for this project. 

This facility will enhance the SDIA community and provide general aviation customers a 
comfortable, spacious terminal with many new amenities than previously offered. The grand 
opening is scheduled for early August 2014. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The Airport Authority Board (Board) sets policy that provides for appropriate internal controls and 
provides oversight to ensure that the assets of the Airport Authority are protected from loss, theft 
or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for preparation 
of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Internal controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, 
and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

The Airport Authority completed fiscal year 2014 with operating income (before depreciation and 

amortization) of $58.9 million. Fiscal year 2014 also grew as compared to fiscal year 2013, with 
enplanements increasing 3.9 percent, total passengers increasing 4 percent and freight and mail 
tons increasing 5.1 percent. The accompanying Management's Discussion and Analysis provides a 

detailed narrative overview. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

The financial records of the Airport Authority are audited annually by independent public 
accountants. BKD, LLP performed the audit for the current fiscal year ended june 30, 2014. Its 
report on the financial statements is presented in the Financial Section of this report. 
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Power and air for airplanes parked 

at the gates used to come from the 

airplanes themselves, forcing them 

to run their engines while parked. 

Power and air is now provided to 

parked aircraft from the gates, 

reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
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ADDITIONAL AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Airport Authority has been the recipient of numerous awards. A few of the recognitions 
presented during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows: 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada ("GFOA"J Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting- This recognition is for the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This was the eleventh year in a row 
that the Airport Authority received this award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, 

a government unit must publish an easily readab le and efficiently organized Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 
A Certificate of Achievement is va lid for a period of one year on ly. We believe our current 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 

Program's requirements, and we will submit it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate . 

The GFOA Distinguished Buc/.get Presentation Award- The achievement of this award is based on a 
governmental entity's preparation and issuance of budget documents of the very highest quality 
that reflect both the guidelines established by the National Advisory Council on State and Loca l 
Budgeting and the GFOA's recommended practices on budgeting. This was the ninth year in a row 
that the Airport Authority received this award. 

Airooa Authority Receives Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award - The Achievement 
of Excellence in Procurement Award is designed to recognize organizational excellence in 
procurement. Elements measured for this award include innovation, ethics, electronic commerce, 
productivity and leadership. The Airport Authority scored in the top 20 percent of all winners and 
is one of only 36 government agencies in California to win this prestigious award. This is the fourth 

year in a row that the Airport Authority received this award. 

The preparation of the CAFR was made possible by the dedicated service and efforts of the Airport 
Authority's Accounting Department. We sincerely appreciate everyone's efforts in preparing this report. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Thelia F. Bowens Scott Brickner, CPA 

President/Chief Executive Officer Vice President, CFO/Treasurer, Finance & Asset Mgmt. 
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BKD~ 14241 Dallas Parl<way, Su•te 1100 II Dalli!.S. TX 75254-2961 

~ 972 702 8262 // fax 972 702 0673 // bkd .com CPAs & Advisors .................................................... 
Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of the Board 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
San Diego, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego County Regional Airport 
Authority (Airport Authority) which are comprised of a statement of net position as of June 30, 2014, and 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and of cash flows for the year then ended and the 
related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents . 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audrt evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects , the financial 
position of the Airport Authority as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in financial position and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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To the Members of the Board 
San Diego County Reg ional Airport Authority 
Page 2 

Prior Year Audited by Other Auditors 

The 2013 financial statements were audited by other auditors and their report thereon, dated October 18, 2013, 
expressed an unmodified opinion. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

A=unting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requ ire that the management's 
discussion and analys is and pension and other postemployment benefit information listed in the table of contents 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information , although not part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board , who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the requ ired supplementary 
information in a=rdance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America , wh ich 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements as a whole. 
The Introductory and Statistical Sections listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and a=rdingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Dallas, Texas 
October 24, 2014 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30 , 2014 

INTRODUCTION 

The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority) was established on january 1, 2002, as an 
independent agency. On january 1, 2003, the operations and assets of San Diego International Airport (SDIA) 
transferred from the San Diego Unified Port District (District) to the Airport Authority. 

The Airport Authority is a self-sustaining entity receiving most of its revenues through user fees and rents from airline 
and nonairline business partners operating at SDIA. Since the Airport Authority is not funded by tax revenues, accounts 
are maintained in an enterprise fund on the accrual basis of accounting. Under accrual accounting, revenues are 
recognized as soon as they are earned, and expenses are recognized as soon as a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash inflows and outflows. Users of SOIA's facilities provide most of the revenues to operate, 
maintain, and acquire necessary services and facilities . 

SAN DIEGO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

History of Ownership 

The public policy decision to transfer responsibility for SDIA from the District to the newly created Airport Authority 
emanated from recommendations made by the San Diego Regional Efficiency Commission (Commission). The 
Commission was established to evaluate regional governance in San Diego County and report recommended 
improvement measures to the California State Legislature. 

Because of the significant regional consequences of airport development and operations, the Commission concluded 
that a regional decision-making process should address the future development of airport facilities in San Diego 
County. In October 2001, the enabling legislation, Assembly Bill 93 (AB 93) established the composition and jurisdiction 
of the Airport Authority's governing body in a manner that is designed to reflect the collective interests of the entire 
San Diego region. 

Legislative Background 

AB 93 was signed into California State law in October 2001. The Act established the Airport Authority on january 1, 2002, 
as a local agency of regional government with jurisdiction throughout the County of San Diego. Subsequent legislative 
changes to AB 93 were introduced and passed in California Senate Bill 1896 (Act). The amendment addresses several 
points pertaining to the transfer of aviation employees, date of transfer, property leases, property acquisition and 
purchase of services from the District. 

On january 1, 2008, Senate Bill1 0 (58 1 0), the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Reform Act, was 
enacted into law expanding the responsibilities of the Airport Authority. The Airport Authority is vested with five 
principal responsibilities: 

(1) Operation of SDIA; 

(2) Planning and operation of any future airport that could be developed as a supplement or replacement to SDIA; 

(3) Development of comprehensive airport land use plans for the airports in the county; 

(4) Serving as the region's Airport Land Use Commission; and 

(5) In accordance with 58 10, preparing a Regional Aviation Strategic Plan (completed in fiscal year 2011 ). 
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In August 2013, Assembly Bill1 OS8 was signed into law. This bill made minor clarifying and technical changes to 
the Airport Authority Act. 

Airport Activities Highlights (2012 - 2014) 

The Airport Authority experienced continued growth in all areas during the current and prior two fiscal years. This 
followed the trend seen at many commercial airports reflecting the gradual improvements in the economy. 

The changes in the SOIA's major activities for the three years are as follows: 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 

Enplaned passengers 8,S7S,47S 8,737,617 9,082,244 

%increase 1.6% 1.9% 3.9% 

Total passengers 17,138,911 17,440,968 18,14S,130 

%increase 1.6% 1.8% 4.0% 

Aircraft operations 188,280 188,304 187,790 

%increase 1.1% 0.0% -0.3% 

Freight and mail (in tons) 132,493 1S7,02S 164,966 

%increase 1.9% 18.5% S.1% 

Landed weight (in thousands) 10,820 11 ,016 11,187 

%increase 2.0% 1.8% 1.6% 

Overall, the improving economy is having a positive effect on aircraft operations at SOIA. The most significant increase 
since the 2008 economic downturn occurred in fiscal year 2014 with a 3.9 percent increase in enplanements. Also, total 
passengers increased by 4.0 percent and freight and mail tons increased S.1 percent. Overall, it appears the improving 
economy continues to have a positive effect on aircraft operations at SOIA. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

The metric 'Changes in Net Position' is an indicator of whether the Airport Authority's overall financial condition has 
improved or deteriorated during the fiscal year. Net position increased consistently over the past two fiscal years by 
9.7 percent in 2012, and 10.0 percent in 2013 and decreased slightly in 2014. The fiscal year 2014 decrease is primarily 
due to an increase in interest expense of approximately $40 million and an increase in depreciation and amortization 
of approximately $36 million. Following is a summary of the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net position (in thousands): 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 

Nonoperating revenues, net 

Capital contributions and grants 

Increase (decrease) in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

$ 

$ 

FY2012 

1S3,SSO $ 

(163,701) 

47,9S1 

20,834 

S8,634 

602,2SS 

660,889 $ 

FY 2013 FY2014 

177,498 $ 19S,737 

(168,420) (214,026) 

41,020 14,318 

16,077 3,924 

66,17S (47) 

660,889 727,064 

727,064 $ 727,017 

Detailed descriptions of the components of operating revenues and expenses, and nonoperating revenues and 
expenses are described in the sections that follow. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Operating Revenues (in thousands) 

From 2013 to 2014 
Increase 

FY 2013 FY 2014 (Decrease) % Change 

Airline revenue: 
Landing fees $ 19,658 $ 19,107 $ (551) (2.8%) 
Aircraft parking fees 3,191 2,503 (688) (21.6%) 
Building rentals 41,840 46,001 4,161 9.9% 
Security surcharge 23,360 25,777 2,417 10.3% 
Other aviation revenue 1,591 4,488 2,897 182.1% 

Total airline revenue 89,640 97,876 8,236 9.2% 
Non-airline terminal rent 972 1,158 186 19.1% 
Concession revenue 42,041 47,770 5,729 13.6% 
Parking and ground transportation revenue 35,750 38,959 3,209 9.0% 
Ground rentals 8,190 8,445 255 3.1% 
Other operating revenue 905 1,529 624 69.0% 

Total operating revenue $ 177,498 $ 195,737 $ 18,239 10.3% 

From 2012 to 2013 

Increase 

FY2012 FY2013 (Decrease) % Change 

Airline revenue: 

Landing fees $ 18,419 $ 19,658 $ 1,239 6.7% 

Aircraft parking fees 3,135 3,191 56 1.8% 

Building rentals 30,633 41 ,840 11 ,207 36.6% 

Security surcharge 18,649 23,360 4,711 25.3% 

Other aviation revenue 1,595 1,591 (4) (0.3%) 

Total airline revenue 72,431 89,640 17,209 23.8% 

Non-airline terminal rent 907 972 65 7.2% 

Concession revenue 40,427 42,041 1,614 4.0% 

Parking and ground transportation revenue 31,470 35,750 4,280 13.6% 

Ground rentals 7,136 8,190 1,054 14.8% 

Other operating revenue 1,179 905 (274) (23.2%) 

Total operating revenue $ 153,550 $ 177,498 $ 23,948 15.6% 
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Operating Revenues, Continued 

Fiscal year 2014 compared to 2013: Total airline revenues increased by $8.2 million or 9.2 percent primarily reflecting the 
cost recovery system for the airlines which was higher in fiscal year 2014, compared to 2013. Building rentals increased 
due to the implementation of the new airline use and lease agreement and the additional costs incurred by the fiscal 
year 2014 grand opening of the airport expansion . Security surcharge revenue increased due to additional costs of 
services and expanded facilities. Combined in other aviation revenue, common use system support charges were 
implemented in fiscal year 2014. Offsetting the airline revenue were decreased landing fees due to lower maintenance 
costs and decreased aircraft parking fees due to vacant parking positions. Concession revenue increased by $5 .7 million 
or 13.6 percent due to the new expanded concession program and the airport expansion. Parking and ground 
transportation revenue increased $3.2 million and 9.0 percent due to the reopening of Terminal 2 parking lot in front of 
the new expanded terminal and the increased enplanements. 

Fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012: Total airline revenues increased by $17.2 million or 23 .8 percent primarily reflecting 
continued implementation of a progressive cost recovery system for the airlines which was higher in fiscal year 2013, 
compared to 2012. Building rentals saw a graduated rate increase from 60 percent to 100 percent and the security 
surcharge increased from 85 percent to 100 percent reflecting the cost recovery formula. Landing fees increased by 
$1 .2 million or 6.7 percent, due to increased airfield maintenance expenses and increased landed weight. Concession 
revenue increased by $1 .6 million or 4.0 percent, reflecting slightly higher enplanements and higher per enplanement 
sales. Parking revenues increased by $4.3 million or 13.6 percent, due in part to the reopening of Terminal 2 parking 
that was temporarily closed in fiscal year 2012 to facilitate the construction of the Green Build. Ground rentals revenue 
increased in 2013 by $1.1 mi ll ion or 14.8 percent, due to increased rental space by Fed Ex, and a consumer price index 
rent increase to FedEx, Southwest, and UPS. The $274 thousand or 23.2 percent decrease, in other operating revenue 
reflects a change in utility billi ng practices of the new concession program beginning january 2013, which are now 
included as part of the base rent. 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2014 
Operating Revenues 

Con 

Security 
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Operating Expenses (in thousands) 

Salaries and benefits 

Contractual services 

Safety and security 

Space rental 

Utilities 

Maintenance 

Equipment and systems 

Materials and supplies 

Insurance 

Employee development and support 

Business development 

Equipment rentals and repairs 

Total operating expenses before 

depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating expense 

Salaries and benefits 

Contractual services 

Safety and security 

Space rental 

Utilities 

Maintenance 

Equipment and systems 

Materials and supplies 

Insurance 

Employee development and support 

Business development 

Equipment rentals and repairs 

Total operating expenses before 

depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating expense 

FY 2013 

38,092 

29,284 

23,994 

10,897 

6,659 

11 ,204 

469 

406 

795 

1,235 

2,444 

1,317 

126,796 

41,624 

168,420 

FY 2012 

37,237 

26,906 

22,625 

11,415 

6,674 

8,497 

403 

304 

764 

916 

2,093 

1,335 

119,169 

44,532 

163,701 

FY 2014 

39,135 

31 ,559 

24,151 

10,478 

8,680 

13,982 

643 

440 

988 

1,171 

2,661 

2,932 

136,820 

77,205 

214,025 

FY 2013 

38,092 

29,284 

23,994 

10,897 

6,659 

11 ,204 

469 

406 

795 

1,235 

2,444 

1,317 

126,796 

41,624 

168,420 

From 2013 to 2014 

Increase 
(Decrease) %Change 

1,043 2.7% 

2,27S 7.8% 

1S7 0.7% 

(419) (3.8%) 

2,021 30.3% 

2,778 24.8% 

174 37.1% 

34 8.4% 

193 24.3% 

(64) (5.2%) 

217 8.9% 

1,615 122.6% 

10,024 7.9% 

35,581 85.5% 

45,605 27.1% 

Increase 

(Decrease) %Change 

855 2.3% 

2,378 8.8% 

1,369 6.1% 

(518) (4.5%) 

(15) (0.2%) 

2,707 31 .9% 

66 16.4% 

102 33.6% 

31 4.1% 

319 34.8% 

351 16.8% 

(18) (1.3%) 

7,627 6.4% 

(2,908) (6.5%) 

4,719 2.9% 

Fiscal year 2014 compared to 2013: Total fiscal year 2014 operating expenses increased by $45.6 million, or 27.1 percent. 
The primary increase was due to the full year's depreciation of the terminal expansion that was partially placed in 
service in fiscal year 2013 and continued to increase as the expansion was completed in fiscal year 2014, $35.6 mill ion 
or 85.5 percent. Additionally contributing to the increase were the increased salaries and benefits of $1 .0 million, 
primarily resulting from increased head count due to expansion, salary increases and higher costs for medical benefits . 
There were also increased contractual services of $2.2 million, primarily resulting from increased shuttles and parking 
contract costs; safety and security increased $157 thousand due to greater usage from the terminal expansion; utilities 
increased $2.0 million due to increased rates and usage; maintenance increased by $2.8 million, reflecting costs of 
airfield repairs, elevator and escalator repairs and runway restriping. Additional support was provided to a new 
common use passenger processing system, contributing to the $174 thousand increase. Insurance increased by $193 
thousand, business development increased $217 thousand and equipment rental and repairs increased $1.6 million 
due to amortization of new system warranties on baggage handling systems and common use passenger systems. 

Offsetting this increase were the following decreases: space rental of $419 thousand reflecting the cancellation of an 
employee parking lease, and other minor reductions in employee development and support. 
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Fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012: Total fiscal year 2013 operating expenses increased by $4.7 million, or 2.9 percent. 
Contributing to this increase included: increased salaries and benefits of $855 thousand, primarily due to salary 
increases and higher costs for medical benefits; increased contractual services of $2.4 million, primarily due to the 
Green Build associated consulting services such as, ramp control professional services and selecting software to 
manage the new systems and building. Additionally, safety and security increased by $1.4 million, due to increased 
Harbor Police salaries and benefits expense under a new proposed agreement; maintenance increased by $2.7 mill ion 
reflecting costs of sink hole repair, elevator and escalator repairs and runway restrip ing; employee development and 
support increased by $319 thousand, due to the new Green Build systems tra ining; business development increased by 
$351 thousand, reflecting advertising and marketing for Japan Airl ines and Green Build related promotions. 

Offsetting this increase were the following decreases: space rental of $518 thousand reflecting the cancellation of an 
employee parking lease, and other minor reductions in utilities and equipment rentals and repairs . Depreciation 
expense decreased by $2.9 mil lion, due to fully depreciated assets of approximately $113 million which included HVAC 
systems, parking lots, airfield rehabilitations and aircraft fuel storage. 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2014 
Operating Expenses 
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Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses (in thousands) 

From 2013 to 2014 

Increase 

FY 2013 FY2014 (Decrease) % Change 

Passenger facility charges 35,438 $ 35,770 $ 332 0.9% 

Customer facility charges 19,117 27,545 8,428 44.1% 

Quieter Home Program, net (1,589) (2,750) (1 ,161) 73.1% 

joint studies program (55) (152) (97) 176.4% 

Interest income 4,140 5,211 1,071 25.9% 

Interest expense. net (11 ,752) (51 ,740) (39,988) (340.3%) 

Other nonoperating income (expenses) (4,279) 434 4,713 110.1% 

Nonoperating revenues, net $ 41,020 $ 14,318 $ (26,702) (65.1%) 

From 2012 to 2013 

Increase 

FY 2012 FY 2013 (Decrease) % Change 

Passenger facility charges 34,639 $ 35,438 $ 799 2.3% 

Customer facility charges 11,487 19,117 7,630 66.4% 

Quieter Home Program, net (3,531) (1 ,589) 1,942 (55.0%) 

joint studies program (73) (55) 18 (24.7%) 

Interest income 5,491 4,140 (1 ,351) (24.6%) 

Interest expense, net 2,969 (11 ,752) (14,721) (495.8%) 

Other nonoperating income (expenses) (3,032) (4,279) (1 ,247) (41 .1%) 

Nonoperating revenues, net 47,950 41 ,020 $ (6,930) (14.5%) 

Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs) were established by Congress in 1990 as part of the Aviation Safety and 
Capacity Expansion Act of 1990. The Airport Authority collects a $4.50 PFC from revenue enplaned passengers to 
pay for the cost to design and construct eligible Airport capital projects or to repay debt service issued to build such 
projects. PFCs are collected by the air carriers when passengers purchase their tickets and are remitted to the 
Airport Authority the month following collection less a $0.11 administration fee. 

Customer Facility Charges (CFCs) are authorized under Section 1936 of the California Civil Code and approved by 
legislation under Senate Bill151 0. The Airport Authority began collecting a $10 per contract CFC on rental cars in 
May 2009. The revenues collected are being used to plan and construct a consolidated rental car facility and related 
ground transportation system. The rental car agencies remit to the Airport Authority collection of the fee monthly. 
In November 2012, the rate of $10 per contract was changed to $6 per day up to five days. The fee was again 
increased in january 2014, to $7.50 per day up to five days. The fee is scheduled to increase to $9.00 per day in 
january 2017. 

Quieter Home Program includes sound attenuation construction improvements at all eligible single-family and 
multifamily dwellings with six or fewer units located in the Year 2000 65 dB Community Noise Equivalent Level 
contour. The project is eligible for the Airport Improvement Program (AlP). From inception to fiscal year 2014, the 
Airport Authority has spent $162.9 million and received reimbursement for $132.7 million . 
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Interest income is derived from interest earned by the Airport Authority on investments, commercial paper 
reserves, bond reserves, and notes receivable from the District. 

Interest expense includes interest paid and accrued on the 2010, 2013 and 2014 Series Bonds and Commercial 
Paper Series A, Band C. This is netted with the capitalization of bond interest to the construction in progress assets 
that the debt finances. The capita lized interest in fiscal years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013 was $7 million and 
$29.4 million, respectively. Also included in interest expense is the Series C Bonds that were issued as Build America 
Bonds and include a cash subsidy from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35 percent of the interest payable . During mid­
fiscal year 2013 the 35 percent subsidy ended due to the federal government's sequestration measures and was 
replaced with a reduced rate of 31 .96 percent. The interest subsidy for the fiscal years ended june 30, 2014 and 
2013 was $4.6 million and $4.8 million, respectively. 

Other nonoperating income (expense) includes proceeds and expenses for legal settlements, gain (loss) on the 
sale of assets, unrealized gain (loss) on investments, and other miscellaneous revenue and expenses. 

Fiscal year 2014 compared to 2013: Nonoperating revenues (net) decreased by $26.7 million or 65 .1 percent. This is 
primarily due to the $40 million increased interest expense that no longer was capitalized in fiscal year 2014 due to 
the completion of the Green Build assets and the additional 2014 bond debt. Additionally, there was a net $1 .1 
million in reduced Quieter Home Program. 

Offsetting the decrease was the $8.4 million in customer facility charges due to the january 1, 2014 increase from $6 
to $7.50 per day per transaction up to five days. Other nonoperating income increased by $4.7 million due to fiscal 
year 2013 unrealized investment losses of $2.3 million and loss on disposal of assets, $2.3 million, due to the Green 
Build expansion and replacement of assets. 

Fiscal year 2013 compared to 2012: Nonoperating revenues (net) decreased by $6.9 million or 14.5 percent. This is 
primarily due to the increased interest expense on the 2013 bonds. Additionally, there was reduced interest income 
of $1.4 million due to lower interest rates and other nonoperating income (expenses) of $1 .2 million due to 
unrealized investment losses. 

Offsetting the decrease is the $799 thousand increase in passenger facility charges reflecting increased 
enplanements and $7.6 million increased customer facility charges. The increased customer facility charges are due 
to a rate increase effective November 1, 2012, from $10 per contract to $6 per day up to five days. Additionally, the 
Quieter Home Program contributed $1.9 mill ion due to higher activity. 

Capital Grant Contributions are comprised of AlP entitlement and discretionary grants through the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) and other Federal and state organizations. These funds are recognized as revenue as 
the work is completed on the eligible projects. Variances relate to the amount of work completed on eligible 
projects during the fiscal year. 
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Assets, Liabilities and Net Position 

The statements of net position present the financial position of the Airport Authority as of a period in time. The 
statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position of the Airport Authority. 

A summary comparison of the Airport Authority's assets, liabilities and net position at june 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 is as follows: 

FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 

Assets 

Current assets 197,586 224,303 214,853 
Capital assets, net 896,477 1,178,144 1,310,973 

Noncurrent assets 333,352 528,336 695,698 

Total assets 1.427,415 1,930,783 2,221,524 

Deferred outflows of resources 1,855 4,397 758 

Total assets and deferred outflows 

of resources $ 1.429,270 1,935,180 2,222,282 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities $ 115,071 121 ,384 119,088 

Long-term liabilities 653,310 1,086,732 1,376, 177 

Total liabilities 768,381 1,208, 116 1,495,265 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 339,467 359,640 312,781 

Restricted 172,076 167,384 204,642 

Unrestrtcted 149,346 200,040 209,594 

Total net position 660,889 727,064 727,017 

Total liabilities and net position 1,429,270 1,935, 180 $ 2,222,282 

As of june 30, 2014, the Airport Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities by $727.0 
million, a $47 thousand decrease from june 30, 2013. The june 30, 2013 total net position was $66.2 million greater 
than june 30, 2012. The largest portion of the Airport Authority's net position represents its net investment in capital 
assets . The Airport Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to its passengers and other users of SOIA; 
consequently, these assets cannot be sold or otherwise liquidated. Although the Airport Authority's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it is noted that the funds required to repay this debt must be provided 
annually from operations. The unrestricted net position of $209.6 million as of june 30, 2014, $200 million as of 
2013 and $149.3 million as of 2012, may be used to meet any of the Airport Authority's ongoing obligations. As of 
june 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 management has designated unrestricted funds in the amount of $17.1 million, $9.5 
million, and $9.0 million respectively, for capital contract commitments funded by Airport Authority cash, 
earthquake insurance, net pension asset and operating contingency. 
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Capital Asset and Capita/Improvement Program 

The capital program at SOIA consists of the Capital Improvement Program {CIP) and the Green Build. The CIP is a 
rolling five-year program that provides critical improvements and asset preservation. The program includes capital 
improvement projects that address federal security requirements, airfield security, environmental remediation, 
terminal upgrades and development. Funding sources for the projects include the Federal Aviation Administration's 
Airport Improvement Program, Transportation Security Agency grants, Passenger Facility Charges, Customer Facility 
Charges, airport operating revenues, airport revenue bonds, special facility bonds and short-term borrowing using 
commercial paper/revolving line of credit. The capital program includes funding for the Green Build to expand 
Terminal 2 with 10 additional passenger gates, a dual-level roadway at Terminal 2 and additional overnight parking 
areas. The Green Build is substantially complete and closeout tasks are currently underway. The total budget for the 
Green Build is $820 million. 

In February 2014, $305 million of Senior Special Facilities Revenue Bonds were issued to be used for the rental 
car center scheduled for completion january 2016. The current CIP, which includes projects through 2019, 
consists of $193.3 million for airside projects, $814.4 million for landside projects, $639.3 million for terminal 
projects, and $19.7 million for administrative projects. The current SOIA CIP does not include noise reduction, 
and related projects. 

Green Build 
Expansion 
p 

53% 

Capital Improvement Program {CIP) Projects by Type 

Airside 
31% 

Landside 
8% 

Additional information of the Airport Authority's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements. 

Capital Financing and Debt Management 

On October 5, 2010, the Airport Authority issued $572.6 million of Subordinate Airport Revenue Bonds Series 2010 
A, Band C {Series 2010 Bonds). The bonds are rated AIA2/A by Standard & Poor's, Moody's Investors Service and 
Fitch ratings, respectively. The Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds were issued to finance certain capital improvements 
at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing on the Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds through and including 
january 1, 2013, refund $142.2 million of the Airport Authority's outstanding commercial paper notes, fund the 
subordinate bond reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds. 
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The Series 2010 A and B bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates ranging from 
2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2012 to 2041. The Series 2010 C Bonds were issued as Build 
America Bonds and include a cash subsidy payment from the U. S. Treasury; currently, 31.96 percent of interest 
payable. The interest rate on the Series 201 0 C Bonds, net of subsidy, is 4.48 percent and the bonds mature 
in fiscal year 2041 . 

The Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority, payable from and secured by (a) 
a pledge of subordinate net revenues, which include certain income and revenue received by the Airport Authority 
from the operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are required to pay the operation and maintenance 
expenses of the airport system and all amounts necessary to pay debt service on and fund the reserves for the 
senior bonds; and (b) certain funds and accounts held by the subordinate trustee under the subordinate indenture. 
The Subordinate Series 2010 Bonds were issued with a pledge of and lien on subordinate net revenues on parity 
with the Airport Authority's subordinate commercial paper notes. In addition, the Airport Authority has irrevocably 
committed a portion of the PFCs; it has received and expects to receive through 2016. The amounts of irrevocably 
committed PFCs are $19 million annually for fiscal years 2014 through 2016. As of june 30, 2014, the principal 
balance on the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds was $569.9 million. 

On january 30 2013, the Airport Authority issued $379.6 million of Senior Airport Revenue Bonds Series 2013 A and 
B (Series 2013 Bonds). The Series 2013 Bonds are rated A+/A1/A+ by Standard & Poor's, Moody's Investors Service 
and Fitch Ratings, respectively. The Senior Series 2013 Bonds were issued to finance certain capital improvements 
at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing on the senior Series 2013 Bonds through and including july 1, 2015, 
fund the senior reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the Senior Series 2013 Bonds. 

The Series 2013 Bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates ranging from 3.00 
percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2016 to 2044. The bonds were issued at a premium of $55.9 
million, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds. Interest on the Senior Series 2013 Bonds is payable 
semiannually on january 1 and july 1 of each year. Interest expense for the fiscal year ended june 30, 2014 
amounted to $18.48 million, including accrued interest of $9.2 million. The principal balance on the Series 2013 
Bonds as of june 30, 2014 was $379.6 million. 

The Senior Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from and secured by (a) 
a pledge of net revenues, which include certain income and revenue received by the Airport Authority from the 
operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are required to pay the operation and maintenance expenses 
of the airport system (b) certain funds and accounts held by the senior trustee under the senior indenture. 

As senior lien bonds, the Series 2013 Bonds require that charges for services be set each fiscal year at rates 
sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 125 percent times the senior debt service for that year. In addition, 
the Series 2013 Bonds require the Airport Authority to maintain a reserve account with the bond trustee and to 
reserve certain amounts in the Airport Authority's books, as shown in Note 2. 

On February 1, 2014 the Airport Authority issued $305,285,000 of Series A and B Senior Special Facilities Revenue 
Bonds (Series 2014 Bonds). The Series 2014 Bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs of the development 
and construction of a consolidated rental car facility and related improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the 
interest accruing on the Series 2014 Bonds through january 1, 2016, fund deposits to the senior reserve fund, and 
pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

The Series 2014 A Bond was structured as tax-exempt and non-AMT term bonds that bear interest at 5.00 percent. 
The Series 2014 B Bond was structured as federally taxable bonds that bear interest at rates ranging from 2.54 
percent to 3.73 percent. 
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The Series 2014 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from and secured by a 
pledge of the Trust Estate, which includes. among other things. Customer Facility Charges collected from the renta l 
car companies operating at the Airport and remitted to the Trustee. No revenues of the Airport Authority other than 
the Customer Facility Charges and the Bond Funding Supplemental Consideration (as defined in the Indenture), are 
pledged to the payment of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

As of June 30, 2014, $44.9 million in commercial paper was outstanding. The commercial paper program was 
established in 1997 to fund the then-approved CIP and related Terminal 2 expansion projects. The Airport 
Authority's outstanding commercial paper, Series A (non-AMT), Series B (AMT) and Series C (taxable) is secured by a 
pledge of airport revenues, subordinated to the pledge of net airport revenues securing the payment of the Series 
2005 Bonds. The authorized program provides for borrowings up to $250 million through September 1, 2027. Each 
commercial paper note matures at the end of a period not to exceed 270 days and can be continually rolled into 
another issuance until the earlier of September 10, 2014, or five days prior to the letter of credit expiration date. 
The letter of credit is currently securing the commercial paper notes. At the expiration date, the total outstanding 
principal becomes due. The commercial paper notes require that the charges for services be set each year at rates 
sufficient to produce pledged revenues of at least 1.10 times the debt service on subordinate obligations, including 
the commercial paper notes, for that year. 

Each series of notes are additionally secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by Lloyds TSB Bank pic and is 
rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's Investors Service. The letter of credit expires on September 10, 
2014. Interest on the notes is paid at a rate based on the market for similar commercial paper notes. 

The Airport Authority will replace the commercial paper program with a $125,000,000 revolving line of credit, issued 
by US Bank, which will be used to refund the outstanding Series Band Series C commercial paper balances. The 
revolving line of credit is a three year facility and will take effect on September 5, 2014. 

The revolving line of credit is payable solely from and secured by a pledge of subordinate net revenues. 
Subordinate net revenues are generally defined as all revenues and other cash receipts of the Airport Authority's 
airport operations remaining after Senior Lien payments have been deposited by the Trustee in accordance with 
the Senior Lien Trust Indenture. 

Additional information of the Airport Authority's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

The SOIA's PFC program was established in 1994, and currently authorizes the imposition of a $4.50 fee on 
enplaning passengers. There are currently three active applications which provide collection authority through 
November 1, 2037. 

FAA entitlement and discretionary grants are awarded on a federal fiscal year running October 1 through 
September 30. The Airport Authority has received approximately $18 million in grant awards for the federal fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2014, as compared to $22.3 million for 2013. Grant awards are recognized as 
nonoperating revenue or capital contributions as eligible expenses are incurred. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Airport Authority's finances . Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional information should be 
addressed in writing to the Accounting Department, P.O. Box 82776, San Diego, CA 92138. The Accounting 
Department can also be reached at (619) 400-2807. A copy of the financial report is available at www.san.org. 
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Basic Financial Statements: 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Current Assets 

Unrestricted: 

Cash and cash equivalents {Note 2) 

Investments {Note 2) 

Tenant lease receivables, net 

Grants rece ivab le 

Note receivable, current port ion (Note 3) 

Other current assets 

Total unrestricted current assets 

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments 

with trustees (Notes 2 and 5) 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets 

Restricted assets (Notes 2 and 5): 

Restricted cash, cash equ ivalents and investments not w ith 

trustees 

Restricted investments w ith trustees 

Passenger facility charges receivab le (Note 1) 

Customer facility charges receivable (Note 1) 

Other restricted assets 

Total restricted assets 

Other noncurrent assets: 

Investments, noncurrent (Note 2) 

Note receivable, long- term portion (Note 3) 

Cash and cash equivalents designated for specific capital p rojects 

and other commitments (Notes 2 and 12) 

Net OPEB asset (Notes 8) 

Workers' compensation security deposits 

Tota l other noncurrent assets 

Capital assets (Note 4): 

Land, land improvemen ts and nondepreciable assets 

Build ings and structures 

Machinery and equipment 

Runways, roads and parking lots 

Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Capital assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Tota l assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Deferred loss on debt refunding 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

26,510,543 

70,752.557 

9,112,683 

5,937,346 

1,528,512 

4,265,960 

118,107,601 

96,745,172 

214,152,773 

161,369,744 

406,579,651 

4,066,241 

3,394,112 

4,901,711 

510,319,166 

52.455,753 

31,351,256 

17,144,996 

6,919,775 

500,367 

115,379,147 

71,011.146 

1,026,068,015 

51,611,137 

568,935,177 

250,103,154 

1,967,107,729 

(656,135, 195) 

1,310,972,534 

2.006.670,147 

2.221,523,620 

751,047 

2.222.281,667 

2013 

63,626,765 

42,223,353 

8,037,665 

3,828,572 

1,446,8% 

6,279,146 

125,442,397 

98,860,395 

224,302,792 

150,891,087 

265,568,939 

5,545,716 

2,301,027 

5,380,813 

429,687,582 

41,931,321 

39,886,768 

9,565,751 

6,648,142 

616,495 

98,648.477 

65,865,787 

715,421,387 

50,717,389 

526,061,707 

401 ,825,140 

1,759,891,410 

(581,747,601) 

1,178,143,809 

1,706,479,868 

1, 930,782,660 

4,396,671 

1,935,179,331 
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liabilities and Net position 2013 

Current Liabilities 

Payable from unrestricted assets: 

Accounts payable s 12,690,539 9,830,408 

Accrued liabilities 5,365,100 8,548,307 

Compensated absences, current portion (Note 5) 

I 
2.659,580 2,357,925 

Other current liabilities 1,447,098 1,458,891 

Leases payable, current portion (Note 5) 180,559 328,012 

Total payable from unrestricted assets I 22,342,876 22,523,543 

Payable from restricted assets: 

Accounts payable 18,451,369 22,491,968 

Accrued liabilities 41,420,014 51,744,366 

Bonds and commercial paper notes payable, current portion (Note 5) 5,785,000 1,000,000 

Accrued interest on bonds and commercial paper (Note 5) 31,088,789 23,624,061 

Total payable from restricted assets I 96,745,172 98,860,395 

Total current liabilities I 119,088,048 121,383,938 

Long-Term liabilities 

Compensated absences, net of current portion (Note 5) 435,105 731,831 

Other noncurrent liabilities 1,115,109 795,430 

Commercial paper notes payab le (Note 5) 44,884,000 50,969,000 

Bonds payable and capital leases 1.329,742,959 1 ,034,235, 764 

Total long-term liabilities 1,376,1n,173 1,086,732,025 

Total liabilit ies 1,495,265,221 1 ,208, 1 1 s. 963 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets (Note 1) 312.780,398 359,639,832 

Restricted: 

Debt Service 73,153,425 43,638,543 

Construction 110,194,470 102,712,335 

Operation and maintenance expenses 12,385,784 11,651,772 

Small business bond guarantee 4,000,000 4,000,000 

OCIP loss reserve 4,908,711 5,380,813 

Total restricted net position I 204,642,390 167,383,463 

Unrestricted net position 
I 

209,593,658 200,040,073 

Tot a I net position s 727,016,446 727,063,368 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
june 30, 2014 and 2013 

Operating revenues: 
Airline revenue: 

Landing fees 
Aircraft parking fees 
Building rentals (Note 1 0) 
Security surcharge 
Other aviation revenue 

Concession revenue 
Parking and ground transportation revenue 
Ground and non-airlilne terminal rentals (Note 10) 
Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and benefits (Notes 6, 7 and 8) 
Contractual services (Note 12) 
Safety and security 
Space rental (Note 11) 
Utilities 
Maintenance 
Equipment and systems 
Materials and supplies 
Insurance 
Employee development and support 
Business development 
Equipment rentals and repairs 

Total operating expenses before depreciation and 
amortization 

Income from operations before depreciation and 
amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 
Operating income (loss) 

See Notes to Financia l Statements. 

(Continued) 

$ 19,107,258 

2.503,180 
46,001,154 
2S,n6,517 

4,488,115 
47,769,865 
38,959,020 

9.602.842 
1,528,886 

195,736,837 

39,135,299 
31,559,247 
24,150,563 
10,478,262 
8,680,410 

13,981,689 
643,225 
440,007 
988,382 

1,170,551 
2.661,224 
2.931,796 

136,820,655 

58,916,182 

n ,205,256 
(18,289,074) 

2013 

$ 19,658,173 
3,190,928 

41,839,619 
23,359,938 

1,591,266 
42,040,742 
35,750,484 
9,161,514 

905,150 
177,497,814 

38,092,464 
29,283,526 
23,994,020 
10,897,338 
6,659,333 

11 ,204,465 
468,699 
405,863 
794,984 

1,234,757 
2,444,407 
1,316,543 

126,796,399 

50,701,415 

41,623,629 
9,077,786 
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2013 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Passenger facility charges $ 35,769,515 $ 35.437.453 
Customer facility charges 27,545,001 19,117,217 
Quieter Home Program grant revenue (Note 1) 12.373,861 13,241 ,658 
Quieter Home Program expenses (Note 1) (15,124,141) (14,830.457) 

joint Studies Program (151,855) (55,254) 

Interest income 5,210,853 4,140,068 

Interest expense (Note 5) (56,375, 726) ( 16,530.425) 

Build America Bonds subsidy (Note 5) 4,636,215 4,778,599 

Other revenues (expenses), net 434,097 (4,279,123) 

Nonoperating revenue, net 14,317,820 41 ,019,736 

Income (loss) before capital grant contributions (3,971,254) 50,097,522 

Capital grant contributions (Note 1) 3,924,332 16,077,280 

Change in net position (46,922) 66,174,802 

Net position, beginning of year 727,063,368 660,888,566 

Net position, end of year $ 727,016,446 $ 727,063,368 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Statements of Cash Flows 
june 30, 2014 and 2013 

2013 

Cash Flows From Operating Activ~ies 

Receipts from customers $ 193,452,612 $ 174,459,266 

Payments to suppliers (90,999,011) (81 ,174,308) 

Payments to employees I (40,315,057) (37,008,283) 

Other receipts (payments) (1 ,821 ,619) (1 49,956) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 60,316,925 56,126,719 

Cash Flows From Noncap~al Rnancing Activ~ies 

Settlement receipts (payments) 434,097 4,756 

Quieter Home Program grant receipts 10,265,087 13,264,899 

Quieter Home Program payments (15,124,141) (1 4,832,460) 

Joint Studies Program payments (151 ,855) (53,251) 

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (4,576,812) (1 ,616,056) 

Cash Flows From Cap~al and Related Rnancing Activities 

Cap~al outlay (224,557,658) (325 ,984,231) 

Proceeds on Build America Bonds subsidy 4,636,215 4,778,599 

Proceeds from sale of cap~al assets 11 ,273 694,150 

Federal grants received (excluding Quieter Home Program) 3,924,332 16,093,276 

Proceeds from passenger facil~y charges 37,248,983 34,304,024 

Proceeds from customer faciflty charge 26,451 ,216 17,905,417 

Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper 31 ,045,000 

Payment of principal on bonds and commercial paper (7 ,085,000) (39,745,000) 

Proceeds from issuance of Series 2013 Bond 435,519,101 

Proceeds from issuance of Series 2014 Bond 305,879,266 

Payment of cap~allease (341 ,661) 

Interest and debt fees paid (49,674,023) (4,215,620) 

Net cash provided by capital and related I f inanc ing activities 96,492,943 170,394,716 

Cash Flows From ~west ing Activities 

Sales and matur~s of investments 209,856,636 127,453,246 

P.Jrchases of investments (398,284,418) (363, 755, 197) 

Interest received on investments and note receivable 5,210,853 5,122,356 

Principal payments received on notes receivable 1,448,896 1,580,698 

Ne t cash used in investing activit ies (181 ,770,033) (229,598,897) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (29,536,977) (4,693,518) 

Cash and cash equivalents , beginning of year 73,192,516 77,886,034 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 43,655,539 $ 73,192,516 

(Continued) 

See Notes to F01ancial Statements. 
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2014 2013 

Reconciiation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Staterrents of Net Posnion 

lklrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 26,510,543 $ 63,626,765 

Cash and cash equivalents designated for spec~ic capital 

projects and other connrtrrents 17,144,996 9,565,751 

$ 43,655,539 $ 73,192,516 

Reconcitiation of Operating ncorre (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by 

Operatng Activnies 

Operating incorre (loss) $ (18,289,074) $ 9,077,786 

Adj.Jstrrents to reconcile operatng incorre (loss) to net cash provided 

by operating activnies : 

Depreciation and arrortization expense 77,321 ,384 41 ,623 ,629 

Bad debt expense (recapture) 4 ,565 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Tenant lease receivables (1 ,075,018) ( 1 ,386, 723) 

OPEB asset (271 ,633) 578 ,664 

Other assets 2,641 ,527 (892 ,748) 

Accounts payable 2,860,131 (1 ,440,698) 

Accrued fiabilities (3, 183,207) 8,437,880 

Corrpensated absences 4,929 156,771 

Other liabilnies 307,886 (32,407) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 60,316,925 $ 56 ,126,719 

Supplerrental Disclosure of Noncash ~westing , Capital and 

Financng Aclivnies 

Addnions to capnal assets included in accounts payable $ 59 ,871 ,383 $ 74,236,334 

Addnions to capital lease obUgations $ $ 7,955,912 

See Notes to Financial Staterrents . 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting entity: The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority (the Airport Authority). an autonomous public 
agency, was established as a result of legislation, Assembly Bill 93 (2001 ), as modified by Senate Bill 1896 (2002}, 
which together comprise the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Act (the Act). The Act required, among 
other things, the transfer of the assets and operations of the San Diego International Airport (SOIA) from the San 
Diego Unified Port District (the District) to the Airport Authority. Effective january 1, 2003 (inception), the District 
transferred all airport operations and certain related assets and liabilities to the Airport Authority, pursuant to the 
Act and the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated as of December 31, 2002, between the Airport Authority 
and the District, which implemented the Act. 

Senate Bill1 0 (SB 1 0}, the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Reform Act, was effective january 1, 2008. 
Responsibilities of the Airport Authority include, among other things, the operation, maintenance, development, 
management and regulation of SOIA and its facilities. In addition, the Airport Authority has the responsibility to plan 
or to expand the existing SOIA. Under one of the requirements of SB 10, the Airport Authority completed a Regional 
Aviation Strategic Plan and the Airport Authority prepared and adopted an Airport Multi modal Accessibility Plan . In 
addition, the Airport Authority acts as the Airport Land Use Commission within San Diego County. 

In accordance with the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, the basic 
financial statements include all organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities for which the 
Airport Authority is financially accountable. The Airport Authority has also considered all other potential 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationships with the Airport Authority are such 
that exclusion would cause the Airport Authority's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial 
accountability. Based on these criteria, there are no other organizations or agencies which should be included in 
these basic financial statements. 

The Airport Authority is governed by a nine·member, appointed Board of Directors (Board), representing all areas of 
San Diego County and three additional members serving as non·voting, ex·officio Board members. Three Board 
members are appointed by the Mayor of the City of San Diego. Two Board members are appointed by the San 
Diego County Board of Supervisors. The remaining four Board members are each appointed by the Mayors of the 
following defined jurisdictions: the east county cities, south county cities, north coastal area cities and north county 
inland cities. The Board members serve three year terms in accordance with California SB 10. 

Measurement focus and basis of accounting: The accounting policies of the Airport Authority conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local government 
agencies, and as such, the Airport Authority is accounted for as a proprietary fund . The basic financial statements 
presented are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are 
incurred. This measurement focus emphasizes the determination of the change in Airport Authority net position . 

Use of estimates: The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period . Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Sign ificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
unrestricted (including designated) cash on hand, demand deposits and investment securities with original 
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Investments: Investments in the state and county investment pools are recorded at fair value based upon the 
Airport Authority's pro rata share of the fair value provided by the state and county investment pools for the entire 
respective pool. Guaranteed investment contracts are recorded at contract value. All other investments are stated 
at fa ir market value based on quoted market prices. 

Tenant lease receivables: Tenant lease receivables are carried at the original invoice amount for fi xed-rent tenants 
and at estimated invoice amount for concession (variable) tenants, less an estimate made for doubtful receivables 
for both fixed-rent and concession tenants. Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by 
evaluating individual tenant receivables and considering a tenant's financial condition and credit history and current 
economic conditions. Tenant lease receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of tenant 
lease receivables previously written off are recorded when received . 

Federal grants: Outlays for airport capital improvements and certain airport nonoperating expenses, primarily 
those relating to the Airport Authority's Quieter Home Program, are subject to reimbursement from federal grant 
programs. Funding provided from government grants is considered earned as the related approved capital outlays 
or expenses are incurred. Costs claimed for reimbursement are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting 
agency. 

Airport Improvement Program (AlP): AlP grants are authorized and disbursed by the FAA under the Airway 
Improvement Act of 1982, as amended, which provides funding for airport planning and development projects at 
airports included in the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems. As such, the AlP grants must be used to pay for 
the allowable costs of approved projects. As of june 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority recovered $3,924,332 
and $16,077,280, respectively, for approved capital projects and $12,373,861 and $13,241 ,6S8, respectively, for the 
Quieter Home Program. Related recoverable costs as of june 30, 2014 and 2013 were $4,633,1 07 and $20,096,600, 
respectively, for capital projects and $15,124,141 and $14,830.457, respectively, for the Quieter Home Program. 

Passenger facility charges (PFC): The PFC program is authorized by the Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act 
of 1990 {the Expansion Act). In accordance with the Expansion Act, the Airport Authority's AlP Passenger Entitlement 
Apportionment is reduced by certain percentages, dependent upon the level of PFC received by the Airport 
Authority. 

In accordance with the program, PFC revenue must be used to pay allowable costs for approved capital projects. As 
of june 30, 2014 and 2013, accrued PFC receivables totaled $4,066,248 and $5,545,716, respectively, and there were 
$60.769,935 and $53,856,259 PFC amounts collected but not yet applied for approved capital projects as of june 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively. 

On May 20, 2003, the FAA approved an increase in the Airport Authority's PFC charge per enplaned passenger from 
$3.00 to $4.50, beginning August 1, 2003. Currently, the Airport Authority's impose and use authority of $1 .2 billion 
from three active applications allows collection through November 1, 2037. The Airport Authority has formally 
closed five previously approved applications and withdrawn one pending application which has been integrated in a 
ninth application to impose and use approximately $32 million in PFC revenue. The latest application was approved 
by the FAA in july 2012. In accordance with the Aviation Investment Reform Act {AIR-21 ), airports imposing a $4.50 
collection level are required to reduce AlP Passenger Entitlement Apportionment to 75 percent. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Customer fac ility charges (CFC): The Airport Authority received approval in May 2009 from the State of California 
under Section 1936 of the California Civil Code to impose a $10 CFC per contract on rental cars at SOIA. 

In accordance with the program, the CFC revenue must be used to pay allowable costs for approved capital 
projects. Effective january 1, 2014, the CFC rate went from $6.00 to $7.50 per day for a maximum offive days. As of 
june 30, 2014 and 2013, accrued CFC receivables totaled $3,394,812 and $2,301 ,027, respectively. CFC amounts 
collected, including interest, but not yet applied for approved capital projects as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 were 
$41 ,652,322 and $41,009,333, respectively. 

Net pension asset: The Airport Authority funds additional contributions to the defined pension plan in excess of 
the annual required contribution (ARC) to strive for a 95 percent funding ratio. The difference between the Airport 
Authority's actual contributions and its ARCs results in a net pension asset. 

Net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) asset: Annually, the Airport Authority funds 100 percent of the 
actuarially calculated ARC for its OPEB. In previous years, the Airport Authority has made contributions above the 
annual ARC which has resulted in a net OPEB asset. 

Deferred outflows of resources: The Airport Authority defers recognition of losses incurred on debt refundings 
and reports such losses as deferred outflows of resources in the statements of net position. Deferred losses on 
debt refundings are amortized using the effective interest method over the lesser of the remaining life of the 
original bonds or the life of the new bonds. 

Capital assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost, except for property contributed by third parties, which is 
recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution, less an allowance for accumulated depreciation. The 
Airport Authority capitalizes incremental overhead costs and interest cost associated with the construction of 
capital assets. Capital assets are defined by the Airport Authority as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $5,000 and an initial useful life of one year or greater. 

Depreciation is computed by use of the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Category 

Land improvements 

Runways, roadways and parking lots 

Lighting. security and minor improvements 

Airfield and parking lots and improvements 

Drainage systems, gas lines, pedestrian bridges 

Roadways, bridges and infrastructure 

Buildings and structures 

Passenger loading bridges, security systems, general upgrades and remodels 

Baggage handling systems, HVAC, structural improvements, fuel and storage facility 

Buildings and smart curb improvements 

Machinery and equipment 

Vehicles and emergency vehicles 

Office furniture and equipment 

Communication and electronic systems 

Works of art 

(Years) 

30-40 

3-10 

12-25 

30 

40-50 

3-10 

12-20 

25-50 

3-15 

3-10 

3-20 

15-30 



Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Pol icies (Continued) 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the 
life of the asset are expensed as incurred. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as 
construction in progress as projects are constructed . Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital 
assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed . For the fiscal years ended june 30, 2014 
and 2013, the Airport Authority capitalized interest of $6,962,979 and $29,438,080, respectively. 

Evaluation of long-lived assets: The Airport Authority accounts for long-lived assets under GASB No. 42, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. The Airport Authority's capital 
assets include property, equipment and infrastructure assets. A capital asset is considered impaired if both the 
decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and the event or change in circumstances is 
outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. The Airport Authority is required to evaluate prominent events or 
changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to determine whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred . 
Common indicators of impairment include evidence of physical damage where restoration efforts are needed to 
restore service utility, enactment or approval of laws or regulations setting standards that the capital asset would 
not be able to meet, technological development or evidence of obsolescence, a change in the manner or expected 
duration of use of a capital asset or construction stoppage. This statement requires the Airport Authority to report 
the effects of capital asset impairments in its financial statements when they occur and to account for insurance 
recoveries in the same manner. The Airport Authority's management has determined that no impairment of capital 
assets currently exists. 

Retentions payable: The Airport Authority enters into construction contracts that may include retention provisions 
such that a certain percentage of the contract amount is held for payment until completion of the contract and 
acceptance by the Airport Authority. The Airport Authority's policy is to record the retention payable only after 
completion of the work and acceptance of the contractor invoices have occurred . Retentions payable on completed 
contracts are included with accounts payable on the accompanying statements of net position . Amounts related to 
unpaid retentions on uncompleted contracts are included in accrued liabilities. 

Compensated absences: All employees of the Airport Authority earn annual leave that is paid upon termination or 
retirement. Annual leave is accrued at current rates of compensation and based on assumptions concerning the 
probability that certain employees will become eligible to receive these benefits in the future. 

Bond discounts, premiums and issuance costs: Bond discounts and premiums are deferred and amortized over 
the term of the respective bonds using the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are expensed as 
incurred. 

Airport Authority net position: Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets excludes unspent debt proceeds. 

Restricted net position represents amounts that are appropriated or legally segregated for a specific purpose. 
Airport Authority net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use, either through 
the enabling legislation adopted by the Airport Authority or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Pol icies (Continued) 

Unrestricted net position as of june 30, 2014, includes designations of net position that represent tentative 
management plans that are subject to change, consisting of: 

2014 2013 

Operating contingency $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 
Insurance contingency (Note 9) 7,3n,978 6,659,982 
Capital projects and other commitments (Nate 12) 7,767,018 905,769 

Total designated net position $ 17,144,996 $ 9,565,751 

Revenue classifications: Revenue is recognized when earned. The Airport Authority will classify revenues as 
operating or nonoperating based on the following criteria: 

Operating revenues are from the revenue sources that constitute the principal ongoing activities of the Airport 
Authority's operations. The major components of the Airport Authority's operating revenue sources consist of 
landing fees and terminal building and ground rentals, concession and parking fees, and other miscellaneous fees 
and charges. Landing fees and terminal bui lding rates are charged on the basis of recovery of actual costs for 
operating and maintaining the SOIA airfield and terminal areas. Ground rentals consist mainly of rent received for 
leased cargo facilities . Concession fees are determined as a percentage of gross monthly revenues generated by 
each concession lessee's monthly operations. Parking fees are generated from the airport parking lots. 

Nonoperating revenues are from revenue sources re lated to financing activities and other activities, which do not 
constitute the principal ongoing activities of the Airport Authority's operations. The major components of the 
nonoperating revenue sources are interest income from cash and investments, PFCs, CFCs and grant revenue 
related to the Quieter Home Program. 

Concentrations: A significant portion of the Airport Authority's earnings and revenues are directly or indirectly 
attributed to the activity of a number of major airlines. The Airport Authority's earnings and revenues could be 
materially and adversely affected should any of these major airlines discontinue operations and should the Airport 
Authority be unable to replace those airlines with similar activity. The level of operations is determined based upon 
the relative share of enplaned passengers. 

The three largest airlines in terms of enplaned passengers are as follows : 

Southwest Airlines 
United Airlines 
Delta Airlines 

2014 

36.9% 
12.5% 
10.1% 

2013 

37.2% 
13.5% 
10.4% 

Expense classifications: The Airport Authority will classify expenses as operating or nonoperating based on the 
fo llowing criteria : 

Operating expenses relate to the principal ongoing activities of the Airport Authority's operations. The major 
components of the Airport Authority's operating expense sources consist of salaries and benefits, contractual 
services, space rental, utilities, maintenance, equipment and systems, materials and supplies, insurance, employee 
development and support, business development, and equipment rentals and repairs. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Nonoperating expenses relate to financing, investing and other activities that do not constitute the principal 
ongoing activities of the Airport Authority's operations . The major components of nonoperating expenses sources 
are expenditures for the Quieter Home Program, interest expense and other nonoperating expenses such as legal 
settlements and unrealized loss on investments. 

Pronouncements issued but not yet adopted: GASB has issued several pronouncements that may impact future 
financial presentations. Management has not currently determined what, if any, impact implementation of the 
following statements may have on the financial statements of the Airport Authority: 

• GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting far Pensions-an amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 27, effective for the Airport Authority's year ending june 30, 2015; 

• GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, effective for the 
Airport Authority's year ending june 30, 2015; and 

• GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 effective for the Airport Authority's year ending june 30, 2015. 

Pronouncements adopted: The Airport Authority has adopted and implemented the following GASB Statements 
during the year ended june 30, 2014: 

• GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-20 12-and amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 
and No. 62; and 

• GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees 

The implementation of GASB Statements No. 66 and No. 70 did not impact net position or the change in net 
position of the Airport Authority as of or for the year ended june 30, 2014. 

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial information in order to conform 
to the 2014 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on the Airport Authority's net position or change 
in net position . 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Summary of cash, cash equivalents and investments: Cash, cash equivalents and investments are reported in 
the accompanying statements of net position as follows at june 30: 

Unrestricted and undesignated: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Current investments 

Noncurrent investments 

Total unrestricted and undesignated 

Designated for specific capital projects and other 

commitments: cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments: 

Bond reserves 

Operation and maintenance reserve subaccount 

Operation and maintenance subaccount 

Renewal and replacement reserve 

Passenger facility charges unapplied 

Customer facility charges unapplied 

Small business development bond guarantee 

Commercia l paper reserve 

Total restricted 

Total cash. cash equivalents and investments 

not with trustees 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments 

with trustees: 

Commercial paper interest 

Customer facility charges 

2010 Series debt service account 

2010 Series construction fund 

2010 Series debt service reserve fund 

2013 Series debt service account 

2013 Series capitalized interest account 

2013 Series construction fund 

2013 Series debt service reserve fund 

2014 Series rolling coverage fund 

2014 Series capitalized interest account 

2014 Series construction fund 

2014 Series debt service reserve fund 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

with trustees 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

I 2014 l 2013 

$ 26,510,543 $ 63,626,765 

70,752,557 42,223,353 

52,455,753 41 ,931 ,321 

149,718,853 147,781,439 

17,144,996 9,565,751 

37,157,351 34,955,315 

12,385,784 11 ,651,772 

5,400,000 5.400,000 

54,943,135 52,007,087 

60,769,935 53,856,259 

41,652,322 41 ,009,333 

4,000,000 4,000,000 

4,352 18.408 

161,369,744 150,891,087 

328,233,593 308,238,277 

12,906 12,906 

311,153 

21,640,387 16,869,731 

2,204 2,728,626 

50,988,876 51 ,108,152 

8,938,429 1,648.415 

752,446 8,357,832 

100,500.234 250,974,607 

32,993,011 32,729,065 

6,556,757 

30,432,045 

228,270,006 

21,926,369 

503,324,823 364.429,334 

$ 831,558,416 $ 672,667,611 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Components of cash, cash equivalents and investments at june 30 are summarized below: 

2014 2013 

Unrestricted cash on deposit 

Cash on hand $ 51 ,976 $ 51.976 

Cash in banks 21,224,402 5,043,576 

Total unrestricted cash on deposit 21 ,276,378 5,095,552 

Unrestricted and restricted cash equivalents: 

Money market accounts 40,630,745 62,559,806 

Money market mutual funds 56,013 537,158 

Total unrestricted and restricted 

cash equiva Ients 40,686,758 63,096,964 

Unrestricted and restricted investments: 

Certificates of deposit 15,192,964 10,117,110 

CaiTrust Fund 15,027,791 5,000,000 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 47,535,117 47,416,828 

San Diego County Investment Pool (SDCIP) 48,476,017 48,088.210 

Commercial paper 15,494,684 35,485,205 

Medium-term notes 22,018,642 8,126,320 

U.S. Treasury notes 64,082.562 11,759,303 

U.S. agency securities 38,442,680 74.052,785 

Total unrestricted and restricted investments 266,270,457 240,045,761 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

not with trustees 328,233,593 308,238,277 

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments with trustees: 

Money market accounts 31 ,184,103 16,124,492 

Money market mutual funds 27,957,467 24,620,1 78 

Certificates of deposit 20,615,554 20,461 ,517 

San Diego County Investment Pool (SDCIP) 287,809,151 207,1 99,007 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LA IF) 135,758,548 96,024,140 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

with trustees 503.324,823 364.429,334 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 831.558.416 $ 672,667,611 

Investments authorized in accordance with California Government Code Section 53601 and under the 
provisions of the Airport Authority's investment policy: The table that follows identifies the investment types 
that are authorized by the Airport Authority's investment policy and State Government Code. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the Airport Authority's investment pol icy that address interest rate risk, credit risk 

and concentration of credit risk. 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

This table does not address investments of bond proceeds held by the bond trustee that are governed by 
provisions of debt agreements of the Airport Authority, in addition to the general provisions of the Airport 
Authority's investment policy and State Government Code. 

Minimum Maximum Maximum 

Maximum Quality Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Requirements Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years N/A None None 

U.S. agency securities 5 years N/A None None 

Bankers' acceptances 180 days AAA/Aaa 40 percent 10 percent 

Commercial paper 270 days A-1; P-1; F-1 25 percent 10 percent 

Negotiable certificates of deposit < 25 months A 30 percent 10 percent 

25-36 months AA 30 percent 10 percent 

Medium-term notes < 25 months A 15 percent 10 percent 

25-36 months AA 15 percent 10 percent 

Repurchase agreements 1 year A None None 

Local Agency Investment Fund N/A N/A None $50 million 

San Diego County Investment Pool N/A N/A None $50 million 

Local Government Investment Pool N/A N/A None $50 million 

Money market mutual funds N/A AAA/Aaa 20 percent 10 percent 

U.S. State and California agency 5 years A 20 percent 5 percent 

indebtedness 

Placement service certificates of deposits 3 years N/A 30 percent 10 percent 

Bank deposits N/A * None None 

Time certificates of deposit 3 years * 20 percent 10 percent 

* Financial institution must have at least an overall satisfactory rating under the Community Reinvestment Act for 
meeting the credit needs of California communities in its most recent evaluation. Collateralization required per Cal. 
Gov. Code Section 53630 et seq. 

Investment in state investment pools: The Airport Authority is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of 
the Treasurer of the State of California. The Airport Authority's investments in this pool are reported in the 
accompanying financial statements at fair value based upon the Airport Authority's pro rata share of the amortized 
cost basis provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of each portfolio). The 
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF. 

Investment in county investment pool: The Airport Authority is a voluntary participant in the San Diego County 
Investment Pool (SDCIP) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the 
County Treasurer of San Diego. The Airport Authority's investments in this pool are reported in the accompanying 
financial statements at fair value based upon the Airport Authority's pro rata share of the amortized cost basis 
provided by SDCIP for the entire SDCIP portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance 
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by SDCIP. 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Investments authorized by debt agreements: Investments held by the bond trustee are governed by the 
provisions of the debt agreement, in addition to the general provisions of the California Government Code and the 
Airport Authority's investment policy. The table below identi fies the investment types that are authorized for 
investments held by the bond trustee, according to the Master Trust Indenture. In the event of a conflict between 
the Airport Authority's investment policy and permitted investments associated with any Airport Authority debt 
issuance, the debt agreement shall control. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements 
that address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. 

Minimum Maximum Maximum 

Maximum Quality Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Requirements Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury obligations None N/A None None 

U.S. agency securities None N/A None None 

Bankers' acceptances 360 days AAA/Aaa None None 

Commercial paper 270 days A-1; P-1 ; F-1 None None 

Repurchase agreements None N/A None None 

Money market portfolio None Two highest None None 

ratings 

Cash None N/A None None 

Deposit accounts None N/A None None 

Municipal bonds None Two highest None None 

ratings 

Local Agency Investment Fund None N/A None None 

San Diego County Investment Pool None N/A None None 

Certificates of deposit None Two highest None None 

ratings 

Investment agreements None N/A None None 

The primary objective of the Airport Authority's investment policy is to invest public funds in a manner that will 
provide the highest security of the funds under management while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the 
Airport Authority. Assets of the Airport Authority that are not bond proceeds, which are invested in securities as 
permitted in the bond indenture, are described in the preceding table. In addition, there are various credit criteria 
as defined in the Airport Authority's investment policy as depicted in the previous section entitled "Investments 
authorizes in accordance with California Government Code Section 53601 and under the provisions of the Airport 
Authority's investment policy." 

Investments held by Trustee: The Airport Authority has monies held by trustees pledged for the security and 
payment of certain debt instruments, the payment of bond interest during construction and the payment of 
capital project costs. 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Disclosures related to interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, investments with longer maturities have greater fair 
value sensitivity to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways the Airport Authority manages its exposure to 
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-term investments and by timing cash 
flows from maturities. These staggered maturities also provide consistent cash flow and fulfill liquidity needs for 
operations. The Airport Authority monitors interest rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the segmented 
time distribution of its portfolio. The Airport Authority has no specific limitations with respect to this metric. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Airport Authority's investments (including investments held 
by bond trustee) to market rate fluctuations is provided by the following tables, which shows the distribution of the 
entity's investments by maturity as of june 30: 

Investment Type Total 

Investments subject to interest 

rate risk: 
Ca!Trust 15,027,791 
LA IF 183,293,665 
SOCIP 336,285,168 
Commercial paper 15,494,684 
Medium-term notes 22,018,642 
Money market mutual funds 28,013,480 
U .S. Treasury notes 64,082,562 
U.S. agency securities 38,442,680 

Total investments subject to 

interest rate risk: 702,658,672 
Investments not subject to interest 

rate risk: 

Certificates of deposit 35,808,518 

738,467,190 

Investment Type Tota l 

Investments subject to interest 

rate risk: 

CaiTrust 5,000,000 

LAIF 143,440,968 
SOCIP 2S5,287,217 

Commercial paper 35,485,205 
Medium-term notes 8,126,320 
Money market mutual funds 25,157,336 
U.S . Treasury notes 11,759,303 
U.S. agency securities 74,052,785 
Total investments subject to 

interest rate risk: 558,309,134 
Investments not subject to interest 

ra te risk: 

Certificates of deposit 30,578,627 

588,887,761 

12 Months 
or Less 

15,027,791 
183,293,665 
336,285,168 

15,494,684 

28,013,480 

578,114,788 

12 Months 
or Less 

143,440,968 
255,287,217 

35,485,205 

25,157,336 

459,370,726 

2014 
13 to24 
Months 

21,219,370 

36,552,992 
17,972,890 

75,745,252 

2013 
13 to 24 
Months 

5,000,000 

4,992,950 

9,992,950 

25 to 60 
Months 

799,272 

27,529,570 
20,469,790 

48,798,632 

25 to 60 
Months 

8,126,320 

11,759,303 
69,059,835 

88,945,458 

More Than 

60 Months 

More Than 
60 Months 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Custodial credit risk (deposits): Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Airport Authority maintains deposits at 
several institutions in order to minimize custodial credit risk. These deposits are collateralized by various 
instruments such as U.S. government securities (guaranteed) or U.S. agency securities (government sponsored). 
California Government Code requires that a financia l institution secure deposits made by a state or local 
government by pledging securities in an undivided co llateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. 
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Airport Authority deposits 
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a va lue of 150 percent of the secured deposits. 

Insurance through the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) may be applicable to the first $250,000 of 
institutional deposit accounts, with any balance above this amount covered by the collateral ization requirement. 
Certificates of deposit held by the Airport Authority's third-party custodians are fully insured by the FDIC, as the 
individual amounts do not exceed the FDIC-insured limits, or are collateralized in accordance with the California 
Government Code. 

Custodial credit risk (investments): Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that the Airport Authority will 
not be able to recover the value of its investments in the event of a counterparty failure. The Airport Authority uses 
third-party banks' custody and safekeeping services for its registered investment securities. Securities are held in 
custody at third-party banks registered in the name of the Airport Authority and are segregated from securities 
owned by those institutions or held in custody by those institutions. 

Disclosures related to credit risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder of an investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. Cal ifornia Government Code Section 53601 (as referenced previously in th is note) 
limits the types of investment instruments that may be purchased by the Airport Authority. Presented below is the 
actual rating for each investment type held by the Airport Authority as of june 30, 2014 and 2013: 

2014 

Investment Type Total Unrated111 AAA/Aaa111 AA/Aa111 A~'' A·1+/P·1 

Investments subject to credit rate risk: 

CaiTrust 15,027,791 $ 15,027,791 s 
LA IF 183,293,665 183,293,665 

SDCIP 336,285,168 336,285,168 

Commercial paper 1S,494,684 15,494,684 

M edium-term notes 22,018,642 17,011,542 5,007,100 

Money market mutual funds 28,013,480 28,013,480 

U.S. Treasury notes 64,082,562 64,082,562 

U.S. agency securities 38,442,680 38,442,680 

Total investments subject to 

credit risk: s 702,658,672 s 183,293,665 s 481,851,681 s 17,01 1,542 s 5,007,100 s 15,494,684 

Investments not subject to credit risk: 

Certificates of deposit 35,808,518 

s 738,467,190 

1' 1 Source: Standard and Poor's, Moodys and Fitch 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

2013 

Investment Type Total Unratecf11 AAA/Aaa111 A-1+/P-1111 

Investments subject to credit rate risk: 
CarT rust 5,000,000 5,000,000 

LA IF 143,440,968 143,440,968 

SDC IP 2SS,287,217 2SS,287,21 7 

Commercial paper 3S,48S,20S 35,485,205 

Medium-term notes 8,126,320 8,126,320 

Money market mutual funds 25,1 S7,336 25,157.336 

U.S. Treasury notes 11 ,759,303 11 ,759,303 

U.S. agency securities 74,052.785 74,052,785 

Total investments subject to 

credit risk: S58,309, 134 s 143,440,968 s 371 ,256,641 8,126,320 s 35,485,205 

Investments not subject to credit risk: 

Certificates of deposit 30,578,627 

s 588,887,761 

111 Source: Standard and Poors, Moodys and Fitch 

Concentration of credit risk: The investment policy of the Airport Authority contains no limitations on the amount 
that can be invested by any one issuer beyond that stated in the table provided earlier in this note. The Airport 
Authority requires a diversified investment portfolio to avoid risk of losses resulting from an over-concentration of 
assets in a specific maturity, issuer or class of securities. The Airport Authority had no concentrations of credit risk 
at june 30,2014. 

Foreign currency risk: The Airport Authority's investment policy does not allow investments in foreign securities. 

Note 3. Note Receivable 

As part of the transfer of airport operations from the District to the Airport Authority, and pursuant to the 
associated MOU, the District issued a $50,000,000 unsecured promissory note to the Airport Authority. According to 
an agreement with the District that commenced on january 1, 2006, the note will be amortized over 25 years, 
maturing on December 31, 2030. The note is subordinate to all bond indebtedness of the District and carries a 
fixed interest rate of 5.5 percent per annum. At june 30, 2014 and 2013, the balance of the note receivable was 
$39,886,768 and $41,333,664, respectively. 

The required principal payments owed from the District for note receivable for the fiscal years ending june 30 are as 
follows (rounded): 

Years Ending june 30, Amount 

2015 $ 1,529,000 

2016 1,609,000 

2017 1,705,000 

2018 1,802,000 

2019 1,903,000 

2020-2024 11,244,000 

2025-2029 14,802,000 

2030-2034 5,293,000 

$ 39,887,000 
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Note 4. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 

June 30 , 2013 ncr eases Decreases June 30, 2014 

Nondepreciable assets : 

Land $ 22 ,415,851 $ $ $ 22,415,851 

Construction in progress 401 ,825,140 214 ,293,229 (366,015,215) 250,1 03,154 

ntangible asset 440,000 440,000 

Total nondepreciable 

assets 424,680,991 214,293,229 (366,015,215) 272,959,005 

Depreciable assets : 

Land inl>rovements 43,009,936 5,656,060 48,665,996 

Buildings and structures (1) 715,421 ,387 317 ,174,867 (6,968,239) 1,025,628,015 

M!chinery and equipment (2) 50,717,389 1,573,410 (671 ,962) 51 ,618,837 

Runways , roads and parking lots 526,061 ,707 43,041 ,675 (167 ,505) 568,935,8n 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated 1,335,210,419 367,446,012 (7 ,807 ,706) 1,694,848,725 

Less accufll.Jiated depreciation for: 

Land inl>rovements (2 ,298,540) (1 ,816,359) (4,114,899) 

Building and structures (346,153,840) (52,962,879) 5,218 ,601 (393,898,118) 

M!chinery and equipment (38,920,696) (3, 792,848) 671 ,965 (42,041 ,579) 

Runways , roads and parking lots (194,374,525) (22 ,573,579) 167,505 (216,780,599) 

Total accufll.Jiated 

depreciation (581.747,601) (81,145,665) 6,058,071 (656,835, 195) 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 753,462 ,818 286,300,347 (1 ,749,635) 1,038,013,530 

Cap~al assets , net $ 1,178,143,809 $ 500,593,576 $ (367 ,764,850) $1 ,310,972,535 

(1) Includes cap~aized lease of building w ~h in~ial net present value of future lease payments of $8,040,531 

(2) Includes cap~afized leases of office equipment with in~ial net present value of future lease payments of $760,332 

Construction in progress contains projects such as the Green Build, upgrading certain major equipment, and 
improvements to the runway, parking lots and terminals. Current contracts with the Airport Authority related to 
these projects are discussed later in these notes. 
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Note 4. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance at Balance at 

June 30, 2012 ncreases Decreases June 30, 2013 

Nondepreciable assets : 

Land $ 22,415,851 $ $ $ 22,415,851 

Construction in progress 632,390,868 320,205,929 (550,771 ,657) 401 ,825,140 

11tangible asset 440,000 440,000 

Total nondepreciable 

assets 655,246,719 320,205,929 (550,771 ,657) 424,680,991 

Depreciable assets: 

Land i"""roverrents 2,071 ,198 40,938,738 43,009,936 

Buildings and structures ( 1) 463,735,113 252,587,679 (901 ,405) 715,421 ,387 

11/iachinery and equiprrent (2) 47,676,803 3,336,199 (295,613) 50,717,369 

Runways , roads and parking lots 269,535,431 262,222,156 (5,695,880) 526,061 ,707 

Total cap~al assets being 

depreciated 783,018,545 559,084,772 (6,892,898) 1,335,210,419 

Less accunulated depreciation for: 

Land il'1"proverrents (1 , 190,369) (1 ,108,151) (2,298,540) 

Building and structures (320,299,753) (26,459, 140) 605,053 (346, 153,840) 

11/iachinery and equiprrent (35,344,261) (3,870,881) 294,446 (38,920,696) 

Runw ay s, roads and parking lots (184,953,993) (12,950,700) 3,530,168 ( 194,37 4,525) 

Total accuiT\Jiated 

depreciation (541 ,788,396) ( 44,388,872) 4,429,667 (581 ,747,601) 

Total cap~al assets being 

depreciated, net 241 ,230,149 514,695,900 (2,463,231) 753,462,818 

Cap~al assets, net $ 896,476,868 $ 834,901 ,829 $ (553,234,888) $1 ,178,143,809 

( 1) 11cludes cap~alized lease of building w ~h inttial net present value of future lease payrrents of $8,040,531 

(2) ncludes cap~alized leases of office equiprrent with in~ial net present value of future lease payrrents of $760,332 
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Note S. long-Term liabilities 

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term liability activity for the years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013: 

Principal Additions/ Principal 
Balance at New Reductions/ Balance at Due Within 

june 30, 2013 Issuances Re~a~ments june 30,2014 One Year 

Debt obligations: 

Commercial paper $ 50,969,000 $ $ (6,085,000) $ 44,884,000 $ 

Bonds payable: 

Series 2010 Bonds 570,870,000 (1 ,000,000) 569,870,000 5,785,000 

Series 2013 Bonds 379.585,000 379,585,000 
Series 2014 Bonds 305,285,000 305,285,000 
Bond premiums 76,956.188 594,266 (4,392,863) 73,157,591 

Total bonds 

payable 1,027.411,188 305,879,266 (5,392,863) 1,327,897,591 5,785,000 

Total debt 

obligations 1 ,078,380,188 305,879,266 (11,477,863) 1,372.781,591 5.785,000 

Capital Leases 8,152,588 (341,661) 7,810,927 180,559 

Compensated absences 3,089,756 2,664,509 (2,659,580) 3,094,685 2,659,580 

Total long-term 

liabilities $ 1,089,622,532 $308,543,775 $ (14.479,104) $ 1,383,687,203 $ 8.625,139 

Principal 
Balance at Additions/ Principal 

june 30, 2012 New Reductions/ Balance at Due Within 

(as restated) Issuances Repayments june 30, 2013 One Year 

Debt obligations: 

Commercial paper $ 20,729,000 $ 31,045,000 $ (805,000) $ 50,969.000 $ 

Bonds payable : 

Series 2005 Bonds 37,960,000 (37,960,000) 

Series 2010 Bonds 571 ,850,000 (980,000) 570,870,000 1,000,000 

Series 2013 Bonds 379,585,000 379,585,000 

Bond premiums 25.497,968 55,934,101 (4.475,881) 76,956.1 88 

Total bonds 

payable 635,307,968 435,519,101 (43.415,881) 1,027.411,188 1,000,000 

Total debt 

obligations 656,036,968 466,564,1 01 (44,220,881) 1 ,078,380,188 1,000,000 

Capital Leases 361 ,641 8,040,531 (249,584) 8.152,588 328,012 

Compensated absences 2,932.985 2,514,696 (2,357,925) 3,089,756 2,357,925 

Total long-term 

liabilities $ 659,331 ,594 $477,119,328 $ (46,828.390) $ 1,089,622,532 $ 3,685,937 
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 and Refunded Series 1995: The California Maritime 
Infrastructure Authority issued $76,690,000 of Airport Revenue Bonds (Series 1995 Bonds) for the District, pursuant 
to a trust agreement dated December 1, 1995. The proceeds of the Series 1995 Bonds, together with investment 
income thereon, were used solely to pay a portion of the construction and installation of the West Terminal 
Expansion at SDIA. fund a Reserve Account and pay certain expenses in connection with the issuance of the 
Series 1995 Bonds. In conjunction with the transfer of airport operations to the Airport Authority on January 1, 2003, 
these bond obligations were assumed by the Airport Authority. 

On November 9, 2005, the Airport Authority issued $56,270,000 of senior lien Series 2005 Bonds to refund all of the 
then·outstanding Series 1995 Bonds, fund a debt service reserve account and to pay cost of issuance. The Series 
2005 Bonds were structured as serial bonds that bear interest at rates ranging from 4.5 percent to 5.25 percent and 
mature in fiscal years 2007 to 2021 . 

On December 21, 2012, the Airport Authority defeased all of its outstanding Series 2005 Bonds, by depositing 
proceeds of Subordinate CP Notes and certain other available monies into an irrevocable escrow fund. The 
amounts on deposit in the escrow fund will be used to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2005 Bonds 
until their final maturity date of July 1, 2020. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount held in escrow by the trustee 
was $35,775,109 and $36,489,675, respectively, and the amount of the defeased Series 2005 Bonds still outstanding 
was $30,920,000 and $34,530,000, respectively. 

Commercial Paper Series A, Band C (CP Notes): On September 6, 2007, the Board authorized issuance of 
subordinate CP Notes with up to $250,000,000 of principal outstanding at any time. The CP Notes may be issued 
from time to time and proceeds from the issuance of the CP Notes are to be used, among other things, to finance 
improvements to SDIA. The CP Notes are obligations secured by a pledge of airport revenues subordinated to the 
pledge of net airport revenues securing payment of the senior lien Series 2013 and Series 2014 Bonds and on parity 
to the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds. Each commercial paper note matures at the end of a period not to exceed 
270 days. The matured commercial paper can be continually rolled into another issuance until the earlier of 
September 10, 2014, or five days prior to the irrevocable letter of credit expiration date. 

The CP Notes are secured by an irrevocable letter of credit provided by Lloyds TSB Bank that expires no later than 
September 10, 2014. There were no unreimbursed draws by the Airport Authority on this letter of credit during 
the year ended june 30, 2014, nor were there any amounts outstanding under this letter of credit agreement at 
June 30, 2014. 

On October 6 and 13, 2010, the Airport Authority refinanced $115,776,000 and $26,400,000, respectively, of Series 
A, Band C commercial paper with proceeds from the sale of subordinated Series 2010 Bonds. 

At june 30, 2014, the aggregate principal amount outstanding of the CP Notes was $44,884,000, carrying a weighted· 
average interest rate of 0.17 percent. At june 30, 2013, the principal amount of CP Notes outstanding was 
$50,969,000, carrying a weighted·average interest rate of 0.19 percent. Commercial paper interest expense for the 
years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $85,142 and $87,683 respectively, including accrued interest of 
$6,513 and $6,867, respectively. 
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Note S. long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

As subordinate obligations, the CP Notes require that the charges for services be set each year at rates sufficient 
to produce pledged revenues at least 110 percent times the subordinate debt service for that year. In addition, 
the commercial paper notes require the Airport Authority to maintain an interest reserve account with the note 
trustee and to reserve a certain amount in the Airport Authority's books. At june 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount 
held by the trustee was $12,906 for both years and the amount reserved by the Airport Authority was $4,352 and 
$18,408, respectively. 

Revolving Line of Credit program in Fiscal Year 2015: Subsequent to june 30, 2014, the Airport Authority 
replaced its commercial paper program with a $125,000,000 revolving line of credit issued by US Bank. The 
revolving line of credit will be used to refund the outstanding Series Band Series C CP Note balances. The revolving 
line of credit is a three-year agreement and will take effect on September 5, 2014. 

The revolving line of credit is payable solely from and secured by a pledge of "Subordinate Net Revenues." 
Subordinate Net Revenues are generally defined as all revenues and other cash receipts of the Airport Authority's 
airport operations remaining after senior lien payments have been deposited by the Trustee in accordance with the 
Senior Lien Trust Indenture. 

The existing balance of the Series B CP Notes of $18,929,000 will be reconstituted as the Series B Revolving 
Line of Credit and will bear interest at the tax-exempt LIBOR rate. The existing balance of the Series C CP Notes 
of $25,955,000 will be reconstituted as the Series C revolving line of credit and will bear interest at the 
taxable LIBOR rate. 

Subordinate Lien Series 2010 Bonds: On October 5, 2010, the Airport Authority issued $572,565,000 of Series A, B. 
and C Subordinate Airport Revenue Bonds (Series 2010 Bonds). The subordinate Series 2010 Bonds were issued to 
finance certain capital improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing on the subordinate Series 2010 
Bonds through and including january 1, 2013, refund $142,176,000 of the Airport Authority's outstanding 
commercial paper notes, fund the subordinate reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the subordinate Series 
2010 Bonds. 

The Series 2010 A and 2010 B Bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates ranging 
from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2012 to 2041 . The Series 2010 C Bonds were issued as 
taxable Build America Bonds, which benefit from periodic cash subsidy payments from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35 
percent of interest payable. However, in fiscal year ended june 30, 2013, due to the impact of the federal 
governmenrs sequestration measures, subsidy payments were reduced by 4.3 percent. The Build America Bonds 
interest subsidy for the fiscal years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013 was $4,636,215 and $4,778,599, respectively. The 
interest rate on the Series 2010 C Bonds, net of the subsidy, is 4.31 percent and the bonds mature in fiscal year 
2041 . The bonds were issued at a premium of $26,154,344, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds. 
Interest on the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds is payable semiannually on january 1 and july 1 of each year. Interest 
for the fiscal years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $31,705,498 and $31 ,735,498, respectively, including 
accrued interest of $15,852,749 and $15,867,749, respectively. The principal balance on the subordinate Series 2010 
Bonds as of june 30, 2014 and 2013 was $569,870,000 and $570,870,000, respectively. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilit ies (Continued) 

The subordinate Series 201 0 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from and secured 
by (a) a pledge of subordinate net revenues, which include certain income and revenue received by the Airport 
Authority from the operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are required to pay the operation and 
maintenance expenses of the airport system and all amounts necessary to pay debt service on and fund the 
reserves for the senior bonds; and (b) certain funds and accounts held by the subordinate trustee under the 
subordinate indenture. The subordinate Series 2010 Bonds were issued with a pledge of and lien on subordinate 
net revenues on parity with the Airport Authority's subordinate commercial paper notes. In addition, the Airport 
Authority has irrevocably committed a portion of the PFCs it has received and expects to receive through 2016. The 
irrevocably committed PFC amount of $19,208,838 was fully utilized in fiscal year 2014. The irrevocably committed 
PFC amounts for fiscal years ended june 30, 201 Sand 2016 are $19,206,113 and $19,209,388 respectively. 

As subordinate lien bonds, the Series 2010 Bonds require that charges for services be set each fiscal year at rates 
sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 110 percent times the subordinate debt service for that year. In 
addition, the subordinate Series 2010 Bonds require the Airport Authority to maintain a reserve account with the 
bond trustee. At june 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount held by the trustee was $72,631.467 and $70,706,509, 
respectively, which included the july 1 payment, unspent project fund proceeds and a debt service reserve fund. 

The public ratings of the Series 2010 Bonds as of June 30, 2014 are NA2/A by Standard & Poor's, Moody's Investors 

Service and Fitch Ratings. 

The required debt service payments for the Series 2010 Bonds for the fiscal years ending June 30 are as follows : 

Years Ending june 30, Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 5,785,000 $ 31.594.948.00 $ 37,379.948 

2016 8,665,000 31 ,318,098.00 39,983,098 

2017 9,000,000 30,934,023.00 39,934,023 

2018 9,430,000 30,487.998.00 39,917,998 

2019 9,890,000 30,020,298.00 39,910,298 

2020-2024 57,155,000 142,174,548.00 199,329,548 

2025-2029 72,780,000 126,152,054.00 198,932,054 

2030-2034 126,555,000 102,133,609.00 228,688,609 

2035-2039 184,500,000 54,968,046.00 239,468,046 

2040-2041 86,110,000 5,269,21 0.00 91,379,210 

$ 569,870,000 $ 585,052,832 $ 1 '1 54,922,832 

000202 



Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2013: On january 30, 2013, the Airport Authority issued $379,585,000 
of Series A and B Senior Airport Revenue Bonds (Series 2013 Bonds). The Series 2013 Bonds were issued to finance 
certain capital improvements at SDIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing on the Series 2013 Bonds through and 
including july 1, 2015, fund the senior reserve fund and pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

The Series 2013 Bonds were structured as serial and term bonds that bear interest at rates ranging from 3.00 
percent to 5.00 percent and mature in fiscal years 2016 to 2044. The bonds were issued at a premium of 
$55,934,101, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds. Interest on the senior Series 2013 Bonds is payable 
semiannually on january 1 and july 1 of each year. Interest for the fiscal years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013 was 
$18.475,501 and $7,749,446, respectively, including accrued interest of $9,237,750 and $7,749,446. The principal 
balance on the Series 2013 Bonds as of june 30, 2014 and 2013 was $379,585,000. 

The senior Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from and secured by (a) 
a pledge of net revenues, which include certain income and revenue received by the Airport Authority from the 
operation of the airport system, less all amounts that are required to pay the operation and maintenance expenses 
of the airport system (b) certain funds and accounts held by the senior trustee under the senior indenture. 

As senior lien bonds, the Series 2013 Bonds require that charges for services be set each fiscal year at rates 
sufficient to produce pledged revenues at least 125 percent times the senior debt service for that year. In addition, 
the Series 2013 Bonds require the Airport Authority to maintain a reserve account with the bond trustee and to 
reserve certain amounts in the Airport Authority's books, as shown previously in the notes. For the fiscal years 
ended june 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount held by the trustee was $143,184,1 20 and $293,709,919, which included 
the july 1 payment, unspent project fund proceeds, the debt service reserve fund, and capital ized interest funds. 
The total amount reserved by the Airport Authority for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 was $54,943,135 and $52,007,087, 
respectively. The public ratings of the Series 2013 Bonds as of june 30, 2014 are A+/A 1 /A+ by Standard & Poor's, 
Moody's Investors Service and Fitch Ratings. 

The required debt service payments for the Series 2013 Bonds for the fiscal years ending june 30 are as follows: 

Years Ending june 30, Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ $ 18.475,500 $ 18.475,500 

2016 2,030,000 18,445,050 20.475,050 

2017 2,090,000 18,382,275 20.472.275 

2018 2,155,000 18,306,850 20.461 ,850 

2019 2,240,000 18,218,950 20.458,950 

2020-2024 36.455,000 87,143,275 123,598,275 

2025-2029 53,155,000 75,547,025 128,702,025 

2030-2034 38,740,000 63,204.425 1 01 '944.425 
2035-2039 36,645,000 55.408,875 92,053,875 

2040-2044 206,075,000 32,900,375 238,975,375 

$ 379,585,000 $ 406,032,600 $ 785,617,600 
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Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2014: On February 1, 2014, the Airport Authority issued $305,285,000 
of Series A and B Senior Special Facilities Revenue Bonds (Series 2014 Bonds). The Series 2014 Bonds were issued to 
finance a portion of the costs of the development and construction of a consolidated rental car facility and related 
improvements at SOIA, fund a portion of the interest accruing on the Series 2014 Bonds through January 1, 2016, 
fund deposits to the senior reserve fund, and pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds . 

The Series 2014 A Bonds were structured as tax-exempt and non-AMT term bonds that bear interest at 5.00 
percent. The Series 2014B Bond were structured as federally taxable bonds that bear interest at rates ranging from 
2.54 percent to 3.73 percent. 

The Series 2014 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Airport Authority, payable solely from and secured by a 
pledge of the Trust Estate, which includes, among other th ings, customer facil ity charges collected from the rental 
car companies operating at the Airport and remitted to the Trustee. No revenues of the Airport Authority other than 
the customer facility charges and the Bond Funding Supplemental Consideration (as defined in the bond indenture), 
are pledged to the payment of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

The required debt service payments for the Series 2014 Bonds for the fiscal years ending June 30 are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ $ 16,341,210 $ 16,341,210 

2016 16,341,210 16,341,210 

2017 16,341,210 16,341,210 

2018 5,580,000 16,341,210 21 ,921 ,210 

2019 5,720.000 16,199,646 21 ,919,646 

2020-2024 32,015,000 77,578,877 1 09,593,877 

2025-2029 41 ,600,000 67,999,047 109,599,047 

2030-2034 54,610,000 54,986,842 1 09,596,842 

2035-2039 71,690,000 37,905,564 1 09,595,564 

2040-2044 94,070,000 15,531.476 109,601.476 

$ 305,285,000 $ 335,566,292 $ 640,851 ,292 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Line of credit: In fiscal year 2013, the Airport Authority established a $4,000,000 line of credit with Wells Fargo, 
which is collateralized with a certificate of deposit. This line of credit replaced a line maintained with Union Bank. 
This line is utilized to issue letters of credit to surety companies who are partnering with the Airport Authority to 
provide bonding assistance to contractors accepted into the bonding assistance program at the Airport Authority. 
As of june 30, 2014, nothing had been drawn on the line of credit and one issued letter of credit was outstanding, 
totaling $687,320 for projects in progress. The letter of credit is due to expire june 16, 2015. 

Capital Leases 

Office equipment leases: The Airport Authority entered into capital lease agreements for office equipment that 
require monthly lease payments of $14,806. 

Receiving distribution center lease: The Airport Authority entered into an installment purchase agreement for a 
receiving and distribution center (ROC) in fiscal year 2013. This agreement has been determined to be a capital lease 
and requires monthly lease payments of $73,108. The Airport Authority will become the owner of the ROC at the 
conclusion of the 20 year installment purchase agreement. 

The following is a schedule of future lease payments applicable to the ROC installment purchase agreement, the 
office equipment capital leases, and the net present value of the future lease payments at june 30, 2014: 

Years Ending june 30, Amount 

2015 $ 829,321 

2016 877,298 

2017 877,298 

2018 877,298 

2019 877,298 

2020-2024 4,386,489 

2025-2029 4,386,489 

2030-2032 2,997,434 

Total Lease Payments 16,108,925 

Less amount representing interest {8,297,998) 

Present value of future lease payments $ 7,810,927 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Defined Benefit Plan 

Plan description: The Airport Authority's defined benefit pension plan is separately administered by the City of San 
Diego's City Employees' Retirement System (CERS). The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority Retirement 
Plan and Trust provides retirement and disabil ity benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries. CERS is an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts 
as a common investment and administrative agent for the City of San Diego, the District and the Airport Authority, 
administered by the Retirement Board of Administration (the CERS Board). San Diego City Charter Section 144 and 
San Diego Municipal Code Sections 24.0100 et seq . assign the authority to establish and amend the benefit 
provisions of the plans that participate in CERS to the CERS Board. The Airport Authority contributes to the Federal 
Social Security Program. The CERS Board issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information forCERS. The financ ial report may be obtained by writing to 
the San Diego City Employees' Retirement System, 401 B Street, Su ite 400, San Diego, Cal ifornia 92101 . 

Funding policy: The City of San Diego municipal code requires member contributions to be actuarially determined 
to provide a specific level of benefit. Member contribution rates, as a percentage of salary, vary according to age at 
entry, benefit tier level and certain negotiated contracts, which provide for the Airport Authority to pay a portion of 
the employees' contributions. The Airport Authority contribution rate, as determined through actuarial valuation, 
was 11.9 percent for 2014, 10.9 percent for 2013, and 14.5 percent for 2012, and is expressed as a percentage of 
covered payroll. 

Annual pension cost: For the years ended june 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the annual pension cost included in 
salaries and benefits was $4,882,000, $4,582,000 and $4,356,000, respectively, for the CERS pension. Comparing the 
june 30, 2013 actuarial valuation to the june 30, 2012 actuarial valuation, total membership increased by 3.0 
percent. The increase was attributable to both the growth in active membership, terminated vested, disabled, 
retirees and beneficiaries. Active member payroll increased by 1.8 percent. Additionally, active member total payroll 
increased by 6.2 percent, and the average pay per active member increased by 4.4 percent. The actuarial liability 
increased by 18.5 percent but the actuarial value of assets increased by 12.3 percent. The funding ratio decreased 
from 98.5 percent as of june 30, 2012 to 93.4 percent as of june 30, 2013. CERS employs a commonly used actuarial 
smoothing method on the market value that dampens market volatility, so the actuarial value of assets did not 
decrease as much as the market value (94.6 percent). 

Valuation basis: Effective january 1, 2013, new Airport Authority employees who are deemed to be "New 
Members" under the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) are subject to a number of plan 
provisions, including reduced benefit accrual factors, a cap on pensionable salary, three-year averaging for final 
salary, and mandatory exclusion of certain items from pensionable salary. PEPRA also requires New Members to 
pay at least 50 percent of the normal cost, with more than 50 percent allowed subject to collective bargaining. There 
are less significant changes for current employees and retirees. 

There are a few New Members in the current valuation . In calculating the fiscal year 2015 annual required 
contribution (ARC), the valuation reflects an estimate of PEPRA's impact on the normal cost. There is no impact on 
the unfunded actuarial liability. As experience for New Members emerges in the june 30, 2014 and subsequent 
valuations, the actual cost implications will vary and further study may be required. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued) 

As of the latest actuarial valuation dated june 30, 2013, significant actuarial assumptions are as follows: 

The rates of retirement were based on age and service as opposed to just the service of a member. 

The percent married assumption was 55 percent for females and 80 percent for males, and the 
assumed age difference between husbands and wives was three years. 

The reciprocity assumption was 10 percent. 

Rates of termination were based on service as opposed to the age of a member. 

Disability rates were modified to reflect actual experience through june 30, 2010 and include a 
projection to 2013. 

Mortality rates for active Airport Authority members were modified to reflect actual experience through 
june 30, 2010 and include a projection to 2013. 

Mortality rates for retired Airport Authority members were modified to reflect actual experience through 
june 30, 2010. No modifications have been made to project future mortality improvements. 

The investment return assumption was 7.25 percent. 

The inflation assumption was 3.0 percent 

Cost of living adjustment was assumed 2 percent. 

Actuarial funding method is entry age normal 

Amortization method is level percent closed 

Asset valuation method is expected value method 

Equivalent single amortization period is 13.539 years. This consists of 9 years for the outstanding 
balance of the 2007 UAL, 15 years for experience gains and losses, 30 years for changes in methods 
and assumptions, 20 years for benefit changes. 

The rate of employer contributions to CERS is composed of the normal cost and an amortization of the 
unfunded actuarial liability. The normal cost is a level percent of payroll cost which, along with the 
member contributions, will pay for projected benefits at retirement for the average plan participant. 
The actuarial liability is that portion of the present value of projected benefits that will not be paid by 
future employer normal costs or member contributions. The difference between this liability and the 
funds accumulated as of the same date is the unfunded actuarial liability. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued) 

On September 16, 2004, the Airport Authority made a contribution payment in the amount of $3,900,000, in 
addition to the ARC, to reflect a desired funded ratio of 90 percent. On june 21 , 2005, the Airport Authority made an 
additional contribution of $1,000,000. During the year ended june 30, 2006, the Airport Authority made an 
additional contribution of $513,627. On june 30, 2010, the Airport Authority made a contribution of $4,600,000 to 
increase the funded rate reported in the january 2010 CERS 2009 actuarial calculation from 86.9 percent to the 
desired funded ratio of 90 percent. In April 2014, the Airport Authority again made a contribution of $827,945 to 
increase the funded ratio to 94 percent. At june 30, 2014, the total contribution of $10,841,5721ess amortization of 
$3,921,797 is recorded as a net pension asset of $6,919,775. At june 30, 2013 and 2012, the total contribution of 
$10,013,627 less amortization of $3,365.485 and $2,809,172, respectively, is recorded as a net pension asset of 
$6,648,142, and $7,204.455, respectively. The contributions are being amortized over an 18-year period. 

The Airport Authority's contribution for fiscal year 2015 measured as a percentage of membership payroll 
increased from 11.9 percent to 14.29 percent. The required beginning of year contribution, paid july 1 2014, 
increased by $918,149. The following is a schedule of the annual pension cost and net pension asset forCERS 
(dollars in thousands): 

Net 
Pension 

Fiscal Mnual Airport % of Asset Increase Amortization Interest on 
Year Pension Cost N>C (NPA) (Decrease) of the NPA 

Ended Cost(N>C) Funded Contributed ARC Balance NPA NPA at 7.50%17.25% 

6/30/12 $ 4,356 $ 3,800 87% $3,800 $ 7,204 $ (556) $ (256) $ 751 

6/30/13 4,582 2,600 57% 2,600 6,648 (556) 556 751 

6/30/14 4,882 2,904 59% 2,904 6,920 272 556 786 

Schedule of funding progress forCERS (dollars in thousands): 

Actuarial 

Jlccrued UAAL/(Asset) as 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual a Percentage 

Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL/Asset Funded Covered of Covered 

Date Assets Entry ft(je UAAL/(Asset) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

6/30/13 $ 107,616 $ 115,200 $ 7,584 93.4% $ 26,380 28.7% 

Note 7. Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Airport Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan, which was created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan, which is available to all full-time Airport Authority employees, 
permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, total disability, death or unforeseeable emergency. 

000208 



Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 7. Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan (Continued) 

The plan is administered by the Airport Authority and contracted to an unrelated financial institution. Under the 
terms of an IRC Section 4S7 deferred compensation plan, all deferred compensation and income attributable to the 
investment of the deferred compensation amounts held by the financial institution, until paid or made available to 
the employees or beneficiaries, are held in trust for employees. 

As such, employee assets to be held in the IRC Section 457 plans are not the property of the Airport Authority and 
are not subject to the claims of the Airport Authority's general creditors. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 32, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans-a rescission of 
GASB Statement No. 2 and an amendment of GASB Statement No. 31 , employee assets are not reflected in the Airport 
Authority's financial statements. 

Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits 

The Airport Authority provides a single-employer postemployment benefit plan (OPES). The plan provides 
postretirement medical, dental, vision and life insurance benefits for nonunion employees hired prior to May 1, 
2006 and union employees hired prior to October 1, 2008. The employees are eligible for these benefits if they 
retire from active employment after age 55 with 20 years of service or age 62 with five years of service. 

Plan description: As of May 8, 2009, the Board approved entering into an agreement with the California Employer's 
Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) fund. This is managed by Ca lifornia Public Employees Retirement System (CaiPERS). 
CaiPERS administers pension and health benefits for approximately 1.5 million California public employees, retirees 
and their families . CaiPERS was founded in 1932 and is the largest public pension fund in the United States, 
managing more than $250 billion in assets for more than 2,500 California employers. In 1988 and 2007, enabling 
statutes and regulations were enacted which permitted CaiPERS to form the CERBT fund, an irrevocable Section 115 
Trust, for the purpose of receiving employer contributions that will prefund health and other postemployment 
benefit costs for retirees and their beneficiaries. Financial statements for CERBT may be obtained from CaiPERS at 
P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709. 

Funding policy: CERBT requires a valuation of the liabilities and annual costs for benefits by an approved actuarial 
consulting firm. It is the Airport Authority's intent to budget and prefund the ARCs. As of May 9, 2009, the 
agreement with CERBT was approved. Retirees contribute 5 percent of plan costs for single coverage and the entire 
cost of vision benefits. 

Annual OPEB cost and actuarial methods and assumptions: The Airport Authority's annual OPEB cost is 
calculated based on the ARC, an amount that is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45. The Airport Authority has elected to perform an actuarial valuation of the OPEB on a biennial 
basis, the most recent of which is dated as of July 1, 2013. According to the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation, the ARC 
was $2,328,000 for both fiscal year 2014 and 2013. The ARC was determined using the entry age normal cost 
method with amortization of the unfunded accrued liability occurring over a 30-year period ending June 30, 2037. 
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Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood 
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and 
the historical pattern of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial 
accrued liabilities and the actuarial values of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
The actuarial assumptions used by CERBT include (a) a 7.36 percent investment rate of return, (7.61 percent was 
used in the prior valuations), net of administrative expenses, and (b) projected salary increases of 3.00 percent. 
The annual health care cost trend rate ranged from 5.0 to 9.5 percent for medical and assumes a 5.0 percent rate 
for dental and 3.0 percent rate for vision. In establishing the discount rate, an inflation rate of 2.75% was used. 

The entry age normal cost method spreads plan costs for each participant from entry date to the expected 
retirement date. Under the entry age normal cost method, the plan's normal cost is developed as a level percentage 
of payroll spread over the participants' working lifetime. The actuarial accrued liability is the cumulative value, on 
the valuation date, of prior service costs. For retirees, the actuarial accrued liability is the present value of all 
projected benefits. 

The plan costs are derived by making certain specific assumptions as to the rates of interest, mortality, turnover and 
the like, which are assumed to hold for many years into the future. Actual experience may differ somewhat from the 
assumptions and the effect of such differences is spread over all periods. Due to these differences, the costs 
determined by the valuation must be regarded as estimates of the true plan costs. 

Development of the net OPEB obligation (NOO/Asset) and annual OPEB cost for the past three years is as follows 
(dollars in thousands): 

Actuarial NOO/(Asset) Annual 
Valuation Fiscal Employer End Interest on Adjustment OPEB 

Date Year ARCs Contribution of Year NOO/(Asset) to the ARC Cost 

7/1111 11/12 $ 2,165 $ 2,164 $ (60) $ (5) $ 4 $ 2,164 

7/1/12 12/13 2,238 2,236 (59) 4 2,238 
7/1/13 13/14 2,328 2,328 (59) (4) 4 2,328 

The Airport Authority's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net 
OPEB obligation for 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Percentage of 
Fiscal Year Annual Employer OPEB Cost NOO/ 

Ended OPEB Costs Contribution Contributed (Asset) 

6/30/12 $ 2,164 $ 2,164 100.0% $ (60) 
6/30/13 2,238 2,236 99.9% (59) 
6/30/14 2,328 2,328 100.0% (59) 
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Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

Funded status and funding progress: The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves 
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far 
into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the health care cost 
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the accompanying notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 

The funded status of the plan based on the most recent biennial actuarial valuation for the plan, dated as of July 1, 
2013, was as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Unfunded 
Actuarial Actuarial UAALasa 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percent of 
Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered Interest Salary 

Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll Rate Scale 

7/1/13 $ 12,667 $ 31 ,553 $ 18,886 40.1% $ 17,567 107.5% 7.4% 3.0% 

Note 9. Risk Management 

The Airport Authority has a comprehensive Risk Management Program comprising commercial insurance, self­
insurance, loss prevention, loss control and claims administration. The Airport Authority's coverage includes a 
variety of retentions or deductibles. 

Commercially issued insurance: 

• The Airport Authority maintains $500 million in limits for owners' and operators' general liability insurance 
with a war, hijacking and other perils endorsement in the amount of $150 million. 

• The Airport Authority maintains a property insurance policy with limits of $500 million providing all risk and 
flood coverage on physical assets. 

• The Airport Authority also maintains policies for workers' compensation, commercial auto, fiduciary liability 
and public official liability. 

Self-insurance: Due to the exorbitant cost of earthquake insurance, the Airport Authority self-insures for losses 
due to earthquake damage. Effective July 1, 2007, the Airport Authority removed the purchase of commercial 
earthquake insurance from the Risk Management Program and increased reliance on the laws designed to assist 
public entities through the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the California Disaster Assistance Act. As of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority has designated $7,377,978 and $6,659,982, respectively, from its net 
position, as an insurance contingency. 
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Note 9. Risk Management (Continued) 

A $2,000,000 reserve has been established within unrestricted net position by the Airport Authority's management 
to respond to uninsured and underinsured catastrophic losses. This fund is maintained pursuant to Board action 
only; there is no requirement that it be maintained. 

loss prevention: The Airport Authority has an active loss prevention program, staffed by a full-time risk 
manager, two risk analysts, a safety manager and a safety analyst. In addition, insurer property and casualty loss 
control engineers conduct safety surveys on a periodic basis. Employees receive regular safety training and claims 
are monitored using a Web-based claims information system. 

During fiscal year 2014, there were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. For each of 
the past three fiscal years, settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage. 

Note 10. lease Revenues 

The Airport Authority leases certain of its capital assets, such as loading bridges and building space, to signatory 
airlines and other tenants under operating leases. Substantially all capital assets are held by the Airport Authority 
for the purpose of rental or related use. A majority of the lease payments are determined each year based upon 
the actual costs of the airport. Such costs are allocated pro rata to each tenant based upon factors such as landed 
weights, enplanements, square footage, acres, etc. A majority of the Airport Authority's lease commitments are 
primarily on a month-to-month basis and accordingly are not reflected in the schedule below. 

The Airport Authority's expansion of approximately 25,000 additional square feet results in the increase of 
the number of food service and retail concession locations from 55 to 87. The Authority has implemented a 
comprehensive Concessions Development Program (CDP) to provide a world class shopping and dining experience 
for the millions of passengers who use SDIA each year. The full program build out was completed during 2014. 
The CDP replaces the Airport Authority's one master concessionaire, giving way for additional 11 new tenants to 
conduct business with the Airport Authority. With the new program, 17 new concessions lease commitments were 
signed and will open 87 new stores within the Airport Authority terminals. These new lease commitments are 
cancellable leases and are not reflected in the schedule below. 

The minimum future lease payments to be received under the above operating lease agreements as of 
june 30 are as follows : 

Years Ending 
June 30, Amount 

2015 $ 7,547,637 

2016 5,342,072 
2017 5,422,203 

2018 5,503,536 

2019 5,595,376 

2020 5,735,261 

$ 35,146,085 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 10. Lease Revenues (Continued) 

The Airport Authority entered into a five-year lease agreement on january 9, 2009 with the San Diego World Trade 
Center (World Trade Center) for office space, with a fair market value of $440,000. In lieu of rental payments, the 
Airport Authority received a 40 percent ownership of the World Trade Center license, which has a fair market value 
of $440,000. The license, an intangible asset with no expiration date, is included in non-depreciable assets in Note 4. 
As of june 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority recognized lease revenue of $86,996 for each year, under the 
World Trade Center lease. 

Note 11 . Lease Commitments 

Operatin~: Leases 

General Dynamics lease: The Airport Authority is required, by legislation mandating the transfer of airport 
operations from the District, to lease from the District 89.75 acres of the former General Dynamics property on 
Pacific Highway adjacent to SOIA for 66 years commencing january 1, 2003. The lease agreement calls for 
predetermined rents through December 31, 2005, with future rents based upon a market rate established in late 
2005 by an appraisal (or arbitration). The amended lease agreement calls for rent payments of $6,750,000 annually 
through December 31, 2068. The Airport Authority received a credit for $375,000 in reduced rent based on a 
previous lease agreement for the property in September 2006. The changes in terms for this lease were approved 
by the Airport Authority's Board on July 25, 2006. A portion of the land is leased to the District for employee parking 
for District administration building employees and is leased back by the District at the same fair market value rent 
paid by the Airport Authority. 

SOIA lease: The Airport Authority is leasing from the District 480 acres of land on North Harbor Drive for $1 per 
year, for 66 years, through December 31, 2068. 

Teledyne Ryan lease: The Airport Authority is leasing from the District 46.88 acres on North Harbor Drive referred 
to as the Teledyne Ryan lease that commenced on January 1, 2005 and expires December 31, 2068, with $3 million 
in annual rent. 

Other District leases: The Airport Authority leases from the District two additional properties adjacent to SOIA. 
These properties required monthly rentals of $86,083 and $12,521 . As of January 1, 2013, the lease for $86,083 was 
terminated with the District. In December 2013, the lease for $12,521 expired and was not renewed . 

On July 24, 2006, the Airport Authority's Board approved a lease with the District for the property located at 2415 
Winship Lane, known as the Sky Chef property. The term of the lease is 60 years with $350,000 in annual rent and 
commenced September 1, 2006. 

Under current law, in the event SOIA is relocated and the District leases are no longer used by the Airport Authority 
for airport purposes, all District leases will terminate and use of the property will revert to the District. 

Building lease: The Airport Authority leased modular buildings from an unrelated third-party that required monthly 
rental of $1 ,366 through the expiration date of August 2013. This lease was not renewed. 



Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 11 . Lease Commitments (Continued) 

The future rental commitment under the above operating lease agreements as of june 30 are due as follows : 

Years Ending june 30 Amount 

2015 $ 10,167,120 

2016 10,167,120 

2017 10,167,120 

2018 10,159,920 

2019 10,159,920 

2020·2024 50,799,600 

2025·2029 50,799,600 

2030·2034 50,799,600 

2035·2039 50,799,600 

2040·2044 50,799,600 

2045·2049 50,799,600 

2050-2054 50,799,600 

2055-2059 50,799,600 

2060-2064 50,799,600 

2065-2069 50,799,600 

$ 558,817,200 

The total rental expense charged to operations for the years ended june 30 consists of the following: 

2014 2013 

Rental payments made $ 10,478,262 $ 10,897,338 

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments: As of june 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority had significant commitments for capital 
expenditures and other matters as described below: 

i. The Airport Authority has funds which have been classified as current assets, primarily for the unpaid 
contractual portion of capital projects that are currently in progress, and will not be funded by grants or 
additional debt, but wi ll be funded through Airport Authority cash. These amounts are for the estimated 
cost of capital projects that have been authorized by the Board for construction planning to proceed 
and for the contractual costs of upgrading certain major equipment. At june 30, 2014 and 2013, these 
funds tota led approximately $7.8 million and $906 thousand, respectively, and are classified on the 
accompanying statements of net position as cash and investments designated for specific capital 

projects and other commitments. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

ii. Support services- As part of the MOU, services provided by the District Harbor Police are required to be 
purchased by the Airport Authority as long as SDIA continues to operate at the current location. At the 
time of the transfer, the Airport Authority entered into a Master Services Agreement. a Police Services 
Agreement and a Communications Services Agreement with the District, which described the services 
that the Airport Authority could purchase and the manner of calculating the payments for such services. 
The largest amount that became payable under any of these agreements is under the Police Services 
Agreement, which is for Harbor Police services. The District provides monthly billings to the Airport 
Authority, with payment generally due 30 days after the date of the invoice, and provision of appropriate 
supporting documentation. During the years ended june 30, 2014 and 2013, the Airport Authority expensed 
$16,577,044 and $17,289,681 , respectively, for these services. 

ii i. In fiscal year 2012, the Board approved two contracts with Ace Parking Management Inc., one for the 
parking management services in the amount of $29.7 million and the second for the airport shuttle services 
in the amount of $28.8 million. The total amount spent as of June 30, 2014, were $6.9 million for parking 
management services and $9.1 million for airport shuttle services. These contracts are scheduled for 
completion in 2017. As of june 30, 2014, the Airport Authority's remaining commitment is approximately 
$17.4 million for the parking management contract and $12.6 million for the shuttle service contract. 

iv. In fiscal year 2014, the Board approved a contract with Austin-SundtJV for the design and construction of 
the proposed Rental Car Center in the amount of $14 million and additional approval of $10 million. As of 
june 30, 2014, $55.3 million had been spent and the contract is due to be completed in fiscal year 2016. 

v. In fiscal year 2013, the Board approved a contract with Demattei Wong Architecture in support of the Rental 
Car Center project in the amount of $10 million and an additional approval of $12 million. As of june 30, 
2014, $16.6 million had been spent and the contract is due to be completed in fiscal year 2016. 

Contingencies: As of June 30, 2014, the Airport Authority is subject to contingencies arising from legal matters 
as described below: 

The Airport Authority has leases and operating agreements with various tenants. These agreements typically 
include provisions requiring the tenant/operators to indemnify the Airport Authority for any damage to property or 
losses to the Airport Authority as a result of the tenant's operations. Also, the leases and operating agreements 
typically require the Airport Authority to be named as an additional insured under certain insurance policies of the 
tenants/operators . The Airport Authority also tenders these claims to its own insurers once they become asserted 
claims. When these types of claims are asserted against the Airport Authority, the Airport Authority not only 
vigorously opposes them but also vigorously seeks contribution and/or indemnity from all tenants/operators 
involved, from the tenants'/operators' insurers and from its own insurers. The Airport Authority's legal counsel 
cannot predict the net exposure to the Airport Authority with respect to these matters, or the probability or 
remoteness of any outcome. 
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San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 
Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 2014 

Schedule of pension funding progress forCERS is as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Actuarial UAAU(Asset) 

Accrued as a 

Actuarial Actuarial Liabi lity Unfunded Annual Percentage 

Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL(UAAL)/ Funded Covered of Covered 

Date Assets Entry Age (Asset) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

6/30/08 $ 57,748 $ 56,808 $ (940) 101.7% $ 23.488 (4.0%) 

6130109 58,981 67,871 8,890 86.9% 24,693 36.0% 

6/30/10 73.401 76.447 3,046 96.0% 25,709 11 .8% 

6/30/11 86,309 84,042 (2,267) 102.7% 25,1 48 (9.0%) 

6/30/12 95,793 97,225 1.432 98.5% 24,726 5.8% 

6/30/13 107,616 115,200 7,584 93.4% 26,380 28.7% 

Schedule of OPEB funding progress is as follows (dollars in thousands) : 

Unfunded 

Actuarial Actuarial UAALas a 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percent of 

Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered Covered Interest Salary 

Date Assets AAL UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll Rate Scale 

7/1/08 $ $ 10,327 $ 10,327 0.0% $ 19.417 53.2% 7.75% 3.25% 

7/1/09 2,674 12,206 9,532 21.9% 19,514 48.8% 7.75% 3.25% 

7/1/10 4.474 14,149 9,675 31 .6% 20,148 48.0% 7.75% 3.25% 

7/1/11 * 7,604 22,1 97 14,593 34.3% 18,728 77.9% 7.60% 3.25% 

7/1/12* 7,604 22,197 14,593 34.3% 18,728 77.9% 7.61% 3.25% 

7/1/13 12,667 31,553 18,886 40.1% 17,567 107.5% 7.36% 3.00% 

* In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Airport Authority has an actuarial valuation 

completed biennially. 
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Ground crews for the 
airports airline partners 
work diligently to service 
and load aircraft for 
maximum eff•ciency. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 

The Statistical Section is divided into five areas: financial 
trend data; revenue capacity data; operating information; 
demographic and economic information, and debt capacity data. 

Financial Trends Data which shows changes in the Author­
ity's financial position since inception: 

Authority operating revenues and expenses 
Authority net position by component 
Authority change in net position 
Authority largest sources of revenue 

Revenue Capacity Data which shows the 
Authority's major revenue sources and 
changes in key rates and charges: 

Authority landing rate fee 
Terminal rates billed to airlines 
Airline cost per enplaned passenger 

Operating Information shows how the airport is performing 
on an annual basis and with in the airport market sector: 

Authority employee headcount 
Aircraft operations 
Aircraft landed weights 
Aircraft landed weights by airline 
Passenger enplanements 
Enplanement market share by airline by fiscal year 
Growth in enplaned passengers, SOIA vs. US 
Capital assets 

Economic Information shows the major 
drivers of usage and how the airport 
service area is performing compared to the 
region and the nation: 

Population and per capita personal income­
San Diego County 
Principal employers in San Diego County 
San Diego County employment by 
industry sector 
Labor force, employment. and 
unemployment rates 

Debt Information shows how the Authority 
is performing meeting its debt ob ligations and 
the relative level of debt: 

Debt service coverage 
Debt service coverage -Series 2014 
CFC Bonds 
Debt per enplaned passenger 
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Operating Revenues 

Airline revenue 
Landing fees 

Aircraft parking fees 

BUilding rentals 

Security surcharge 

Other aviation revenue 
Concession revenue 
Parking and ground transportation 

Ground rentals 
Other operating revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses Before 

Depreciation 

Salaries and benefits 

Contractual services 
Safety and security 

Space rental 

Utilities 

Maintenance 
Equipment and systems 

Materials and supplies 

Insurance 
Employee development and support 

Business development 

Equipment rentals and repairs 
Total Operating Expenses Before 

Depreciation 

Exhibit S-1 
Authority Revenues and O&M Expenses ($000) 

Fisca l Years Ended june 30, 

2005 

22,607 

18,041 

7,800 

1,757 

26,552 

23,723 

5,294 
2,349 

108,123 

2005 

23,623 

25,210 

16,191 

10,174 

5,121 

4,050 

710 

461 

2,425 

1,050 

1,646 

708 

91,369 

2006 

22,243 

21,137 

7,759 

1,868 

29,362 

26,904 

5,505 
4,717 

119,495 

2006 

26,847 

31,967 
14,777 

11 ,353 

5,416 

5,390 

736 

591 
1,162 

906 
1,329 

882 

101 ,356 

2007 2008 

24,006 24,763 

22,495 24,265 

2009 

18,689 

3,221 

23,057 

8,441 8,619 10,204 

1,757 1,808 1,565 

34,201 38,785 36,280 

28,392 31,038 31,492 

4,994 5,207 5,776 
1,081 1,197 693 

125,367 $135,682 s 130,977 

2007 2008 

28,333 s 32,912 

26,391 

15,946 

10,842 

6,421 

8,393 

980 

762 
1,999 

909 
2,096 

1,479 

27,378 

19,110 

10,901 

6,430 

8,735 

1,333 

795 
1,227 

1,035 

2,733 

1,396 

2009 

34,741 

27,464 

19,930 

10,888 

6,912 

8,002 

678 

641 
1,096 

1,030 

2,509 

1,387 

104,551 $113,985 s 115,278 

2010 

18,672 

3,406 

23,835 

11,900 

1,585 

36,249 

30,296 

5,923 
1,829 

133,695 

2010 

35,386 

27,999 

20,131 

10,906 

6,871 

9,231 

891 

413 
1,166 

990 

2,033 

1,271 

117,288 

Source: San D1ego County Regional Airport Authority 

Exhibit S-2 
Authority Net Position by Component ($000) 

Fiscal years Ended june 30, 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010* 

2011 

18,579 

2,921 

26,980 

14,886 

1,597 

37,103 

31,645 

8,656 
1,640 

144,007 

2011 

38,267 

26,113 

21,344 

10,906 

6,413 

8,174 

570 

345 

1,066 

1,041 

2,275 

1,327 

117,841 

2011 

2012 

18,419 

3,134 

30,633 

18,649 

1,595 

40,427 

31,470 

8,044 
1,179 

153,550 

2012 

37,237 

26,906 

22,625 

11,415 

6,674 

8,497 

403 

304 

764 

916 

2,093 

1,335 

119,169 

2012 

2013 

19,658 

3,191 

41,840 

23,360 

1,591 

42,041 

35,750 

9,162 
905 

177,498 

2013 

38,092 

29,284 

23,994 

10,897 

6,659 

11 ,204 

469 

406 

795 

1,235 

2,444 

1,317 

126,796 

2013 

2014 

19,107 

2,503 

46,001 

25,777 

4,488 

47,770 

38,959 

9,603 
1,529 

195,737 

2014 

39,135 

31,559 

24,151 

10,478 

8680 
13,982 

643 

440 

988 
1,171 

2,661 

2,932 

136,820 

2014 

Net investment in capital assets 

Other restricted net position 

Unrestricted net position 

s 209,714 

83,854 

102,652 

219,218 s 236,762 $238,144 $249,498 s 274,769 s 352,276 $339,467 s 359,640 s 312,781 

Total net position $396,220 

• Amounts for 2010 and after were restated as per GASB 65 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

96,633 

117,940 

103,787 136,548 167,827 

124,984 120,429 95,858 

139,672 

145,224 

147,513 

102,466 

172,076 167,384 204,642 

149,346 200,040 209,594 

433,791 $465,533 $495,121 $513,183 s 559,664 $602,255 s 660,889 s 727,064 $727,017 
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Operating revenues: 
Airline revenue: 

landing fees 
Aircraft parking fees 
Building rentals 
Security surcharge 
Other aviation revenue 

Concession revenue 
Parking and ground transportation revenue 

Ground renta ls 

Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Salaries and benefits 

Contractual services 

Safety and security 

Space rental 

Utilities 

Maintenance 

Equipment and systems 

Materials and supplies 

Insurance 

Employee development and support 

Business development 

Equipment renta ls and repairs 

Total operating expenses before depreciation 

and amortization 

Income from operations before depreciation 

and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 

Operating income (loss} 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses}: 

Passenger facil ity charges 

Customer facility charges 

Quieter Home Program, net 

joint Studies Program 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

"Build America Bonds" Rebate 

Other revenues (expenses), net 

Nonoperating revenue, net 

Income before capital grant contributions 

Capital grant contr ibutions 

Change in net position 

Exhibit S-3 
Authority Change in Net Position ($000) 

Fiscal Years Ended j une 30, 

2005 

22,607 s 

18,041 
7,800 
1,757 

26,552 
23,723 

5,294 

2,349 

108,123 

23,623 

25,210 

16,191 

10,174 

5,121 

4,050 

710 

461 

2.425 

1,050 

1,646 

708 

91 ,369 

16,754 

29,699 

(12,945) 

33,710 

(1 ,582) 

6.413 

(4,387) 

(195) 

33,959 

21 ,014 

7,522 

28,536 

367,684 

2006 

22,243 

21 ,137 
7,759 
1,868 

29,362 
26,904 

5,505 

4,717 

119,495 

26,847 

31 ,967 

14,777 

11 ,353 

5.416 

5,390 

736 

591 

1,162 

906 

1,329 

882 

101 ,356 

18,139 

31 ,559 

(13,420) 

34,981 

(908) 

(688) 

9,306 

(4,809) 

964 

38,846 

25,426 

12, 145 

37,571 

396,220 

2007 

24,006 

22.495 
8,441 
1.757 

34,201 
28,392 

4,994 

1,081 

125,367 

28,333 

26,391 

15,946 

10,842 

6.421 

8,393 

980 

762 

1,999 

909 

2,096 

1.479 

104,551 

20,816 

33.468 

(12,652) 

36.452 

(3,092) 

(120) 

11 ,969 

(4,683) 

(3,282) 

37,244 

24,592 

7,150 

31,742 

433,791 

2001 

24,763 

24,265 
8,619 
1,808 

38,785 
31 ,038 

5,207 

1,197 

135,682 

32,912 

27,378 

19,110 

10,901 

6.430 

8,735 

1,333 

795 

1,227 

1,035 

2,733 

1,396 

2009 

18,689 s 
3,221 

23,057 
10,204 

1,565 
36,280 
31.492 

5,776 

693 

130,977 

34,741 s 
27.464 

19,930 

10,888 

6,912 

8,002 

678 

641 

1,096 

1,030 

2,509 

1,387 

113,985 115,278 

21 ,697 15,699 

36,764 38,1 96 

(15,067) (22.497) 

37,401 

(3,990) 

(963) 

13,431 

(4,086) 

12 

41 ,805 

26,738 

2,850 

29,588 

465,533 

33,219 

1,695 

(5,573) 

(180) 

9,434 

(2,998) 

316 

35,913 

13.416 

4,646 

18,062 

495,121 

2010* 

18,672 s 
3.406 

23,835 
11 ,900 

1,584 
36,249 
30,296 

5,923 

1,829 

133,695 

2011 

18,579 s 
2,921 

26,980 
14,886 

1,597 
37,103 
31 ,645 

8,656 

1,640 

144,007 

2012 

18.419 s 
3,134 

30,633 
18,649 

1,595 
40.427 
31.470 

8,044 

1,179 

153,550 

35,386 s 38,267 s 37,237 s 
27,999 26,113 26,906 

20,131 21 ,344 22.625 

10,906 10,906 11.415 

6,871 6.413 6,674 

9,231 8,174 8.497 

891 570 403 

413 345 304 

1,166 1,066 764 

990 1,041 916 

2,033 2,275 2,093 

1,271 1,327 1,335 

117,288 

16.407 

42.424 

(26,018) 

34,049 

10,783 

(1 ,629) 

(244) 

6,667 

(3.472) 

(1 ,004) 

45,149 

19,131 

27,350 

46.482 

513,183 

117,841 

26,166 

49,138 

(22,972) 

33,998 

10,986 

(3,359) 

(129) 

6.408 

(12,295) 

3,691 

(92) 

39,208 

16,236 

26,355 

42.591 

559,664 

119,169 

34,381 

44,532 

(10,151) 

34,639 

11,487 

(3,531) 

(73) 

5,492 

(2,027) 

4,996 

(3,032) 

47,951 

37,800 

20,834 

58,634 

602,255 

2013 

19,658 
3,191 

41 ,840 
23,360 

1,591 
42,041 
35,750 

9,162 

905 

177.498 

38,092 

29,284 

23,994 

10,897 

6,659 

11 ,204 

469 

406 

795 

1,235 

2,444 

1,317 

126,796 

50,702 

41 ,624 

9,078 

35.437 

19,117 

(1,589) 

(55) 

4,140 

(16,530) 

4,779 

(4,279) 

41 ,020 

50,098 

16,077 

66,175 

660,889 

2014 

19,107 
2,503 

46,001 
25,777 

4.488 
47,770 
38,959 

9,603 

1,529 

195,737 

39,135 

31 ,559 

24,151 

10.478 

8,680 

13,982 

643 

440 

988 

1,171 

2,661 

2,932 

136,820 

58,917 

77,205 

(18, 288) 

35,770 

27,545 

(2,751) 

(152) 

5,211 

(56,376) 

4,636 

434 

14,317 

(3,971) 

3,924 

(47) 

727,063 Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year s 396,220 433,791 465,533 495,121 s 513,183 s 559,664 s 602,255 s 660,889 s 727,063 s 727,016 

*Amounts for 2010 and after were restated as per GASB 65 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
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Tenant 

Southwest AJrl1nes 

United A1rhnes 

Delta Airlines 

Amencan Auhnes 

Alaska Alrhnes 

Enterpr1se Rent-A-Car 

Hertz Rent-A-Car 

US Airways 

Av1s Budget Rent-A-Car Group 

Host International 

2005 

12,767,378 $ 

5,877,927 

1,442,700 

8,472,274 

1.471 ,600 

858,956 

4,901 ,573 

699,542 

3,103,562 

7,106,523 

Source: San 01ego County Reg1onal Airport Authonty 

$2.50 

$2.00 

$1 .50 

$1.00 

$0.50 

$0.00 
2005 

Exhibit S-4 
Authority Largest Sources of Revenues($) 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
13,464,404 $15,624,767 $ 16,920,722 $ 17,658,629 $ 19,428,103 $ 21 ,306,108 

5,717,234 6,623,373 6,522,426 6,344,127 7,905,284 9,280,812 

4,876,095 5,347,415 5,168,634 4,647,333 6,663,671 8,003,895 

10,191 ,557 8,303,616 7,750,147 5,543,732 7,693,564 7,611 ,443 

2.464,162 2,843,993 2,800,385 2,754,173 2,951 ,554 3.482,098 

2,888,849 2,007,684 2,530,192 2,501 ,720 2,517,682 4,431 ,129 

5,979,512 6,728,751 6,860,949 5,816,230 5,861 ,737 5,635,151 

571 ,874 1,714,362 4,048,246 3,478,789 3,756,383 3,899,253 

6,002,357 4,465,182 6,193,565 5,505,770 3,378,607 3,842,594 

9,147,356 9,808,385 10,875,857 9,883,713 9,907,860 10,360,436 

Exhibit S-5 
Authority Landing Fee Rate($ per 1,000 lbs.) 

Fiscal years Ended j une 30, 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

2012 2013 

23,357,007 $ 27,598,908 

10,931 ,601 15,817,886 

8,91 1,886 10,898,540 

8,197,015 9,765,412 

4,265,739 6,1 67,257 

7,290,392 6,934,784 

5,795,690 5,961 ,730 

4,388,522 5,408,046 

4,507,266 4,697,455 

10,793,503 6,960,141 

2013 2014 

Landing Fees are the revenues from passenger and cargo air carriers for landing aircraft at SOIA. 

2014 
,.of Total 
Operating 

201. Revenue 

29,548,565 1S.1% 

15,364,094 7.811> 

12,005,146 6.11Mi 

10,030,675 5.1% 

8,008,057 4.11Mi 

7,162, 116 3.711> 

6,149,759 3.1% 

5,754,465 2.911> 

4,822,212 2.511> 

3,262,531 1.7% 
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Exhibit S-6 
Termina l Rates Billed to Airl ines 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

Fiscal Year Terminal Rates Per Square Foot* o/o Change 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

* Net of janitorial credit 

Terminal Rate Per Square Foot 

$120.00 

$100.00 

$80.00 

$60.00 

$40.00 

$20.00 

$48.62 (12 .8)% 

$56.62 16.5 % 

$58.39 3.1 % 

$66.67 14.2 % 

$57.38 (13 .9)% 

$59.53 3.7 % 

$73.09 22.8 % 

$83.31 14.0% 

$117.33 40.8 % 

$111 .13 (5.3)% 

$0.00 ~-=:=-.-____::=c...,....---==::.....,...-=:::.....,--===-...--==-....--=:=-,-____::=c...,....---==::.....,...___;=:::.....,.-

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Information presented reflects those years that the Airport Authority was in operation. 

Terminal Rates are rates billed to airlines for the rent of terminal space per square foot. 

Beginning with FY 2005, the Security Surcharge was excluded from Termina l Rates and charged separately. 
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Exhibit S-7 
Airline Cost Per Enplaned Passenger 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

Cost per 

Enplaned Enplaned 

Fiscal Year Passengers Passenger 
2005 8,449,107 $5.94 

2006 8,749,734 $5.98 
2007 8,892,069 $6.31 
2008 9,389,327 $6.26 

2009 8,535,774 $6.36 
2010 8,453,886 $6.73 
2011 8,441,120 $7.54 

2012 8,575,475 $8.33 

2013 8,737,617 $10.16 

2014 9,082,244 $10.49 

Cost per Enplaned Passenger 

$12.00 

$11.00 

$10.00 

$9.00 

$8.00 

$7.00 

$6.00 

$5.00 

$4.00 

$3.00 

$2.00 

$1 .00 

$0.00 ¥-_:::=-..,-_:::=-.,.-_:::=-.-----==-.---==-,.---==-,--=;:;:__,.-=;:;...,.-=:;;.....,.-='-1' 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Airline Cost per Enplaned Passenger is the total annual cost of fees and charges paid by the 

airlines divided by the total fiscal year enplanements. 

2014 
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Exhibit 5·8 
Authority Employee Headcount 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

The Airport Authority does not have part-time employees. This chart 

reflects the average number of employees for the fiscal years shown above. 
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Exhibit S-9 
Aircraft Operations (Takeoffs and Landings) 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

Fiscal General 

Year Air Carriers Air Taxi Aviation Military Total 

2005 148,975 51,377 17,069 1,094 218,525 

2006 154,092 54,156 17,383 1,121 226,752 

2007 157,198 50,068 17,195 983 225,444 

2008 167,753 55,373 16,123 1,040 240,289 

2009 155,766 39,122 12,721 1,174 208,783 

2010 149,718 32,100 11 ,674 1,017 194,509 

2011 146,215 28,273 10,938 755 186,181 

2012 149,104 26,398 12,120 658 188,280 

2013 154,781 23,370 9,586 567 188,304 

2014 155,310 22,953 8,930 597 187,790 

Source: FAA A TAOS Report: Air Operations Standard Report (itinerant only) 

Airfield Operations 

250,000 

"' 200,000 
1: 
0 

~ 
"' 

150,000 
c. 
0 

100,000 0 
0 z 50,000 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

• Military 

• General Aviation 

•Air Taxi 

• Air Carriers 

Years 

Aircraft operations are the takeoffs and landings at SOIA. 

They represent the level of demand for air service by the airlines operating at SOIA. 
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Exhibit S-10 
Aircraft Landed Weight 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

Fiscal Year Aircraft Landed Weight in 1000 lbs %Change 

2005 11.200,204 

2006 11,604,873 

2007 11,773,957 

2008 12,501 ,191 

2009 11.496,758 

2010 10,892,867 

2011 10,606,160 

2012 10,819,902 

2013 11 ,015,716 

2014 11 ,186,768 

Aircraft Landed Weights (000 lbs) 

14,000,000 

12,000,000 

10,000,000 

8,000,000 

6,000,000 

4,000,000 

2,000,000 

0 

4.2% 

3.6% 

1.5 % 

6.2% 

{80)% 

{5.3)% 

{2.6)% 

2.0% 

1.8 % 

1.6% 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Source: San Diego Regional Airport Authority 

Landed Weight is the maximum gross certificated landed weight in one thousand pound units as stated in the 

airlines' flight operational manual. Landed weight is used to calculate landing fees for both airline and general 

aviation aircraft operated at the airport. 
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Southwest Airlines 

United Airlines* 

Del~ Airlines 

Al.ask.aAirllnes 

Ameriun Airlines 

US Airways 

Federal Express 

Skywest Airlines 

Spirit Airlines 

Virgin Ameriu 

Frontier Airlines 

jetBiue Airlines 

British Airways 

HawailanAirlinl!s 

jap.anAirlines 

Subtot<~l 

All Oth•rs 

3,570,052 

1,732,536 

927,763 

605,435 

1,009,498 

298,983 

384,702 

247,215 

194,758 

123,145 

145,920 

9,240,007 

1,960,197 

31.99tl 

15.5% 

8.31Mi 

5.41Mi 

"·"" 
2.7"' 

3 .4 .. 

2.2% 

00" 

0"" 
1.7"' 

1.1% 

O.OIMI 

1.31Mt 

O.OIMI 

17.5% 

3,768,37-4 32 .5"-

1,767,394 15.2% 

850,348 7.3% 

616,552 5 31141 

1,089,872 9 .41111 

250,303 2.2IMI 

445,744 3.8% 

251,902 2.2% 

00" 

0 .0% 

146,749 2 I'M! 

174,337 1.5% 

0.0% 

145,920 1.3% 

0.0% 

9,607,495 12.1% 

1,997,378 17.2% 

Exhibit S-11 
Aircraft Landed Weights by Airl ine (thousand pounds) 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

3,956,170 33 .6% 4,416,996 35.3% 4,415,780 38.4% 4,068,974 37.4% 4,001,530 37.7% 3,953,536 36 5~ 

1,803,693 15.3% 1,761,692 14.1% 1,670,479 14.5% 1,662,541 15.3% 1,583,372 14 9% 1,502,203 13.9% 

798,104 6.8% 839,172 6.7% 713,622 6.2% 893,467 8.2% 1,062,254 10.o-M. 1,047,068 9.7% 

668,390 5.7% 612,282 4.9% 536,281 4.7% 511,813 47% 595,238 5.6% 648,359 6~ 

961,143 8.2% 890,796 7.1% 848,513 7.4% 766,151 7 .~ 672,059 6.3% 701,126 65% 

391,358 3.3% 713,030 5.7% 684,354 6 .0% 626,510 58% 603,439 5.7% 643,014 5.9% 

456,152 3.9% 447,636 3.6% 402,665 3.5% 400,303 3.7% 421,239 4.0% 452,453 4 .2% 

246,559 2.1% 195,777 1.6% 219,416 1.9% 332,408 311M! 338,812 3.2IMI 306,789 2.8% 

0 0% 0.0% 0.0% 0 O'MI 0 O'MI 98,931 0 9% 

0 .0% 3,122 0.021M1 221,333 1.9% 205,348 1.9IMI 173,686 161M! 208,253 19% 

283,898 2.4% 287,387 2.3% 237,269 2.1% 227,847 2.1% 249,492 24% 208,936 1.9% 

175,333 1.5% 288,239 2.3% 297,340 2.6% 201,071 1.8% 167,369 1.6% 166,232 1.5% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 13,800 0.1% 167,440 1.5% 

211,840 1.8% 235,200 1.9% 137,145 1.2% 121,600 1.11t& 134,080 1.3% 118,088 1.1% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% O.OtH. 0 0% 0.0% 

9,952,639 14 .5~ 10,691 ,329 15.5% 10,314,196 90.3"-' 10,011,032 92.0"-' 10,016,370 94.4.C. 10,222,427 94.5~ 

1,821 ,318 15.5% 1,810,162 14.5% 1,112,561 9.7'MI 874,835 8.0% 589,790 5.6'MI 597,474 5.5% 

3,907,SS4 35.5% 3,925,362 35.11Mi 

1,387,854 12.6% 1,340,736 12.0% 

1,023,608 9.3% 1,016,878 9.1% 

150,000 6.8% 884,727 7.9 

685,836 6.2IMI 718,069 6.4% 

653,915 5.9% 631,485 5.6% 

451,797 4.1% 419,127 3.7% 

428,595 3.9% 396,054 3.5% 

208,200 1.9% 245,669 2.2% 

235,934 211M! 232,136 2.11t& 

196,614 1.8% 192,493 1.7'MI 

168,080 1.5% 189,979 1.7% 

163,760 1.5% 166,980 1.5% 

140,637 1.3% 147,325 1.3 .. 

47,125 0.4'MI 138,700 1.2% 

10,449,511 94.Mit 10,645,720 95.nll 

566,205 5.1"' 541,048 4.8% 

TOTAL 11 ,200,204 100.0"-' 11 ,604,173 100."' 11,773,957 100."' 12,501,491 100."' 11,496,751 100."' 10,192.167 100."' 10,606,160 100."' 10,119,902 100."' 11,015,716 100."' 11,116,761 100.~ 

Annual .C. ChilnJe 4.2"' 3.6% 1.5% 6.2% ·8.0% ·5.3% ·2.6% 2.0% 1.8% 1.6% 

Sourct: S.an Di•go County R•glon.al Airport Authority 

• United .and Contin•nul compl•t•d th•lr m•rger on Oaober 1, 2010 .and began operilting .IS United on Nov•mb•r 30,2011. D.au for United .and Contln•nt.al h.ave bun combln•d in this t.abl• 
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Fiscal Year 
zoos 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 

10,000,000 

9,500,000 

9,000,000 

8,500,000 

8,000,000 

7,500,000 

Exhibit S-12 
Passenger Enplanements 

Fisca l years Ended june 30, 

Passenger Enplanements %Change 
8,449,107 5.9% 
8,749,734 3.6% 
8,892,069 1.6% 
9,389,327 5.6% 
8,535,774 (9.1%) 
8,453,886 (1 .0%) 
8,441 ,120 (0.2%) 
8,575,475 1.6% 
8,737,617 1.9% 
9,082,244 3.9% 

7,000,000 *--=o:...,._..:=-.--=::....,.__;=-.--==..,-=:...,....-==-...-=:....,...-==-,...-="-f' 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

Enplaned passenger is any revenue passenger boarding at the airport, including any passenger that 

previously disembarked from another aircraft (i.e. connecting passenger). 
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AlrCarrlltf' 

Aoerom~xico 

Air C~n~da 

Alrlr~n.Airwa}'5 

Alask~Airlin~s 

Alo~Airtines 

AmericaW@st 

American Airlin@S 

British .Airways 

Continental Airlines 

Delta Airlines 

ffontitrAirlinM 

H~wailan AlrlinM 

japan Airlines 

jet81u@Airwa}'5 

Mid~stAlrUnes 

Northwest Airlines 

SOuthMSt Airlines 

sun Country Airlln~s 

Spirit 

Uni ted Airlines 

USAirw~ys 

Vir&inAmeric:~ 

Volarls 

Oth~r 

TOtiiiAit CIIrtler 

CommutH 

Am~ric~n hgle (Envoy AirtirlH) 

Compass (Delta Conne-ctiOn) 

ExpressjetAir~nes 

Horizon 

Mesa Airlines 

Se~port Airlines 

SkyWest AlrlinM 

5kyWest Airlines- Alaska Airl~ 

SkyWest- (American Eagle I Envoy- lAX) 

Skywest- Delta Connection 

Skywest- United Express 

5~st- US Airways 

Totlll Commuter 

Total Enpl11nement1 

zoos 2006 

Exhibit S-13 
Enplanement Market Share by Airline by Fiscal Yea r 

Fiscal Years Ended june 30, 

2007 200& 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Enplan• Enplan• Enplan• Enpllln• Enplan• Enpian• Enplan• Enplan• Enpl11n• Enpia n• 
mentl Share Share Share Shiite Shue menu Shii t e Sh11 re Sh•r• ment1 Sh•re men ts Share 

49,488 0.6~ 58.969 0.7'111 39.518 0.41Mo 12,223 0.31Mo 27,772 

55,398 0.6~ 55,031 0.6~ 27,255 

7,983 0.1% 97,937 1.0~ 66.475 

476,395 5.61Mo 492,891 5.6~ 536.784 6.0~ 498,169 5.3~ 428,515 

29,051 0.31Mo 41 ,882 051Mo 38,418 0.41Mo 33,620 0.4~ 

466,615 5.SIMo 451 ,904 5.21Mo 374,072 4.2~ 78,298 0.8~ 

879,144 10.41Mo 968.832 11.11Mo 873.624 9.81Mo 808,790 8.61Mo 735,067 

0.0% 

401 ,803 

713.872 

152,917 

108,798 

118,762 

319.790 

4 .8~ 454,699 5.2~ 503.189 5.7~ 520,856 5.51Mt 503,242 

8.41Mo 666,101 7.61Mo 633,772 7.11Mo 687,104 7.31Mo 618,127 

1.8~ 171,544 2.0~ 196,598 2.2~ 23 1,926 2.51Mt 203.689 

1.3~ 112,410 1.3~ 154.932 1 .7~ 160.939 1.71Mo 100,626 

1.41Mo 161,594 1.81Mo 151 ,984 1.7111o 224,205 2.4~ 235.199 

18.688 0.2~ 34.551 0.41Mo 42,763 0.51Mo 8,380 

3.81Mo 292,393 3.3~ 286,952 3.21Mo 295,724 ).liMo 272,684 

0.3~ 24.335 0.31Mt 

0.31Mo 46,959 0.6~ 58,539 0.71Mo 56,470 

0.81Mo 37,530 0.41Mo t7.978 0.21Mo 

5.01Mt 435,722 5.2~ 51 4,498 6.11Mo 579,457 

8.6~ 704.909 8.31Mo 658,752 7.81Mo 664,466 

6,912 0.11Mo 81,437 

5.9~ 507.443 6.0~ 496,100 5.91Mo 

7.21Mo 900,510 10.71Mo 919,323 10.91Mo 935,777 

2.4~ 196.628 2.3~ 219,008 2.61Mo 198,708 

1.21Mt 90,874 1.1~ 98.887 1.21Mo 86,211 

2.81Mo 167,031 2.01Mo 141,684 1.71Mo 147,051 

0.11Mo 

32 .. 

0.71Mo 45,058 

0.0~ 

6.81Mo 673,731 

7.71Mo 650,826 

0.9'111 

O.OIMo 

81,534 

10.91Mo 904,734 

2.31Mo 184,020 

1.01Mo 94,283 

18,249 

1.71Mo 152,57 1 

2.866,405 33.91Mo 2.979,763 )4.11Mo 3,106,431 34.9~ 3,306,386 35.2'111 3,122,090 )6.61Mo 3,183,084 37.7~ 3.277.931 38.8~ 3,252.290 37.9~ 3.253,225 

27,339 ., .. 
O.OIMo 

41 ,091 051Mo 45,931 0.51Mt 44,454 0.51Mt 35.885 0.41Mo 24,984 0.31Mo 24,175 0.31Mt 15,889 

77.873 

982,535 11.61Mo 989,744 11.31Mo 990,725 11.1111o 978,816 10.41Mo 927,023 10.9~ 920.960 10.91Mo 878,307 10.41Mo 1,266,007 

251,629 3.0~ 212,622 2.4~ 300.568 3.4~ 552.751 5.9~ 563,392 6.61Mo 512,558 6.11Mo 523.378 6.21Mo 535.906 

57,292 0.6~ 155,649 1.81Mo 151 ,110 1.81Mo 133,377 1.61Mo 166.326 

0.21Mo 23.836 

0.9~ 164,189 

14.81Mo 1,175,869 

6.2'111 560.138 

1 .9~ 168,297 

0.51M. 36,636 

7.71Mo 830,).49 

7.41Mo 693.995 

0.91Mo 84,600 

0.4~ 

9.11Mo 

7.61Mo 

0.91Mo 

10.41Mo 915,907 10.11Mo 

2.11Mo 185.270 2.01Mo 

1.11Mo 98,667 1.11Mo 

54,2 13 

1.71Mo 173.282 

0.61Mo 

1.9'MI 

37.21Mo 3,352,870 36.91Mo 

O.JIMo 27.276 

1.91M1 201.414 

., .. 
22 .. 

13.51Mo 1,167,661 12.91Mt 

6.41Mo 554.244 6.11Mo 

1.91Mo 156,729 1.71Mo 

45,589 O.SIMo 30,885 0.41Mo 23,285 0.31Mt 

8,439 0.11Mo 27,329 0.3~ 8,128 0.1~ 47,257 0.5~ 25,457 0.3~ 51.541 0.6~ 37,776 0.41Mo 43,634 0.5'MI 43,212 0.51Mo 39,664 0.41Mo 

7,852,982 92.91Mo 8,142,456 93 .11Mo 8,339,558 93.81Mo 8,754,541 93.21Mo 8,056,527 94.4'MI 7,956,118 94.1'MI 8,006,625 94.91Mo 8,153,091 95.1% 8,225,453 94.11Mo 8,596,062 94.61Mo 

288.843 ).41Mo 287,136 ).JIM. 275,087 ).liMo 238, 147 2.51Mo 232.289 2.71Mo 207.272 

17,603 0.21Mt 202,429 2.21M! 36,034 0.41M. 

114,010 1.31Mt 117,330 1.31M. 42,219 O.SIMI 17,098 0.21Mo 7,381 0.11Mo 18.670 

193.272 2.31Mo 202,812 2.31Mo 

55,646 0.61M. 36,610 0.4~ 66,783 0.81M. 93,380 

161.956 1.81M. 140.502 1 .5~ 136,760 1.61M. 178,386 

596,125 7.11Mo 607,278 6.91Mo 552,511 6.21M. 634,786 6.81M. 479,247 5.6~ 497,708 

8,449,107 100.01Mo 8,749,734 1001Mo 8,892,069 1001Mo 9,389,327 1001M. 8,535,774 100~ 8.453.886 

2.51Mo 155,421 

5,900 

6.709 0.1~ 12.766 

1.11Mo 92,818 1.11Mo 94,644 

2.11Mo 179,547 2.11Mo 162,620 

O.OIMt 5,880 

5.9~ 4)4,495 5.1~ 422.384 

1001Mo 8,441,120 100.. 8,575.475 

82,377 

77,392 

206 

"' 

62,061 

1.11Mo 101,456 

1.91M. 177,889 

0.11Mo 10,783 

4.9~ 512.164 

1001Mo 8.737,617 

0.91Mo 

51,126 

8,563 

84,000 

1,128 

8,075 

0.71Mo 84,880 

1.2% 98,808 

2.01Mo 149,524 

0.11Mo 78 

5.91Mo 486.182 

0.91M. 

0.11Mo 

0.91M. 

1 .1~ 

1.61M. 

5.41Mo 

1001Mo 9.082,244 1001M. 

• UnltMI and Continental completMI their merger on October 1. 2010 ~nd began operating as United on November 30, 2011. Data for UnltMI and Cootlnent~l have ~n combinM!In this t~ble starting FY 2012. 

• Airtr~n wn ~quired by SOUChwe-st in M~y 2011 and began oper~ting as Southwest AlrlinM on March 1, 2012. 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authonry 
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Exhibit S-14 
Year-Over-Year Percentage Growth in Passenger Enplanements, SOIA vs. US 

TOTAL EPAX - % CHANGE OVER PRIOR YEAR 

'----~---~------'-----'-------~----'-----~-----'-------'--------t 1S.O% 

10.0% 

S.O% 

0.0% 

·S.O% 

-10.0% 

· 1S.O% 

• U.S. Average is based on T -100 Mar1cet Reporting Data from the DOT Bureau of Transportation Statistics. 

This chart compares SOIA's year over year enplanement change compared to the US scheduled mainline service. 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority and US Dept of Transportation's T-1 00 enplanement data. 
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Exhibit S-15 
Capital Assets 

San Diego International Airport 
Number of runways 

Length of runway (feet) 

Number of gates 

Commuter plane parking positions 

Terminal Rentable Square footage 

Airport Land Area 

On airport parking spaces (public) 

Off airport parking spaces (public) 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Autho rity 

9.401 feet 

51 

10 

585.452 

661 acres 

2,053 

3,599 

The parking spaces shown above are controlled and operated by the Airport 

Authority and reported on a weighted average basis. 

The terminal rentable square footage is a weighted average figure that reflects 

the additional square footage constructed by the Green Build program. 
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Exhibit S-16 
Population & Per Capita Personal Income San Diego County 

(2000-201 0) 

Per Capita 

Calendar Estimated Personal o/o 

Year Population111 o/o Change lncome121 Change 

2005 3,038,074 0.9% 40,383 5.0% 

2006 3,065,077 0.9% 42,801 6.0% 

2007 3,100,132 1.1% 45,911 7.3% 

2008 3,131,552 1.0% 46,649 1.6% 

2009 3,173.407 1.3% 42,325 (9.3)% 

2010 3,091,579 (2.6)% 43,104 1.8% 

2011 3,118,876 0.9% 48,066 11.5% 

2012 3,128,734 0.3% 49,719 3.4% 

2013 3,150,178 0.7% 49,778 0.1% 

2014 3,194,362 1.4% 51,331 3.1% 

Sources: 

[1) California Department of Finance,E-1 Population Estimates for Cities, Counties and the 

State,atjanuary 1st of the calendar years shown. 

[2) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economic 

Accounts, Local Area Personal Income. 2013 and 2014 per capita personal income are 

estimates by the California Department of Transportation. Prior year's 2011 and 2012 per 

capita personal income has been updated. 

Total Personal 

lncome121 

122,686,542,342 

131,188,360,677 

142,330,1 60,252 

146,083,769,248 

134,314.451,275 

133,259.421,216 

149,911,893,816 

155,557,525,746 

156,809,560.484 

163,969,795,822 

o/o Change 

5.9% 

6.9% 

8.5% 

2.6% 

(8.1)% 

(0.8)% 

12.5% 

3.8% 

0.8% 

4.6% 
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Exhibit S-17 
Principal Employers in San Diego County 

2014 

Local 
Employer Employees Rank 

U S Federal Government 45,700 
State of Cal~orn1a 45,500 
Un•versay of Cal~ornia , San Diego 42,900 3 
Sharp Health Care 27,391 4 
County of San Diego 15,231 5 
Scripps Health 15,050 6 
Qualcomm Inc. 14,603 7 
C1ty of San Diego 14,097 8 
Ka1ser Foundation 11 ,400 9 
General Atorn1cs 10,057 10 

Total Industry Employment in San Diego County (June 2005): 
Total Industry Employment in San Diego County (June 2014): 

Source: Employers · San Diego Daily Transcript: 2005 & 2015 Book of lists 
Total Industry Employment - California Employment Development Dept., 
Labor Mart.et Info June 201 4 - March 2013 Benchmafi( 

Percentage of 
Total Industry 
Employment 

3.36% 
3.34% 
3.15% 
2.01% 
1.12% 
1.11% 
1.07% 
1.04% 
0.84% 
0.74% 

1,311,300 

1,360,900 

Employer 

U.S. Federal Government 
State of Cal~ornia 
San D1ego Un~ied School District 
University of California, San Diego 
County of San Diego 
Sharp Healthcare 
City of San D1ego 
US Postal Service 
Scripps HeaHh 
San Diego State University 

2005 

Percentage of 
Local Total Industry 

Employees Rank Employment 

40,700 1 3.10% 
38,800 2 2.96% 
26,700 3 2.04% 
23,225 4 1.77% 
16,810 5 1.28% 
12,945 6 0.99% 
12,398 7 0.95% 
11 ,611 8 0.89% 
10,517 9 0.80% 
6,512 10 0.50% 
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Exhibit S-18 
San Diego County Employment by Indust ry Sector 

june 20141ndustry 
Industry Sectors 

~mRI2:tm~ns %of Total 

Trade, Transportation and Utilities 215,1 00 

Government 235,800 

Professional and Business Services 227,900 

Leisure and Hospitality 177.400 

Education and Health Services 183,1 00 

Manufacturing 96,600 

Construction and Mining 67,700 

Financial Activities 71,200 

Other Services 51.400 

Information 24,200 

Agriculture 10,500 

Total 1,360,900 

Source: California Employment Development Dept. , Labor Market Info: Industry 

Employment & Labor Force, March 2013 Benchmark 

Other Services Trade, 
Transportation 

and Utilities 

15.8% 

17.3% 

16.7% 

13.0% 

13.5% 

7.1% 

5.0% 

5.2% 

3.8% 

1.8% 

0.8% 

Government 

Education and 

Leisure 
Hospitality 

Business 
Services 
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Exhibit S-19 
San Diego County Labor Force, Employment, and Unemployment Rates 

Unem~lo}'ment Rate 

Year Labor Force Em~lo}'ment Unem~lo}'ment SO County State 

2005 1,505,892 1,442,700 65,1 00 4.3% 5.4% 

2006 1,520,474 1,457,500 60,500 4.0% 4.9% 

2007 1,542,445 1,471 ,600 70,900 4.6% 5.4% 

2008 1,548,700 1,462,300 92,900 6.0% 7.2% 

2009 1,554,100 1 ,406, 100 151,300 9.7% 11.4% 

2010 1,558,200 1,393,900 164,300 1 0.5% 12.4% 

201 1 1,583,700 1,419,400 164,300 1 0.4% 1 0.7% 

201 2 1,598,800 1,450,600 148,200 9.3% 10.7% 

2013 1,596,000 1,470,900 125,100 7.8% 9.2% 

2014 1,588,500 1,491,600 96,900 6.1 % 7.3% 

Source: Ca lifornia Employment Development Dept., Labor Market Information Division 

Unemployment Rate and Labor Force, not seasonally adjusted 
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Exhibit S-20 
Debt Service Coverage 

R~ues~'1 

Oper~ting ~nd Mainten~nce Expenses 

Nett'l~ues -

Principal 

Interest 

PfCs ust'd to p.1y debt servke 

Tot~l Dfl>t Service for the Senior Bond 

Subord jnttt Ptbt 

Subordin.Jte Net R~ues IZI 

Subordln.Jte Annu.JI Debt Service~~ 

Prindp~l 

Interest 

Commercial Paper 

PFCs used lo po1y debt service 

Subordintte Obli&•tions Dtbt Servk • 

(0\ltriiJt (X) 

zoos 

s 112,104,190 

(89,337,926) 

22,766,264 

s 2,355,000 

3,197,029 

' 5,552,029 

4.10 

Source. San D1ego County Reg1onal Airport Authon ty 

•zOO< Z001 

' 123,308,672 ' 133,924,976 

(97,675,011) (103,942,210) 

25,633,661 29,982,766 

5,995,000 2,670,000 

2,949,705 2,665,725 

8,944,705 5,335,725 

2.17 5.62 

• The lncre~se in debt s~e requirements In 2006 wo1s due to principal o1nd interest payments required 
on botn tne Alfpon +<ev«~ue I:SOflas, ::.ertes l!N~ ano me Alrpon Hevenue Herunomg tsonas, ~enes lUU:,. 

•• The lncre~se In the 2011 debt service requirements is due to the a new bond Issued Oaober 2010. 

zoo• 

s 144,379,133 

(114,375,096) 

30,004,037 

' 2,805,000 

2,532,225 

' 5,337,225 

5.62 

(1) Revenues are collculated pursuo1nt to the provisions of the Master Senior Indenture and the Molster Subordlno1te Indenture. 

Net Rev«~ues o1nd Subordrn,ue Net Revfflues o1re uk:ulated pursu~nt to the provisions of lhe Mo1ster Senior Indenture o1nd 

(21 Mo1ster Subordin.l te Indenture, as o1ppropriate. 

{3) Ofl>t service with respect to the Senior Bonds is calculated pursuant to the provisions of the Master Senior Indenture. 

(4) Subordlno1te Annuo11 Debt Service is ukulo1ted pursuo1nt to the provisions of the Mo1ster Subordin.lte Indenture. 

(5) lndudes prindpo1l o1nd interest. 
1nformo1tion reg.ardlng SUbordino1te Obligo111ons Ofl>t Service Coveuge provided in connection with the first fisul yeo1r for 

(6) which Subordino1te Annuo1l Debt Sefvk:e wo1s due with respect to the 2010 Bonds. Subordln.lte Annuo1l Debt Service for prior 

yeo1rs consisted of debt service on the Authority's Subordin.lte Commerdo1l Po1per Notes and is not presented for Fiscoll Yeus 

2005-2008. 

Z009 

' 138,334,601 

(115,221,068) 

23,113,533 

2,950,000 

2,391,975 

5,34 1,975 

4.33 

' 
2010 -2011161 2012 2013 2014 

138.113,792 s 148,963,673 ' 158,311,779 ' 181,051,929 ' 199,566,223 

(116,275,132) (117,100,946) (118,941,148) (126,662,546) (136,604,105) 

21,838,660 31.862.727 39,370,631 54,389,383 62,962,118 

3,105,000 3,265,000 3,430,000 

2.244,475 2,089,225 1,925,975 2,478,489 16,645,435 

(714,077) (7,140,301) 

5,349,475 5,354,225 5,355,975 1,764,412 9,505,134 

4.01 5.95 7.35 30.13 6.62 

' 26,508,500 ' 34,014,656 ' 52,624,971 ' 53,456,985 

715,000 980,000 1,000,000 5,785,000 

2,971,984 6,599,760 26,194,616 27,069,283 

1,220.226 1,077,867 5,519,872 6,446,951 

(20,061,962) (20,718,863) 

4,907,210 8,657,627 ' 12,652,526 ' 18,582,371 

5.40 3.93 4.16 z.u 
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Exhibit S-21 
Debt Service Coverage- Series 2014 CFC Bonds 

CFC Collections 

Bond Funding Supplemental Consideration 

Transfers from CFC Stabilization Fund 

Interest Earnings ' 

Total Amounts Available 

Rolling Coverage Fund Balance' 

Total Amounts Available, plus Rolling Coverage Fund 

Balance 

Series 2014 Debt Service Requirements 

Coverage excluding Rolling Coverage Fund 

Coverage including Rolling Coverage Fund 

2014 

$ 27,545,001 

204,194 

27,749,195 

$ 27,749,195 

N/A 

N/A 

1 
Includes earnings on investments in the Senior Reserve Fund, the Rolling Coverage Fund and the CFC Surplus Fund. 

2 
Includes amount on deposit in the Rolling Coverage Fund at the beginning of each Fiscal Year, up to an amount not 

to exceed 30% of the Series 2014 Debt Service Requirements for such Fiscal Year. 
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Exhibit S-22 
Debt Per Enplaned Passenger 

Outstanding 

Fiscal Outstanding Commercial Total Enplaned 
Year Bond Debt (1) Paper Debt Capital Leases Outstanding Debt Passengers 

2005 60,605,000 51,694,000 112,299,000 8,449,107 

2006 59,451,787 51,694,000 111,145,787 8,749,734 

2007 55,709,517 51,694,000 107,403,517 8,892,069 

2008 52,812,246 49,430,000 1 02,242,246 9,389,327 

2009 49,779,975 84,430,000 134,209,975 8,535,774 

2010 46,602,704 164,430,000 377,172 21 1,409,876 8,453,886 

2011 640,920,314 21 ,509,000 519,866 662,949,180 8,441,120 

2012 635,307,968 20,729,000 361,641 656,398,609 8,575,475 

2013 1,027,411 '188 50,969,000 8,152,588 1 ,086,532, 776 8,737,617 

2014 (2) 1,327,897,591 44,884,000 7,810,927 1,380,592,518 9,082,244 

Source: San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

(1) Outstanding Bond Debt includes unamortized bond premium 

(2) Starting in 2014, Outstanding Bond Debt includes CFC Bond issuance 

Generally Accepted Accounting Standards state that debt service, as shown in the Authority's Financial 

Statement schedules, include net bond premium and capital lease liability 

Debt per 

Enplaned 

Passenger 

13.29 

12.70 

12.08 

10.89 

15.72 

25 .01 

78.54 

76.54 

124.35 

152.01 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 8 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Quarterly Audit Activities Report- Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter, and Audit 
Recommendations Issued by the Office of the Chief Auditor 

Recommendation: 

The Audit Committee recommends that the Board accept the report. 

Background/Justification: 

The Charter for the Office of the Chief Auditor (OCA), as approved by the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority Board, establishes the roles, responsibilities, and 
working relationship of the Chief Auditor with the Audit Committee and with Authority 
management. To reflect current operational practices, the Charter was revised on 
September 4, 2014, Resolution No. 2014-0089. 

The Charter directs the Office of the Chief Auditor to periodically communicate to the 
Audit Committee with respect to management's systems of control, audit findings, 
management's responses, and including any steps adopted to resolve a noted issue. 

The attached Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Activity Report (Attachment A) summarizes 
the undertakings and accomplishments of the Chief Auditor's office from July 1, 2014, 
through September 30, 2014. 

During the first quarter, the Office of the Chief Auditor completed nine (9) audits of the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Audit Plan and issued four (4) recommendations. The implementation 
status of audit recommendations issued by the Office of the Chief Auditor is detailed in 
Appendix C of the activity report. 

On November 17, 2014, the Audit Committee received a presentation on the 2015 first 
quarter activities of the OCA, provided by the Manager, Audit Services, at a regular 
meeting of the Audit Committee. The Committee unanimously voted to forward the 
report to the Board for information. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None 
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ITEM NO.8 
Page 2 of 2 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

0 Community 0 Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

0 Employee 
Strategy 

[gl Financial 
Strategy 

[gl Operations 
Strategy 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act CCEQA"), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by 
the California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not applicable 

Prepared by: 

MARK BURCHYETT 
CHIEF AUDITOR 
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ATTACHMENT A 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF AUDITOR 

FY15 FIRST QUARTER REPORT 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTV 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

November 6, 2014 

Tom Smisek, Chair 
Audit Committee 
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 
P.O. Box 82776 
San Diego, California 92138-2776 

Dear Mr. Smisek: 

FY15 First Quarter Report 

The Office of the Chief Auditor (OCA) presents our Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report. The 
report details both the audit and the administrative activities of the OCA during the first quarter 
of Fiscal Year 2015; and it includes the resolutions of past audit findings and information 
regarding the future plans of the OCA. 

The First Quarter Report will be presented at the next Audit Committee meeting scheduled for 
November 17, 2014. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mark A. Burchyett 
Chief Auditor 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF AUDITOR 
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FY15 First Quarter Report 

Audit Results 

During the first quarter, the OCA began work on audits contained within the FY15 audit plan as 
authorized by the Audit Committee and wrapped up audits from the FY14 audit plan. In total, 
during the first quarter, the OCA completed nine (9) audits. For the month of September, we 
issued three (3) audit reports , for which audit snapshots are located in Appendix A. The audit 
reports didn't include any recommendations, leaving the total recommendations issued during 
the first quarter at four (4). The completed audits are listed in Figure 1 below and the status of 
recommendations is presented on Page 3. 

Figure 1: Audits Completed During the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 

Audit Report No. Date Type of Audit 

Timekeeping Payroll Processing 14005 7/18/2014 Internal Process 

Emergency Medical Technician-Paramedic Services 14032 7/22/2014 Expense Contract 

COW-Government 15012 8/7/2014 Expense Contract 

GGTW, LLC, aka South Bay Salt Works 15041 8/11/2014 Revenue Contract 

Cartwright Termite & Pest Control , Inc. 15007 8/18/2014 Expense Contract 

Paradies - San Diego LLC 15028 8/20/2014 Revenue Contract 

Agreements with Expenditure Limits Not to Exceed 
$100,000 15038 9/5/2014 Internal Process 

Ninyo & Moore Geotechnical and Environmental 
Service Consultants, Inc. 15009 9/24/2014 Expense Contract 

Airlines and Others 15023 9/26/2014 Revenue Contract 

In addition to the completed audits, the Office of the Chief Auditor had eleven (11) audits in 
progress as of September 30, 2014, as shown in Figure 2 below: 

Figure 2: Audits In-Progress as of September 30, 2014 

Audit Type of Audit 

Airport Noise Management Internal Process 

Aircraft Rescue & Fire Fighting (ARFF) Expense Billings - FY13 Expense Contract 

Avis Rent A Car Systems LLC Revenue Contract 

Concessionaire Management and Performance Internal Process 

Demattei Wong Architecture, Inc. Expense Contract 

EZ Rent A Car Revenue Contract 

Fox Rent A Car Revenue Contract 

Merriwether Williams Insurance Services Expense Contract 

Mission Yogurt Inc. Revenue Contract 

Pacific Gateway Concessions and Procurement Concepts Inc. (PGC-PCI) Revenue Contract 

The Hertz Corporation Revenue Contract 
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FY1 5 First Quarter Report 

Of the eleven (11) in-progress audits above, three (3) draft audit reports had been forwarded to 
the affected Departments for review and comment. Additionally, one (1) of the above audits, 
Mission Yogurt, Inc., was issued. 

Recommendation Follow-Up 

To ensure that audit issues are addressed in a timely manner, the OCA tracks the status of its 
recommendations on an on-going basis. For the last month in the quarter, the OCA tracked the 
implementation status of 25 recommendations that were issued during FY15, or were 
outstanding as of June 30, 2014. As shown by Figure 3 below, twelve (12) of the 
recommendations have been completed or implemented while twelve (12) remain outstanding . 
One recommendation was not accepted by Management. A Board Communication memo 
dated June 19, 2014, from the Authority President/CEO to SDCRAA Board Members provided 
the rationale for rejecting the finding . 

See Appendix C for a complete listing of all outstanding recommendations and their status. 

Figure 3: Status of Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 

Recommendations: 

Tracked Completed In Progress Open Not Accepted 

25 12 12 0 1 

In tracking recommendations the OCA uses the following designations: 

• Completed: This designation is used for recommendations that the OCA has 
determined to be adequately implemented or for recommendations where alternate 
action was taken that adequatley addresses the risk identified. 

• In Progress: These recommendations have been partially addresed or partial 
corrective action has been taken. If adequate progress is not being made, it will be 
noted as such. 

• Open: This category of recommendations have not yet been addressed. Usually, this 
desigantion is used when there has not been adequate time between report issuance 
and recommendation follow-up. 

• Not Accepted: This designation is used for recommendations that an auditee does not 
accept and, therefore, will not implement. This category can represent a failing on the 
part of the OCA, as all recommendations should be workable and acceptable to the 
affected departments. 

It appears that adequate progress is being made with the majority of recommendations, and the 
OCA will continue its monthly tracking of their status. Specifically, the non-completion of the "In 
Progress" recommendations should not have a material adverse effect on the Authority. 
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FY15 First Quarter Report 

Non-Audit Activities 

Along with the audit activities detailed above, the OCA continues its involvement in several non­
audit projects and activities. Specifically, during the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 the OCA 
was involved in the following: 

Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee met on August 18, 2014. During that meeting, the Committee received an 
update on the Construction Audit activity, the OCAs FY14 Annual Activity Report, and the Audit 
Committee FY14 Annual Report. The next meeting is scheduled for November 17, 2014. 

Construction Audit Activity: 

For the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2015, the OCA continued its Construction Audit activity 
separate from its Annual Audit Plan. During the quarter, Finance completed the review of the 
Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) eligibility of Green Build landside expenses. The Construction 
Auditor is reviewing the process used, and starting to review the final results. The review of the 
reimbursable costs incurred for the Checked Baggage Inspection System that have been 
reimbursed is nearing completion. 

The Construction Auditor is currently completing a review of the Green Build attic stock and the 
Terminal Flight Information Display System project. Through attendance at the Capital 
Improvement Committee meetings and the Northside Development Stakeholder meetings, the 
OCA Construction Auditor continues to provide assistance in ensuring that the Authority is 
meeting compliance requirements for ongoing and planned projects. 

Additionally, the OCA Construction Auditor remains involved with issues identified by the Airport 
Design and Construction team and Authority Management, giving assistance and attending 
meetings specific to the aspects of the Authority's construction activity. A formal update is 
presented to the Audit Committee during regularly scheduled meetings and will be presented to 
the Capital Improvement Program Oversight Committee as determined necessary. 

Ethics Compliance Program: 

The OCA continues to run the Authority Ethics Program and confidential hotline system, 
including e-mail and voicemail. See Appendix B, Ethics Hotline Call Summary, for a listing of 
calls received during the quarter. 

Training: 
During the first quarter, OCA staff participated in several Internet-based training seminars. Of 
note were webinars held by The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) regarding performance 
auditing of procurement, and various webinars held by ISACA, a professional association 
focused on Information Technology (IT) governance, regarding IT auditing. 

000249 
3 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF AUDITOR 



FY15 First Quarter Report 

Performance Measures 

The OCA establishes performance measures each year to provide a benchmark to gauge its 
success. The five (5) performance measures for FY15, along with their current status, are 
detailed below in Figure 4. 

Figure 4: Status of Performance Measures as of September 30, 2014 

Performance Measure Goal Progress as of 
September 30,2014 

Percentage of the audit plan completed annually 100% 20% 

Additional revenue/cost savings identified through audits n/a $6,984 

Percentage of staff time spent on audit activities 80%1 92% 

Percentage of audits completed within budgeted time 80% 89% 

Implementation of Recommendations 90% 48% 

Percentage of the audit plan completed annually: This measure provides information on 
what has been accomplished regarding the planned audit projects for the year. To date the 
OCA has completed 20% of the plan and an additional 24% of the audit plan is currently in­
progress. We also have established quarterly goals for the completion of our audit plan. For 
the first quarter, we had a completion goal of 27% of the audit plan. Regardless, we should be 
able to meet our annual goal of completing the entire plan by the end of the fiscal year. 

Additional revenue/cost savings identified: While the value of an audit cannot be 
adequately assessed by this performance measure, it does provide quantifiable values for 
completed audits. During the first three quarters we identified a net total of $6,984 as shown in 
Figure 5 below. To date, we have not identified any soft cost savings through our auditing 
activities. 

Figure 5: Additional Revenue and Cost Savings Identified through Audit Activity 

Audit Report Title Amount Identified 

14032 Emergency Medical Technician-Paramedic Services $6,984 

Total $6,984 

Percentage of staff time spent on audit activities: This measure helps ensure that the OCA 
spends an adequate amount of time on audit activities rather than administrative activities. To 
date, the OCA is well over its current goal of 80%. 

1 This percentage is the percentage of time staff spends on audit projects, construction audit activities, 
training, and the Ethics Program, vs. total staff time worked . 
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FY1 5 First Quarter Report 

Percentage of audits completed within budgeted time: This category monitors how efficient 
audit staff is in performing their audits. Specifically, audit staff is held accountable to the 
internally prepared audit budgets for each project. However, it recognizes that budgets may 
need adjustment(s) as additional facts become known during an audit. For the fiscal year to 
date, the OCA is over its goal of completing 80% of its projects within the budgeted amount of 
time. 

Implementation of Recommendations: This goal measures the value that the OCA is 
providing to the Authority by measuring how audit recommendations have impacted the 
Authority. For the fiscal year, twelve (12) of 25 recommendations were implemented. While the 
percentage of implemented recommendations is under our goal, we are on track to achieve the 
goal, with an aim to have 90% of our recommendations implemented within the year. 
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FY15 First Quarter Report 

Going Forward 

For completion during the second quarter of FY15, the OCA has targeted all of the audits 
currently in progress, as well as three (3) additional audits on the FY15 Audit Plan. The 
completion of these audits will result in the accomplishment of 51% of the FY15 Audit Plan. 
Figure 7 identifies the audits scheduled for completion in the second quarter. 

Figure 7: Audits Scheduled for Completion in the Second Quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 

Audit Type of Audit 

Airport Noise Management Internal Process 

Aircraft Rescue & Fire Fighting (ARFF) Expense Billings Expense Contract 

Avis Rent A Car Systems LLC Revenue Contract 

Cloud Management and Performance Internal Process 

Concessionaire Management and Performance Internal Process 

Demattei Wong Architecture, Inc. Expense Contract 

EZ Rent A Car Revenue Contract 

Fox Rent A Car Revenue Contract 

Hudson Group, Concourse Ventures Inc. Revenue Contract 

JCDecaux, Inc. Revenue Contract 

Merriwether Williams Insurance Services Expense Contract 

Mission Yogurt Inc. Revenue Contract 

Pacific Gateway Concessions and Procurement Concepts Inc. Revenue Contract 

The Hertz Corporation Revenue Contract 

00 0252 
6 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF AUDITOR 



APPENDIX A: Audit Snapshots FY15 First Quarter Report 

Agreements with Expenditure Limits Not to Exceed $100,000 
Report Number 15038, September 2014 

Background 
The Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Audit Plan required that the Office of the Chief Auditor (OCA) 
review a sample of agreements with contractors that contain expenditure limits of less than 
$100,000. The purpose of this audit is to verify compliance with agreement terms and 
appropriateness of expenditures. A brief description of each of the agreements reviewed is 
provided below. 

1. CR&A Custom, Inc. 
CR&A Custom, Inc. was contracted to provided design, fabrication, and installation of an 
aluminum wall-mounted vinyl graphic media framing system on the east-facing exterior wall of 
the Commuter Terminal. The agreement was managed by the Airport Art Program of the 
Vision, Voice & Engagement Department. 

2. Meridian Systems. Inc. 
Meridian Systems, Inc. was contracted as a sole source provider for the construction project 
data system, Prolog. The agreement is managed by the Facilities Development Department. 

3. California Center for Sustainable Energy. 
The California Center for Sustainable Energy was contracted to provide services needed for 
implementing the Authority's Clean Vehicle Conversion Program for off-airport ground 
transportation providers. The contract was first managed by the Airport Planning & Noise 
Mitigation Department, and then transferred to the Ground Transportation Department. 

4. Carahsoft Technology Corporation. 
Carahsoft Technology Corporation is contracted to provide services needed to provide 
continuous maintenance, support services, and web based upgrades, for the SAP software 
currently utilized by the Authority. The contract is managed by the Information Technology 
Department. 

5. American Appraisal Associates, Inc. 
American Appraisal Associates, Inc. was contracted to provide professional appraisal services, 
including ascertaining replacement cost values for insuring Authority buildings and equipment. 
The agreement was managed by the Risk Management Department. 

6. Reynolds Business Forms, Inc. 
Reynolds Business Forms, Inc. is contracted to provide professional, on-call reprographic and 
related services. The agreement is managed by the Procurement and Small Business 
Development Department. 

7. A-Advanced Locksmiths 
A-Advanced Locksmiths is contracted to provide maintenance and repair services to the 
Authority's facilities locksets throughout San Diego International Airport. The agreement is 
managed by the Facilities Maintenance Department. 

8. UniFirst Corporation 
UniFirst Corporation is contracted to provide and maintain mats in doorways at San Diego 
International Airport. The agreement is managed by the Facilities Maintenance Department. 
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APPENDIX A: Audit Snapshots FY15 First Quarter Report 

9. Buss-Shelger Associates 
Buss-Shelger Associates is contracted to provide real estate appraisal services. The 
agreement is managed by the Business & Financial Management Department. 

Audit Results: No Reportable Findings 

Airlines and Others 
Report Number 15023, September 2014 

Background 
Airlines and Others manages the fuel system operations at the San Diego International Airport 
under a 20 year Lease Agreement (Agreement) with a term of October 1, 1996, to October 31 , 
2016. The actual administration of the fuel system operation is sub-contracted by Allied 
Aviation Services, Inc. (Allied). Allied is responsible for ensuring the proper calculation of 
payments related to both "Exempt" and "Non-exempt" airline fueling distributions. Fuel 
dispensed to airlines that operate at SOIA and have not signed an Airline Operating Agreement 
(AOA) with the Authority is subject to a flowage fee of $0.05 per gallon. Additionally, per the 
Agreement, Airlines and Others is subject to the following monthly charges: 

• Capital Recovery Charges of $118,951, 

• Property Lease Charges of $63,124, and 

• Rent Adjustment Recovery Charges of $8,301. 

For the audit period July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2014, Allied, on behalf of Airlines and Others, paid 
a total of $4,943,348 to the Authority. 

The objective of this audit was to ensure that the Authority received the proper amount of 
revenue from Allied for Capital Recovery and Property Lease Charges as well as Non-Exempt 
Fuel distribution fees during the audit period. 

Audit Results: No Reportable Findings 

Audit work determined that Allied properly calculated, reported, and paid the fuel flowage fees 
for airlines operating without an AOA, and remitted the amounts due for the fuel system 
operations Capital Recovery and Property Lease Charges. In addition, a review of the internal 
controls used by Allied Aviation found that they appear to be adequately tracking the fuel 
disbursements. 
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APPENDIX A: Audit Snapshots FY15 First Quarter Report 

Ninyo & Moore 
Geotechnical and Environmental Service Consultants, Inc. 

Report Number 15009, September 2014 

Background 
Ninyo & Moore Geotechnical and Environmental Service Consultants, Inc. (Ninyo & Moore) has 
been an on-call contractor at the Authority since 2002. During the audit period of July 1, 2007, 
to June 30, 2014, there were two (2) Agreements open for Ninyo & Moore, Agreement 800130 
OB was for on-call material testing, special inspection , and geothermal services for the Facilities 
Development Department (FDD) and the Environmental Affairs Department (Environmental). 
The Agreement covered the period of January 15, 2007, through December 31, 2012. The 
amount payable under the Agreement was not to exceed $3,500,000. In total, Ninyo & Moore 
was reimbursed $766,543 under this Agreement during the audit period. 

Agreement 800305 OB is for on-call material testing, special inspection, and geothermal 
services for FDD. The Agreement covers the period of November 15, 2012, through 
October 15, 2015. The amount payable under the Agreement is not to exceed $3,500,000. 
Through July 31, 2014, Ninyo & Moore was reimbursed $1,452,054 under this Agreement. 

All Agreements contain specified labor rates by labor type, rates for specific types of testing and 
prices for entire projects billed by percentage of completion. This also includes approved Ninyo 
& Moore sub-contractors and their rates. Ninyo & Moore invoices the Authority monthly based 
on the contract pricing. 

Audit Results 
The audit found that the procedures to award both of the on-call agreements to Ninyo & Moore 
were compliant with Authority Policy. For the Authority departments using Ninyo & Moore 
services, adequate internal controls are followed. Audit work verified that items billed on sample 
Ninyo & Moore invoices were delivered and verified as invoiced and that the invoices received 
adequate review and the required authorization prior to their submission for payment. 

000255 
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APPENDIX B: Ethics Hotline Call Summary 

Code of Ethics Concerns 

Potential Misuse of Public Funds 

Construction/Car Rental 

Public Art 

Advertising 

Potential Misuse of Resources 

Employee Barbeque 

Prohibited Use of Position 

Non Ethics Related Concerns 

ATO Practices and Behavior 

Aircraft Noise 

TSA Practices and Behavior 

Workplace Concerns 

Workplace Practices/Behavior 

Performance Reviews 

Volunteer Opportunity Emails 

Workplace Equitability 

United Way 

Ethics Summary 
July- September 2014 

Number 
Number 

Details Support 
of 

Received 
Potential Code 

Reports 
Anonymously 

Violation (Ethics 
Received or Workplace) 

17 12 0 

11 9 0 

9 6 0 

8 6 0 

1 0 0 

12 3 0 

7 6 0 

5 5 0 

16 7 0 

13 5 0 

8 8 0 

8 7 0 

1 1 0 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF AUDITOR 

FY15 First Quarter Report 

Response (email 
Investigation or phone to non-
of Concern anonymous 

reports) 

I 

' n/a 5 

n/a 2 

n/a 3 

n/a 2 
I 

I 

n/a 1 I 

I 

n/a 9 

n/a 1 

n/a 0 

n/a 9 

n/a 8 

n/a 0 

n/a 1 

n/a 0 

1 



APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 
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Rec.No. 

11-10 

14-24 

14-25 

14-20 

o.partment Name 

GROUND 
TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT 

BUSINESS AND 
FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT 
DEPARTMENT 

BUSINESS AND 
FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT 
DEPARTMENT 

BUSINESS AND 
FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT 
DEPARTMENT 

Audit Report Deacrlptlon 
Rlak 

IcoN 

Audit Report #11 032 20 
dated February 4, 2011 , 
Taxicab Cost Recovery 
Program 

Audit Report #14017, 20 
dated June 3, 2014, 
Nevada Lease and 
Rentals, Inc. (Payless) 

Audit Report #140 17, 20 
dated June 3, 2014, 
Nevada Lease and 
Rentals, Inc. (Payless) 

Audit Report #14017, 19 
dated June 3, 2014, 
Nevada Lease and 
Rentals, Inc. (Payless) 

. 
Rlak RHommendlltlon 

Impact: 10 To ensure the accurate recording of all 
Probability: 10 ground transportation activities at SOIA, the 

Ground Transportation Department should 
upgrade or replace the Automated Vehicle 
Identification (A VI) system. Once the AVI 
system is updated or replaced , the trip fee 
payment process should be automated . 
The AVI system data would be uploaded 
daily to a website accessible to the taxicab 
operators to allow them to track and 
download the trip data per taxicab. 
Monthly, the Ground Transportation 
Department would lump sum bill the activity 
to the taxicab companies. This would 
eliminate an unnecessary risk of 
misappropriation of Authority assets and the 
reliance on LPI employees to properly 
record and account for the collections. 

Impact: 10 Business and Financial Management 
Probability: 10 should inform Payless that they are 

required to remit all monies collected in the 
form of CFCs. Additionally, Payless should 
immediately recalculate the CFCs collected 
from January 1, 2014, thru present, and 
remit any monies previously excluded, in 
total, to the Authority. 

Impact: 10 Business and Financial Management 
Probability: 10 should request Accounting generate an 

invoice to Payless in the amount of 
$297,814. 

Impact: 9 Due to the lack of cooperation, the 
Probability: 10 inaccuracies of the financial data provided, 

and the inability to provide all requested 
supporting paperwork, we recommend that 
Management take appropriate measures to 
ensure that Payless immediately complies 
with all terms of the License Agreement. 

Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

! 
Statusuof OCA'a Estimated I 

September 30, 2014 Anesament Completion Date 

The AVI system is scheduled for In Progress March 2016 
completion in March 2016 . 
Completion has been delayed due 
to delays in the construction of the 
new taxi hold lot. 

~ 

I 

• Staff is reviewing attestation In Progress 2nd Quarter FY1 5 
provided by CPA engaged by tenant 
to determine any adjustments to the 
proposed tenant billings by the 
internal audit report. 

Staff is reviewing attestation In Progress 2nd Quarter FY15 
provided by CPA engaged by tenant 
to determine any adjustments to the 
proposed tenant billings by the 
internal audit report. 

Payless has engaged a CPA firm to In Progress Unknown 
review the internal audit report and 
implement all of the 
recommendations. 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probability. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1·10, with maximum possible scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 

possible combined score of 20. 1 
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APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

Rec.No. o.p.rtment....... . AldrRilport Dncitptlon Rlak Risk RecolnfMIICialton Statusuof OCA'a e.tlmated 
Score September 30, 2014 Assessment Completion Date 

14-21 BUSINESS AND Audit Report #14017, 18 Impact: 9 Business and Financial Management Payless has engaged a CPA firm to In Progress Unknown 
FINANCIAL dated June 3, 2014, Probability: 9 should inform Payless that they must review the internal audit report and 
MANAGEMENT Nevada Lease and immediately implement a financial reporting implement all of the 
DEPARTMENT Rentals, Inc. (Payless) system to accurately segregate revenues recommendations. 

collected and to properly calculate gross 
revenue and concession fees due. 

14-22 BUSINESS AND Audit Report #14017, 18 Impact: 9 Business and Financial Management Payless has engaged a CPA firm to In Progress Unknown 
FINANCIAL dated June 3, 2014, Probabi l ity: 9 should inform Payless that they must review the internal audit report and 
MANAGEMENT Nevada Lease and immediately implement a system to ensure implement all of the 
DEPARTMENT Rentals, Inc. (Payless) only rental agreements that fully meet the recommendations . 

Non-Airport criteria of the Agreement are 
- excluded from gross revenue. 

14-35 GROUND Audit Report #14011 , 17 Impact: 9 The Ground Transportation Department GT requires written approvals for all Completed NIA 
TRANSPORTATION dated June 10, 2014 , Probabil ity: 8 should provide Ace written approvals for all special project requests and 
DEPARTMENT Ace Parking Management, special project requests and require the maintains documentation. 

Inc. approvals to be attached as supporting 
documentation with reimbursement 
requests . 

12-38 GROUND Audit Report #12001 , 15 Impact: 8 Policies and procedures should be GT reviewed all rules and features Completed NIA 
TRANSPORTATION dated April 25, 2012, Probab ility: 7 developed and instituted by Ground to determine appropriateness. If 
DEPARTMENT Public Parking Transportation , the Planning and any deviations from those rules are 

Operations division, and the Finance required they require written 
Division regarding all areas of public approval from the Director of 
parking management. Ground Transportation . 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probability. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, with maximum possible scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 
possible combined score of 20. 2 



APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 

Rec.No. 

0 
0 
0 
l'\,) 
Ul 
co 

14-29 

14-30 

14-34 

Department ..... 

TALENT, CULTURE 
AND CAPABILITY 
DEPARTMENT 

TALENT, CULTURE 
AND CAPABILITY 
DEPARTMENT 

GROUND 
TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT 

Audit Report DeKI'Ipllon 

Audit Report #14003, 
dated June 10, 2014 , 
Human Resources 
Services Performance 

Audit Report #14003, 
dated June 10, 2014, 
Human Resources 
Services Performance 

Audit Report #14011 , 
dated June 10, 2014, 
Ace Parking Management, 
Inc. 

Rlalc Risk ReconiiMndallon 8core 

15 Impact: 8 We recommend that TCC reconcile billings 
Probability: 7 for benefits monthly to the current benefits 

in effect for all employees prior to 
submission for payment. The incorrect 
billing amounts should be deducted from 
the billing prior to payment. This will ensure 
the Authority is paying only for benefits 
received by Authority employees. 

15 Impact: 8 Since it is known that there have been 
Probability: 7 issues with the billings since at least July 

2013, we recommend that TCC perform a 
complete reconciliation of all benefit billings 
for fiscal year 2014 prior to the end of the 
fiscal year to ensure the Authority has not 
overpaid for any employee benefits. 

15 Impact: 8 The Ground Transportation Department 
Probability: 7 should develop and document procedures 

to verify and review, on a regular basis, the 
requirements set forth in both the Parking 
Management Services and Shuttle Services 
Agreements to ensure Ace is compliant with 
Agreement terms. 

Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

Statusuflf OCA's Estimated 
September 30, 2014 Aaseaament Completion Date 

TCC does reconcile billings for Completed N/A 
benefits on a monthly basis, 
however, for all itemized billing (list 
bills) it is not possible to ensure that 
adjustments will be in advance of 
bill payment, due to coordination of 
timing for terminations, new hire 
enrollments , and other qualifying 
event changes to enrollments. We 
have moved the majority of our 
benefits billing to a self-bill process 
that allows us to generate an 
invoice based on E-1 payroll 
deductions at the end of the service 
month. Payment is made based on 
this self-generated invoice. 
We are currently unable to move 
Anthem to a self bill as they require 
a larger membership for this type of 
billing . 

A full reconciliation of all list bills for Completed N/A 
2014 was completed and the 
appropriate adjustments were 
made. 

The GT has begun verifying and Completed N/A 
reviewing the requirements and 
compliance on an on-going, as 
needed, basis. 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probability. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, with maximum possible scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maxim um 

possible combined score of 20. 3 



APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

Depllrtment ....... Audit Rtport DHcrlp1lon 
Rlalc Rlllk Reconlmendallon 

Status a of OCA's Estimated ' Rec.No. Score September 30, 2014 Aasesament Completion Date 

14-36 GROUND Audit Report #14011 , 15 Impact: 8 The Ground Transportation Department GT developed a process to verify In Progress - 2nd Quarter FY15 
TRANSPORTATION dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 7 should develop a process to verify shuttle the shuttle hours and identify The OCA needs 
DEPARTMENT Ace Parking Management, hours charged through a comparison of potential deviations. to review the 

Inc. personnel time sheets and shuttle process in place 
operational hours to in-service reports. In prior to closing 
addition, Ground Transportation should out this 
improve procedures to conduct a more recommendation . 
thorough analysis of the hours charged to 
identify potential deviations and shuttle 
usage by parking lot. 

14-32 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14003, 14 Impact: 7 We recommend that all TCC employees be All TCC employees have a signed Completed N/A 
AND CAPABILITY dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 7 required to sign a confidentiality agreement. Confidentiality Agreement on file. 
DEPARTMENT Human Resources 

Services Performance 

14-11 FACILITIES Audit Report #14010, 13 Impact: 7 We recommend that Management consider Based on information provide by In Progress 2nd Quarter FY15 
DEVELOPMENT dated November 22, 2013, Probability: 6 amending Authority Policy to limit the FDD, the OCA is re-evaluating this 
DEPARTMENT Abadjis Systems, Ltd . amount of continuous time an individual recommendation. 

contractor may work at the Authority . The 
limit could be by time, contract, and/or 
project. The limit could provide an 
opportunity to evaluate whether the 
contractor's services are required on a 
temporary or permanent basis. 

14-23 BUSINESS AND Audit Report #140 17, 13 Impact: 7 Business and Financial Management Payless has engaged a CPA firm to In Progress Unknown 
FINANCIAL dated June 3, 2014, Probability: 6 should inform Payless that they must review the internal audit report and 
MANAGEMENT Nevada Lease and immediately update their rental agreement implement all of the 
DEPARTMENT Rentals, Inc. (Payless) template to include the proper language recommendations. 

regarding "non-Airport" customers. 

15-01 FACILITIES Audit Report #14005, 13 Impact: 7 We recommend that Facilities Maintenance FMD is on-track for implementing In Progress FY15 
MAINTENANCE dated July 18, 2014, Probability: 6 Department (FMD) strengthen internal the Computer Maintenance 
DEPARTMENT Timekeeping Payroll controls within their current Timekeeping Management System (CMMS) this 

Processing system. As the Computer Maintenance coming year. They have identified a 
Management System (CMMS) is contractor to assist with the 
implemented, FMD should seek to include implementation . 
increased automation where possible as 
well as capture actual time worked on 

~ 
specific work orders, which can then be 
used to build a knowledge base for 
assigning expected completion times to c:: work orders and more accurate work 

l\: scheduling. 

~ .._ 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probability. 8oth Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, with maximum possi ble scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 

possible combined score of 20. 4 
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APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

Rec.No. Department ...... Audit Report DMcrlptlon Risk Risk Recolnmendatlon Status•of OCA's Estimated 
Score Sepfltmber 30, 2014 Assessment Completion Date ,, 

14-27 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14003, 12 Impact: 7 Employee records and personnel files With the implementation of the Completed N/A 
AND CAPABILITY dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 5 should be protected in an environmentally Electronic Content Management 
DEPARTMENT Human Resources safe storage area and a backup of the files System, we are/ have begun 

Services Performance should be created and kept off site. working with Corporate Services to 
better assess and determine which 
files are vital records that may not 
be backed up and stored off site in 
one of our existing systems or 
another format. In addition, 
employee paper files have been 
moved from the front of the office 
near the window to an interior office 
away from the sun or potential 
exposure to any elements. 

Many employee records are 
already maintained in electronic 
format in various locations including 
the network drives, JD Edwards 
EnterpriseOne, Wingspan 
Performance, and Green Light 
Learning Management Systems. 
These electronic records are 
automatically backed up and stored I 

off site. Inactive paper files are 
stored off site in an environmentally 
safe storage facility. 

15-04 AIRS IDE Audit Report #14032, 12 Impact: 6 The Airside Operations/Public Safety & The Authority received a credit for Completed 
OPERATIONS PUBLIC dated July 22, 2014, Probability: 6 Security Department should request the the full amount on the July 201 4 
SAFETY & SECURITY Emergency Medical City to add as an Authority credit $6,984 invoice. 
DEPARTMENT Technician-Paramedic ($2,328/3) to the City's EMT-P service 

Services invoices for the next three (3) months. 

14-26 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14003, 11 Impact: 6 The required posters for Equal Employment An Equal Employment Opportunity Completed N/A 
AND CAPABILITY dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 5 Opportunity is the Law and Your Rights (EEO) Poster was placed in the 
DEPARTMENT Human Resources Under the Family and Medical Leave Act West Wing reception lobby where 

Services Performance should be posted in an area where all all in-person candidates can readily 
applicants for employment can readily see view them while onsite . 
them, such as the Talent, Culture and 
Capability lobby. 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probability. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, w ith maximum possi ble scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 
poss ible combined score of 20. 5 
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APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarte r Repo rt 

RK.No. Department Name Audit Report DMcrlptlon 
Risk Risk Rec:orniMncllll 

St8tusasof OCA's Estimated 
Score September 30, 2014 Assessment Completion Date 

14-37 GROUND Audit Report #140 11 , 11 Impact: 6 The Ground Transportation Department GT plans on calculating the annual Completed N/A 
TRANSPORTATION dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 5 should annually calculate the cost of costs in December 2014 and will do 
DEPARTMENT Ace Parking Management, subsidizing parking costs to other so annually. 

Inc. government agencies and provide the 
results to Authority Management. Authority 
Management should review the data and 
determine if it wishes to continue reducing 
Authority revenue by the amounts 
identified. 

14-38 GROUND Audit Report #14011 , 11 Impact: 6 The Ground Transportation Department GT reviewed all rules and features Completed N/A 
TRANSPORTATION dated June 1 0, 2014, Probability: 5 should review all rules and features within to determine appropriateness. If 
DEPARTMENT Ace Parking Management, the Parking Card Program and determine if any deviations from those rules are 

Inc. the rules are appropriate and required for required they require written 
card holders at SOIA. The "anti-passback" approval from the Director of 
feature should be activated immediately for Ground Transportation. 
all card holders without exception to prevent 
possible fraudulent activity. 

15-03 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14005 , 11 Impact: 6 We recommend that Authority Management The TCC Department recently In Progress - End of FY15 
AND CAPABILITY dated July 18, 2014, Probability: 5 work to develop a consistent process for became aware of this The OCAwi ll 
DEPARTMENT Timekeeping Payroll employees to obtain and document prior recommendation. The TCC continue to check 

Processing approval of overtime before such hours are Department will review department with TCC on the 
incurred or paid . overtime authorization practices status of this 

over the coming year to ascertain recommendation. 
where additional approval 
procedures, if any, may be needed. 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probabil ity. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, with maximum possible scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 
possible combined score of 20. 6 
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APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

Rec.No. ~ntNIIme Audit Report DHcrlptlon Rlak Rlak RecomiMftdallon Statusuof OCA's Estimated 
Score September 30, 2014 Aaessmerit Completion Date 

14-31 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14003, 10 Impact: 5 We suggest that the Standard: Corrective Action , Please refer to the Board Not Accepted N/A 
I AND CAPABILITY dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 5 Section #J-4, be revised to include the steps the Communication memo from 

DEPARTMENT Human Resources performance management process plays in Thelia F. Bowens to the board , 
Services Performance corrective actions for employees. The dated June 19, 2014, discussing our 

procedures for initial conversations regarding 
rationale for rejecting this finding . 

performance improvement and disciplinary action 
should be formalized for managers, to ensure 
that actions taken are consistent for similar 
problems across the Authority. As the current 
performance management system does not 
provide adding performance improvement 
guidance or disciplinary action to the quarterly 
reviews, we suggest TCC develop a form for 
managers to complete with the initial corrective 
action steps that the employee would sign 
acknowledgement. A copy of this initial action 
would be sent to TCC and filed in the employee's 
personnel file. Any additional updates and/or 
warnings would also be documented on the form 
and initialed by the employee. 
If the matter is settled to the manager's 
satisfaction within the specified time period, the 
final settlement should be documented with 
copies to the employee and TCC for the 
employee's personnel file, or in the performance 
management system if the settlement coincides 
with the annual performance review. If the 
improvement Is not satisfactory, the manager 
should develop a formal corrective action plan 
with a TCC representative who works with the 
manager and employee throughout the process. ~ 

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probability. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, with maximum possible scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 

possible combined score of 20. 7 
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APPENDIX C: Status of OCA Recommendations as of September 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Report 

Rec.No. o.p.tmenttume Audit RepeNt DHcriptlon 
Risk Risk Recommendaloft Statusuof OCA'.s Estimated 

Score Sept8mber 30, 2014 As.sesament Completion Date ! 

14-33 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14003, 10 Impact: 5 The hiring process and procedures should A standard checklist for recruitments Completed N/A 
AND CAPABILITY dated June 10, 2014, Probability: 5 be standardized and summarized in a has been in place for all recruitments 

DEPARTMENT Human Resources checklist provided to all hiring managers so conducted by the Business Partners. It 

Services Performance they can complete the required steps as includes a provision for obtaining 

efficiently as possible. The checklist should recommendations from the hiring 

include a requirement that the hiring 
manager regarding websites and other 
sources for posting positions with 

manager provide additional websites and specific technical needs. Hiring 
publications for posting positions with managers are asked to confirm their 
specific technical needs to attract properly minimum qualifications and allowed the 
qualified candidates. Additionally, as hiring opportunity to review resumes as part of 
managers are ultimately responsible for the the recruitment process. 
hiring choices, they should be allowed to 
complete any part of the resume review to In addition, at the outset of the process 
expedite the process. If they complete the an email is sent to the hiring manager 

qualifications review, TCC staff would do a outlining the items needed and what will 

follow-up review for accuracy. be discussed during the pre-recruitment 
meeting/discussion along with a copy of 
the hiring guide. During the pre-
recruitment meeting, all of the steps of 
the recruitment process are reviewed 
with the hiring manager. -
We have recently developed an 
enhanced checklist that clearly outlines 
general responsibilities and timelines. A 
manager can request a variation of the 
standard process and this would be 
documented with an acknowledgement 
by the Hiring Manager. 

15-02 TALENT, CULTURE Audit Report #14005, 10 Impact: 5 We recommend that all Authority The TCC Department recently In Progress - End of FY15 
AND CAPABILITY dated July 18, 2014, Probability: 5 departments with hourly staff develop became aware of this The OCAwill 
DEPARTMENT Timekeeping Payroll written timekeeping procedures that have recommendation . Current continue to check 

Processing controls for the recording and reviewing of timekeeping is managed in with TCC on the 
time to ensure accuracy. Those procedures EnterpriseOne , which requires status of this 
should be reviewed with all current hourly management review and approval recommendation. 
staff and used as training resources for any of all recorded time for non-exempt 
new hourly staff. employees. The TCC Department 

will review time keeping practices in 
each department over the coming 
year to ascertain where additional 
controls or procedures, if any, may 
be needed. 

-~ ---------- - - · ----

NOTE: Risk Score is based upon the combined scores of Impact and Probabil ity. Both Impact and Probability are ranked on a scale of 1-10, with maximum possible scores (highest risk) of 10, and a maximum 

possible combined score of 20. 8 



SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 9 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Approve and Authorize the President/CEO to Execute a First Amendment to 
the Pest Control and Remediation Services Agreement With Cartwright 
Termite &. Pest Control, Inc. 

Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0134, approving and authorizing the President/CEO to 
execute a First Amendment to the Pest Control and Remediation Services Agreement 
with Cartwright Termite & Pest Control, Inc., which revises and combines the pest 
control and remediation services compensation language specified in Exhibit B, 
Compensation & Payment Schedule, of the Agreement. 

Background/Justification: 

On July 11, 2013, the Board adopted Resolution 2013-0070 awarding an agreement to 
Cartwright Termite & Pest Control, Inc. for provision of pest control and remediation 
services at San Diego International Airport. The agreement is for an initial 3-year term, 
expiring August 31, 2016, with an option for two (2) one-year extensions to be 
exercised at the discretion of the President/CEO, for a total not-to-exceed compensation 
of $2,800,000 for pest control services and $2,200,000 for remediation services. 

First Amendment Request 

Significant remediation progress has been made during the first 16 months of the 
agreement. To date, approximately $2.17M of the $2.2M has been expended on 
remediation. Although great gains have been realized through our partnership with the 
contractor, there is still more work to be completed throughout the airport terminals 
(T1, T2E, and T2W). As such, the $2.2M allocated for remediation services is 
insufficient to complete the remaining work. 

Remediation efforts have resulted in a reduction of pest control services. To date, 
approximately $770k of the $2.8M allocated for pest control services has been 
expended. Further cost reductions are anticipated as more areas are remediated and 
the need for pest control services is reduced. 

000265 



ITEM NO.9 
Page 2 of 3 

To ensure continued progress in our pest control and remediation efforts and to 
maximize use of allocated funds, staff is recommending that the language in Exhibit B, 
Compensation & Payment Schedule, of the Agreement be revised to combine pest 
control services and remediation services as a single not-to-exceed amount of $5M 
dollars. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Adequate funding for the pest control services agreement is included in the adopted FY 
2015 and conceptually approved FY 2016 Operating Expense Budgets within the 
Facilities Management Annual Repair and Service Contracts line item. The expense for 
this contract that will impact budget years not yet adopted or approved by the Board 
and will be included in future year budget requests. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

D Community 1:8] Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

D Employee 
Strategy 

1:8] Financial 
Strategy 

1:8] Operations 
Strategy 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act C'CEQA''), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act Review: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by 
the California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

The Authority has the following inclusionary programs/policies: a Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) Program, an Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (ACDBE) Program, Policy 5.12 and Policy 5.14. These programs/policies are 
intended to promote the inclusion of small, local, service disabled veteran owned, 
historically underrepresented businesses and other business enterprises, on all 
contracts. Only one of the programs/policies named above can be used in any single 
contracting opportunity. 

000 266 
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This contract does not utilize federal funds and provides limited opportunities for sub­
contractor participation; therefore; at the option of the Authority, Policy 5.12 was 
applied to promote the participation of qualified small businesses. Policy 5.12 provides a 
preference of up to five percent (5%) to small businesses in the award of selected 
Authority contracts. When bid price is the primary selection criteria, the maximum 
amount of the preference cannot exceed $200,000. The preference is only applied in 
measuring the bid. The final contract award is based on the amount of the original bid. 

In accordance with Policy 5.12, the recommended firm, Cartwright Termite & Pest 
Control, Inc. received a 5% small business preference under the prior preference 
standard of $100,000. 

Prepared by: 

MURRAY J. BAUER 
DIRECTOR, FACILmES MANAGEMENT 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2014-0134 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
PRESIDENT/CEO TO EXECUTE A FIRST 
AMENDMENT TO THE PEST CONTROL AND 
REMEDIATION SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
CARTWRIGHT TERMITE & PEST CONTROL, INC., 
WHICH REVISES AND COMBINES THE PEST 
CONTROL AND REMEDIATION SERVICES 
COMPENSATION LANGUAGE SPECIFIED IN 
EXHIBIT B, COMPENSATION & PAYMENT 
SCHEDULE, OF THE AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, on July 11 , 2013, the Board adopted Resolution 2013-0070 
awarding an agreement to Cartwright Termite & Pest Control , Inc. for provision of 
pest control and remediation services at San Diego International Airport; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement is for an initial 3-year term, expiring August 31 , 
2016, with an option for two (2) one-year extensions to be exercised at the 
discretion of the President/CEO, for a total not-to-exceed compensation of 
$2 ,800,000 for pest control services and $2,200,000 for remediation services; 
and 

WHEREAS, significant remediation progress has been made during the 
first 16 months of the agreement with approximately $2,170,000 of the 
$2,200,000 allocated for remediation services expended to date; and 

WHEREAS, although great gains have been realized through partnership 
with the contractor, there is still more work to be completed throughout the airport 
terminals (T1 , T2E, and T2W); and 

WHEREAS, the $2,200,000 allocated for remediation services is 
insufficient to complete the remaining work; and 

WHEREAS, remediation efforts have resulted in a reduction of pest 
control services with approximately $770,000 of the $2,800,000 allocated for pest 
control expended to date; and 

WHEREAS, further cost reductions in pest control services are anticipated 
as more areas are remediated and the need for pest control services is reduced ; 
and 
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Resolution No. 2014-0134 
Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, to ensure continued progress in pest control and remediation 
efforts and to maximize use of allocated funds , staff is recommending that the 
language in Exhibit B, Compensation & Payment Schedule, of the Agreement be 
revised to combine pest control services and remediation services as a single 
not-to-exceed amount of $5,000,000 dollars. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby approves 
and authorizes the President/CEO to execute a First Amendment to the Pest 
Control and Remediation Services Agreement with Cartwright Termite & Pest 
Control , Inc., which revises and combines the pest control and remediation 
services compensation language specified in Exhibit B, Compensation & 
Payment Schedule, of the Agreement; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority and its officers , 
employees, and agents hereby are authorized to do and perform all such acts as 
may be necessary or appropriate in order to effectuate fully the foregoing ; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board finds that this action is not a 
"project" as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Cal. 
Pub. Res . Code § 21 065) ; and is not a "development" as defined by the 
California Coastal Act (Cal. Pub. Res. Code§ 301 06). 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by the Board of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority at a regular meeting this 41

h day of December, 
2014, by the following vote: 

A YES: Board Members: 

NOES: Board Members: 

ABSENT: Board Members: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BRETON K. LOBNER 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

ATTEST: 

TONY R. RUSSELL 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE I 
AUTHORITY CLERK 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 10 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Grant an Easment for Electrical Equipment to San Diego Gas & Electric 

Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0135, authorizing the President/CEO to negotiate and 
execute an easement for electrical equipment with San Diego Gas & Electric in support 
of the Electrical Distribution System project. 

Background/Justification: 

The San Diego County Regional Airport Authority f'Authority'') is currently constructing 
an Electrical Distribution System f'12kV System'') that is an Authority owned campus­
wide system that will allow the Authority the opportunity to purchase bulk electricity at 
lower rates for its facilities. 

A study was performed by the 12kV System design team and it was determined that 
there was an excessive voltage drop on a feeder from a San Diego Gas & Electric 
f'SDG&E'') circuit located on Airport property that would affect the performance of the 
12kV System. The Authority requested SDG&E to review the issue and SDG&E agreed to 
install a new capacitor bank on Airport property. The proposed type of equipment and 
location will eliminate the concern raised in the study and SDG&E will pay all costs 
associated with the installation of the equipment. 

An easement f'Easement'') is proposed to be granted to SDG&E to cover the proposed 
equipment and associated electrical line for the area depicted in "Exhibit A". The 
Easement covers approximately 605 square feet of Airport property and is necessary to 
allow SDG&E the right to maintain, operate and repair the electrical equipment at its 
cost, including any and all appurtenances thereto, together with the right of ingress and 
egress along the Easement area. 

The property covered by the subject Easement is leased by the Authority from the San 
Diego Unified Port District f'Port'') under a Lease dated January 1, 2005 covering the 
former Teledyne Ryan property (Authority Document No. LE-0286). The duration of the 
term for the proposed Easement is coterminous with the term of the Authority's Lease 
from the Port which expires on December 31, 2068, and any extensions thereof. The 
Easement may be terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions set forth in the General 
Utility Purpose Easement document. 



ITEM N0.10 
Page 2 of 2 

Fiscal Impact: 

The proposed Easement does not provide for monetary consideration to be paid to or by 
the Authority and SDG&E will be responsible for the cost of installing the equipment 
described above. Therefore, there is no direct fiscal impact. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

D Community D Customer D Employee D Financial k8J Operations 
Strategy Strategy Strategy Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

A. California Environmental Quality Act: This Board action is not a project that would 
have a significant effect on the environment as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act f'CEQA''), as amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This 
Board action is not a "project" subject to CEQA. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by the 
California Coastal Act Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not Applicable 

Prepared by: 

SUSAN DIEKMAN, REAL ESTATE MANAGER 
BUSINESS & FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2014-0135 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT/CEO 
TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AN EASEMENT 
FOR ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT WITH SAN DIEGO 
GAS & ELECTRIC IN SUPPORT OF THE 
ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the San Diego County Regional Airport Authority ("Authority") 
currently leases Airport property from the San Diego Unified Port District ("Port") 
pursuant to that certain Lease dated January 1, 2005 and bearing Authority 
Document No. LE-0286; and 

WHEREAS, paragraph 4 in said Lease specifies that Authority may, at its 
own expense, make alterations or changes, or cause to be made, built, installed , 
or remove any structures, machines, appliances, utilities, signs, or other 
improvements necessary or desirable for the authorized use of the Leased 
Airport without the approval of the Port; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is currently constructing an Electrical 
Distribution System ("12kV System") that is an Authority owned campus-wide 
electrical distribution system that will allow the Authority the opportunity to 
purchase bulk electricity at lower rates for its facilities ; and 

WHEREAS, the 12kV System design team determined that there was an 
excessive voltage drop on a feeder from SDG&E equipment located on Airport 
property that would affect the performance of the 12kV System; and 

WHEREAS, SDG&E agreed to install new equipment on Airport property 
that would eliminate the problem of the excessive voltage drop at their cost; and 

WHEREAS, an easement ("Easement") is proposed to be granted to 
SDG&E to cover the proposed equipment and associated electrical line; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Easement is necessary to allow SDG&E the 
right to construct, reconstruct , maintain, operate and repair the electrical line at 
its cost, including any and all appurtenances thereto , together with the right to 
ingress and egress along the Easement area. 
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Resolution No. 2014-0135 
Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby authorizes 
the President/CEO to negotiate and execute an easement for electrical 
equipment with San Diego Gas & Electric in support of the Electrical Distribution 
System project; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board finds this Board action is not a 
"project" that would have a significant effect on the environment as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), as amended 14 Cal. Code Regs. 
§15378; this Board action is not a "project" subject to CEQA Pub. Res. Code 
§21 065; and under the California Coastal Act Review, this Board action is not a 
"development" as defined by the California Coastal Act Pub. Res. Code Section 
§30106. 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by the Board of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority at a regular meeting this 4th day of December, 
2014, by the following vote: 

A YES: Board Members: 

NOES: Board Members: 

ABSENT: Board Members: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BRETON K. LOBNER 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

ATTEST: 

TONY R. RUSSELL 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE I 
AUTHORITY CLERK 
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SAN DIEGO COUNTY Item No. 
REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 11 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 4, 2014 

Subject: 

Authorize the President/CEO to Consent to a Solar Services and Site Sublease 
Agreement Between Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC and San Diego Spear 
Point Solar I, LLC 

Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2014-0136, authorizing the President/CEO to negotiate and 
execute an agreement consenting to a Solar and Site Sublease Agreement between 
Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC and San Diego Spear Point Solar I, LLC to allow the 
installation and operation of solar panels and related improvements within the Landmark 
Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC premises. 

Background/Justification: 

On February 9, 2012, the Board adopted Resolution 2012-0019 granting a 37-year lease 
(the "Master Lease") to Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC C'Landmark Aviation'') to 
develop a full-service, corporate and general aviation Fixed Base Operator C'FBO'') 
facility on the north side of San Diego International Airport C'Airport''). The Master 
Lease covers approximately 12.4 acres of land upon which Landmark Aviation is required 
to design, finance, and construct a $39 million LEED Platinum certified facility. (The 
location of the Landmark Aviation leasehold is as identified on the attached map 
identified as Attachment A.) Landmark Aviation opened the first phase of its new facility 
August 1, 2014, and is currently working to complete the final phases of work including 
remaining portions of aircraft ramp. Additionally, as part of Landmark Aviation's plan 
and contractual requirement to achieve LEED Platinum certification for its development; 
solar panels are proposed to be placed on the hangar roofs. 

Landmark Aviation has negotiated a Solar Services Site Sublease Agreement ('Sublease'') 
with San Diego Spear Point Solar I, LLC, f'Spear Point'') to provide and install solar 
panels in exchange for a negotiated rate for the energy provided; sometimes referred to 
as a Power Purchase Agreement. The term of the Sublease is proposed to be 25 years 
and may be extended by Landmark Aviation and Spear Point; provided, however, in no 
event shall the sublease term extend beyond the term of the Master Lease. All 
construction, installation, maintenance and operation costs for the solar panels will be 
funded by Landmark Aviation and/or Spear Point. All improvements will be within the 
premises leased to Landmark Aviation by the Authority and no additional Authority 
property is required. 
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ITEM NO. 11 
Page 2 of 2 

Pursuant to Authority Policy 6.01, LEASING POLICY, Board approval is required for all 
subleases with terms in excess of five (5) years. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The cost of the installation and maintenance of the proposed solar panels will be borne 
by Landmark Aviation and/or Spear Point. Therefore, there is no financial impact to the 
Authority. 

Authority Strategies: 

This item supports one or more of the Authority Strategies, as follows: 

~ Community 0 Customer 
Strategy Strategy 

Environmental Review: 

0 Employee 
Strategy 

0 Financial 
Strategy 

0 Operations 
Strategy 

A. CEQA: This Board action is not a project that would have a significant effect on the 
environment as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act CCEQA"), as 
amended. 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15378. This Board action is not a "project" subject to 
CEQA. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21065. 

B. California Coastal Act: This Board action is not a "development" as defined by the 
California Coastal Act. Cal. Pub. Res. Code §30106. 

Application of lnclusionary Policies: 

Not applicable 

Prepared by: 

ERIC PODNIEKS 
REAL ESTATE MANAGER, BUSINESS & FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2014-0136 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF THE 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT/CEO 
TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 
CONSENTING TO A SOLAR AND SITE SUBLEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN LANDMARK AVIATION 
GSO-SAN, LLC AND SAN DIEGO SPEAR POINT 
SOLAR I, LLC TO ALLOW THE INSTALLATION AND 
OPERATION OF SOLAR PANELS AND RELATED 
IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE LANDMARK 
AVIATION GSO-SAN, LLC PREMISES 

WHEREAS, on February 9, 2012 , the Board adopted Resolution 2012-
0019 granting a 37-year lease (the "Master Lease") to Landmark Aviation GSO­
SAN, LLC ("Landmark Aviation") to develop a full-service , corporate and general 
aviation Fixed Base Operator facility on the north side of San Diego International 
Airport ("Airport"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Master Lease granted by the Authority, 
Landmark Aviation has a contractual requirement to achieve LEED Platinum 
certification for its development; and 

WHEREAS, Landmark Aviation has negotiated a Solar Services Site 
Sublease Agreement ("Sublease") with San Diego Spear Point Solar I, LLC, 
("Spear Point") to provide and install solar panels in exchange for a negotiated 
rate for the energy provided ; 

WHEREAS, the solar panels to be installed via the sublease is part of 
Landmark Aviation 's efforts to achieve LEED Platinum certification; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Sublease is 25 years and may be extended by 
Landmark Aviation and Spear Point; provided , however, in no event shall the 
Sublease term extend beyond the term of the Master Lease; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Authority Policy 6.01 , LEASING POLICY, Board 
approval is required for all agreements and subleases with a term in excess of 
five (5) years. 



Resolution No. 2014-0136 
Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby authorizes 
the President/CEO to negotiate and execute an agreement consenting to a Solar 
and Site Sublease Agreement between Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, LLC and 
San Diego Spear Point Solar I, LLC to allow the installation and operation of 
solar panels and related improvements within the Landmark Aviation GSO-SAN, 
LLC premises; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board finds this action is not a "project" 
as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (California 
Public Resources Code§ 21 065); and is not a "development" as defined by the 
California Coastal Act (California Public Resources Code§ 301 06). 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by the Board of the San Diego 
County Regional Airport Authority at a regular meeting this 4 th day of December, 
2014, by the following vote: 

A YES: Board Members: 

NOES: Board Members: 

ABSENT: Board Members: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BRETON K. LOBNER 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

ATIEST: 

TONY R. RUSSELL 
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & 
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE I 
AUTHORITY CLERK 
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 San Diego Airport’s Sustainable Energy Strategy  
Addressing the Ecology, Equity and Economics of the Airport’s Energy Usage 

SDCRAA Board Meeting  

December 4th, 2014 

Presented by: Development & Finance 

Staff Report Title: 

 

Approve and Authorize the President/CEO to 

Negotiate and Execute a Site Lease Agreement 

and Solar Power Purchase Agreement to 

Finance, Design, Install, Operate, and Maintain a 

Solar Photovoltaic Generating System with 

Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, at San Diego 

International Airport  
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The Big Picture 

 

 

 



Career Highlights: 

• Executive Director, California Public 
Utilities Commission 

• Executive Director, California Energy 
Commission 

• President, Woodside Natural Gas of 
California 

• Chief Deputy Director, California 
Department of Finance 

• Chief Consultant, California Senate 
Budget Committee 

• Chief Consultant, California Senate 
Utilities and Transit Committee 

 3 

Steve Larson – San Francisco 
• Energy Policy & Regulation 
• Liquefied Natural Gas Strategies 
• Utility Policy & Regulation 
• State Budgetary Issues 

California Energy, Utility, Policy & Regulation 



 

The Strategy 
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Ecology 

The 3 E’s of Sustainable Development 

5 Authority Strategies 

Equity 

Economics 

Financial 

Customer 

Community 

Employee 

Operational 
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Sustainable Energy Strategy 

Overarching Objectives 

Energy Independence 

Energy Efficiency & Conservation 

Carbon Neutrality 

Cost Containment 

Leadership: Mastering the Art of Airports 
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Airport’s Energy and Water Concerns 

Decrease in regional energy resources 20% 

Limited water supply; water-energy nexus 80% 
imported 

Escalating energy rates 
• 26% increase for 1st Quarter FY’15 

• 22% projected annual increase FY’15 

22% 

over last 

year  
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Energy use major source of carbon print 
 

 
52% 
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Airport’s Electricity Consumption 

Direct correlation between energy 
consumption and carbon emissions 
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Carbon Neutrality or capping emissions to our inventory base year 

(2010) can be achieved by adding renewable energy sources, such as 

solar, to our energy portfolio and increasing efficiencies in usage 

2010 baseline for emissions levels for electricity 

Carbon Emissions from Purchased Electricity 



52% 
24% 

5% 

2% 
17% 

Energy Usage 

2012 Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 
Airport Owned or Controlled Carbon Emission Sources 

Carbon Reduction 

Strategies 

 Energy efficiency and 

conservation measures 

(LEED) 

 

 Maximize use of 

renewable energy 

(Photovoltaics) 

 Low emissions vehicle 

conversions 

 Low emissions vehicle 

conversions 

 Low emissions vehicle 

conversions 

 Low emissions vehicle 

conversions 

 C & D recycling 
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Construction 

On-Airport Vehicles 

Off-Airport Vehicles 

Ground Serv. Equip. (GSE) 

Up to 30% 

reduction 

with PV 



Energy Strategy Development 

Recommendations 

Install airport-wide electrical microgrid system 

Employ utility-grade supervisory control 

& data acquisition system (SCADA) 

Develop alternative energy resources such as 

solar, cogeneration and fuel cells 

Pursue LEED certification to demonstrate 

energy efficiency features 
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Cargo Facility 
(planned) 

More Sustainable, Energy-Efficient Buildings 

Dual-Level 

Roadway 

Terminal 2 

Expansion 

Receiving & 

Distribution Center 

Facilities 

Management  

Existing Building 

Fixed Base 

Operation 

-or better- 

Leadership in Energy and  

Environmental Design (LEED) 
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Existing Power Distribution System| >100 Electrical Meters 

= electrical meters 
= 12kV lateral distribution line 

Central Plant 

Terminals 1 and 2 receive 
power  from existing 12-kV 
lateral distributions 

Remaining airport facilities 
receive power  from over 100 
different meters from  SDG&E 
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Lack of comprehensive connectivity throughout airport 

Many industrial meters on campus  =  $$$$ 

10-15% power loss through lateral distribution system 

Lack of campus-wide power reliability or redundancy 

Current State Issues: 
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12kV Microgrid Loop 

New Microgrid System| Campus-wide Energy Distribution  New Microgrid System| Campus-wide Energy Distribution  

Supports connectivity to entire airport & facilities 

Reduces electrical interruptions by rerouting power around loop 

Capable of 30MW power distribution to support future growth 

Enhances redundancy 

Reduces number of electrical meters which reduced costs  (>1003) 

15 



10 MW PV + 20 MW Co-Gen & Fuel Cell  30MW Future Capacity 

Planned Microgrid Energy 

Distribution System 

18MW 

cogeneration 

10MW 

photovoltaics 

(PV) 

2MW 

fuel cells 

Battery 

energy storage 
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The Project 
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Solar Implementation Plan 

Program History 

The Airport’s Sustainable Energy Strategy includes 

the use of solar generated power to help: 

Reduce Airport’s carbon footprint 

Control cost of electricity 

Electrical power will be provided to Airport 

through Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) 

Dec 4th, 2014 – Proposed Board Action Solar 

Photovoltaic (PV) PPA for Economy Parking Lot & 

Rental Car Center 

March 6th, 2014 – Board Authorized T2W PPA 
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*PPA approach allows for provider to 

monetize incentives and pass savings 

back to purchaser 

Benefits of Power Purchase 

Agreements (PPA) 
PPA firm will own, design, install, operate, and 

maintain solar PV generating system.   

No capital is required by Airport to finance 

system 

No PV maintenance required by Airport  

Airport only pays for power produced by PV 

system  

Cost of power is lower than utility rates today 

and more so in future   

Excellent option for public entity to take 

advantage of tax incentives* 

Power will be provided to Airport at fixed price 

over a 20-year term 



20 

There are two solar PV locations associated with this project that will 

generate a total of approximately 5.1 megawatts (160 million kWhs over 20-years) 

Proposed Solar Implementation Plan | North Side 

 Economy lot solar 

carport structure  

3.0 MW 

 Rooftop of RCC 

2.1 MW 
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Proposed Solar Implementation Plan | North Side 

On rooftop of RCC  

On custom structure 

to allow rental car 

parking beneath 

Rental Car Center (RCC) roof installation 



North Side 

Proposed Solar Implementation Plan 

Economy Parking Lot 

Economy Parking Lot 

Solar Carport Structure 
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Drive aisles remain clear 

Typical T-structure carport 

“T” structure carport over parking bays 

Typical carport installation 



Solar Implementation 
North Side 

At the end of the Power Purchase Agreement: 

 
 System can be purchased by the Airport Authority 

at fair market value 

 System can be removed at no cost to the Airport 

Authority; or 

 Airport Authority can extend the Power Purchase 

Agreement  

PPA cost of solar power generated over 20 year 

period, paid monthly @ $100K on average: 
 

 $22.3M at 100% energy production 

 $24.5M at 110% energy production  
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The Financials 
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North Side – Power Generation Options   

Buy Power 

from SD&E 

 
Power Purchase 

Agreement (PPA) 

  

Authority  

Build & Operate 

Solar Photovoltaic 

System 

 



North Side – Buy from SDG&E   

SDG&E Rate and Costs Assumptions 

 

FY 2016 – 10% rate increase, FY 2017 

- 2035 – 3% annual rate increase 

 

SDG&E costs over 20 years for the 

same energy production as PV system 

- $40.7 M 

 

Average Rate over 20 years - 

$0.25/kWh 
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  Cost - $40.7M 
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Total Cost: $40.7M 
 

$/kWh - $0.25 



 North Side – Build & Operate Solar Photovoltaic System Ourselves 
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Build - $34.7M 

 

$/kWh - $0.22 

SDG&E Costs & 

Savings - 

$14.6M 

 

$/kWh - $0.09 

Total Cost: $49.4M 

$/kWh - $0.31 Build & Operate Photovoltaic System 
Ourselves Assumptions 

Average rate over 20 years = $0.31/kWh 

*Due to Rounding 

Build & Operate Costs $34.7 M 

Additional SDG&E 
Costs & Savings  + $14.6 M 

Total Build & Operate 
Costs over 20 years  = $49.4 M*  



North Side – Photovoltaic Power Purchase Agreement 
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PPA - $22.3M 

 

$/kWh - $0.14 

SDG&E Costs  

&  

Savings - $14.6M 

 

$/kWh - $0.09 

Total Cost: $36.9M 

$/kWh - $0.23 

Photovoltaic PPA Assumptions 

Average Rate over 20 years - $0.23/kWh  

*Due to Rounding 

Power Purchase 

Agreement Costs  
$22.3 M 

Additional SDG&E 

Costs & Savings  
+$14.6 M 

Total PPA Costs over 

20 years  
=$36.9 M*  



North Side - Power Generation Options 
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SDG&E Costs 
& 

 Savings -  $14.6M  

SDG&E Costs 
& 

 Savings -  $14.6M 
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Total Cost: $49.4M 
      $/kWh - $0.31 
 

Total Cost: $36.9M 
      $/kWh - $0.23 

$/kWh - $0.09 

$/kWh - $0.09 Build - $34.7M 

 

$/kWh - $0.22 PPA - $22.3M 

 

$/kWh - $0.14 

SDG&E 

Cost - $40.7M 

 

$/kWh - $0.25 

Total Cost: $40.7M 
      $/kWh - $0.25 

Savings / (Loss) vs. SDG&E –   $3.8M 
NPV                                         –   $1.8M                            

SDG&E No PV 
Authority Build 

& Operate PV 
PV with PPA 

Savings / (Loss) vs. SDG&E – ($8.6M) 
NPV                                         – ($4.4M)                            



The Recommendation 
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 
No PV Solar 

 

Buy All Power 

From SDG&E  

 
PV Solar 

 

Authority 

Build & Operate 

 
PV Solar 

 

Through Power 

Purchase 

Agreement (PPA) 

North Side – Power Generation Options 

Carbon Emissions  

Reductions 

NO 

Carbon Emissions  

Reductions 

YES 

Carbon Emissions  

Reductions 

YES 

Cost Savings 

NO 
Cost Savings 

NO 
Cost Savings 

YES 



 Borrego Solar Systems, Inc. 

 Solar Developer 

 Founded in 1980 and headquartered in San Diego 

 112 total employees  

 25 employees in San Diego Office, 23 live in County  

 Over 250 commercial installations nationwide 

 Over 140 megawatts of capacity installed nationwide, 9.9 

megawatts installed in San Diego County 

 Responsible for design, construction, operations & maintenance 

 32 

Borrego Solar Systems, Inc. – Recommended Firm 
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  Recent Public Sector Installations: 
University of California, San Diego 

 Completed in 2008 and 2009  

 1.2 MW over 6 Sites 

 Financed via PPA 

San Diego Community College District 
 Completed in 2010 and 2011 

 2.8 MW over 8 Sites 

 Financed via PPA 

San Diego County Water Authority 
 Completed in 2011 

 1.7 MW over 3 Sites 

 Financed via PPA 
 

 

Borrego Solar Systems, Inc. – Recommended Firm 
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Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC 
Entity signing PPA with Airport Authority 

 

Will be created specifically to carry out this proposed solar PV 

project at the Airport 

 

Critical to Borrego Solar’s ability to finance the project 

 

Limited Liability Company can own the facility which qualifies 

for the tax credit, generate the credit and pass through to 

multiple owners 

Borrego Solar Systems, Inc. – Recommended Firm 



Approve and authorize the President/CEO to 

negotiate and execute: 
 

1) A site lease agreement with Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, for the 

development and installation of a solar photovoltaic (“PV”) 

generating system, for a maximum term of 20 years; and 
 

2) A solar power purchase agreement with Lindberg Field Solar 2, LLC, 

to finance, design, install, operate, and maintain the solar PV 

generating system for an amount not-to-exceed $24,500,000 and a 

maximum term limit of 20 years, at San Diego International Airport. 

35 

Recommendation 



























2015 Legislative 

Agenda 

December 4, 2014 

Presented by: Michael Kulis, 
Director, Inter-Governmental 
Relations 

Item 13 



2014 California Election Results 

• Bucked the National Trend/Republican Wave 

• Governor Brown – 4th and Final Term 

• One New San Diego Legislator – Senator Patricia 
Bates (San Diego and Orange County) 

• All Other Delegation Members Remain the Same 

• Democrats – Majority in both Chambers but no 
Supermajority 

• Assembly and Senate Leaders both from 
Southern California  

 



2014 State Legislative Review 
AB 2471 (Frazier) Public Contracts: change orders 
 Would have established a 60-day limit for required public entities 

issuing change orders  
 Public entities not meeting requirements would have been financial 

liable 
 The author decided not to pursue the bill following 

amendments 
 
SB 1350 (Lara) Baby diaper changing accommodations 
 Would have mandated a minimum of one baby diaper changing 

accommodation in new or renovated restrooms that are open to the 
public. 

 The bill was vetoed on 9/19/14  
 



2014 State Legislative Review 
AB 616 (Roth/Fuller) California Aid to Airports Program 
 Sponsored by California Airports Council  
 Would have provided Caltrans flexibility on awarding grants to airports 

to match federal Airport Improvement Program funds 
 The bill died on Senate Unfinished Business file 

 
AB 612 (Nazarian)  Transportation Network Companies: operating 

requirements   
 Would have required all charter party to enroll in the DMV Employer 

Pull Notice Program, participate in a DOJ background check, and 
participate in a drug testing program.    

 The bill failed passage in the Legislature  
 
 



2014 State Legislative Review 
AB 2293 (Bonilla) Transportation Network Companies: insurance 

coverage  
 Establishes insurance coverage requirements for TNCs, beginning July 1, 

2015 
 The bill was signed into law on 9/17/14 

 

AB 1787 (Lowenthal) Commercial Operations: lactation accommodation   
 Requires California’s major commercial airports to provide separate 

post-security rooms at each airport terminal for use by nursing mothers   
 SAN’s Terminal 1 and the Commuter Terminal were exempted 

 The bill was signed into law on 9/26/14 
 

 



2014 State Legislative Review 
AB 1598 (Rodriguez) Emergency Response Services: active shooter 

incidents 
 Requires first responders to take several specific actions to improve 

collaboration between agencies responsible for responding to active 
shooter incidents. 

 The bill was signed into law on 9/27/14  
 
AB 2516 (Gordon) Sea Level Rise Planning: database   
 Requires the creation and maintenance of a Planning for Sea Level Rise 

Database on the internet.   
 The bill was signed into law on 4/3/14 

 



2014 State Legislative Review 
SB 1204 (Lara/Pavley) California Clean Truck, Bus and Off-Road Vehicle 

and Equipment Program   
 Funds zero- and near-zero emissions related truck, bus, off-road vehicle 

and equipment projects, funded from cap-and-trade revenues 
 Preference given to projects in disadvantaged communities 

 Signed into law on 9/21/14 
 
SB 985 (Pavley) Stormwater Resource Planning    
 Requires jurisdictions opting to develop a stormwater resource plan to 

identify opportunities to use existing publicly-owned lands to capture 
and reuse stormwater 

 Signed into law on 9/25/14 

 



2015 Major State Issues and Legacy 

• Climate Policy 

• Infrastructure Investment 

• High Speed Rail 

• Water  

• Funding for Social Programs 

• Education 

 



2015 Aviation/Airport Issues 
• State Legislature Support of FAA Reauthorization Bill 

and PFC Modernization 

• Transportation Network Company Operations 

• Caltrans Aeronautics Funding/Grant Program 

• Energy Use Reductions/”Green” Energy 

• Cap-and-Trade Grants 

• Water Supply Management 

• High-Speed Rail   

 



2014 National Election Results 

• November Election - Loss for the President and 
Administration Policy Initiatives 

• GOP Won Control of the Senate 

• GOP Increased Majority in the House  

• All 5 San Diego Delegation Members Reelected   

• Losses Impact Committee Leadership   

• Wins allow GOP to Challenge President 

• “Tug-of-War” Between Mainstream GOP and Tea 
Party 

• GOP “Mandate” – From 36% Voter Turn Out  

 

 



Committee Leadership 

• Bill Shuster (PA) – Chairman of Transportation & 
Infrastructure Committee 

• Loss by Nick Rahall (WV) – Ensures New T&I 
Ranking Member  

• Committee to Consider Transportation 
Reauthorization and FAA Reauthorization Bills 

• Possible December 6th Loss for Mary Landrieu (LA)  

• Member of Homeland Security Committee 

• Chair of Homeland Security Appropriations 
Subcommittee  

 



2014 Federal Legislative Review 

• 113th Congress – Least Amount of Bills Enacted Since 
1948’s “Do-Nothing” Congress 

• No Fiscal Year 2015 Appropriations Bills Passed 

• 2 Competing Airline Ticket Disclosure Bills Introduced 

• H.R. 4156 (Shuster) & S.2290 (Menendez) 

• Voters’ Message to Congress:  

       “Priority Should Be to Fix Yourself” 



2014-2015 Major Federal Issues 
• Funding the Government Beyond December 11, 2014 

• Omnibus FY 2015 Bill  

• Continuing Resolution 

• Omnibus/Continuing Resolution Hybrid   

• Funding for Ebola, ISIS, Border Security 

• Tax Extender Bill  

• Immigration Reform 

• Terrorism Risk Insurance Act 

• Presidential Nominations  

 



2015 Aviation/Airport Issues 

• Surface Transportation and FAA Reauthorization Bills 

• Passenger Facility Charge 

• Airport Improvement Program Funding 

• DCA Slot Pairings 

• NextGen Funding 

• Transportation Network Company Regulation/Legislation 

• Customs and Border Protection Funding/Staffing 

• TSA Exit Lane Staffing  

 



Questions?  







Item 14 

Definition and Preference for 
Local Business Enterprises 
and a Domestic Partners 
Equal Benefits Contracting 
Policy 
Jana Vargas, Director, Procurement 

Sonia Cruz, Program Manager, Small Business Development 

December 4, 2014 



Outline 
I. Policy 5.14, Small Business, Local Business 

and Service Disabled Veteran Owned 
Small Business (SDVOSB) Goal and 
Preference Program 

II. Policy 5.13, Local Business Opportunities 

III. Domestic Partner Equal Benefits 

IV. Discussion 
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Policy 5.14 

Small Business, Local 
Business and SDVOSB Goal 
& Preference Program 

3 



Definition 

Preferences are Received based on the Achievement of Goals 
Established for Small, Local and Service Disabled Veteran Owned 
Small Business (SDVOSB) 
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Policy 

Analysis 

 

Reviewed Current Active Contracts: 
 

• Contracts Greater Than $100,000 
 

• Excluded Art Program, Legal Services, Sole 
Source, Federally Funded & Cooperative 
Purchases (per Policy 5.04) 
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Current Local Participation is at 88% 

88% 

Policy Analysis 

6 



Policy 5.14 Impact 

• Per Board direction, we reviewed the impact of applying the local 
goal and preference to ALL solicitations eligible for a preference 
under Policy 5.14 

 

• Based on the last two years of data, if Policy 5.14 was applied with 
a local preference 100% of the time, there would have been no 
difference in contract awards or financial impact 
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Policy 5.13 

Local Business Opportunities 

8 



Definition 
A “Local Business” must meet all of the following criteria:  

 

(a) Have a valid business certificate issued by San Diego County, or a valid 
business license issued by a city within San Diego County, and  

 

(b) Twenty-five percent (25%) of the workforce based in the local office must 
reside in San Diego County; and  

 

(c) Be headquartered or have a physical commercial address located within the 
limits of San Diego County for a minimum of 6 months prior to the release of a 
solicitation for which a business responds as a local business participant.  

9 



Policy 

Analysis 

 

Reviewed Contracts Awarded from July 2012 – 
June 2014 

 

– Contracts Greater Than $100,000 

 

– Excluded Art Program, Legal Services, Sole 
Source, Federally Funded & Cooperative 
Purchases (per Policy 5.04) 
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Policy 5.13 Impact 

 

• If the definition of a local business would have required 50% of the 
workforce based in the local office to reside in San Diego County, 
there would have been no difference in contract awards or financial 
impact i.e., all winning bidders would have still qualified as local 
businesses 

11 



 

 

 

Domestic Partner 

Equal Benefits 

Contracting  

Policy 
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Definition 
 

An equal benefits policy would require third parties 
contracting with the Authority to have an employee benefit 
program that provides equal employee benefits to the 
domestic partners of their employees in the same manner 
and to the same extent as the benefits provided to the 
married spouses of their employees.  

13 



 

Analysis 

 

• More than sixteen state and local jurisdictions 
in the U.S. have enacted equal benefits 
ordinances (“EBOs”) 

• Public entities in California that have adopted 
equal benefits contracting ordinances 
include: 

• State of California 
• County of San Mateo 
• Los Angeles       
• San Francisco 
• San Diego 
• Oakland 
• Santa Monica 
• Long Beach 
• Berkeley 

14 



Legal Challenges 

• Prior to 2006, Equal Benefits 
Ordinances (EBO) have been 
challenged in court six times 
in four jurisdictions. 

• Three decisions concluded 
that ERISA preempt 
provisions provided by an 
EBO. 

 

• ERISA benefits include 
pension, health and 
retirement benefits. 

15 



Discussion 
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